
09.16.2024 

A-1
West End Special Education Local Plan Area 

8265 Aspen Ave., Ste. 200  
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

SELPA ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 AGENDA 

September 16, 2024           1:30 p.m.

A. Administrative Items:
1. Acceptance of Agenda for September 16, 2024 * Ricky Alyassi

________     _________    ________ 
 Motion     Second           Vote 

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes for May 06, 2024 * Ricky Alyassi
________     _________    ________ 

        Motion     Second           Vote 
3. Approval of Meeting Minutes for April 15, 2024 * Ricky Alyassi

________     _________    ________ 
        Motion     Second           Vote 
4. SELPA Administrator’s Report - Ricky Alyassi
5. Directors Reports - Ricky Alyassi

B. Public Comment:
The West End SELPA, SELPA Advisory Committee welcomes comments from visitors. Should anyone
wish to make comments, he/she may voluntarily complete a public comment form located at the table in
the back of the room. The Public Comment forms must be submitted prior to the beginning of the
meeting. The forms will be collected by the recording secretary and given to the meeting facilitator. The
Public Comment period is the opportunity for the public to address the members on (1) non-agenda items
within the jurisdiction of the members, and (2) items listed on the agenda. All public comments will be
allowed (3) three minutes per item, if a member of the public desires to be heard on more than (3) three
items appearing on the agenda, he/she will be allowed up to a total of (9) nine minutes to address all items
non-agenda and agenized. Each agenda item will have a total of 20 minutes for public comment on one
agenda item.
There will not be a separate opportunity to comment at the time each agenda item is addressed by
the Council unless the item specifically involves an agendize public hearing. All public comments will
be heard during the agendize public comment section B.

OPENING 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Notice: This meeting will be held IN-PERSON only. If you wish to participate in the meeting and/or make 
a public comment, please submit them to Natalie, in-person prior to the start of the meeting. 

Individuals requiring special accommodation, including but not limited to an American Sign Language 
interpreter, accessible seating, or documentation in accessible formats, should contact Natalie Vivar at (909) 
476-6131, at least two days before the meeting date.

1



09.16.2024 

C. Fiscal Items:
1. Fiscal Timelines and Matrix * Tim Chatkoo
2. Fiscal Allocation Plan – September 2024 * Tim Chatkoo
3. 2023-24 SBCSS Final Preschool Facility Cost Adjustment * Selina Hurley
4. 2023-24 SBCSS Final LCFF Revenue Transfer * Selina Hurley
5. 2023-24 SBCSS Fee-for-Service Actuals * Selina Hurley

a. Budgets to Actuals Summary Comparison
b. FFS Year-End Actuals – Detailed
c. FFS Return

6. SBCSS First Class Update - Selina Hurley
7. 2023-24 SELPA Administrative Budget Year-End Update * Tim Chatkoo
8. 2023-24 Low Incidence Year-End Update * Tim Chatkoo
9. 2023-24 4th Quarter-Final Joint Risk Fund Reimbursement * Tim Chatkoo
10. 2023-24 Mental Health Year-End Update * Tim Chatkoo
11. 2023-24 Joint Risk Fund Return * Tim Chatkoo
12. AB602 Funding Models Certified June 2024

a. 2021-22 Annual R-3
b. 2022-23 Annual R-1
c. 2023-24 P-2

13. 2024-25 Low Incidence Preliminary Projection * Tim Chatkoo
14. 2024-25 Projected AB602 Funding Model * Tim Chatkoo
15. 2024-25 Projected Mental Health Funding Model * Tim Chatkoo

D. Program Items:
1. Program Transfer Notification Timeline * Ricky Alyassi
2. Revised 2024/25 SELPA Advisory Mtg Schedule * Ricky Alyassi
3. District CAC Appointments: Chaffey, Chino Valley, Etiwanda, * Ricky Alyassi

and Upland (odd year)
4. WESELPA Legal Agreement – Lozano Smith * Ricky Alyassi
5. West End SELPA Procedural Manual * Anthony Farenga

E. Future Agenda Items - Ricky Alyassi
F. Adjournment - Ricky Alyassi

________     _________    ________
Motion     Second           Vote

The meeting location for SELPA Advisory Committee will be held at 8265 Aspen Ave., Rancho Cucamonga, CA 
91730. Agenda packets are available on the WESELPA website weselpa.sbcss.k12.ca.us or you may request an agenda 
packet by calling (909) 476-6131, 72 hours before the scheduled meeting.  A fee of ten cents (.10) per page will be 
charged for copied agenda packet.   

* Handout Included            ** Handout to be distributed at the meeting      - No Handout

NOTICE: Individuals requiring special accommodation, including but not limited to an American Sign Language 
interpreter, accessible seating, or documentation in accessible formats, should contact Natalie Vivar at (909) 476-
6131, at least two days before the meeting date.  

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/ADJOURNMENT 

A-1

2



 

05.06.2024 

 
West End SELPA 

SELPA Advisory Committee 

Meeting Minutes 
May 06, 2024 

 

District Present Absent 
Alta Loma Ryan Peterson Lisabeth Pina 
Central  Shermella Roquemore, Kym Tovar 
Chaffey Joint Union Kelly Martinez, Tammie Vaught  
Chino Valley Unified Cheli McReynolds  Liz Pensick 
Cucamonga  Tracee Stewart, Sandy Velazquez 
Etiwanda Elizabeth Freer Michael Mancuso 
Mountain View  Jan Van Dyke, Steven Rollins 
Mt. Baldy  Kate Huffman 
Upland Unified Ryan Parry  Jeanette Sanchez 
SBCSS   
SBCSS - West End, 
Student Services 

  

West End SELPA Ricky Alyassi, Tim Chatkoo, Natalie 
Vivar 

 

 

CALLED TO ORDER: 
SELPA Chief Administrative Officer called the meeting to order at 1:45 p.m. A quorum was not present; 
No motions were made or voted upon.   
 
A. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

1. Acceptance of Agenda for May 06, 2024 
A quorum was not present. No motion was made or voted upon. 

 
2. Approval of Meeting Minutes for April 15, 2024 

A quorum was not present. No motion was made or voted upon. The meeting minutes for 
April 15, 2024, will be brought forward to the September 2024 meeting.  

 
3. SELPA Chief Administrative Officer’s Report 

The SELPA Chief Administrative Officer shared a program highlight video for the West End 
SELPA TPP program. No questions or comments from committee members. Over 400 people 
attended the art & writing showcase at Gardiner Auditorium. We do not have an official 
video but have some raw footage to share. CAO highlighted the poets, the marching band 
individual, the class performances, and the ukelele performance.  
 

4. Directors Report 
None 

 

A-2 

3



05.06.2024 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
Rita Fernandez Loof submitted three public comments, addressing concerns for the following agenda
items B, C-6, and D-5/6. She urged the committee to consider amending the language of the fiscal
allocation plan; implementing Linda Mood Bell reading services to reduce the amount of due process;
lastly, to bring forward due process cases to district school boards for review to promote full
transparency.

Public commented concluded.

C. Fiscal Items
1. Fiscal Timelines and Matrix

The Fiscal Consultant reviewed the Fiscal Timelines and Matrix for the 23/24 school year,
including routine standards, fiscal transactions, and an account coding matrix as a reference
guide displaying where various transactions are recorded on the general ledger. No questions
or comments from committee members.

2. 2024-25 SELPA Administrative Budgets
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2024-25 SELPA Administrative Budgets. No questions
or comments from committee members.

3. 2023-24 Final 50% Mental Health Contribution
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Final 50% Mental Health Contribution. No
questions or comments from committee members.

4. 3-Year Transition Partnership Program (TPP) Contract (24/25-26/27)
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 3-Year Transition Partnership Program (TPP) Contract
(24/25-26/27). No questions or comments from committee members.

5. 2023-24 Low Incidence Update
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Low Incidence Update. No questions or
comments from committee members.

6. 2024-25 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Transfer
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2024-25 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Transfer. No
questions or comments from committee members.

7. 2023-24 Final 50% Joint Risk Fund Contribution Transfer
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Final 50% Joint Risk Fund Contribution
Transfer. No questions or comments from committee members.

8. 2023-24 3rd Quarter Joint Risk Fund Reimbursement Transfer
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 3rd Quarter Joint Risk Fund Reimbursement
Transfer. No questions or comments from committee members.

9. 2023-24 Final 50% Web-based IEP (SEIS) Contribution Transfer
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Final 50% Web-based (SEIS) Contribution
Transfer. No questions or comments from committee members.

A-2

4



05.06.2024 

10. 2023-24 Projected AB602 Funding Model
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Projected AB602 Funding Model. No questions
or comments from committee members.

D. Program Items
1. Community Advisory Committee Annual Report

The Chief Administrative Officer presented an overview of the Community Advisory 
Committee Annual Report. No questions or comments from committee members.

2. District CAC Appointments: Alta Loma, Central, Cucamonga, Mtn. View, and Mt. Baldy
(even year)
The Chief Administrative Officer presented the District CAC Appointments: Alta Loma, 
Central, Cucamonga, Mtn. View, and Mt. Baldy (even year). No questions or comments from 
committee members.

3. Memorandum of Understanding – Ontario-Montclair SD
The Chief Administrative Officer presented an overview of the Memorandum of 
Understanding – Ontario-Montclair SD. No questions or comments from committee members.

4. Memorandum of Understanding – East San Gabriel SELPA
The Chief Administrative Officer presented an overview of the Memorandum of 
Understanding – East San Gabriel SELPA. No questions or comments from committee 
members.

5. WESELPA Agreement for Legal Services
The Chief Administrative Officer presented the WESELPA Agreement for Legal Services. 
The item will be taken to Superintendents’ Council for review/approval. No questions or 
comments from committee members.

6. Local Plan – 2nd Read
The Chief Administrative Officer presented an overview of the 2024-25 Local Plan – 2nd 

Read – Section B – Governance and Administration. The Chief Administrator shared that a 
thorough review of the local plan was completed with In-house Counsel. The Chief 
Administrative Officer highlighted key revisions, including changes to the CAC selection 
process, Charter School Policy, staffing updates such as the addition of the In-house Counsel 
position, removal of the Clinical Counsel position, and minor revisions to the job descriptions 
for In-house Counsel, Program Manager, Psychologist, and personnel description. The Fiscal 
Consultant presented a thorough overview of Section D - Annual Budget Plan. The Chief 
Administrator provided a thorough overview of Section E - Annual Service Plan. The 
Etiwanda Director inquired whether the entire document would be voted on by the 
Superintendents at the upcoming meeting. The Chief Administrator confirmed the item would 
be brought to Superintendents’ Council for review/approval. No additional questions or 
comments from committee members.

7. 2024-25 Revised SELPA Advisory Meeting Schedule

A-2

5



05.06.2024 

The Chief Administrative Officer presented the 2024-25 Revised SELPA Advisory Meeting 
Schedule. A revision to the January 2025 meeting was made. The meeting has been 
rescheduled to January 13, 2025. No questions or comments from committee members.  

E. Future Agenda Items
None

F. Adjournment
A quorum was not present. No motion was made or voted upon.

The meeting adjourned at 2:32 pm

A-2

6



04.15.2024 

West End SELPA 
SELPA Advisory Committee

Meeting Minutes 
April 15, 2024 

District Present Absent 
Alta Loma Ryan Peterson Lisabeth Pina 
Central Kym Tovar Shermella Roquemore 
Chaffey Joint Union Kelly Martinez, Tammie Vaught 
Chino Valley Unified Cheli McReynolds, Liz Pensick 
Cucamonga Sandy Velazquez Tracee Stewart 
Etiwanda Elizabeth Freer, Michael Mancuso 
Mountain View Jan Van Dyke, Steven Rollins 
Mt. Baldy Kate Huffman 
Upland Unified Ryan Parry, Jeanette Sanchez 

SBCSS Selina Hurley, Anthony Warnecke, 
Grace Granados, Lorena Gutierrez 

SBCSS - West End, 
Student Services 

Jim Wood 

West End SELPA Ricky Alyassi, Tim Chatkoo, Natalie 
Vivar, Anthony Farenga 

CALLED TO ORDER: 
SELPA Chief Administrative Officer called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 

A. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
1. Acceptance of Revised Agenda for April 15, 2024
Motion made by Sandy Velasquez to accept the SELPA Advisory meeting agenda for March 04,
2024, as presented, seconded by Jan VanDyke, motion carried on a 10-0-0-7 vote.
Ayes: Ryan Peterson, Kym Tovar, Kelly Martinez, Tammie Vaught, Cheli McReynolds, Sandy
Velazquez, Jan Van Dyke, Steven Rollins, Ryan Parry, Jeanette Sanchez
Nays: 0
Abstain: 0
Absent: 7
No questions or comments were provided by committee members.

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes for March 15, 2024
Motion made by Steven Rollins to accept March 15, 2024 meeting minutes as presented,
seconded by Ryan Parry, motion carried on a 9-0-1-7 vote.
Ayes: Ryan Peterson, Kym Tovar, Kelly Martinez, Cheli McReynolds, Sandy Velazquez, Jan
Van Dyke, Steven Rollins, Ryan Parry, Jeanette Sanchez
Nays: 0
Abstain: 1 (Chaffey)

A-3

7



04.15.2024 

Absent: 7 
No questions or comments were provided by committee members. 

3. SELPA Chief Administrative Officer’s Report
The SELPA Chief Administrative Officer shared a program highlight video for the West End
SELPA TPP program. No questions or comments from committee members.

4. Directors Report
None

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
None.

C. Fiscal Items
1. Fiscal Timelines and Matrix

The Fiscal Consultant reviewed the Fiscal Timelines and Matrix for the 23/24 school year,
including routine standards, fiscal transactions, and an account coding matrix as a reference
guide displaying where various transactions are recorded on the general ledger. No questions
or comments from committee members.

2. 2023-24 Projected State Special Schools Adjustment Reimbursement Transfer
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Projected State Special Schools Adjustment
Reimbursement Transfer. No questions or comments from committee members.

3. 2023-24 Projected Mental Health Funding Model
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Projected Mental Health Funding Model. No
questions or comments from committee members.

4. 2024-25 Preliminary Mental Health Funding Model
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2024-25 Preliminary Mental Health Funding Model.
Chaffey Fiscal inquired when negotiated NPS/Residential Treatment Center rates will be
finalized. The fiscal consultant addressed the inquiry. No additional questions or comments.

5. 2023-24 Projected AB602 Funding Model
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2023-24 Projected AB602 Funding Model. Mountain
View Fiscal inquired about the countywide ADA count. The fiscal consultant addressed the
inquiry. No additional questions or comments.

6. 2024-25 Preliminary AB602 Funding Model
The Fiscal Consultant presented the 2024-25 Preliminary AB602 Funding Model. Mountain
View Fiscal inquired specifically related to program transfer timelines, county program
takeback FTE, and increased fee-for-service costs. The Chief Administrative Officer
addressed the inquiry regarding the program transfer timelines. The Area Director – of West
End Student Services addressed the county program takeback FTE/fee-for-service costs. No
questions or comments from committee members.

7. 2024-25 SBCSS Fee-for-Service Rates

A-3

8



04.15.2024 

Accountant, Business Services Branch, Internal Business Services presented the 2024-25 
SBCSS Fee-for-Service Rates. Mountain View Fiscal inquired specifically related to the 
budget assumptions and cola processes/cola determination. The Accountant, Business 
Services Branch addressed the inquiry. No additional questions or comments from committee 
members.  

8. 2024-25 Student Services Counseling Intensive Therapeutic Services Fee-for-Service
Accountant, Business Services Branch, Internal Business Services presented the 2024-25
Student Services Counseling Intensive Therapeutic Services Fee-for-Service. No questions or
comments from committee members.

9. 2024-25 SBCSS Projected Preschool Facility Cost
Accountant, Business Services Branch, Internal Business Services presented the 2024-25
SBCSS Projected Preschool Facility Cost. No questions or comments from committee
members.

D. Program Items
1. 2024-25 Proposed Meeting Schedule

The Chief Administrative Officer presented the 2024-25 Proposed Meeting Schedule. No
questions or comments from committee members.

2. 2023-24 Year-End Review of WESELPA Priorities
The Chief Administrative Officer presented the 2023-24 Year-End Review of WESELPA
Priorities highlighting each of the following: systems-based, outreach and engagement, and
continuous improvement. No questions or comments from committee members.

3. 2024-25 Proposed WESELPA Priorities
The Chief Administrative Officer presented the 2024-25 Proposed WESELPA Priorities
highlighting each of the following: systems-based, outreach and engagement, and continuous
improvement. No questions or comments from committee members.

4. Local Plan – 1st Read
The Chief Administrative Officer presented an overview of the 2024-25 Local Plan – 1st Read
– Section A – Governance and Administration. A thorough review of the local plan was
completed with the In-house Counsel. The Chief Administrative Officer highlighted revisions
made to the local plan including the CAC selection process, Charter School Policy, and
staffing including the added in-house counsel position and removal of the clinical counsel
position. The Fiscal Consultant presented an overview of Section D – Annual Budget Plan
and lastly, the Chief Administrative Officer presented an overview of Section E – Annual
Service Plan. No questions or comments from committee members.

5. WESELPA Organizational Chart
The Chief Administrative Officer presented the WESELPA Organizational Chart. No
questions or comments from committee members.

6. District CAC Appointments: Alta Loma, Central, Cucamonga, Mtn. View, and Mt. Baldy
(even year)

A-3

9



04.15.2024 

The Chief Administrative Officer presented the District CAC Appointments: Alta Loma, 
Central, Cucamonga, Mtn. View, and Mt. Baldy (even year). No questions or comments from 
committee members.  

E. Future Agenda Items
None

F. Adjournment
Motion made by Tammie Vaught to adjourn the SELPA Advisory meeting, on March 04, 2024,
seconded by Steven Rollins, motion carried on an 11-0-0-6 vote.
Ayes: Ryan Peterson, Kym Tovar, Kelly Martinez, Tammie Vaught, Cheli McReynolds, Sandy
Velazquez, Jan Van Dyke, Steven Rollins, Ryan Parry, Jeanette Sanchez, Liz Pensick
Nays: 0
Abstain: 0
Absent: 6

The meeting adjourned at 2:31 pm

A-3

10



2024/25 West End SELPA Timelines

Page 1 of 4 

JULY 2024 – (No SELPA Advisory Committee) 

• SELPA to prepare June certifications for PY (23/24, 22/23, 21/22) AB602 Funding Models

• Districts to provide PY (23/24) Low Incidence Final Invoices no later than July 15 to the SELPA

• SELPA to submit Annual Nonpublic School ADA to districts by July 7, due to CDE July 15

• Districts to provide Report 3 (Apr 1 – Jun 30) expenditure reports to SELPA for PY (23/24) Local
Assistance, by July 25

• SELPA to submit PY (23/24) WorkAbility Final YE Expenditure Report(s) by July 31

• SELPA to submit PY (23/24) Annual Infant Funding Report to SBCSS by July 15, due to CDE July
31

AUGUST 2024 – (No SELPA Advisory Committee) 

• SELPA to review and update Fiscal Timelines schedule and Account Coding Matrix

• SELPA to review and update Fiscal Allocation Plan

SEPTEMBER 2024 – SELPA Advisory Committee 9/16 

Update • SELPA to present Fiscal Timeline schedule and Account Coding Matrix
Update • SELPA to present Fiscal Allocation Plan
Transfer • SELPA to present PY (23/24) Final 4th Quarter Joint Risk Fund reimbursement

transfer
Update • SELPA to present PY (23/24) Low Incidence Summary
Update • SELPA to present PY (23/24) Administrative Budgets reflecting year-end closings
Transfer • SBCSS to present PY (23/24) Final Preschool Facility Costs transfer
Transfer • SBCSS to submit the final PY (23/24) Fee-for-Service Revenue and Expenditures

Report reflecting surplus (return)/shortage (bill-back)
Transfer • SBCSS to present the PY (23/24) Second 50% transfer of Special Education ADA

revenue (LCFF)
Consent • SELPA to present June Certified PY (23/24, 22/23, 21/22) AB602 funding models
Transfer • SELPA to present PY (23/24) Final Mental Health contribution/Funding Model
Transfer • SELPA to present PY (23/24) Joint Risk Fund Return (if applicable)
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected AB602 Funding Model
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected Mental Health Funding Model
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Low Incidence Projection

• Districts to submit to SELPA Excess Cost Calculation by September 15

OCTOBER 2024 – (No SELPA Advisory Committee) 

• SELPA to request District Maintenance of Effort SEMA/SEMB DAT files from SBCSS Business
Advisory Services

• SELPA to verify District/SBCSS Table 8 Calculation

• SELPA to prepare claims for PY (23/24) NPS and Licensed Children’s Institution Extraordinary
Cost Pool to be submitted to CDE by October 30

C-1

11



2024/25 West End SELPA Timelines

Page 2 of 4 

NOVEMBER 2024 – SELPA Advisory Committee 11/4 
• SELPA to distribute CY (24/25) Preliminary December 1 Regional Provider Program Count

Reports using November 1 counts

• SELPA to submit SELPA Maintenance of Effort SEMA 23/24 Unaudited Actuals vs. Comparison
Year Actuals due to CDE by November 15

• SELPA to submit SELPA Maintenance of Effort SEMB 24/25 Budget due vs Comparison Year
Actuals to CDE by November 15

• SELPA to submit SELPA Maintenance of Effort Subsequent Year Tracking Worksheets to CDE
by November 15

• SELPA to submit SELPA Excess Cost Calculation(s) to CDE by November 15

• SELPA to submit SELPA Table 8 due to CDE by November 15

• Districts to submit CY (24/25) projected P-2 ADA to SELPA by November 5
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) 1st Interim Administrative Budgets

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected AB602 Funding Model

Transfer 
• SELPA to reimburse, from the Joint Risk Fund thru transfer, the resident district an

amount equal to the PY (23/24) final amount withheld from district apportionment for
the actual vs. estimated 10% excess cost for students in State Special Schools

Transfer • SBCSS Transportation to present PY (23/24) Final Transportation Excess Cost
transfer

Transfer • SBCSS Transportation to present CY (24/25) Initial 50% Transportation Excess
Cost transfer

Transfer • SBCSS to present CY (24/25) Initial 50% Preschool Facility Costs transfer
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Initial 50% Joint Risk Fund contribution
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Initial 50% Web-Based IEP contribution
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Initial 50% Mental Health contribution/Funding Model
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) 1st Quarter Joint Risk Fund reimbursement transfer

and year-end projections

DECEMBER 2024 – (No SELPA Advisory Committee) 

• SELPA to deliver CY (24/25) December 1 Regional Provider Program Count Reports; Verifications
reports due back to the SELPA within three weeks of receiving counts

JANUARY 2025 - SELPA Advisory Committee 1/13 

• SELPA to submit P-1 Nonpublic School ADA to districts by January 8, due to CDE January 15

• SELPA to submit to SBCSS Infant Funding Report for P-1 by January 15, due to CDE January
31

• Districts to provide Report 1 (Jul 1 – Dec 31) expenditure reports to SELPA for CY (24/25) Local
Assistance, by January 20

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected Mental Health Funding Model
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected AB602 Funding Model

FEBRUARY 2025 – (No SELPA Advisory Committee)  

• SELPA to prepare February certifications for CY (24/25) and PY (23/24, 22/23) AB602 Funding
Models

• SELPA to submit WorkAbility CY (24/25) Mid-Year Expenditure Report by February 15

C-1

12



2024/25 West End SELPA Timelines

Page 3 of 4 

MARCH 2025 – SELPA Advisory Committee 3/3 

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Low Incidence Projection
Transfer • SBCSS transportation to present CY (24/25) Mid-Year 50% Transportation Excess

Cost transfer
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) 2nd Quarter Joint Risk Fund Reimbursement transfer

and year end projections
Transfer • SBCSS to present the CY (24/25) Initial 50% transfer of Special Education ADA

revenue (LCFF)
Preliminary • SBCSS transportation to present FY (25/26) Preliminary Transportation Excess

Cost Projections 
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) 2nd Interim Administrative Budgets
Update • SBCSS to submit CY (24/25) Fee-for-Service 2nd Interim update including revised

FFS Rates (if applicable)
Consent • SELPA to present the CY (24/25) AB602 Certifications based on P-1 State Funding

Exhibit, projected P-2 ADA, and December 1 service counts - also present PY
AB602 allocations based on February Certifications

Transfer • SELPA to present the CY (24/25) Provider Program Facility Provision transfer
Transfer • SBCSS to present the CY (24/25) Mid-Year 50% Preschool Facility Costs transfer

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected Mental Health Funding Model

• SELPA to distribute CY (24/25) Preliminary April 1 Regional Provider Program Count Reports
using March 1 counts

APRIL 2025 – SELPA Advisory Committee 4/7 

Transfer • SELPA to reimburse, from the Joint Risk Fund thru transfer, the resident district for
the CY (24/25) estimated 10% educational excess cost for students in State Special
Schools

Update • Provider Programs (SBCSS) to present the FY (25/26) Regional Provider FFS
Rates

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected Mental Health Funding Model

Update • SELPA to present FY (25/26) Preliminary SELPA Administrative Budgets

Preliminary • SELPA to present FY (25/26) Preliminary Mental Health Funding Model

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected P-2 AB602 Funding Model

Preliminary • SELPA to present FY (25/26) Preliminary AB602 Funding Model

Preliminary • SBCSS to present the FY (25/26) Projected Preschool Facility Costs

• SELPA to deliver CY (24/25) April 1 Regional Provider Program Count Reports; Verification
Reports due back to the SELPA within three weeks of receiving counts

• SELPA to submit P-2 Nonpublic School ADA to districts by April 25, due CDE May 1

• SELPA to submit P-2 Infant Funding Report to SBCSS by April 25, due to CDE May 1

• Districts to provide SELPA CY (24/25) Low Incidence intents by April 1

• Districts to complete CY (24/25) Low Incidence purchases by April15

• Districts to provide Report 2 (Jan 1 – Mar 31) expenditure reports to SELPA for CY (24/25) Local
Assistance, by April 20

• SELPA/SBCSS to submit CY (24/25) Part C Early Start Application (& Request for Additional
Funds) to CDE by April 30

C-1

13



2024/25 West End SELPA Timelines

Page 4 of 4 

MAY 2025 – SELPA Advisory Committee 5/5 

• SELPA/SBCSS to submit Infant (ages 0-2) Program Growth Waiver Request, if applicable
Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Low Incidence Projection
Approval • SELPA to present FY (25/26) Joint Risk Fund contribution rate
Approval • SELPA to submit Annual Budget and Service Plan (districts to post public-

hearing notice at each school site at least 15 days prior to the public 
hearing) 

Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) 3rd Quarter Joint Risk Fund Reimbursement transfer
and year-end projections

Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Final 50% Joint Risk Fund contribution
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Final 50% Web-Based IEP contribution
Transfer • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Mid-Year 50% Mental Health contribution/Funding

Model

Update • SELPA to present CY (24/25) Projected P-2 AB602 Funding Model

JUNE 2025 – (No SELPA Advisory Committee) 

• Districts to provide Independent Education Evaluation 30% reimbursement invoices no later than
June 15 (if applicable)

• SELPA to submit WorkAbility FY (25/26) Projected Budget to CDE by June 15

C-1

14



T. Chatkoo 8/20/24

Fund Res Yr Goal Func Object Sch Mgmt

AB 602:
FROM State 

TO WE Stu Svc FFS 01 6500 0 5001 0000 8311 000 2800
TO SELPA PSRS 01 6500 0 5050 0000 8311 000 0284
TO SELPA Low Inc 01 6500 0 5760 0000 8311 000 0286
TO SELPA FFS 01 6500 0 5050 0000 8311 000 0289
TO Pass thru to Districts 10 6500 0 5001 0000 8311 000 WS28

FROM State 
TO WE Stu Svc FFS 01 6500 0 59XX 0000 8319 000 2800
TO SELPA PSRS 01 6500 0 59XX 0000 8319 000 0284
TO Pass thru to Districts 10 6500 0 59XX 0000 8319 000 WS28

FROM Pass thru 10 6500 0 5001 9200 7221 2XX WS28
TO District 01 6500 0 5001 0000 8792 000 0000

FROM Pass thru 10 6500 0 5001 9200 7221 2XX WS28
TO District 01 0000 0 5001 9200 7141 000 0000

FROM Pass thru 10 6500 0 59XX 9200 7221 2XX WS28
TO District 01 6500 0 59XX 0000 8792 000 0000

FROM State 
TO WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5001 0000 8097 000 2800

FROM State 
TO WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 59XX 0000 8097 000 2800

FROM District 01 6500 0 5001 2100 5110 000 0000
TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 0000 8677 2XX 0282

FROM WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5001 2100 5748 000 2800
TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 5748 000 0282

FROM District 01 6500 0 5760 1180 5110 XXX XXXX
TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 1180 8677 2XX 0282

FROM District 01 6500 0 5760 2100 5110 XXX XXXX
TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 8677 2XX 0282

FROM SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 0000 8677 2XX 0282
TO District 01 6500 0 5001 0000 8699 XXX XXXX

FROM SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 5748 000 0282
TO WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5001 2100 5748 000 2800

AB 602 District Apportionment-
Current Yr (if negative)

AB602 Revenue Distribution / 
Schedule F

WE Student Services Joint Risk 
Fund Contribution

Record Joint Risk Fund 
Contr from WE Stu Svc

Non LCI NPS/NPA 80%  and LCI 
NPS 100% Reimb Transfer

Quarterly Joint Risk Fund Reimb 
Transfer Col O

Record SELPA 
reimbursement

WE Student Services Joint Risk 
Fund Return

Return Prior Yr Excess to 
WE Student Services

Due Process/ADR Related 70%

SELPA Joint Risk Fund Return Return Prior Yr Excess to 
Districts

Record SELPA 
reimbursement

Quarterly Joint Risk Fund Reimb 
Transfer Col P

Record AB 602 district 
revenue for CY

AB602 Rev Distribution / Schedule 
B / Col R

AB 602 District Apportionment-
Current Yr

Accounting Codes 

AB 602 Apportionment-Current 
Year

Record AB 602 SELPA-wide 
Apportionment including 
SELPA PSRS, Low 
Incidence, and WE Stu Svc 
FFS revenue for CY

AB 602 Apportionment- Prior 
Year

Record AB 602 SELPA-wide 
Apportionment re-cert 

8

AB602 Rev Distribution / Schedule 
B / Col R 

State DepositRecord AB602 Property Tax 
for CY

State Deposit
Local Property Tax- PY Record AB602 Property Tax 

related to PY adjust

Joint Risk Fund:

PY AB602 Rev Distribution / 
Schedule B / Col R 

AB 602 District Apportionment-
Prior Yr

Record AB 602 district 
revenue for PY

Record Joint Risk Fund 
Contribution

District Joint Risk Fund 
Contribution

AB602 Revenue Distribution /   
Schedule B / Col P

PY AB602 Rev Distribution / 
Schedule B / Col P

AB602 Revenue Distribution / 
Schedule F

2024/25 WESELPA Special Education SACS Account Coding Matrix

REFERENCE

State Deposit

PY AB602 Rev Distribution /  
Schedule B / Col R 

1

State Deposit

Description

2

Purpose

AB602 Rev Distribution /  Schedule 
B / Col R

3

5

6

7

10

11

4

9

12

13

Local Property Tax-CY

Record AB 602 district 
revenue for CY

I:\Timelines & Matrix\Matrix\24-25 WE Account Code Matrix - 2024-08-20 Page 1 of 3

C-1

15



T. Chatkoo 8/20/24

Fund Res Yr Goal Func Object Sch Mgmt
Accounting Codes 

2024/25 WESELPA Special Education SACS Account Coding Matrix

REFERENCEDescription Purpose

FROM District 01 6546 0 5001 2100 5110 000 0000
TO SELPA 01 9286 0 7110 0000 8677 2XX WSMH

Facilities:
FROM District 01 0000 0 5001 9200 7141 XXX XXXX

TO District 01 0000 0 5XXX 9200 8710 XXX XXXX
FROM District 01 0000 0 0000 9200 7142 XXX XXXX

TO WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5730 0000 8710 2XX 282X
FROM WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5730 0000 8710 2XX 282X

TO District 01 0000 0 0000 9200 7142 XXX XXXX

FROM WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 59XX 9200 7221 XXX 2800
TO District 01 6500 0 59XX 0000 8792 XXX XXXX

Special Education ADA Revenue Transfer (LCFF):
FROM District 01 0000 0 0000 9200 7142 000 0000

TO WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5001 0000 8710 2XX 2800

FROM District 01 0000 0 5001 9200 7142 XXX XXXX
TO SBCSS 01 0281 0 5001 3600 8710 2XX 0281

State Special Schools:
FROM State

TO District 01 0000 0 5001 9200 7130 000 0000
FROM SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 5810 2XX 0282

TO District 01 0000 0 5001 0000 8677 000 0000
FROM State

TO District 01 0000 0 5001 9200 7130 000 0000
FROM District 01 0000 0 5001 9200 7130 000 0000

TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 5810 2XX 0282

AB602 Rev Distribution / Schedule 
L \ Col S

Transfer Request from SBCSS 
Internal Business Department

24

20

15

19

Preschool Facility Cost-CY

Special Education ADA Revenue 
Transfer (LCFF)

PY AB602 Rev Distribution / 
Schedule E

Transfer Request from SBCSS 
Internal Business Department

Record Preschool Facility 
Cost transfer

Transfer request from SBCSS 
Maintenance/Operations Dept

Transfer Request from SBCSS 
Internal Business Department

Record transfer of SpEd 
ADA revenue from Districts

Mental Health:
District Mental Health 
Contribution

Record Mental Health 
Contribution

AB602 Revenue Distribution / 
Schedule R

State Spec Sch PY Adjustment to 
District

State DepositRecord State Spec Sch PY 
Adj

AB602 Rev Distribution / Schedule 
E

State Deposit

22

State Spec Sch PY Adjustment 
Reimb to SELPA

14

Record PY Preschool Facility 
Cost transfer

18

16

23

17

21

Record Transp. to Provider 
Program Excess Cost

Record State Spec Sch 
Adjust. Reimb.

Record facility expense

Return PY excess fees - WE 
Stud Svc to Districts

Provider Program Facility 
Provision

Provider Program (FFS) Returns:

PY Preschool Facility Cost 
Adjustment

State Spec Sch Excess Costs 
Reimb to Dist

District to Provider Program 
Transp.  Excess Cost

State Spec Schools Excess Chrg 
to Dist.

Return of Apportionment FFS Adj

Record district 
reimbursement to SELPA

Transfer Request from SBCSS 
Internal Business Department

Special Education Transportation Transfer:

I:\Timelines & Matrix\Matrix\24-25 WE Account Code Matrix - 2024-08-20 Page 2 of 3

C-1

16



T. Chatkoo 8/20/24

Fund Res Yr Goal Func Object Sch Mgmt
Accounting Codes 

2024/25 WESELPA Special Education SACS Account Coding Matrix

REFERENCEDescription Purpose

Web-Based IEP:
FROM District 01 6500 0 5001 2100 5840 XXX XXXX

TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 8699 2XX 0282
FROM WE Stu Svc 01 6500 0 5001 2100 5740 000 2800

TO SELPA 01 9282 0 7110 2200 5740 000 0282

Miscellaneous:
FROM SELPA RSPS 01 6500 0 59XX 0000 8319 000 0284

TO SELPA JRF 01 9282 0 59XX 0000 8699 000 0282

FROM State
TO WE Stu Svc 01 3315 0 5731 0000 8182 000 0464
TO SELPA 01 3315 X 5050 0000 8182 000 0465

FROM State 
TO SELPA 01 3311 X 5050 0000 8181 000 WS11
TO Pass thru to Districts 10 3310 0 5001 0000 8287 2XX WS10

FROM Pass thru 10 3310 0 5001 9200 7211 2XX WS10
TO District 01 3310 0 5XXX 0000 8181 XXX XXXX

FROM SELPA 01 6500 0 5760 1180 5110 2XX 286
TO District 01 6500 0 5760 0000 8792 XXX XXXX

FROM State
TO SELPA 01 3345 X 5050 0000 8182 000 0467

FROM State
TO SELPA 01 3395 X 5050 0000 8182 000 0461

FROM DOR
TO SELPA 01 3410 0 5050 0000 8290 000 0458

FROM State
TO SELPA 01 6520 0 5050 0000 8590 000 0466

Web-Based IEP Record contribution from WE 
Stu Svc

25 AB602 Revenue Distribution / 
Schedule N

31 Low Incidence

30 Local Assistance

32

35

34

Record grant revenue

AB602 Revenue Distribution / 
Schedule S

Transfer 20% of Apprtnmnt 
to the Joint Risk Fund

Special Education Alternate 
Dispute Resolution Record grant revenue33

26 AB602 Revenue Distribution /
Schedule N

29

28

27 NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool

Workability

Record program revenue

Record contribution from 
Districts

Record grant revenue

Web-Based IEP 

State Deposit

AB602 Rev Distribution / Schedule 
P / Col K 

Record District Pass-Thru 
Grant Revenue

Preschool Staff Development

Transtion Partnership program 
(TPP)

Local Assistance Record grant revenue
State Deposit

Federal Preschool Record grant revenue

AB602 Rev Distribution /  Schedule 
P / Col K 

Other Apportionments/Grants:

DOR Warrant

State Deposit

State Deposit

Record District Low 
Incidence Reimbursements

State Deposit

I:\Timelines & Matrix\Matrix\24-25 WE Account Code Matrix - 2024-08-20 Page 3 of 3

C-1

17



Fiscal Allocation Plan - Sep 2024

Background: 
On an annual basis, the West End SELPA Fiscal Allocation Plan is reviewed 
for consistency with current fiscal practices and updated to reflect the prior 
year changes approved by the Superintendents’ Council.   

Fiscal Impact:   
N/A – changes minimal 

Recommended Action:  
N/A - This item will move forward to the Superintendents’ Council for 
approval. 

C-2

18



 

 
 

 
We Educate • We Care • WESELPA 

 
 

Fiscal Allocation Plan 
 

 
Updated:  September 20243 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

West End Special Education Local Plan Area 
8265 Aspen Avenue, Suite 200 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
909.476.6131 

C-2

19



Updated:  September 20243  I 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

GOVERNANCE ............................................................................................................................................ III 

 

SECTION A – AB602 SPECIAL EDUCATION FUNDING OVERVIEW 

SELPA FUNDING ALLOCATION MODEL ................................................................................................. A-2 

REVENUE SOURCES USED IN ALLOCATION MODEL ........................................................................... A-2 

ADJUSTMENTS TO TOTAL APPORTIONMENT ....................................................................................... A-3 

EXPENSES/TRANSFERS CHARGED TO MEMBER LEAs ....................................................................... A-4 

 

SECTION B - PROCEDURAL GUIDELINES 

ALLOCATION DISTRIBUTION ................................................................................................................... B-2 

LOCAL ASSISTANCE ENTITLEMENT ...................................................................................................... B-4 

LOW INCIDENCE FUNDING ..................................................................................................................... B-5 

MENTAL HEALTH ...................................................................................................................................... B-7 

PROGRAM SPECIALIST/REGIONALIZED SERVICES ............................................................................. B-8 

PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT.................................................................................................................. B-8 

NPS/LCI EXTRAORDINARY COST POOL APPORTIONMENT ................................................................ B-9 

OUT-OF-HOME CARE FUNDING .............................................................................................................. B-9 

REGIONAL PROVIDER PROGRAMS/FEE-FOR-SERVICE .................................................................... B-10 

LCFF REVENUE TRANSFER (SPECIAL EDUCATION ADA)  ................................................................ B-12 

SMALL SCHOOL DISTRICT PROTECTION ADJUSTMENT ................................................................... B-13 

JOINT RISK FUND: NPS/NPA/PARENT/OTHER AUTHORIZED REIMBURSEMENTS .......................... B-14 

JOINT RISK FUND: CONTRIBUTION AND RETURN ............................................................................. B-17 

JOINT RISK FUND: ACCESS .................................................................................................................. B-18 

JOINT RISK FUND: WITHDRAWAL/TERMINATION OF MEMBER LEA ................................................. B-18 

FACILITIES EXPENSE ............................................................................................................................. B-19 

COUNTY-OWNED/LEASED FACILITY TRANSFER ................................................................................ B-21 

WEB-BASED IEP ..................................................................................................................................... B-22 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION EXCESS COST ...................................................................................... B-22 

STATE SPECIAL SCHOOLS ADJUSTMENT .......................................................................................... B-23 

OTHER GRANTS/SOURCES................................................................................................................. B-245 

C-2

20



Updated:  September 20243  II 

MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT (MOE) ..................................................................................................... B-256 

 

SECTION C - APPENDICES/EXHIBITS 

APPENDIX A:  GLOSSARY OF TERMS/ACRONYMS ............................................................................. C-2 

APPENDIX B:  HISTORY .......................................................................................................................... C-6 

APPENDIX C:  ADA DEFINED FOR AB602 APPORTIONEMENT PURPOSES .................................... C-13 

EXHIBIT I:  SPECIAL EDUCATION AB602 REVENUE DISTRIBUTION MODEL ....... available upon request 

C-2

21



Updated:  September 20243  III 

GOVERNANCE 

The West End Special Education Local Plan Area (WESELPA) is composed of nine school districts (Alta 
Loma, Central, Chaffey Joint Union, Chino Valley Unified, Cucamonga, Etiwanda, Mountain View, Mt Baldy, 
and Upland Unified) and West End Student Services.  Its purpose is to assure access to special education 
services for all disabled students residing within the West End of San Bernardino County. 

The governing body of the SELPA, as set forth in the West End SELPA Local Plan, is the Superintendents’ 
Council. The Superintendents’ Council is composed of a superintendent from each district or local educational 
agency (LEA).  One of the responsibilities of the Superintendents’ Council is to allocate, among the 
participating LEAs, those public funds which are received to support special education programs, and to 
review on an annual basis the efficacy of the allocation procedures. 

The San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS) serves as the Responsible Local Agency 
(RLA) for the West End SELPA.  The RLA receives and distributes funds in accordance with the adopted 
SELPA plans. 

The SELPA Chief Administrative Officer (CAO)Administrator, an employee of the San Bernardino County 
Superintendent of Schools, coordinates the administration and implementation of the West End Special 
Education Local Plan.  The SELPA CAOAdministrator is subject to the Responsible Local Agency’s policies 
and procedures for day to day operations, but receives direction from and is responsible to the 
Superintendents’ Council.   

*SELPA Level Workgroups composed of members of the SELPA Advisory Committee (and in some
cases the Superintendents’ Council) will ensure the equity of the fiscal allocation model by reviewing
any disparity in local support required by the individual LEAs.  The workgroups will determine the
factors and causes of the disparity and make recommendations to alter the allocation model as
needed.

C-2

22



Updated:  September 20243  IV 

 

C-2

23



Updated:  September 20243  A-1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AB602 
 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 

FUNDING OVERVIEW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

C-2

24



Updated:  September 20243  A-2 

SELPA FUNDING ALLOCATION MODEL 
(Exhibit I, Schedule B) 

 
The West End SELPA AB602 funding model includes the following: 
 

A. Average Daily Attendance (ADA) (Appendix C) 
 
B. Revenue Sources used in Allocation Model  

1. Base Grant Entitlement (Column D) 
2. Federal Local Assistance (removed from AB602 base, but added back in at the SELPA level) 

(Column D) 
3. Local Special Education Property Taxes (Column D) 
4. Low Incidence Apportionment (Column E) 
5. Program Specialist/Regionalized Services Apportionment (Column F) 
6. Personnel Development (added to AB602, SELPA’s portion still funded separately by the 

SELPA) (Column G) 
7. NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool Apportionment (Annual only) (Column H) 
8. Out-Of-Home Care Apportionment (Column I) 
 

C. Adjustments to Total Apportionment  
1. Regional Provider Program(s) Fee-For-Service Adjustment (Column M) 
2. Small School District Protection Adjustment (Column N) 

 
D. Expenses/Transfers Charged to Member LEAs 

1. Joint Risk Fund Reimbursements (Column T) 
2. Joint Risk Fund Contributions (Column U) 
3. Facilities (Column V) 

 SBCSS Leased Facility Costs  
 Provider Program Facility/MTU Costs  

4. Web-based IEP (SEIS) (Column W)  
5. Transportation (Column X) 
6. State Special Schools Adjustment Reimbursement (Column Y)  

 
 

REVENUE SOURCES USED IN ALLOCATION MODEL                                               
(Exhibit I, Schedule D) 

 
 ADA and Rate(s):   

 SELPA Funded ADA 
o Calculated for each member LEA individually using the highest ADA when 

comparing current year, prior year, and second prior year.  
 SELPA Base Rate  

 
Base Grant Entitlement/General Funding:   

 SELPA Base rate multiplied by SELPA Funded ADA.  The calculated Base Grant 
Entitlement is then multiplied by the proration factor.   

 Local Special Education Property Taxes (deduct to adjusted Base Grant Entitlement) 

C-2

25



Updated:  September 20243  A-3 

Federal Local Assistance:  (removed from AB602 Base, but added back in at the SELPA level)   
As a separate grant, Federal Local Assistance funds are specifically allocated for special education 
and services to children with disabilities ages three through twenty-one. 
 
Local Special Education Property Taxes: (used as a deduct to the Base on the State Exhibit, 
but added back in at the SELPA level) 
Property Tax revenue goes to the County Office, but first it is included in the AB602 amount to be 
distributed by ADA.   
 
Program Specialist/Regionalized Services:   
Program Specialist/Regionalized Services (PS/RS) is calculated by multiplying the current year 
PS/RS rate by the 2019/20 SELPA funded ADA.   
 
Low Incidence 
Low Incidence entitlement is generated on the PY October Pupil Count of Low Incidence Disabilities 
multiplied by the state-wide Low Incidence Rate(s). 
 
Personnel Development: (added to AB602, SELPA’s portion still funded separately by the 
SELPA)  
SELPA’s portion of Staff Development is funded using a Superintendents’ Council approved rate 
multiplied by the PY October Pupil Count. 

 
Out-of-Home Care:   
Funding for foster youth, pupils placed in the short-term residential therapeutic program and three 
other types of facilities located within a SELPA’s geographic boundaries.  
 
NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool Apportionment:  (Annual only) 
This is the prorated sum of all NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost claims in excess of the applicable 
threshold reported to the state by the SELPA.   
 
Supplemental Revenue:  (if any) 
At times, the State Budget Act may provide supplemental revenue.  This may be one-time funding, 
or permanent increases to SELPA revenue.  Supplemental Revenues will be analyzed on an 
individual basis by a SELPA Level Workgroup and distributed via the methodology approved by the 
Superintendents’ Council. 

 
 

ADJUSTMENTS TO TOTAL APPORTIONMENT 
(Exhibit I, Schedule B) 

 
Adjustments are the reallocation of dollars made at the SELPA level after allocating AB602 per ADA revenue.  
These adjustments are not considered expenses (revenues) charged to member LEAs.  
 

Provider Program(s) Fee-For-Service:  (Column M) 
Regional provider program funding is determined by applying the Fee-For-Service Rates to the Fee-
For-Service Count.  Revenue from the District of Residence/Accountability is distributed to the 
regional provider program operators after the AB602 K-12 per ADA allocation distribution.   
 

C-2

26



Updated:  September 20243  A-4 

 Fee-For-Service Rates are developed using actual approved program expenditures.   
 Fee-For-Service Count is based on the special education pupil count and related 

service count for students placed outside their resident district for students between the 
ages of 3-22. This is not an ADA count.    

 
Small School District Protection:  (Column N)  
Under the funding allocation model, it is possible that a small district’s (less than 1,000 ADA) current 
year revenue allocation may be less than the revenue received in the prior year.  To protect against 
this possible shortfall, its revenue allocation will be adjusted to equal its prior year revenue plus 
COLA. 

 
 

EXPENSES/TRANSFERS CHARGED TO MEMBER LEAs 
(Exhibit I, Schedule B) 

 
These expenses are transferred to either the SELPA or SBCSS for charges incurred related to special 
education programs.   

 
Joint Risk Fund (JRF) Reimbursements:  (Column T) 
Original expenses related to Non-LCI NPS/NPA placements, LCI NPS placements, and authorized 
parent/JRF related reimbursements will beare charged to the JRF (0282 Mgmt). 
 

 NPS/NPA Non-LCI 80%:  The District of Residence/Accountability will reimburse the 
JRF 80% of the difference between the total Non LCI NPS expenses and the LCFF 
dollars generated by the Non-LCI NPS ADA.  In addition, the District of 
Residence/Accountability will reimburse the JRF the LCFF dollars generated by the 
Non-LCI NPS ADA placement.  

 NPS LCI 100%:  The District of Residence/Accountability will reimburse the JRF 100% 
of the difference between the total LCI NPS expenses and the LCFF dollars generated 
by the LCI NPS ADA. In addition, the District of Residence/Accountability will reimburse 
the JRF the LCFF dollars generated by the LCI NPS ADA placement (the Out-Of-Home 
Care apportionment will be distributed to member LEAs based on ADA, after allocating 
100% of the net LCI NPS costs to member LEAs with LCI NPS costs). 

 Authorized Parent and JRF Related Cost Reimbursements:  These charges may be 
for attorney fees, unilaterally obtained related services, transportation, independent 
educational evaluations/assessments, or other authorized expenses. For the majority of 
expenses, the District of Residence/Accountability will either reimburse the JRF 70% of 
total costs or submit a bill requesting 30% of the total cost of the authorized contract, 
such as an independent educational evaluation/assessment for which the member LEA 
developed a contract.   

 
 JRF (Budget 282) Contribution:  (Column U) 
The purpose of the JRF is to pay for regionalized expenses in support of SELPA districts’ special 
education needs.  The JRF revenue will be generated from member LEA contributions which are 
calculated based on a Superintendents’ Council approved dollar amount multiplied by current year 
P-2 ADA.  A reserve of $400,000 has been established and will be reconsidered as needed.    

 
 

C-2

27



Updated:  September 20243  A-5 

Provider Program Facility/MTU Expense:  (Column V) 
Commercial leased facilities and county-owned facilities will be funded by a charge to member LEAs 
based on the percentage of students served in the provider programs housed in each leased or 
county-owned facility. 
 
Web-based IEP Expense:  (Column W) 
The West End SELPA generates a three-year contract with San Joaquin County Office of Education 
for implementation of the Special Education Information System (SEIS), which is a web-based IEP 
program.  West End member LEAs incur the total web-based IEP cost on a per Pupil Count basis.  
These expenses may include additional costs for a maintenance fee for customized web-based IEP 
forms.   
 
Transportation:  (Column X) 
After state revenue is deducted, all monthly transportation costs for the West End county programs 
are prorated to each district by the number of district students being transported by San Bernardino 
County Superintendent of Schools.   
 
State Special Schools Adjustment Reimbursement:  (Column Y) 
It has been the policy of the West End Special Education Local Plan Area to reimburse districts, from 
the JRF, for the ten percent (10%) annual excess costs that are withheld from state apportionment 
for residential students placed in state special schools. 

C-2

28



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-1 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCEDURAL 
 

GUIDELINES 
 

 
(Historical data can be found in Appendix B of 

the Fiscal Allocation Plan)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

C-2

29



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-2 

ALLOCATION DISTRIBUTION                                                                                    
(Exhibit I, Schedule B) 

 
The West End SELPA allocates the AB602 state special education funding to its member LEAs on a per ADA 
basis using the applicable year’s ADA (see Exhibit I). 
 
Revenue sources to be distributed include the following: 

 Base Grant Entitlement 
 Federal Local Assistance (separate grant) 
 Local Special Education Property Taxes 
 Low Incidence   
 Program Specialist/Regionalized Services 
 Personnel Development (included in AB602) 
 NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool (Annual only) 
 Out-of-Home Care Funding 
 Supplemental Revenue (if any) 

 
Specific Procedures:   
 

A. Base Grant Entitlement & Other Adjustments 
1. Beginning with 2023/24 AB602 funding, the SELPA AB602 funding model will use the CDE 

calculation of the Base Grant Entitlement by individual LEA to allocate the Base Grant funding 
to member LEAs. 

2. Federal Local Assistance funding is a separate grant.  The grant dollars are added into the 
AB602 funding model along with AB602 special education funding before it is distributed by ADA 
(Column D). 

3. Local Special Education Property Taxes become a deduction to the Base Grant Entitlement on 
the AB602 funding exhibit; Property Taxes are factored into the SELPA AB602 funding model 
as part of the CDE calculation of the Base Grant Entitlement by individual LEA (Column D). 

4. Personnel Development funding is included in AB602 special education funding.  WESELPA’s 
portion of Personnel Development funding is taken off the top before the special education 
dollars are distributed to member LEAs by ADA (Column G).  
 

B. Total Apportionment – West End Student Services (Column J) 
1. Out-of-home care funding is allocated by ADA after being adjusted for LCI expenses   (Column 

I).   
2. Low Incidence funding, Out-of-home care funding and the allocation of special education funding 

make up West End Student Services’ total apportionment. 
 

C. Total Apportionment – Districts (Column J) 
1. NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool Apportionment will be distributed to member LEAs having 

costs that were claimed in excess of the CDE applicable threshold after a percentage of the 
apportionment has been transferred to the Joint Risk Fund (Annual only) (Column H). 

2. Out-of-home care funding is allocated by ADA after being adjusted for LCI expenses   (Column 
I).   

3. NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool Funding, Out-of-home care funding and the allocation of 
special education funding make up each district’s total apportionment. 

C-2

30



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-3 

D. Total Apportionment – West End SELPA (Column J) 
1. WESELPA’s total apportionment is made up of the Low Incidence and Program 

Specialist/Regionalized Services apportionments along with the WESELPA portion of Personnel 
Development that was previously taken off the top of the AB602 Base apportionment.     

 
E. Adjusted Apportionment (Column O) 

1. Each member LEA’s entitlement is adjusted by the Fee-For-Service Adjustment.  This 
adjustment shifts funding from the resident district of the student to the LEA providing the 
educational services (Column M).  

2. The Small School District Adjustment further adjusts each member LEA’s entitlement.  This 
adjustment protects any district with less than 1,000 ADA from receiving less revenue than it did 
under the unit rate allocation model as calculated for the Prior Year plus COLA (Column N). 

3. After these adjustments are made, each member LEA’s “Adjusted Apportionment” is then divided 
into the three funding sources – Local Special Education Property Taxes (Column P), Federal 
Local Assistance (Column Q), and AB602 (Column R) for SACS reporting purposes. 

 
*This allocation of special education funding to SELPA member LEAs will be recalculated at each state re-
certification of AB602 funding. 
 
*Local Assistance, Low Incidence, RSPS, Personnel Development, NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool, Out-
of-home care, Fee-For-Service, and Small School Protection adjustments are further explained in their 
prospective portions of the Fiscal Allocation Plan. 
 
Apportionment Distribution Cycle: 
 
With the implementation of the AB602 model, funding has been established on a SELPA wide ADA formula 
basis.  The West End SELPA Local Plan has been amended to allow the SELPA to define the distribution 
model. 
 
Revenue will be distributed from the state directly to the San Bernardino County Treasurer on a monthly 
basis with the special education apportionment cycle.  The state provides documentation to SBCSS 
identifying the amount of the monthly special education apportionment to be deposited to the West End 
SELPA.  The state does not identify amounts for the member LEAs.  Schedules detailing these amounts are 
received at each certification period from the CDE identified as the Advance Apportionment (July-January), 
First Principal Apportionment (February-May), Second Principal Apportionment (June), and the Annual 
Apportionment (following February with adjustments applied to prior year June).   
 
The manner of distribution of the funds conforms to EC 14041(a)(2), which provides for the following 
schedule: 
July  5% 
August  5% 
September 9% 
October    9%          Advance Apportionments 
November 9% 
December 9% 
January  9% 
February reconciled with P-1 certification; revenue adjusted accordingly at 1/5th   
March  1/5th of balance due per P-1 certification 

C-2

31



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-4 

April  1/5th of balance due per P-1 certification 
May  1/5th of balance due per P-1 certification 
June  reconciled with P-2 certification; revenue adjusted accordingly to actual 
 
The West End SELPA must submit a worksheet to SBCSS Internal Business Services, which calculates each 
member LEA’s share of the state special education apportionment.  The data shall include the SELPA total 
AB602 revenue, each LEA’s allocation, and each LEA’s percentage of the SELPA total.  At each 
apportionment certification, the totals must reconcile to the total posted on the SELPA’s AB602 State Exhibit.  
This worksheet will be used by SBCSS as the allocation model, with funds being distributed from July through 
February on a percentage share basis as presented to the Superintendents’ Council inby  June of the prior 
year or the most recent allocation model adjusted for revised projected P-2 ADA prior to the first payment for 
the fiscal year; allocations from March through May will be based on actual totals balancing to the P-1 AB602 
State Certified Exhibit; the June apportionment will be transferred in July and will be adjusted to the P-2 
AB602 State Certified Exhibit.  Any significant annual adjustments to the P-2 Certification will be calculated 
and included in the year-end accrual process and communicated to member LEAs by July 301.   
 
In the event the state re-certifies the SELPA’s special education apportionment after the close of that fiscal 
year, the SELPA will recalculate and make the appropriate modifications in the allocation of funds for the re-
certified fiscal year.  All revenue modifications will be treated as prior year adjustments and coded as such. 
 
*The WESELPA must follow the adopted State Apportionment Cycle which may vary from the above listed 
distribution schedule.  
 
 

LOCAL ASSISTANCE ENTITLEMENT                                                                       
(Exhibit I, Schedule P) 

 
Federal Local Assistance dollars are funded outside of AB602 but are added in manually at the SELPA level.  
After which, funding is distributed by ADA along with AB602 special education funding.  Once each member 
LEAs’ apportionment is adjusted per the funding formula, a Local Assistance distribution by PY October Pupil 
Count using District of Residence/Accountability will be calculated and these funds will be pulled out and 
designated as Local Assistance funds.  The balance of each member District’s adjusted apportionment will 
become AB602 funding.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. Determination of Member LEAs Special Education Apportionment 
1. The total Local Assistance grant award amount will be added to the AB602 Base and distributed 

by ADA along with AB602 special education funding to determine each member LEA’s 
apportionment.   

 
B. Determination of Local Assistance Entitlement 

1. After the member LEA’s apportionment is calculated, a Local Assistance distribution by Pupil 
Count will be calculated, pulled out and designated as Local Assistance funds. 

2. The balance of each member District’s adjusted apportionments will become AB602 funding. 
3. Member District’s Local Assistance entitlement will be distributed by prior year unduplicated 

October Pupil Count (3-21 year olds) using District of Residence/Accountability. 

C-2

32



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-5 

4. Local Assistance entitlements are distributed to members with a copy of the grant letter upon the 
receipt of the grant letter from the State.  
 

C. Services to Parentally Enrolled Private School Students with Disabilities 
1. The West End SELPA may hire an individual(s) with experience in special education or a related 

field, on a consultant basis, to provide support to parentally placed private school students with 
disabilities.    

2. The proportionate share of federal Local Assistance funds that must be used to support these 
students will be calculated using the procedures outlined by the California Department of 
Education (CDE) .  After which, funding will be held at the SELPA to support said position(s). 

 
D. Transfer of Funds 

1. Local Assistance funds will be distributed on the federal funding cycle from the State to the San 
Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools.  

2. The West End SELPA will provide SBCSS with an allocation spreadsheet, which calculates each 
member LEA’s share of the Local Assistance Grant entitlement.   

 
E. Report of Expenditures  

1. Each member LEA will provide the SELPA with detailed information on how Local Assistance 
Grant dollars are expended using the Report of Expenditure forms.   

2. Report 1 of Expenditures for the period of Jul 1 – Dec 31 shall be submitted to the SELPA in 
January of the current school year. 

3. Report 2 of Expenditures for the period of Jan 1 – Mar 31 shall be submitted to the SELPA in 
April of the current school year. 

4. Report 3 of Expenditures for the period of Apr 1 – Jun 30 will likely be a final report and shall be 
submitted to the SELPA in July of the following school year.  If necessary, Report 4, Report 5, 
Report 6, and Report 7 must also be submitted per the terms of the grant. 

5. The submitted Report of Expenditure form shall include appropriate documentation of the 
expenditures reported. 

6. The final Report of Expenditure form must reflect expenditures greater than or equal to the 
member LEA’s total Local Assistance Entitlement.   

7. In the event a member LEA does not expend the total entitlement, the unexpended amount will 
be returned to the state. 
 
 

LOW INCIDENCE FUNDING                                                                                       
(Exhibit I, Schedule B) 

 
The Low Incidence Entitlement is calculated on the State Exhibit and is computed using the number of pupils 
with low–incidence disabilities, as reported in October of the prior year.  Eligible age levels are from birth to 
age 22.  Categories included in the count are:  Hard of Hearing, Deaf, Visually Impaired, Orthopedically 
Impaired, and Deaf/Blind. 
 
Audiological services expenses for students being served by West End Student Services are paid “off-the-
top” of Low Incidence funding.  After estimating these expenses as well as indirect costs, the remaining 
balance of Low Incidence funding is distributed to member LEAs by District of Residence/Accountability for 

C-2

33



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-6 

the PY October Low Incidence pupil count.  District specific allocations will be finalized at the completion of 
year-end closing.   
 
District Low Incidence funding may be used to offset Low Incidence Fee-For-Service (FFS) charges for 
eligible students.  Eligible students will have a Low Incidence disability listed as their primary or secondary 
disability.  If there are unspent Low Incidence funds for the current school year, then they will be totaled and 
reallocated the following year to all members based on that year’s distribution percentages/method. 
  
The District of Residence/Accountability for educational purposes will be responsible for submitting the 
necessary paperwork. For example, if a student receives educational services in a district classroom or Non-
Public School, the District of Residence/Accountability would prepare the request for Low Incidence funds.   
If a student receives educational services in a provider program classroom, the provider (SBCSS and 
Chaffey) will notify the District of Residence/Accountability for the District of Residence/Accountability to 
prepare the request for Low Incidence funds. 
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES: (Column E) 
 

A. Designation of Authorized Signature 
1. Member LEAs entitled to Low Incidence Funding shall designate the person(s) authorized to sign 

the “Notice of Intent to Purchase” form to be submitted to the SELPA Office. 
   

B. Submission of Required Data 
1. Member LEAs wishing to be reimbursed through these funds shall submit the completed “Notice 

of Intent to Purchase” form to the SELPA Office.  The total amount requested in the intent should 
include, in addition to the item(s), SALES TAX AND ESTIMATED SHIPPING CHARGES. 

2. All notices of intent for the CURRENT YEAR shall be submitted to the SELPA Office for approval 
no later than May 1. 

3. Equipment/services should be received by the member LEA by June 30 of the current year. 
4. Upon receipt of purchase, member LEAs will forward an invoice to the SELPA Office for payment 

processing. 
 As backup, the invoice must include a copy of the approved notice of intent for 

purchases of equipment as well as a copy of the VENDOR INVOICE showing the 
merchandise purchased.  Please complete bottom portion of Intent including make, 
model, serial number, and member LEA’s inventory control number when appropriate. 

 Invoices for reimbursement shall be submitted to the SELPA office no later than July 
15th of each year. 

5. The SELPA Office shall determine the availability of funds and will forward for administrative 
approval.  One copy of the signed acknowledgement will be returned to the member LEA. 
 

C. Maintenance of Inventory Records  
1. Education Code Section 35168 requires member LEAs to maintain an inventory of equipment 

purchases with a current value exceeding $500.   
2. In addition, as required by the Low Incidence State Guidelines, the SELPA Office must also 

maintain an inventory of all items purchased with Low Incidence Funds.  This listing per member 
LEA is available upon request. 
 
 
 

C-2

34



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-7 

D. Accounting Treatment 
1. For SACS accounting purposes, Low-Incidence purchases shall be recorded as an expense to 

the member LEAs with the transfer of Low Incidence funds recorded as member LEA revenue 
in object 8792. 

2. Low Incidence funds transferred to member LEAs by the SELPA shall be recorded by the SELPA 
as an expense in object 5110.  
 
 

MENTAL HEALTH                                                                                                         
(Exhibit I, Schedule R) 

 
Federal and State Mental Health funding is allocated to districts to provide Mental Health services to special 
education students.  Districts contribute per ADA contributions to WESELPA in support of district mental 
health related expenditures.  Routine expenses include but are not limited to: 

 Residential room and board 
 Mental health counseling 
 WRAP counseling services  
 Administrative costs  
 Parent reimbursements  

 
Unique circumstances for utilization of Mental Health funds will be considered on a case-by-case basis and 
may require Superintendents’ Council approval.    
 
Guidelines for travel reimbursement for students in residential placements have been established.  Non-
allowable expenditures include but are not limited to: First Class/Business Class airfare, travel expenses for 
family members, luxury hotels/accommodations, luxury vehicles, entertainment related expenses, and food 
(including meals and snacks). 
 
To protect a small district (less than 1,000 ADA) from a Mental Health revenue allocation shortfall, a Mental 
Health Small School Protection Adjustment has been added to the Mental Health Distribution model.  The 
specific procedures of the adjustment are outlined on page B-13.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. Mental Health per ADA Contributions 
1. The SELPA shall submit Mental health per ADA contribution transfers from member LEAs to 

WESELPA in accordance with the following procedures: 
 District Mental Health per ADA contributions will be transferred from state mental health 

funding.  Only if district state mental health funding is fully exhausted will district federal 
mental health funds be used towards district per ADA contributions.   

 The initial 50% transfer based on funded ADA and projected expenses will be 
transferred in November/December after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ 
Council. 

 The mid-year 50% transfer based on funded ADA and projected expenses will be 
transferred in May/June after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 

C-2

35



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-8 

 Any differences in Mental Health per ADA contribution amounts between the mid-year 
projections and actual final expenditures will be adjusted at the completion of year-end 
closing. 

 
 

PROGRAM SPECIALIST/REGIONALIZED SERVICES 
(Exhibit I, Schedule B) 

 
Program Specialist/Regionalized Services (PS/RS) is commonly referred to as RSPS funding for the SELPA.  
This PS/RS apportionment is part of the AB602 funding exhibit and is calculated by multiplying the current 
year PS/RS rate by the 2019/20 SELPA funded ADA.  These funds are allocated to the SELPA in support of 
SELPA operating costs.  The approved RSPS reserve is 10% of the AB602 current year allocation.  
 
Should RSPS funding not be sufficient enough to cover related SELPA operating costs, then a SELPA level 
workgroup may be formed to discuss an option or options to be presented for approval consideration by the 
Superintendents’ Council.   
  
SUPPORT OF THE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE:  
 
Education Code 56836.23 requires the fiscal and logistical support of the Community Advisory Committee.  
RSPS funding provides this support as necessary. 
 
MEDICAL THERAPY UNIT BUDGETS: 
 
The Medical Therapy Unit budgets are calculated based on students with IEPs served by the MTU on or 
around October of the prior year at a rate of $12.00 per student.  Budgets will be provided to the MTUs in 
September for the current year.  MTU budgets are funded through RSPS funding. 
 
Currently, there are two MTUs serving WESELPA member district students:  1) Etiwanda MTU (Frost) and 
2) Montclair MTU (Moreno)  
   
 

PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT                                                                                   
(Exhibit I, Schedule Q) 

 
Personnel (Staff) Development grant funding was previously rolled into AB602 special education funding.  
The WESELPA portion of these funds must be taken off the top before the special education funding dollars 
are distributed to member LEAs.  Currently, the WESELPA’s Personnel Development funding is based on 
the 2012/13 per Pupil Count rate of $0.945782 multiplied by the PY October pupil count.     
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. Determination of SELPA Personnel Development 
1. The WESELPA’s portion of Personnel Development is calculated by multiplying the per pupil 

count rate by the PY October pupil count.   

C-2

36



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-9 

2. Once calculated, it is taken off the top of the AB602 Special Education funding (before it is 
allocated to member LEAs) and funded directly to the WESELPA.    
  
 

NPS/LCI EXTRAORDINARY COST POOL APPORTIONMENT 
(Exhibit I, Schedule S) 

 
CDE administers an extraordinary cost pool (ECP) to reimburse SELPAs for the extraordinary costs of single 
placements in nonpublic schools (NPS) and special education and related services for pupils residing in 
licensed children’s institutions (LCI).  Costs in excess of the applicable threshold amount will be eligible for 
reimbursement.  If the statewide total reimbursable amount exceeds the appropriated amount for the pool, 
then CDE will prorate all claims.   
 
The NPS/LCI ECP Apportionment will be reflected on PY Annual AB602 certifications only.  The amount will 
vary from year to year based on the eligible extraordinary costs claimed for that year.  A percentage of the 
NPS/LCI ECP apportionment will be transferred to the Joint Risk Fund (JRF) based on the NPS/NPA split for 
the year in which the ECP apportionment is based upon.  The remaining balance will be distributed 
proportionately to member LEAs having costs that were claimed in excess of the CDE applicable threshold.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. Claim process 
1. WESELPA will gather the necessary backup for NPS/LCI costs in excess of the CDE Applicable 

threshold and submit claim files using the Principal Apportionment Data Collection (PADC) 
Revenue SoftwareWeb Application. 

2. Claims will be certified first by the SELPA and then The DAT files for these claims wiby the ll be 
sent to SBCSS Internal Business Services  by October 15th for electronic submission to CDE by 
October 30th. 

3.2. SBCSS Internal Business will send the submission confirmation back to WESELPA.   
4.3. WESELPA will mail hard copies of the supporting documentation to CDE.   

 
B. Distribution of NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool Apportionment 

1. The NPS/LCI ECP apportionment will be reflected on the PY Annual certification only.   
2. Using the CDE ECP Claim Process breakdown, WESELPA will distribute a percentage of the 

apportionment to the JRF via transfer as follows: 
 30% for ECP apportionments related to 2017/18 and prior 
 20% for ECP apportionments related to 2018/19 and beyond  

3. The remaining balance will be distributed to member LEAs having costs that were claimed in 
excess of the CDE applicable threshold. 

 
 

OUT-OF-HOME CARE FUNDING                                                                               
(Exhibit I, Schedule K) 

 
The Out-of-Home Care Funding is calculated for each special education local plan area (SELPA) for foster 
youth, pupils placed in the short-term residential therapeutic program and three other types of facilities 

C-2

37



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-10 

located within a SELPA’s geographic boundaries.  Funding for each SELPA is based on five data 
components: the sum of cumulative enrollment for foster youth reported through California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System; the average daily population at STRTP provided by the Department of Social 
Services; and pupil count data in community care, intermediate care, and skilled nursing facilities.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. Distribution of Out-of-Home Care Funding 
1. The cost of the LCI Non-public school placements is totaled, minus LCFF ADA revenue, which 

is charged to the District of Residence/Accountability. 
2. The adjusted LCI NPS expense total is subtracted from the total Out-of-Home care funding and 

the remaining revenue is distributed to all LEAs within the SELPA on a per ADA basis. 
3. Member LEAs having LCI NPS costs are reimbursed 100% for those costs minus LCFF ADA 

revenue. 
 
 

REGIONAL PROVIDER PROGRAMS/FEE-FOR-SERVICE                                       
(Exhibit I, Schedule G, H1 thru H4) 

 
The regional provider program concept has been developed by the West End SELPA to address very 
specialized student program needs.  These programs are designed by the SELPA Advisory Committee and 
approved by the Superintendents’ Council.  This model supports both the County Operated Regional Provider 
Program and the District Operated Provider Programs.  Any LEA may be a regional provider program, but 
must adhere to the approved budget and program design, including staff to student ratio, daily/annual length 
of operation, curriculum, support systems/support staff, and staff development.  Any regional provider 
program modification must be reviewed by a SELPA Level Workgroup, reported to the SELPA Advisory 
Committee, and presented to the Superintendents’ Council for approval.   

 
Students attending regional provider programs are transported from their home district to the regional 
provider classroom site.  Classes operated by SBCSS may be located within the student’s home district, but 
are still considered regional provider classes.  Regional provider classrooms are initiated and operated to 
provide the full continuum of services to a critical mass of students.  This allows for economy of scale in 
providing students with like needs in appropriate age groupings. 
 
Funding of the Regional Provider Program is determined by applying Fee-For-Service rates to the number of 
non-resident students receiving educational services by the provider program.  Revenue from the District of 
Residence/Accountability is reallocated to the LEA operating the provider program(s) after the AB602 funding 
has been allocated to all SELPA member LEAs based on ADA. 
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  

 
A. Fee-For-Service Rates – Regional Provider Programs   

1. The County shall establish Fee-For-Service rates for its services based on projected actual 
expenses minus any applicable off-setting revenue divided by the projected number of students 
served in each program.  These services include Specialized Academic Instruction (SAI), 
Preschool SAI, Low Incidence Related Services, Preschool Intensive Autism, Related Services, 

C-2

38



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-11 

Interpreters, 1:1 Aide services, Early Start, First CLASS, and Intensive Therapeutic.  Other 
Regional Program Operators develop their own Fee-For-Service rates. 

2. ByOn or before April of each fiscal year, the Regional Provider programs shall present to the 
SELPA Advisory Committee its fee-for-service rates for the following fiscal year.  The 
recommendations will include a summary of program and fiscal changes that impact the fees for 
the following year.  If necessary, a SELPA Level Workgroup will review these changes before 
the final rates are presented to the Superintendents’ Council. 

 
B. Fee-For-Service Rates – SELPA 

1. The SELPA shall establish Fee-For-Service rates for its services based on projected actual 
expenses divided by the projected number of students served in each program or prior year rates 
which may be adjusted by projected COLA.   

2. ByOn or before April of each fiscal year, the SELPA shall present to the SELPA Advisory 
Committee its Fee-For-Service rate for the following fiscal year.  If applicable, a summary of 
program and fiscal changes that impact the fees for the following year will be included.  If 
necessary, a SELPA Level Workgroup will review these changes before the final 
recommended rates are presented to the Superintendents’ Council. 

3. Currently, no reserve amount has been approved for the SELPA operated Behavior Intervention 
program. 

 
C. Fee-For-Service Student/Services Count 

1. The Fee-For-Service count is the special education student count and related service count of 
students placed outside their resident district.  It is NOT an ADA count. 

2. Fee-For-Service count shall be based on Regional Provider Program Count Reports generated 
by the SELPA office.  These reports include, but are not limited to the following: 

 The Regional Provider Program Count Report by Student 
 The Regional Provider Program Count by Intensive Autism Class/Student 
 The Regional Provider Program Count Report by Service  
 The Regional Counseling Program Report by Student 
 The Behavioral Program Caseload Report 
 One-to-One Aide Report 
 Summary of Students in Provider Program Report 

3. Preliminary count reports will be sent to all member LEAs based on November 1 and March 1 
count dates allowing .  Mmember LEAs time  will have one month from the publishing date of the 
reports to audit, resolve discrepancies, and make appropriate changes in SEIS before the next 
official count date (December 1 or April 1). 

4. Each member LEA will designate one contact person that will be responsible for communicating 
and assisting in resolving count related discrepancies. SELPA will make this point-of-contact list 
available to all members.   

 The actual Fee-For-Service billing will be calculated on the AVERAGE number of 
student/services provided on December 1 and April 1 count dates.  Reports based on 
the December 1 count date will be sent to all member LEAs on or about December 3.  
The April 1 count information including a Fee-For-Service Verification Form will be sent 
to all member LEAs on or about April 3.  Members will have three weeks to audit and 
return any discrepancies to the WESELPA.  Extended school year students are not 
captured on either date, but extended year expenses are included in Fee-For-Service 
Rates. 

C-2

39



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-12 

5. A final Summary of Students in Provider Program Report will be sent to each member LEA after 
all corrections have been finalized.   
 

D. Fee-For-Service Adjustment 
1. Fee-For-Service Adjustment is calculated on the AVERAGE number of services provided by 

each regional provider program operator based on the final audited December 1 and April 1 
count dates.   

2. The average number of students/services in each setting is then applied to the applicable fee 
rate. 

3. Each member LEA’s AB602 funding is then adjusted to shift revenues from the District of 
Residence/Accountability to the LEA operating a provider program. 

 
 

E. Regional Provider Program Expenditure/Budget Report  
1. If applicable, regional provider program operators will provide revenue and expenditure reports 

to the SELPA Advisory Committee, and Superintendents’ Council at interim reporting and year 
end final. 
 

F. Regional Provider Program Operating Year End Balance (& Return) 
1. Unless instructed otherwise by the Superintendents’ Council, the prior year regional provider 

program operating surplus, less any approved reserve, by each provider will be returned to 
member LEAs at the same percentage as members have paid for services.  In the case of a 
provider program shortage, member LEAs involved may be assessed a higher fee in proportion 
to usage in the subsequent year, upon Superintendents’ Council approval.  The process for 
revenue adjustment is defined in section G of this section. 

2. When a district receiving small school district protection qualifies for a give back, the total amount 
of that district’s give back shall be redistributed to the remaining member LEAs based upon 
percentage of total give back recalculated without the small school district share included. 
 

G. Regional Provider Program Surplus/Shortage Adjustment 
1. The regional provider surplus will be returned by the provider at the same percentage as paying 

for services.  In the event a provider’s expenses exceed the revenue, member LEAs may be 
assessed a higher fee in proration to usage, following approval by the Superintendents’ Council.   

2. Percentage of revenue generated is then applied to surplus/shortage net amounts to determine 
member LEA’s “return or owed” amount for each provider. 

3. Total charge or “Give Back”, less any prior approved adjustments, is then calculated. 
 
 

LCFF Revenue Transfer (Special Education ADA)                                                                                

 
The existing fee-for-service model incorporates ADA revenue generated by district-funded students attending 
county operated special education programs. This is used to offset program costs before establishing fee-
for-service rates. Transfers are completed twice per year, 50% after the P-1 certification, and a final 
settlement transfer after the P-2 certification.  
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

C-2

40



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-13 

A. Calculation 
1. Utilizing the P-1 and P-2 CDE certification exhibits, ADA revenue is calculated utilizing data 

from the LCFF Entitlement for each district.  
2. Grant amounts are calculated for each grade span and include the base grant, grade span 

adjustments, and supplemental and concentration grants (excluding additional 15% 
concentration grant tied to hiring more staff). 

3. The final calculation is based upon the current year LCFF Entitlement CDE P-2 certification. 
4. Prior year adjustments will not be made as a result of audit findings or ADA revisions. 
 

B. Transfer Process 
1. SBCSS shall process the amounts to be transferred from the member LEAs to SBCSS in 

accordance with the following schedule: 
 50% of the amount based on the current year P-1 ADA after P-1 certification by the 

CDE will be transferred in March after fiscal  
 notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 
 The balance, adjusted to P-2 ADA for regular school year and Annual ADA for 

extended school year after P-2 Certification by the CDE, will be transferred in 
September after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 

 
 

SMALL SCHOOL DISTRICT PROTECTION ADJUSTMENT (AB602 & MENTAL HEALTH)                                     
(Exhibit I, Schedule I & R) 

 
A small school district is defined as having less than 1,000 ADA.   
 
AB602 - SMALL SCHOOL PROTECTION ADJUSTMENT: (Schedule I, Column K) 
 
Under the AB602 funding allocation model, it is possible that a small district’s current year revenue allocation 
may be less than the revenue received in the prior year.  To protect a small district from this possible shortfall, 
its revenue allocation will be adjusted to equal its prior year revenue allocation plus funded COLA. 
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. AB602 - Small School Protection Adjustment Calculation 
1. To determine the protected revenue level, calculate the special education revenue received by 

the small school district in the previous fiscal year adjusted apportionment (PY Schedule B, 
Column O) and increase by the current year state funded special education COLA/net deficit. 

2. Subtract the small district’s current year entitlement, after the adjustment for regional provider 
services (Fee-For-Service), facility expense, the Joint Risk Fund related reimbursement expense 
from the protected revenue level to determine shortfall, if any. 

3. Multiply the shortfall by the ADA ratio for the remaining member LEAs.  Deduct the resulting 
prorated share from the remaining member LEAs’ revenue and add it to the small district’s 
revenue. 

 
MENTAL HEALTH – SMALL SCHOOL PROTECTION ADJUSTMENT: (Schedule R, Column C) 
 

C-2

41



Updated:  September 20243  B-14 

Under the current Mental Health funding allocation model, it is possible that a small district’s proportionate 
share of Mental Health revenue may be less than the revenue received in the prior year.  To protect a small 
district from this possible shortfall, its revenue allocation will be adjusted to equal its prior year revenue 
allocation plus funded COLA. 

SPECIFIC PROCEDURES: 

A. Mental Health - Small School Protection Adjustment Calculation
1. To determine the protected revenue level, calculate the Mental Health revenue received by the

small school district in the previous fiscal year (PY Schedule R, Column QN) and increase by
the current year state funded special education COLA/net deficit.

2. Subtract the small district’s current year entitlement from the protected revenue level to
determine shortfall, if any.

3. Multiply the shortfall by the funded ADA ratio for the remaining member LEAs.  Deduct the
resulting prorated share from the remaining member LEAs’ revenue and add it to the small
district’s revenue.

JOINT RISK FUND: NPS/NPA/PARENT/OTHER AUTHORIZED REIMBURSEMENTS     
(Exhibit I, Schedule J) 

The purpose of the JRF is to pay for regionalized expenses in support of SELPA member LEAs’ special 
education needs.  Routine expenses include but are not limited to: 

 100% of the LEA special education lLegal costs associated with /dDue pProcess and/or Alternative
Dispute Resolution (ADR)  Expenses related to compliance findings and due process hearings and
judgments not covered by the risk management JPA.  Per the Local Plan, any district initiating
contact with a legal advisor without prior approval from the WESELPA will bear the cost of the
services.

 30% of costs associated with parent reimbursements for services, placements, independent
evaluations/assessments, and parent legal fees for settlements as a result of mediation or due
process or SELPA facilitatedlevel Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR).

 Federal Court filings that are not directly related to due process decisions appealed to the federal
court shall be funded through the District’s JPA.  Due process decision appeals may be first tendered
to the District JPA, if not funded through the district’s JPA, then the SELPA JRF would fund.

 20% of Non-LCI Nonpublic School/Nonpublic Agency expense (after LCFF dollars generated by
Non-LCI ADA placement have been subtracted)

 30% of authorized parent/JRF related reimbursements.
 Reimbursement of State Special School Apportionment Adjustment
 Access to SELPA contracted vendors for services rendered to member districts at a 100% billback

when not covered through the JRF structure.
 Supplemental support to regionalized service programs and other extraordinary expenses that are

approved by the Superintendents’ Council upon petition by member LEAs.

Original expenses related to Non-LCI NPS/NPA placements, LCI NPS placements, and authorized 
parent/Joint Risk Fund (JRF) related reimbursements will beare charged to the JRF (Budget 0282).  The 
District of Residence/Accountability will reimburse the JRF for their share of the expense based on the 
procedures below.   

C-2

42



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-15 

 
It is the LEA’s responsibility to provide trained staff for LEA programs.  The JRF will not pay for 1:1 aides in 
the district classroom with the exception of when the NPA is agreed to for the purpose of transitioning a 
student from an in-home ABA program to a school program for a period of up to six weeks.   
 
When agencies reimburse SELPA for IEP-approved Non-Public Agency costs, the JRF and District of 
Residence/Accountability revenues will be adjusted by the reimbursement using the applicable NPS/NPA 
split for the year in which the reimbursement is related to.  If the reimbursement occurs after year-end closing 
is completed, the reimbursement will be shown as CY transfer of income revenue. 
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. NPS/NPA Non-LCI 80% 
1. The SELPA Resolution and Education Support Team (REST) facilitates the processing of  

NPS/NPA Authorized Reimbursement contracts and purchase orders charging the JRF (0282). 
2. Invoices for services rendered are submitted to the SELPA Office to be processed for payment.  

An ATTENDANCE REPORT accompanies said invoices for each student served in a NPS. 
3. Copies of the attendance report are kept at the SELPA and ADA information is provided to the 

resident district of the student at P-1, P-2, and Annual. This attendance is reported to CDE by 
the resident district’s J-18/19 attendance report. 

4. Each resident district will reimburse the JRF, through transfer, 80% of the difference between 
the total Non LCI NPS expenses and the LCFF dollars generated by the Non-LCI NPS ADA 
placement.   

5. In addition, the District of Residence/Accountability will reimburse the SELPA Office the LCFF 
dollars generated by the Non-LCI NPS ADA placement. 

6. The LCFF dollars generated by the Non-LCI NPS ADA placement will be calculated using an 
average revenue per ADA under LCFF.  This average will be calculated by dividing each LEA’s 
LCFF Entitlement by the Current Year Funded ADA as shown on the LCFF Calculation exhibit 
from CDE.  The final calculation will be based on the current year P-2 certification.   

 
B. NPS LCI 100% 

1. The SELPA REST facilitates the processing of  NPS/NPA parent contracts and purchase orders 
charging the JRF (Budget 0282). 

2. Invoices for services rendered are submitted to the SELPA Office to be processed for payment.  
An ATTENDANCE REPORT or mileage claim accompanies said invoices for each student 
served in a NPS. 

3. Copies of the attendance report are kept at the SELPA and ADA information is provided to the 
resident district of the student at P-1, P-2, and Annual. This attendance is to be reported on the 
resident district’s J-18/19 attendance report as appropriate. 

4. Each resident district will reimburse the JRF, through transfer, the amount equal to the state LCI 
NPS cost which will already include LCFF dollars generated by LCI NPS ADA placement.   

5. The LCFF dollars generated by the NPS LCI ADA placement will be calculated using an 
average revenue per ADA under LCFF.  This average will be calculated by dividing each LEA’s 
LCFF Entitlement by the Current Year Funded ADA as shown on the LCFF Calculation exhibit 
from CDE.  The final calculation will be based on the current year P-2 certification.   

6. See Page B-9 for Out-of-Home Care revenue distribution procedures. 
 

C. 70% Authorized Parent/JRF Related Reimbursements 

C-2

43



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-16 

1. Revenue associated to these types of expenses is not a part of the AB602 Base Entitlement, nor 
is it currently reimbursed by the state.  

2. The SELPA REST is responsible for facilitating the processing of contracts and purchase orders 
associated with authorized parent/JRF related reimbursements, which include but are not limited 
to attorney fees, unilaterally obtained related services, transportation, or other authorized 
expenses.  Districts or SELPA may be responsible for generating contracts for Independent 
Educational Evaluations (IEEs)/Assessments. 

2.3. The JRF will pay 30% of the cost with the remaining 70% billed to districts using the JRF quarterly 
reimbursement transfer. 

3. When districts contract for IEEs as part of due process, an invoice for 30% of the approved costs 
should be submitted to the SELPA Consultant for payment.  If the SELPA contracts for an IEE 
as part of due process, the District of Residence/Accountability will quarterly reimburse the JRF 
70% of total annual invoices.   

4. Invoices for services rendered are submitted to the SELPA Office to be processed for payment.   
 
 
 

D. 70% Authorized Reimbursement for Parent Attorney Fees   
1. As the result of a mediation agreement or hearing decision, parent attorney fees as well as other 

contracts may require reimbursement.   
2. The JRF will pay 30% of the cost with the remaining 70% billed to districts using the JRF quarterly 

reimbursement transfer.   
 

E. Independent Educational Evaluations/Assessments 
1. The West End SELPA will provide support to districts in obtaining independent educational 

evaluations/assessments in a timely manner in accordance with the West End SELPA IEE board 
policy and administrative regulation and in compliance with the requirements of IDEA and related 
federal and state laws.   

2. When the LEA has authorized an independent educational evaluation/assessment, the Director 
of Special Education will contact the SELPA REST with the name and contact information for 
the independent evaluator.   

3. The West End SELPA REST will facilitate the processing of contracts for 
evaluations/assessments and billback the LEA for the evaluation/assessment as follows:   

 In cases where the independent educational evaluation/assessment is the outcome of 
a due process complaint and/or ADR, the JRF will fund 30% of the cost and the LEA will 
be charged quarterly for 70% of the cost.   

 When the independent educational evaluation/assessment is not related to a due 
process complaint and/or ADR, the LEA will be charged quarterly for 100% of the cost 
of the evaluation/assessment. 

 
F. SELPA Transfer Timeline 

1. November/December - the total NPS/NPA Non-LCI 80%, the NPS LCI 100%, and 70% of the 
authorized parent/JRF related reimbursements plus LCFF dollars generated per NPS ADA as 
calculated by the SELPA on the Summary of NPS/NPA Expenditures form based on invoices 
received to date (1st Quarter).  Present to SELPA Advisory Committee and Superintendents’ 
Council at the November/December meetings. 

2. March - the total of NPS/NPA Non-LCI 80%, the NPS LCI 100%, and 70% of the authorized 
parent/JRF related reimbursements plus LCFF dollars generated per NPS ADA as calculated 

C-2

44



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-17 

by the SELPA on the Summary of NPS/NPA Expenditures form based on invoices received to 
date (2nd Quarter), less the 1st quarter reimbursement request.  Present to SELPA Advisory 
Committee and Superintendents’ Council at March meetings. 

3. May - the total of NPS/NPA Non-LCI 80%, the NPS LCI 100%, and 70% of the authorized 
parent/JRF related reimbursements plus LCFF dollars generated per NPS ADA as calculated 
by the SELPA on the Summary of NPS/NPA Expenditures form based on invoices received to 
date (3rd Quarter), less the 1st and 2nd Quarter reimbursement requests.  Present to SELPA 
Advisory Committee and Superintendents’ Council at May meetings. 

4. July – districts will be notified of the final 4th quarter JRF reimbursement amount by July 31.    
5. September – the balance of the total NPS/NPA Non LCI 80%, the NPS LCI 100%, and 70% of 

the authorized parent/JRF related reimbursements plus the LCFF dollars generated by NPS 
ADA, less all reimbursements previously transferred.  Present to SELPA Advisory Committee 
and Superintendents’ Council at September meetings (Final 4th Quarter). 

 
 

JOINT RISK FUND: CONTRIBUTION AND RETURN                                                                      
(Exhibit I, Schedule F) 

 
A portion of Joint Risk Fund (JRF) revenue will be generated from member LEA contributions. These 
contributions will be calculated based on a Superintendents’ Council approved dollar amount multiplied by 
the member LEA’s projected current year P-2 ADA.  The 20243/245 JRF contribution rate is $50.7349.92 per 
ADA (Approved 5/1910/234).  A reserve of $400,000 has been established and will be reconsidered as 
needed.  
   
JRF revenue that is in excess of annual expenses and approved reserve will be returned to member LEAs in 
the following school year after completion of year-end closing of financial records.  
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. JRF Contribution 
1. The SELPA shall present the next year JRF contribution rate for approval in April/May.  Member 

LEAs’ contribution to the JRF will be calculated based on a Superintendents’ Council approved 
contribution rate multiplied by current year P-2 ADA. 

2. The SELPA shall submit the amounts to be transferred from the member LEAs to the JRF (0282 
Mgmt) in accordance with the following schedule: 

 50% of the estimated amount based on the estimated CY P-2 ADA will be transferred in 
November/December after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 

 The balance adjusted to the actual CY first submission of P-2 ADA will be transferred in 
May/June after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 

3. The JRF contribution will not be recalculated after the closing of financial records. 
 

B. JRF Return 
1. Prior year JRF revenue in excess of expenses and approved reserve will be returned to member 

LEAs at the completion of year-end closing of financial records.  This process shall be completed 
by November 30. 

2. On an annual basis, after year-end closing, a JRF analysis will calculate each member LEA’s 
“usage” by comparing their revenue contributions (including quarterly reimbursements) to their 

C-2

45



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-18 

expenses.  Data that is unavailable or received after the preparation of the usage analysis will 
not be used in the calculation.   

 Shared expenses are expenses that cannot be directly tied to a specific member LEA(s).  
Such expenses will be isolated and treated as “off-the-top” expenditures.  Each member 
LEA’s JRF usage calculation will not reflect shared expenses. 

3. Using the annual JRF usage analysis as a guide, member LEAs that underutilize the JRF by 
contributing more than they spend will be given the following return priority: 

 If the return is large enough, underutilizing LEAs will be fully reimbursed for their amount 
of under usage.  After which, the remaining balance of the JRF return will be distributed 
to all member LEAs by their percentage of ADA.   

 If the amount of JRF return is not enough to fully reimburse underutilizing LEAs, then 
only member LEAs that underutilize the JRF will get a return.  In this case, the return 
would be distributed by proportionate share of under usage.  Member LEAs that over 
utilize the JRF by spending more than they contribute will not be eligible for a JRF return. 

4. In the event JRF expenses exceed JRF revenue in a fiscal year, member LEAs will contribute to 
the JRF through an additional per-ADA charge to all members. 

5. The SELPA shall report projected JRF revenue and expenditures to the SELPA Advisory 
Committee and the Superintendents’ Council per the annual budget process. 

 
 

JOINT RISK FUND: ACCESS 
 
When a member LEA receives notification that a request for due process has been filed against and/or by 
the LEA and/or alternative dispute resolution (ADR) has been requested by either party, the LEA will notify 
the West End SELPA – Resolution and Education Support Team (REST) Program Manager and/or In-house 
Counsel immediately if the LEA desires to use the Joint Risk Fund (JRF)  funds to help cover costs.  The 
West End SELPA REST Program Manager and/or In-house Counsel will coordinate next steps which will 
include either scheduling a facilitated resolution session for ADR, addressing  the case internally through our 
In-House Counsel, or connecting member districts with one of our contracted law firms when approved.  The 
determination to utilize legal support from outside counsel will be made by the WESELPA In-House Counsel.  
When accessing the JRF to help cover the cost of expenses, the member LEA will retain decision-making 
authority throughout due process and/or ADR proceedings.   
 
To access the JRF, the LEA must notify the West End SELPA and allow the West End SELPA REST Program 
Manager and/or In-house Counsel to coordinate the process to access supports and services.  By involving 
the West End SELPA in the process, the member LEA will receive access to the JRF as outlined in the Fiscal 
Allocation Plan.  Member LEAs are not required to involve the West End SELPA REST in due process cases 
and/or ADR, however, the LEAs will bear 100% of all related expenses for due process and/or ADR cases in 
which the West End SELPA REST is not involved.    
 
After a settlement agreement has been reached and signed, the involvement of the West End SELPA and 
additional access to the JRF will cease and be considered concluded for that case.  Any subsequent IEP 
meeting, due process filing, and/or ADR will re-start the process. Any future due process filing and/or ADR 
request must involve the West End SELPA REST Program Manager and/or In-house Counsel in order to 
access the JRF funds. 
 
 

C-2

46



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-19 

JOINT RISK FUND: WITHDRAWAL/TERMINATION OF MEMBER LEA 
 
When a member LEA withdraws or is terminated from the West End SELPA, they will no longer have access 
to the Joint Risk Fund (JRF).  Therefore, all original expenses related to settlement agreements, Non-LCI 
NPS/NPA placements, LCI NPS placements, and authorized parent and JRF related reimbursements such 
as attorney fees, unilaterally obtained related services, transportation, independent educational 
evaluations/assessments, or other authorized expenses will become the exclusive responsibility of the 
withdrawn/terminated LEA as of the effective date of the withdrawal/termination.   
 
For settlements/agreements that have been agreed upon before the date of withdrawal/termination, the West 
End SELPA will continue to use the JRF to process related expenses up until the effective date of the 
withdrawal/termination.  After which, the withdrawn/terminated LEA will be exclusively responsible for all 
NPS/NPA contracts, purchase orders, and invoice payments including parent reimbursements and the 
reimbursement of parent attorney fees.   
 
The withdrawn/terminated LEA will be entitled to their proportionate share of the JRF return up until the 
effective date of the withdrawal/termination.  The specific procedures of the JRF return are outlined in the 
“Joint Risk Fund: Contribution and Return” section of the Fiscal Allocation Plan.  
 
The withdrawn/terminated LEA will also be entitled to their proportionate share of the JRF and RSPS reserve 
amounts held by the West End SELPA.  The reserve amounts will be calculated at the completion of year-
end closing for the final fiscal year in which the withdrawn/terminated LEA was a member of the West End 
SELPA.  The proportionate share of reserves will be based on the LEA’s proportionate share of ADA as of 
P-2 for the final fiscal year in which the withdrawn/terminated LEA was a member of the West End SELPA.    
 
 

FACILITIES EXPENSE                                                                                                
(Exhibit I, Schedule L) 

 
In recognition of the need for West End SELPA districts to provide appropriate classroom facilities for SBCSS 
West End Student Services as well as regional provider programs, the Superintendents’ Council approved 
the SELPA Facilities Expense policy.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES: (Column H-W) 
 

A. Determination of Facilities Expense  
1. The Facilities Expense is determined by taking approved district/LEA reported figures for 

grounds, maintenance, and operations, as well as allowed administration costs and calculating 
a per classroom cost for the entire district.  These figures will be taken from each district’s prior 
year Unaudited Actuals Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet from the CDE SACS Financial Reporting 
Software, on an annual basis. 

2. Allowable costs are:   
 Plant maintenance and operations, Part III, Base Cost (11).  Plant maintenance and 

operations includes those activities necessary to keep the physical plant and grounds 
open, clean, comfortable, in working condition, and in a state of repair.  Plant 
maintenance includes those activities that are required to repair, restore, or renovate 

C-2

47



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-20 

school property, including grounds, buildings, site improvements, building fixtures, and 
service systems.  Direct charges to the plant maintenance program include salaries of 
directors and supervisors of maintenance, carpenters, painters, electricians, plumbers, 
maintenance clerks, and similar employees; employee benefits for all employees in this 
program; necessary materials and supplies; rental and replacement of plant 
maintenance equipment; contracts for repairing, restoring, or renovating the grounds, 
buildings, or equipment, including re-grading sites and repairing retaining walls, walks, 
driveways, sprinkler systems, and playground apparatus or equipment; reseeding of 
lawns; repainting; repairs to or replacement of roofs, walls, heating and air-conditioning 
units, and electrical and plumbing installations; repairs to building fixtures; resurfacing 
and refinishing of floors; movement of movable walls or partitions; and acquisition and 
replacement of related equipment. 

 Changes of partitions (non-movable types), walls, and roof structures are excluded from 
plant maintenance and should be charged to the facilities acquisition and construction 
program. 

 Plant operations.  Plant operations are housekeeping activities concerned with keeping 
the physical plant open and ready for use.  Included activities are cleaning and 
disinfecting; heating and lighting; communications; maintenance of power; moving of 
furniture; caring for grounds; garbage and trash disposal; laundry and dry-cleaning 
service, including the rental of towels; rental of equipment, such as floor polishers; soft 
water service; and such other housekeeping activities as are repeated on a daily, 
weekly, monthly, or seasonal basis. 

 Direct charges to the operations program include salaries of directors, supervisors, and 
staff assigned to operations, custodians, guards, gardeners, telephone switchboard 
operators, truck drivers, operational clerks, security personnel, and similar employee(s); 
employee benefits for all employees in this program; supplies, including brooms, 
brushes, disinfectants, fuses, garbage cans, light bulbs and fluorescent tubes, mops, 
wax, soap, toilet paper, towels, outdoor flags, weed killers, and fertilizers; office supplies; 
repair and maintenance of equipment used in this program; and acquisition and 
replacement of related equipment. 

 An Indirect Cost Rate will be applied as specified in the West End SELPA Facility Policy, 
Items 3 (a), (c), and (d). The CDE School Fiscal Services Division Restricted Indirect 
Cost Rate Sheet will serve as the resource document. 

3. The total of costs captured in item 2 is divided by the total number of classrooms in the district 
per the Program Cost Report Schedule of Allocation Factors for Support Costs, Classroom Units 
– Item C, and also divided by 960 square feet per classroom to determine both a cost per class 
and a cost per square foot.  The SELPA Housing Equity Rate is determined by taking the average 
cost per class of all districts within the SELPA. 

4. The rate will be recalculated each year utilizing SACS Financial Reporting Software data. 
5. Districts housing County or regional provider classrooms are responsible for routine 

maintenance and utility costs. 
 

B. Calculation of Annual SELPA Reimbursement Rate  
1. District Commitment 

 The number of pupils from residence districts enrolled in each County or provider 
program is determined by the current year December pupil count, less students served 
in leased or County-owned facilities (Columns H-K).  County-owned/leased sites have 
a different billing procedure.  See County-owned/leased Facilities Transfer Procedures. 

C-2

48



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-21 

 The residence district pupil counts are used to calculate a ratio percentage (Column M) 
based on the total number of pupils served.  This ratio percentage is then multiplied by 
the total number of classrooms provided by districts (Column N) which includes a 
provider program classroom count that is calculated by dividing the total number of 
students served by the provider program by ten. 

 The aggregated result is the initial number of classrooms for which each district is 
financially responsible (Column P). 

2. Comparison of Financial and Programmatic Commitment 
 The total number of classrooms provided by districts (Column N) is now compared to 

the number of classrooms for which each district is financially responsible for (Column 
P). 

 If the actual number of classes needed matches the net district’s financial commitment, 
then the district provides the space at no cost to the SELPA. 

 If the actual number of classes provided is less than the district’s responsibility, the 
district will be billed for the difference at the SELPA rate per class.  The initial district 
charge is calculated by multiplying the difference times the Housing Equity Rate, which 
is recalculated annually. (Column S) 

 If the actual number of classes provided is greater than the district’s responsibility, the 
district will be reimbursed for the difference at the SELPA rate per class.  The initial 
district reimbursement is calculated by multiplying the difference times the Housing 
Equity Rate.  (Column S) 

 
C. Calculation of Medical Therapy Unit (MTU) Charges and Reimbursements (if applicable) 

1. District Charge 
 Each district’s charge is calculated by multiplying the percentage of non-LCI pupils 

receiving MTU services (Column V) times the total cost per square foot (Column T) 
which is calculated by multiplying the MTU square footage by the SELPA Housing Equity 
Rate per square foot. 

2. Calculation of Total District Charge 
 The individual charges and reimbursements are totaled for each district (Column W), 

and the district is either charged or reimbursed for facilities based on the computed total. 
 

D. Billing and Payment Process 
1. The SELPA office will determine each district’s financial responsibility based on the CY 

December pupil counts for each program, as well as the CY October counts of students receiving 
MTU services. 

2. The SELPA office will charge and/or reimburse districts through transfer. 
 
 

COUNTY-OWNED/LEASED FACILITY TRANSFER                                                                                  
(Exhibit I, Schedule L) 

 
County-owned (preschool) or any leased facilities expense will be funded by a charge to Districts of 
Residence/Accountability based on the percentage of students served in the provider programs housed in 
each county-owned or leased facility. 
 

C-2

49



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-22 

When provider program property is owned and maintained by SBCSS for preschool, member LEAs will 
contribute to the maintenance and operating costs equal to the percentage of students served in the 
preschool provider programs at that site.  For K-12 provider programs housed at County-owned property, 
maintenance and operating costs are included in the Fee-For-Service expense.  
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES: (Column A-G) 
  

A. Billing Process 
1. Allowable costs to be included in County-owned/leased Facility Billing include maintenance, and 

operation costs associated with the County-owned/leased facility.  A per pupil cost, based on 
December 1 Pupil Count, is then determined and charged to the appropriate member district. 

2. The provider program operator will present projected County-owned/leased costs in 
November/December of each fiscal year. As approved by Superintendents’ Council, 50% of the 
projected County-owned/leased facility costs for the current fiscal year will be billed in November 
to the appropriate member district based on the estimated December 1 Pupil Count.  The mid-
year 50% will be billed in March based on mid-year projected costs and distributed to the 
appropriate member district based on the actual December 1 Pupil Count.  Any differences 
between the mid-year projections and actual final expenditures will be adjusted the following 
September at the completion of year-end closing. 

 
 

WEB-BASED IEP                                                                                                                 
(Exhibit I, Schedule N) 

 
The West End SELPA contracts with San Joaquin County Office of Education for implementation of the 
Special Education Information System (SEIS), which is a web-based IEP program.  West End member LEAs 
incur the total web-based IEP cost on a per Pupil Count basis.  These annual expenses include license and 
customization fees.  Additional costs for e-signature features or maintenance fees associated with 
customized web-based IEP forms may also be incurred.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. Transfer Process 
1. The SELPA shall submit by transfer the amounts to be transferred from the member LEAs to the 

Joint Risk Fund (0282 Mgmt) in accordance with the following schedule: 
 50% of the amount based on the PY October pupil count will be transferred in 

November/December after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 
 The balance adjusted to the actual CY October pupil count will be transferred in 

May/June after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ Council. 
 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION EXCESS COST                                                                
(Exhibit I, Schedule M) 

 

C-2

50



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-23 

After state revenue is deducted, all monthly transportation costs for the West End county programs are 
prorated to each district by the number of district students being transported by San Bernardino County 
Superintendent of Schools.   
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES: (Column A-G) 
 

A. Determination of Billable Excess Cost for Transportation    
1. The transportation vendor’s contract lists specified hourly rates for each type of vehicle used to 

transport students. 
2. The SBCSS determines each route for each bus the vendor runs on a daily basis. 
3. Any and all route changes for each bus are made by the SBCSS daily and sent to the vendor.  

This is necessary due to the constant additions and deletions of students from the daily routes, 
changes to student residence and minimum day schedules.  The SBCSS is very conscious of 
the need to be as efficient in its’ planning, thus minimizing costs. 

4. At the end of each month all transportation costs are summarized by SBCSS.  A summary of the 
cost for each bus is analyzed and costs are determined by: 

 Determining total transportation costs, by bus 
 Deducting all non-special education trips (i.e. field trips) 
 Balance of costs divided by the percentage of students in the county program and the 

number of students transported to district programs.   
 

B. Expense Billing Process 
1. All transportation vendor costs for the West End county programs are compiled for the year. This 

amount is combined with the SBCSS internal operating costs.  The net expenditure, after state 
revenue is deducted, is prorated to each district by the number of district students being 
transported by SBCSS. The average number of students transported within the regular academic 
school year is calculated for each district. 

2. 50% of the estimated transportation excess cost for the current year fiscal year will be billed in 
November/December with the final 50% billed in February/March based on mid-year projected 
costs.  Any differences between the mid-year projections and actual final expenditures will be 
adjusted the following November/December at the completion of year-end closing. 
 

C. Budget Development and Revisions 
1. Preliminary budgets for the upcoming fiscal years are presented to the SELPA in March based 

on the level of service being provided at the time.   
2. In October, the budget will be revised and presented to the SELPA in November/December.   
3. In January, the data for the first half of the academic year is reviewed and projections for the 

current year are revised and shared with the SELPA in March.   
4. In July, all expenses are calculated, including SBCSS internal operating costs and the 

transportation vendor costs.  State revenue is applied and the excess cost is split amongst the 
districts based on the annual average amount of students within the District of 
Residence/Accountability.  Accruals are provided for the districts in August. 

 
D. Student Counts  

1. Each month the SBCSS e-mails each district a list of students that are transported to both county 
and district programs by the transportation vendor. 

 
 

C-2

51



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-24 

STATE SPECIAL SCHOOLS ADJUSTMENT                                                                    
(Exhibit I, Schedule E) 

 
California Education Code Section 59300 requires the school District of Residence/Accountability of the 
parents or guardians of any residential student attending a state special school to pay ten percent (10%) of 
the excess annual cost of education for those students. 
 
At the time of each school year’s first principal apportionment, LCFF adjustments are made by the State 
Controller for estimated attendance and costs generated for students attending state special schools during 
that specific school year.  After the close of each school year, final adjustments are made to the principal 
apportionment.  The adjustments, which are made by the State Controller, are the result of actual attendance 
and costs generated for students attending the state special schools during that year, compared to the 
previous estimated apportionment adjustment. 
 
The final adjustments may reflect changes to the previous billings for one or more of the follow reasons: 

 Students moved in or out of the District of Residence/Accountability 
 Students incorrectly billed to wrong District of Residence/Accountability 
 Students not enrolled in state special school entire school year 
 Changes in residency status, i.e., day student to resident student 

 
The SELPA Office maintains a list of the students, with their District of Residence/Accountability, that are 
attending any of the state special schools.  Placements may be at either California School for the Deaf, 
Riverside (CSDR), or California School for the Blind, Fremont. 
 
It has been the policy of the West End Special Education Local Plan Area to reimburse districts, from the 
Joint Risk Fund, for the ten percent (10%) annual excess costs that are withheld from state apportionment 
for residential students placed in state special schools. 
 
SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:  
 

A. State Special School Reimbursement Process  
1. The State School provides the District of Residence/Accountability with a list of students placed 

in state special schools in September or October of each school year. 
2. About February of each school year, the Business Advisory Services of the County Schools 

office receives a letter of notification from the State Department of Education indicating the dollar 
amount withheld from any individual school district within San Bernardino County representing 
the estimated ten percent (10%) of the students’ educational excess cost. 

3. It is the responsibility of the SELPA office to obtain a copy of said notification from the County 
Office. 

4. Upon receipt of the letter copy, the SELPA office will reimburse, through transfer, each resident 
district for the estimated ten percent (10%) costs, after fiscal notification to the Superintendents’ 
Council. 

5. Following the close of the school year, usually the following February, a letter will be received 
from the State Department indicating the actual ten percent (10%) costs for the previous school 
year for students enrolled in state special schools. These costs can reflect either a reduction of 
the districts’ principal apportionment, should the costs be more than previously estimated; or an 
addition to the districts’ apportionment, should the actual costs be less than previously estimated. 

C-2

52



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-25 

6. Upon receipt of a copy of this letter from the county office and after fiscal notification to the 
Superintendents’ Council, SELPA will reimburse the district an amount equal to the amount 
withheld from districts’ apportionment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER GRANTS/SOURCES 
(Exhibit I, Schedule O & R) 

 
PRESCHOOL FUNDING: (Schedule O) 
 

 The Federal Preschool Grant (PCA 13430) revenue is used to offset the cost of the preschool 
programs First CLASS Program (ages 3-5) operated by West End Student Services.  The grant also 
funds a small portion of personnel costs for employees working with preschool students for the West 
End SELPA. 

 The Infant/Early Start Program (ages 0-2.11) is operated by West End Student Services and is 
partially funded by Infant Discretionary Funds (PCA 24462), the SELPA Infant Program Part C 
Entitlement (PCA 23761), and State Infant Funding dollars. 

 The Preschool Staff Development Grant (PCA 13431) is overseen by the West End SELPA.  These 
funds provide for preschool staff development opportunities for personnel working in preschool 
programs that serve students with disabilities (ages 3-5). 
 

SPECIAL EDUCATION ALTERNATE DISPUTE RESOLUTION: (Schedule O) 
 
Special Education Alternate Dispute Resolution (SPED ADR) funds are used to develop and test procedures, 
materials, and training to support special education alternate dispute resolution.  Funds may also be used to 
resolve disputes at the local level. 
 
TRANSITION PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM: (Schedule O) 
 
The Inland Empire District of the Department of Rehabilitation, San Bernardino Branch, and the West End 
Special Education Local Plan Area, through its Administrative Unit, San Bernardino County Superintendent 
of Schools, combine staff and resources to provide vocational rehabilitation services through the Transition 
Partnership Program (TPP) to high school age youths with disabilities. 
 
The WESELPA Transition Partnership Program will focus on serving students with disabilities ages 16-22 
within the following school districts:  Chaffey Joint Union High School District, Upland Unified School District, 
and Chino Valley Unified School District. Students in either their junior or senior year of high school are 
targeted for services.  DOR Student Services consist of five fundamental activities:  

1. Job Exploration Counseling 
2. Work-Based Learning Experiences 
3. Postsecondary Education Counseling 
4. Workplace Readiness Training 
5. Instruction in Self-Advocacy 

C-2

53



 

Updated:  September 20243  B-26 

 
WORKABILITY I: (Schedule O) 
 
The mission of WorkAbility I (WAI) is to promote the involvement of key stakeholders including students, 
families, educators, employers, and other agencies in planning and implementing an array of services that 
will culminate in successful student transition to employment, lifelong learning, and quality of life. 
 
WorkAbility I serves secondary and middle school special education students. Grant Awards are for the 
purpose of providing special education students with comprehensive pre-employment services, employment 
training, work-site training, and follow-up services.  Grant awards are formula-driven, and allocations are 
funded based on number of students to be served. 
 
 

MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT (MOE) 
 
Per the federal Office of Special Education Program, the CDE is required to invoice the individual LEAs that 
fail to meet the IDEA MOE SEMA compliance test (actual vs. actual comparison). For a multi-district SELPA, 
the CDE will invoice the LEAs that fail to meet the compliance test, not the SELPA. 
 
For the IDEA MOE SEMB eligibility test (budget vs. actual), the amount withheld is not equal to the amount 
of the failure. If a LEA fails to meet the IDEA MOE eligibility test, then the CDE will ensure that the SELPA 
is withholding the amount the LEA would have received on the basis of the SELPA’s allocation model. If the 
amount the SELPA withholds is significantly different from the amount CDE has determined on the basis of 
the federal funding formula, then the CDE will contact the SELPA. 
 

C-2

54



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

APPENDICES/EXHIBITS 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

C-2

55



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-2 

APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY OF TERMS/ACRONYMS 
 

AB602 Assembly Bill 602 (Chapter 854 of the Statutes of 1997), the bill that implemented the new 

special education funding model. 

ADA Average Daily Attendance 

ADD/ADHD Attention Deficit Disorder/Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder 

ADR Alternative Dispute Resolution:  Alternative methods to resolve disputes prior to due 

process 

ADRE Alternative Dispute Resolution Expansion 

APE Adaptive Physical Education 

ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 

AT Assistive Technology 

AU Administrative unit of a SELPA 

Base Allocation The calculated special education funding entitlement for each LEA 

Apportionment State aid given to a school district or county office of Education 

CAC Community Advisory Committee 

CAHSEE California High School Exit Exam 

CalSTAT California Services for Technical Assistance and Training 

CAO Chief Administrative Officer 

CARS California Association of Resource Specialists 

CASEMIS California Special Education Management Information System 

CBEDS California Basic Education Data System 

CCI California Career Innovations 

CCR California Code of Regulations (Title 5) or Coordinated Compliance Review 

CCS California Children’s Services 

CDE California Department of Education 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 

COE County Office of Education 

COLA Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

CSDR California School for the Deaf at Riverside 

D & HOH Deaf and Hard of Hearing 

DCH Development Centers for the Handicapped 

DDS Department of Developmental Services 

DHS Department of Health Services 

DIS Designated Instruction and Services 

C-2

56



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-3 

DOF Department of Finance 

Due Process Procedural safeguards established to manage resolution of disputes between parents and 

LEAs, including both mediation and hearings as options. 

EC Education Code 

ECP Extraordinary Cost Pool 

ED Emotional Disturbed or Emotional Disturbance 

Encroachment The difference between the amount spent on a particular program and the amount of 

categorical aid received for that program.  In different words, the encroachment is the 

amount of unrestricted general fund monies spent in support of a categorical program. 

Entitlement The amount of revenue that an agency is entitled to receive.  Special education funding is 

based on entitlements, not current expenditures and, furthermore, entitlements are subject 

to deficits. 

ESL English as a Second Language 

ESY Extended School Year 

FAPE Free Appropriate Public Education 

FFH Foster Family Home 

FFS Fee-For-Service 

FTE Full-time Equivalent 

Hold Harmless A formula providing a guarantee of no loss in funding for an agency when a change in law 

or data would otherwise require a loss in funding. 

IA Instructional Assistant 

IDEA Individuals with Disabilities Education Act – the Federal law regarding special education 

IEE Independent Educational Evaluations or Evaluators 

IEP Individualized Education Program 

ISA Individualized Service Agreement (for NPS/A) 

ISP Individualized Service Plan (for private schools) 

ITP Individualized Transition Program 

IWEN Individual with Exceptional Needs (i.e., student in special education) 

J-50s The state forms used to calculate special education funding from 1980-81 through 1997-

98. 

JRF Joint Risk Fund 

KPI Key Performance Indicators 

LEA Local Education Agency, Charter School or SBCSS 

LCFF Local Control Funding Formula 

C-2

57



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-4 

LCI Licensed Children’s Institution (often used as a generic term to also encompass foster 

family homes and residential medical facilities) - in this document, LCI refers to both 

students in licensed children’s institutions (group homes) and foster family homes. 

LD (or LH) Learning Disabled (Learning Handicapped) 

LEA Local Educational Agency (i.e., a school district or county office of education) 

LGFC Local General Fund Contribution 

Low Incidence Disabilities of hearing impaired, blind, deaf-blind, and orthopedically impaired 

LRE Least Restrictive Environment 

MOE Maintenance of Effort 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

NCLB No Child Left Behind 

NPS/NPA Nonpublic Nonsectarian School/Nonpublic Nonsectarian Agency 

NSH Non-Severely Handicapped  

OCR Office of Civil Rights 

OT Occupational Therapy/Therapist 

PADC Principal Apportionment Data Collection 

PERS Public Employees’ Retirement System 

PROMISE Promoting the Readiness of Minors in Supplemental Security Income 

Proration Sometimes when a new program is implemented, it is not fully funded initially, and a 

proration factor is used to reduce funding to the amount available.  Unlike a deficit, which is 

unintended, a proration is usually known ahead of time, with no expectation of being funded.  

PS/RS Program Specialist/Regionalized Services 

PT Physical Therapy/Therapist 

RCL Rate Classification Level for LCI placements 

REST Resolution and Education Support Team 

ROC/P Regional Occupational Center/Program 

RS Resource Specialist or Regionalized Services Regional services, personnel 

development, program evaluation, data collection/management information systems, 

curriculum development, etc. 

Revenue Limit Funding rate assigned to each district/county office for average daily attendance (ADA) 

revenues.  Revenue limit dollars generated by special day students constitute the first 

source of funding for base allocations. 

RLA Responsible Local Agency 

RSP Resource Specialist Program (no longer used in CASEMIS) 

C-2

58



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-5 

RSPS Commonly used SELPA acronym for Program Specialist/Regionalized Services(see also 

PS/RS) 

SACS Standardized Account Code Structure 

SAI Specialized Academic Instruction 

SBCSS San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools 

SBE State Board of Education 

SDC Special Day Class (no longer used in CASEMIS) 

SELPA Special Education Local Plan Area 

SESR Special Education Self Review 

SH Severely Handicapped 

SIP School Improvement Plan 

SLS Speech and Language Specialist 

SOP State-Operated Programs (Diagnostic Centers, School for the Blind/Deaf 

SSI Supplemental Security Income 

SST Student Study Team; also Student Success Team 

START Screening, Treatment, Assessment, Referral and Treatment 

STRS State Teachers Retirement System 

Superintendents’ SELPA governing board composed of superintendent from each member district 

Council or LEA 

Support Services Services required supporting the special education program, including assessment 

services, administration, maintenance and operations, supplies and equipment, etc.  

TPP Transition Partnership Program 

Unit An instructional service consisting of a teacher, and where appropriate, one or two 

instructional aides 

WA1 WorkAbility 1 

WESELPA West End SELPA 

  

C-2

59



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-6 

APPENDIX B:  HISTORY 

 
1990/91 

 Low Incidence timeline adopted (Approved 10/19/90) 
o Purchases shall be completed by April 15 of each year 
o Invoices for reimbursement must be submitted to the SELPA by July 15 of each year 

1997/98 
 As a result of AB602, special education funding changed from a resource based funding model using 

unit rates and support service ratios, to a per ADA funding model 
o AB602 included district level equalization funding 

 Deficited state aid for special education for age 5-21 program and 3-5 preschool program, including 
Non LCI NPS/NPA reimbursements and extended school year funding included in AB602 Base 

 Federal aid for age 5-22 program included in AB602 Base 
 Phase I Equalization revenue included in AB602 Base 
 Juvenile court school extended year program funding included in AB602 Base 
 Longer day/longer year funding for County offices included in AB602 Base 
 Property taxes for special education included in AB602 Base (initiated in 2000-2001) 
 Revenue Limits for special education ADA excluded from AB602 Base 
 Funding for nonpublic school for students placed in licensed children’s institutions or foster family 

homes which are 100% reimbursed placements excluded from AB602 Base 
 State J-50 unit funding for infants and Part C federal aid for infant program excluded from AB602 

Base 
 State funding for regionalized services/program specialists excluded from AB602 Base 
 Low incidence materials and equipment funding excluded from AB602 Base 
 Federal Part B, PL 94-142 Local Assistance Grant excluded from AB602 Base 
 Federal funding for preschool programs, both PL 00-457 and PL 94-142 are excluded from AB602 

Base 
 Federal funding for low incidence services and staff development are excluded from AB602 Base 
 Project WorkAbility funding excluded from AB602 Base 
 Transition Partnership Program funding from Department of Rehabilitation excluded from AB602 

Base 
1998/99 

 As a result of AB602, converted to a SELPA-level per ADA funding model and SELPA level 
equalization 

 AB602 funding distribution is based on J-50 unit entitlements, plus allocated COLA revenue, 
equalization revenue, ADA growth revenue, and Federal Local Assistance revenue. 

2000/01 
 50% of the estimated transportation excess cost for the current year fiscal year will be billed on or 

about October 31 with the final 50% billed in March based on mid-year projected costs.  Any 
differences between the mid-year projections and actual final expenditures will be adjusted the 
following October at the completion of a SELPA audit. (Approved 6/30/00) 

2001/02 
 AB602 funding distribution is on a per ADA basis and no longer based on J-50 unit entitlements. 
 The X-Pot will pay for Facility Expenses as approved by Superintendents’ Council, following a 

recommendation by the Facility Advisory Committee.  (Approved 6/29/01) 

C-2

60



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-7 

 SB740 funding determination is initiated 
2003/04 

 LEAs Obligation to Maintain the Legally Required Level of Special Education Funding (Approved 
5/21/04) 

o The LEAs of West End SELPA shall follow federal and state laws pertaining to the required 
Maintenance of Effort (MOE) spending levels for special education.  If an LEA, or more than 
one LEA, does not meet the required spending levels to pass the MOE tests and the SELPA 
loses funding as a result of failure to pass the MOE requirements, the LEAs that caused the 
SELPA to fail the MOE requirements shall reimburse the SELPA for any funds lost by the 
other LEAs or the SELPA office, upon final approval of Superintendents’ Council. 

2004/05 
 NPS LCI Apportionment removed from state exhibit 

o In prior years, the SELPA reported Nonpublic School LCI costs to the state on NPS LCI 
Claim Forms. 

o These costs were reimbursed by the state, less Revenue Limit dollars generated by NPS 
LCI ADA, and were allocated to the District of Residence/Accountability by the SELPA 
through the Funding Allocation Model.  

o The X-Pot paid all NPS LCI costs.    
o The amount equal to state NPS LCI Apportionment, plus Revenue Limit dollars generated 

by NPS ADA was reimbursed to the SELPA X-Pot to offset the related expenses. 
 Out-of-home care allocation replaces the 100% reimbursed placements in licensed children’s’ 

institutes (LCI), foster family homes (FFH), skilled nursing facility (SNF), and Regional Center Group 
homes included in AB602 allocation 

 Pre-referral Mental Health funding included in AB602 allocation 
2005/06 

 Pre-referral Mental Health funding excluded from AB602 allocation 
 Out-Of-Home Care apportionment will be distributed to the districts based on P-2 ADA, after 

allocating 100% of the LCI NPS costs to districts with LCI NPS costs. 
 The regional provider surplus/shortages will be returned by provider at the same percentage as 

paying for services. 
 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $20.00 

2006/07 
 Preschool funding is not part of AB602 Allocations. 
 Web-based IEP/SEIS expense begins 

o Districts will incur the total web-based IEP cost on a per ADA basis (Approved 5/19/06) 
 SBCSS Transportation Expense added to funding model 
 SBCSS Leased Facility Expense added to funding model 
 CSDR Excess Cost added to funding model 
 Due to the SELPA experiencing overall decline in ADA, the growth allocation was modified. 

o Only districts experiencing declining/growing ADA receive the negative/positive growth 
allocation.   

o Those districts experiencing growth in ADA will not receive the negative growth allocation 
when the SELPA is declining. 

o Those districts experiencing declining ADA will not receive the positive growth allocation 
when the SELPA is growing. 

 Declining Enrollment Adjustment to support districts during the first year of declining enrollment was 
eliminated from the X-Pot (Approved 6/16/06) 

C-2

61



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-8 

 Costs associated with provision of CASEMIS production and web-based IEP support will be billed to 
districts based on a Superintendent’s Council approved dollar amount multiplied by districts’ current 
year P-2 ADA (Approved 5/12/06) 

 When property is leased as provider program classrooms or property is owned and maintained by 
SBCSS for provider classroom usage and students served do not generate revenue limit dollars, 
member LEAs will contribute to the lease, maintenance, and operating costs equal to the percentage 
of students served in the provider programs at that site (Approved 11/17/06) 

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $22.50 (Approved 4/21/06) 
2007/08 

 Changes related to SBCSS 1:1 aides (Approved 5/30/08) 
o County Operations has identified several classrooms where there is more than one 

classroom educational assistant in addition to 1:1 aides assigned to students, and students 
are making satisfactory progress.  

o In these cases, it may be possible to assign the second classroom educational assistant to 
serve in the role of a 1:1 aide, thus immediately reducing staffing expense and resulting in a 
salary savings that will be credited back to Districts of Residence/Accountability.   

o The dollar savings for classrooms not employing an “extra” person would be calculated and 
spread proportionally across all the districts with 1:1 aides. 

 Behavior Intervention Mandate Settlement: 
o After negotiations between Department of Finance and school agencies, including the San 

Joaquin county Office of Education, Butte County Office of Education, San Diego Unified 
School district, Education Mandated Cost Network, State SELPA Organization, and the 
California School Boards Association’s Education Legal Alliance resumed late  in 07/08 and 
an agreement has been reached that includes $510 million in one-time funds and $65 million 
in ongoing funds in lieu of filing ongoing BIP mandate claims.   

o As a result, it is anticipated statewide SELPAs will receive $6 million, which will be allocated 
at the rate of $8.850014 per pupil, based on the SELPA’s December 2007 pupil count, with 
a minimum of $10,000 per SELPA.  AB602 Funding will be raised by $65 million on an 
ongoing basis to increase each SELPA’s funding rate by $10.924857 per ADA based on the 
2008/09 P-2 ADA.  The Behavior Intervention Mandate Settlement is not included as part of 
AB602 in 2008/09 and will be included once the allocations have been made to SELPAs.  
The Behavior Intervention Mandate Settlement revenue was not received in 2008/09, 
2009/10, or 2010/11.  It is unknown at this time when this will be allocated 

 The 2005/06 Provider Program returns will be retained by the regional providers to offset the 2007/08 
Fee-For-Service rates. (Approved 4/27/07) 

 X-Pot Reserve set at $500,000 (Approved 4/27/07) 
 RS/PS budget (0284) reserve is 10% of CY AB602 allocation for RS/PS (Approved 4/27/07) 
 The FIRST Class (ages 3-5) and Infant Program (ages 9-2.11 months) operated by San Bernardino 

County Schools are not included in the fee-for-service calculation because these programs receive 
funding from other sources.  However, if future costs exceed the funding from other sources, a fee-
for-service rate may be developed and presented to the Superintendents’ Council. (Approved 
4/27/07) 

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $22.50 (Approved3/23/07) 
2008/09 

 SBCSS/CSDR Transportation Expense added to funding model 

C-2

62



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-9 

 Exclusion of 1:1 aides from the X-Pot with the exception of when the NPA is agreed to for the 
purpose of transitioning a student from an in-home ABA program to a school program for a period 
of up to six weeks. (Approved 2/22/08) 

 The West End SELPA will hire an individual with experience in special education or a related field, 
on a consultant basis, to provide support to parentally placed private school students with disabilities. 
(Approved 5/29/09)    

 Students enrolled in Juvenile Court School will no longer be counted in the fee-for-service calculation. 
(Approved 11/14/08) 

 An additional Behavior Intervention Services fee-for-service for the students in the Intensive Autism 
Classes for the current year of $3,647. (Approved 11/14/08) 

 The fiscal responsibility for students in regional provider programs transitioning to high school will be 
based on the grade placement as determined by the IEP team. (Approved 2/20/09) 

 Federal Court filings that are not directly related to due process decisions appealed to the federal 
court should be funded through the District’s JPA. (Approved 5/29/09) 

 CSDR Transportation cost procedures (Approved 3/21/08) 
o The transportation vendor’s contract lists specified hourly rates for each type of vehicle used 

to transport students. 
o SBCSS Student Transportation Services determines each route for each bus the vendor 

runs on a daily basis 
o Any and all route changes for each bus are made by SBCSS Transportation and sent to the 

vendor.  SBCSS Transportation is conscious of the need to be as efficient in its planning, 
thus minimizing costs. 

o At the end of each month all transportation costs are summarized and analyzed by SBCSS 
Transportation. 

o The SELPA will calculate the average cost per student for students transported to CSDR 
and the cost of students transported to regional provider programs.  The SELPA will process 
a transfer from districts to the X-Pot (Management 0282) based on the average cost to 
transport students to the regional provider programs times the number of students 
transported to CSDR. 

 Part B Local Assistance ARRA supplement allocated based on the December 1, 2008 pupil count.  
Since the regular Preschool Local Entitlement and Section 619 Federal Preschool grants fully fund 
First CLASS, the SELPA is to allocate the Preschool Local Entitlement ARRA Supplement and 
Section 619 Federal Preschool ARRA Supplement to districts and county based on preschool pupil 
count.  Students in the First CLASS program will be counted as part of the districts’ preschool pupil 
count. (Approved 5/29/09) 

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $28.40 (Approved 3/21/08) 
2009/10  

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $28.40 (Approved 3/20/09) 
2010/11 

 On November 16, 2010, the West End SELPA received a letter from San Bernardino County 
Department of Behavioral Health indicating they were terminating the MOU under which 
AB2726/3632 services were provided, nor were they accepting any new referrals.  The West End 
SELPA has developed contracts with Pacific Clinics, South Coast Community Services, and West 
End Family Counseling to allow students to continue to receive IEP services.  West End Counselors 
will also serve some of these students. 

 Due to the termination of AB3632, the WESELPA will review and pay all invoices (Mental Health) on 
behalf of the participating districts and invoice the appropriate districts back the cost for the services. 

C-2

63



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-10 

WESELPA will utilize any allocations received to offset these services with any excess cost being 
allocated back to districts. (Approved 3/18/11) 

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $28.40 (Approved 3/19/10) 
2011/12 

 With the repeal of the AB3632 mandate, the Pre-referral Mental Health requirements were removed 
and the Pre-referral Mental Health Allocation was combined with the Proposition 98 dollars 
designated for Mental Health Services.   

 Upland P-2 ADA no longer includes ADA generated by the Charter School as reported on their 
Attendance for Charter School Block Grant and adjusted by the state assigned Nonclassroom-based 
Funding Determination percentage. 

 The West End SELPA will allocate computed Low Incidence Funding to the West End SELPA based 
on member district low incidence pupil count, eliminating carryover balances for any particular 
district. (Approved 3/18/11) 

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $29.00 (Approved 5/20/11) 
2012/13  

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $27.50 (Approved 4/27/12) 
2013/14  

 Regionalized Services/Program Specialist funding included AB602 allocation 
o Calculated using the 12/13 rate of $15.1608772837 per ADA and taken “off the top” of AB602 

in order to fund RSPS for the WESELPA (Approved 5/31/13) 
 Personnel Development included in AB602 allocation (Approved 11/22/13) 

o WESELPA’s portion will be taken “off the top” of AB602 and district dollars will remain in 
AB602 funding and be distributed accordingly 

 Federal Local Assistance excluded from AB602 allocation (Approved 11/22/13) 
o Added back in manually at the SELPA level and distributed by ADA as part of AB602  

 COLA/Growth included in AB602 allocation and distributed using CY ADA (Approved 5/31/13) 
 Low Incidence Equipment and Services allocation are combined 
 Districts will incur the total web-based IEP cost on a CY per Pupil count basis (Approved 5/31/13) 
 Assessments (along with pupil count) are used to calculate the Mental Health Fee-For-Service rate 

(Approved 11/22/13) 
 Behavior Intervention Mandate claims for the period of 1993/94-2011/12 were submitted to the State 

Controller’s Office in November 2013  
 NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost pool apportionment distribution (Approved 3/28/14) 

o 30% of the apportionment transferred to the X-Pot  
o Remaining balance distributed proportionately to districts having extraordinary cost pool 

claims 
 For the annual X-Pot analysis, shared expenses will not be distributed by percentage of ADA.  

Rather, they will be isolated and treated as “off-the-top” expenses in order to give a better 
representation of each district’s actual X-Pot usage. (Approved 4/21/14) 

 The X-Pot return (as of the 2013/14 return to be returned in 2014/15) will now be usage-based 
instead of distributed by percentage of ADA.  Each District’s usage will come from an annual X-Pot 
analysis.  (Approved 4/21/14)  

 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $29.33 (Approved 5/15/13) 
 Last year of CSDR transportation and related transactions 
 LCFF began implementation in 2013/14 

 

C-2

64



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-11 

2014/15  
 Regionalized Services/Program Specialist funded at a rate of $16.5422383709 per ADA and 

adjusted by COLA. (Approved 4/21/14) 
 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $30.36 (Approved 4/21/14) 

2015/16  
 A Program Specialist will be funded out of the X-Pot and will focus on NPS/NPA and ADR. (Approved 

5/29/15) 
 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $30.45 (Approved 9/25/15) 
 Beginning in 2015/16, the Mental Health funding allocation model is adjusted for Small School 

Protection.  (Approved 3/18/16)   
2016/17  

 Maintenance of Effort sanctions language added to Fiscal Allocation Plan (Approved 3/18/16) 
 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $30.75 (Approved 4/22/16) 
 Low Incidence apportionment is distributed to member LEAs by District of 

Residence/Accountability for PY December 1 Low Incidence pupil count after estimating for the 
audiological services expenses for students being served by West End Student Services as well as 
indirect cost and interest revenue.  After year-end closing, if there are unspent Low Incidence 
funds, then they will be totaled and reallocated the following year to all members based on that 
year’s distribution percentages/method. (Approved 5/20/16) 

 In January 2017, the State Board of Education approved a waiver regarding size and scope 
requirements of a SELPA thus allowing Ontario-Montclair School District to become a single district 
SELPA as of 7/1/17 

2017/18  
 Effective 7/1/17, the West End SELPA will become a nine district SELPA with member districts as 

follows: Alta Loma School District, Central School District, Chaffey Joint Union High School District, 
Chino Valley Unified School District, Cucamonga School District, Etiwanda School District, Mountain 
View School District, Mt Baldy School District, and Upland Unified School District. 

 Effective 7/1/17, Ontario-Montclair School District will become a single district SELPA 
 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $43.50 (Approved 3/23/18) 

2018/19  
 X-Pot Contribution Rate is $43.50 (Approved 5/17/19) 
 X-Pot reimbursement split for Non-Public Schools (NPS) and Non-Public Agencies (NPA) changed 

from 70%/30% to 80% district responsibility and 20% out of the X-Pot. (Approved 5/18/18)  
 Program Specialist/Regionalized Services is restored as a separate apportionment within the AB602 

funding exhibit 
 X-Pot name changed to “Joint Risk Fund” (Approved 12/14/18) 
 Joint Risk Fund reserve set at $400,000 (Approved 12/14/18) 
 For the 18/19 school year only, set-aside 6.3625% of the Local Assistance Grant outside of the 

AB602 funding model for the First CLASS program; The remaining balance will be distributed by the 
current method of using prior year Dec 1 CASEMIS count by District of Service (Approved 1/18/19) 

2019/20 
 Beginning in 19/20, the Local Assistance Grant will be entirely distributed by prior year December 1 

CASEMIS count, but using District of Residence/Accountability instead of District  of Service 
(Approved 1/18/19) 

 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Rate is $43.04 (Approved 4/26/19) 
 

C-2

65



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-12 

2020/21 
 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Rate is $48.73 (Approved 5/1/20) 
 District Low Incidence funding may be used to offset Low Incidence Fee-For-Service (FFS) charges 

for eligible students (Approved 3/19/21) 
2021/22 

 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Rate is $49.85 (Approved 5/14/21) 
 SELPA Advisory Committee replaces Finance and Program Advisory Committees 

2022/23 
 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Rate is $53.33 (Approved 5/13/22) 

 
2023/24 

 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Rate is $50.73 (Approved 5/19/23) 
 Beginning with 2023/24 AB602 funding, the SELPA AB602 funding model will use the CDE 

calculation of the Base Grant Entitlement by individual LEA to allocate the Base Grant funding to 
member LEAs 

2024/25 
 Joint Risk Fund Contribution Rate is $49.92 (Approved 5/10/24) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C-2

66



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-13 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C:  ADA DEFINED FOR AB602 APPORTIONMENT PURPOSES 

 
As contained in EC 56836.06 and EC 41601, the ADA used in the special education funding formula is the 
SELPA’s TOTAL K-12 ADA from the sources listed below.  SELPA wide P-1 ADA will be used at the First 
Principal Apportionment; SELPA wide P-2 ADA will be used at the Second Principal Apportionment.  Annual 
Apportionment -- and any subsequent state re-certifications -- will be based on the ADA reported in the 
appropriate reporting periods as indicated below and will include any corrections or revisions to that reporting 
period.  ADA associated with ROC/P or Adult Education is not included. 
 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICTS: 
Elementary and High School ADA from attendance reporting software screens: Attendance School 
District, Attendance Basic Aid “Choice” District, Attendance Supplement. 
 

Kindergarten thru Grade 12   A-1 thru A-5 P-2 Reporting Period 

Continuation Education A-6 P-2 Reporting Period 

Opportunity Schools and Full-Day Opportunity Classes A-7 P-2 Reporting Period 
Home and Hospital  A-8 P-2 Reporting Period 
Special Ed. Special Day Class A-9 P-2 Reporting Period 
Special Ed. Nonpublic School A-10 P-2 Reporting Period 
Special Ed. Nonpublic LCI A-11 Annual Reporting Period 
Community Day School A-12 Annual Reporting Period 
Extended Yr Special Education A-13 Annual Reporting Period 
Extended Yr Nonpublic School A-14 Annual Reporting Period 
Extended Yr Nonpublic School - LCI A-15 Annual Reporting Period 

 
 
For County Offices of Education: use Elementary and High School ADA from the attendance reporting 
software screen Attendance COE 
 

County School Tuition Fund (J-27/28) A-1 Annual Reporting Period 

Juvenile Halls, Homes and Camps (J-27/28) A-2 Annual Reporting Period 

County Group Home and Institution Pupils (J-27/28) A-3 Annual Reporting Period 
Community Schools Pupils – Probation Referred, or on 
Probation or Parole (J-27/28) 

A-4 Annual Reporting Period 

Community Schools Pupils – Expelled (J-27/28) A-5 Annual Reporting Period 
Community Schools Pupils – Homeless  A-6 Annual Reporting Period 

C-2

67



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-14 

(J-27/28) 
Opportunity Schools and Full-day Opportunity Classes (J-
27/28) 

A-7 Annual Reporting Period 

Specialized Schools (J-27/28) A-8 Annual Reporting Period 
Technical, Agricultural, and Natural Resource 
Conservation Schools (J-27/28) A-9 Annual Reporting Period 

Community Day Schools Expelled Pupils (J-27/28) D-1 Annual Reporting Period 
Community Day Schools All Other Pupils (J-27/28) D-2 Annual Reporting Period 

 
 
Elementary and High School ADA from attendance software screen Attendance County Operated Programs  
 

County Community Schools (J-18/19) A-1 + A-2 P-2 Reporting Period 

Special Ed. Special Day Class (J-18/19)  B-1 + B-2 Annual Reporting Period 

Special Ed. Special Day Class Extended Year 
(J-18/19) 

B-3 + B-4 Annual Reporting Period 

 
 
For Charter Schools – Districts:  Elementary and High School ADA from Attendance Charter School Block 
Grant Form 
 

Regular Elementary and High 
School for Resident Pupils 

A-1 + A-3 + A-5 + A-7 + A-9 P-2 Reporting Period 

Regular Elementary and High 
School for Non-Resident Pupils  

A-1 + A-3 + A-5 + A-7 + A-9 
P-2 Reporting Period 
 

Apply Non-classroom-based 
funding determination factor to NCB 
ADA  

See www.charters@cde.ca.gov 
SB740 Historic 
Nonclassroom-Based 
Instruction SBE Funding 

 
 
Note: Adjustments to charter school revenue in accordance with the SB740 funding determination will be 
reflected for apportionment purposes.  Each year the charter school must file an application, which CDE uses 
to determine the pro-ration percentage of charter ADA. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

C-2

68



 

Updated:  September 20243  C-15 

 
  

C-2

69



Proposed Budget 1st Interim 2nd Interim Year-End Actuals

Maintenance & Operations 306,805$                 328,532$        328,532$               309,331.69              
Total Expenditures 268,412$                 268,412$        281,160$               309,331.69              

Pupil Count
202 Alta Loma 29 9% 26,571 27,589            28,208 26,800.18                
209 Central 76 24% 75,423 78,582            75,649 71,187.09                
210 Chino 86 28% 91,099 100,839          98,180 92,072.45                
215 Cucamonga 31 10% 31,662 32,939            30,703 28,985.08                
218 Etiwanda 12 4% 6,831 6,992              11,359 10,949.73                
238 Mountain View 50 16% 47,423 52,804            58,105 54,356.60                
259 Upland 27 9% 27,796 28,787            26,327 24,980.56                

311 100% 306,805$                 328,532$        328,531$               309,331.69              
Proposed Budget 1st Interim 2nd Interim Year-End Actuals

Maintenance & Operations 120,001$                 135,204$        135,204$               126,023.76              
Total Expenditures 120,001$                 135,204$        135,204$               126,023.76              

Pupil Count Pupil Count %
202 Alta Loma 0 0% - - - - 
209 Central 2 2% 3,711 4,182              2,393 2,230.52 
210 Chino 67 59% 74,227 83,631            80,165 74,722.05                
215 Cucamonga 1 1% 1,237 1,394              1,196 1,115.25 
218 Etiwanda 0 0% - - - - 
238 Mountain View 43 38% 40,825 45,997            51,449 47,955.94                
259 Upland 0 0% - - - - 

113 100% 120,001$                 135,204$        135,203$               126,023.76              
Proposed Budget 1st Interim 2nd Interim Year-End Actuals

Maintenance & Operations 95,501$  100,206$        100,206$               93,236.35                
Total Expenditures 95,501$  100,206$        100,206$               93,236.35                

Pupil Count Pupil Count %
202 Alta Loma 13 13% 16,647 17,467            13,158 12,243.16                
209 Central 51 52% 42,932 45,047            51,621 48,030.85                
210 Chino 2 2% - - 2,024 1,883.56 
215 Cucamonga 18 18% 17,523 18,386            18,219 16,952.06                
218 Etiwanda 1 1% 876 919                 1,012 941.78 
238 Mountain View 1 1% 2,628 2,758              1,012 941.78 
259 Upland 13 13% 14,895 15,628            13,158 12,243.16                

99 100% 95,501 100,205          100,204 93,236.35                
Proposed Budget 1st Interim 2nd Interim Year-End Actuals

Maintenance & Operations 91,303$  93,122$          93,122$                 90,071.58                
Total Expenditures 79,670$  79,670$          88,604$                 90,071.58                

Pupil Count Pupil Count %
202 Alta Loma 16 16% 9,924 10,122            15,050 14,557.02                
209 Central 23 23% 28,780 29,354            21,634 20,925.72                
210 Chino 17 17% 16,871 17,207            15,991 15,466.84                
215 Cucamonga 12 12% 12,902 13,159            11,288 10,917.77                
218 Etiwanda 11 11% 5,955 6,073              10,347 10,007.95                
238 Mountain View 6 6% 3,970 4,049              5,644 5,458.88 
259 Upland 14 14% 12,902 13,159            13,169 12,737.40                

99 100% 91,304$  93,123$          93,123$                 90,071.58                

202 Alta Loma -                13,158              15,050 28,209            - (914.84)$                  (493.98)$                 (1,408.82)$    
209 Central 2,393            51,621              21,634 75,648            (162.48)$                (3,590.15)$               (708.28)$                 (4,461.91)$    
210 Chino 80,165          2,024                15,991 98,180            (5,442.95)$             (140.44)$                  (524.16)$                 (6,107.55)$    
215 Cucamonga 1,196            18,219              11,288 30,703            (80.75)$  (1,266.94)$               (370.23)$                 (1,717.92)$    
218 Etiwanda -                1,012                10,347 11,359            -$  (70.22)$  (339.05)$                 (409.27)$      
238 Mountain View 51,449          1,012                5,644 58,105            (3,493.06)$             (70.22)$  (185.12)$                 (3,748.40)$    
259 Upland -                13,158              13,169 26,328            -$  (914.84)$                  (431.60)$                 (1,346.44)$    

Total Requested Trans 135,203$      100,204$          93,123$  328,532$        (9,179.25)$             (6,967.66)$               (3,052.42)$              (19,200.31)    

Year End Actuals - Final Adjustment

T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R

SBCSS - West End County Owned Preschool Centers
Schedule of Expenditures FY 2023-24

 MULBERRY 
Preschool Center 

2822 

FROST 
Preschool Center 

2827

Final 
Transfer

2023-24 Year-End Actuals - Final Adjustment

L
I
V
E

O
A
K

2
8
2
1

Total Revenue

LIVE OAK 
Preschool Center 

2821

2023-24 Total Transfers as of 2nd Interim

YTD
Transfer 
Amount

Requested 
Transfer

F
R
O
S
T

2
8
2
7

LIVE OAK 
Preschool 

Center 2821

MULBERRY 
Preschool 

Center 2822

FROST 
Preschool 

Center 2827

Total Revenue

Total Revenue

M
U
L
B
E
R
R
Y

2
8
2
2

S
U
M
M
A
R
Y

Total Revenue

C-3

70



District of Residence UPP % Grades TK/K-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 Total

Alta Loma 36.85% 11,758.09 10,811.09 11,131.05      -   
P-2 / Annual ADA 13.57 4.78 2.40 0.00 20.75

Total 159,557.26 51,676.99 26,714.51 - 237,948.77 

Central 72.27% 13,479.48 12,393.83 12,760.64 15,173.18 
P-2 / Annual ADA 30.57 14.04 15.41 0.00 60.02

Total 412,067.59 174,009.39 196,641.41 - 782,718.40 
Chaffey 65.55%      12,964.34                 11,920.19   12,272.97 14,593.32 

P-2 / Annual ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.98 112.98
Total - - - 1,648,753.17 1,648,753.17 

Chino 49.70% 12,039.53 11,069.86 11,397.48 13,552.30 
P-2 / Annual ADA 31.59 25.45 3.36 11.30 71.70

Total 380,328.73 281,727.90 38,295.53 153,141.03 853,493.20 
Cucamonga 75.34% 13,714.81 12,610.21 12,983.42     15,438.09 

P-2 / Annual ADA 15.49 5.30 4.01 0.00 24.80
Total 212,442.46 66,834.14 52,063.53 - 331,340.12 

Etiwanda 48.28% 12,008.43 11,041.26 11,368.04     13,517.30 

P-2 / Annual ADA 2.55 2.28 0.64 0.00 5.47
Total 30,621.49 25,174.08 7,275.54 - 63,071.12 

Mtn. View 61.74% 12,672.28 11,651.65 11,996.49          14,264.56 
P-2 / Annual ADA 29.37 12.63 6.41 0.00 48.41

Total 372,184.81 147,160.28 76,897.47 - 596,242.56 
Ontario-Montclair 88.89% 14,753.52 13,565.26 13,966.73 16,607.30

P-2 / Annual ADA 2.48 1.02 1.82 0.00 5.32
Total 36,588.72 13,836.56 25,419.45 - 75,844.74 

Upland 68.54% 13,193.55 12,130.93 12,489.95 14,851.32 
P-2 / Annual ADA 13.36 2.38 2.40 12.25 30.39

Total 176,265.77 28,871.61 29,975.89 181,928.71 417,041.98 

District Number District Based on P-2/Annual First 50% Transfer Final 50% Transfer

202 Alta Loma 237,948.77 114,747.00 123,201.77
209 Central 782,718.40 391,216.00 391,502.40
263 Chaffey 1,648,753.17 847,329.00 801,424.17
210 Chino 853,493.20 425,106.00 428,387.20
215 Cucamonga 331,340.12 160,519.00 170,821.12
218 Etiwanda 63,071.12 31,974.00 31,097.12
238 Mtn. View 596,242.56 289,197.00 307,045.56
245 Ontario-Montclair 75,844.74 35,869.00 39,975.74
259 Upland 417,041.98 212,795.00 204,246.98

Total 5,006,454.06 2,508,752.00 2,497,702.06

Summary

San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
WEST END COUNTY OPERATED SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

2023-24 FINAL LCFF Revenue Transfer by District

C-4

71



San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
West End County Operated Special Education Programs

Budget Actuals +Increase/-
Decrease

A. REVENUES April 2023 Sepember 2024
RS OB GL FC

1. AB602 Special Ed Funding 6500 8311 5001 0000 34,008,827$         35,982,178$        1,973,351$          
2. Property Tax Transfer 6500 8097 5001 0000 6,013,122$          
3. Property Tax Transfer Adjustment between 2023-24 P-2 and Annual (94,954)$              
4. Net State Aid 6500 8311 5001 0000 30,064,010$        
5. LCFF ADA Revenue Transfer 6500 8710 5001 0000 4,707,391$           5,006,454$          299,064$             
6. Federal Preschool 3315 8182 5730 0000 286,380$              288,045$             1,666$  
8. Infant Part C 3385 8182 5710 0000 51,862$  51,862$  -$  
9. State Early Intervention 3385 8590 5710 0000 -$  -$  -$  
10. Infant State Apportionment 6510 8311 5710 0000 934,315$              923,252$             (11,063)$              
11. Local Revenue 6500 86XX 5001 0000 -$  9,931$  9,931$  
12. Infant Discretionary 6515 8590 5710 0000 89,117$  61,091$  (28,026)$              
13. MOU - Ontario Montclair 6500 8710 5001 0000 -$  407,662$             407,662$             
14. Inter-SELPA Fee-For-Service 6500 8311 5001 0000 -$  30,048$  30,048$  
15. Contrib. frm Unrestricted / Reserve 8981 6500 5001 0000 163,332$              224,205$             60,873$  

TOTAL  REVENUES (excludes A2, A3, A4, A5) 40,241,226$         42,984,728$        2,743,505$          

B. EXPENDITURES

1. SDC 16,723,407$         14,858,680$        (1,864,727)$         
2. Preschool SDC 2,806,578$           3,000,758$          194,180$             
3. Low Incidence, Itinerant, DHH, VI, OM 2,576,845$           2,304,698$          (272,147)$            
4. Intensive Autism 3,656,923$           3,647,881$          (9,042)$  
5. 1:1 Aide Services 3,449,937$           3,670,086$          220,149$             
6. Related Services 8,908,832$           9,935,276$          1,026,444$          
7. Interpreters 492,067$              411,808$             (80,259)$              
8. First Class 388,012$              415,170$             27,158$  
9. Early Start (RESERVE CONTRIBUTION) 1,238,625$           1,256,236$          17,611$  

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 40,241,226$         39,500,593$        (740,633)$            

C. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

1. 2023-24 Beginning Balance -$  -$  -$  
TOTAL PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS -$  -$  -$  

D. 2023-24 ENDING BALANCE
1. Total Revenues (Section A) 40,241,226$         42,984,728$        2,743,502$          
2. Total Prior Year Revenue Adjustments (Section C) -$  -$  -$  
3. Total Expenditures (Section B) 40,241,226$         39,500,593$        (740,633)$            

2023-24 ENDING BALANCE -$  3,484,135$          3,484,135$          

Service Counts Diff
SDC 11.5 $224,204.67 contribution from 
Preschool SDC 22 reserve to Early Start Program
Low Incidence -23
Intensive Autism -4 Reserve Balance: $201,115.98
1:1 Aides 12
Related Services 96.5
Interpreters 1
First Class 9

2nd Interim Budgeted ADA 380.34
23-24 P-2 RSY / Annual ESY ADA 379.84

6 7
24 33

117 113
54 66

1125 1221.50

407 418.50
135 157
347 324

 FEE FOR SERVICE BUDGET to ACTUALS COMPARISON - 2023-24
SELPA West End

Budget Final 

C-5

72



San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools

WEST END COUNTY OPERATED SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM
2023-24 Fee For Service 

Year-End Actuals

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

SDC PRESCHOOL 
SDC

PRESCHOOL
INTENSIVE                                      

AUTISM                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

LOW INCIDENCE 
RELATED SERV        

DHH, VI, OM

1:1 AIDE                        
SERVICES

RELATED SERV                                                                       
(APE, SLP, 

HEALTH SRVC, 
OT, PT, COTA, 

SLPA)

INTERPRETERS FIRST CLASS INFANTS

1 Rate:  $              30,048  $              20,789  $              26,698  $                7,426  $              63,888  $                7,919  $              82,011  $                4,235 
 State Funded

Reserve Contrib. 
2 OBJECT
3 1000-1999 4,972,909$            1,029,132$            999,930$               1,013,050$            -$                        3,304,134$            -$                        177,263$               507,473$               12,003,892
4 2000-2999 2,587,776$            477,926$               820,163$               237,546$               1,361,874$            2,149,908$            205,839$               63,975$                  70,061$                  7,975,069
5 3000-3999 4,044,579$            754,847$               1,090,519$            568,027$               1,165,648$            2,194,612$            127,135$               89,447$                  256,903$               10,291,716
6 4000-4999 23,757$                  8,398$                    5,354$                    7,467$                    -$                        19,365$                  -$                        600$                       2,400$                    67,341
7 5000-5999 265,727$               131,879$               4,254$                    18,878$                  855,045$               285,420$               46,573$                  1,070$                    11,513$                  1,620,359
8 6000-6999 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -                     
9
10
11 11,894,748$          2,402,182$            2,920,221$            1,844,969$            3,382,568$            7,953,439$            379,547$               332,354$               848,350$               31,958,378
12 0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            0$                            
13 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
14 1,799,888$            363,493$               441,882$               279,177$               -$                        1,203,498$            -$                        50,291$                  309,471$               4,447,699
15 13,694,636$          2,765,675$            3,362,102$            2,124,146$            3,382,568$            9,156,936$            379,547$               382,645$               1,157,821$            36,406,077
16 0
17 1,164,044$            235,082$               285,779$               180,552$               287,518$               778,340$               32,261$                  32,525$                  98,415$                  3,094,517
18
19 14,858,680$        3,000,758$          3,647,881$          2,304,698$          3,670,086$          9,935,276$          411,808$             415,170$             1,256,236$          39,500,593$       
20
21 RS Fee For Service Revenue #REF! #REF! #REF! #REF! #REF!
22 6500 Property Tax Revenue 2,336,215$            471,806$               573,553$               362,365$               577,044$               1,562,113$            64,748$                  65,277$                  6,013,122$         
23 6500 AB602 FFS Revenue 10,028,537$          2,792,067$            2,443,321$            2,043,659$            3,639,564$            8,047,594$            345,307$               74,478$                  29,414,526$       
24 6500 AB602 BASE (Per ADA) 554,530$               554,530$            
25 Total FFS Revenue 12,919,282$        3,263,873$          3,016,874$          2,406,024$          4,216,608$          9,609,707$          410,055$             139,755$             -$                    35,982,178$       
26
27 Other Revenue Sources
28 1$                            0$                            1$                      
29 8710 6500 LCFF 4,720,522$            285,932$               5,006,454$         
30 8710 6500 FFS - OMSD 180,288$               -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        63,352$                  164,022$               -$                        407,662$            
31 8182 3315 Federal Preschool 288,045$               288,045$            
32 8182 3385 Infant Part C 51,862$                  51,862$             
33 8590 6515 Infant Discretionary 61,091$                  61,091$             
34 8311 6510 State Infant Apportionment 919,078$               919,078$            
35 8311 6500 Inter-SELPA Fee-For-Service 30,048$                  30,048$             

8319 6500 Prior Year Adjustments 4,174$                    4,174$               
36 6500 8699 Local Revenue 9,931$                    9,931$               
37 8981 Contrib frm Unrestricted 224,205$               224,205$            
38 Beginning Balance 0$                            0$                      
39 17,864,246$        3,263,873$          3,302,807$          2,406,024$          4,216,608$          9,673,059$          574,077$             427,800$             1,256,236$          42,984,729$       
40

41 3,005,568$            263,115$               (345,075)$              101,326$               546,522$               (262,217)$              162,269$               12,630$                  0$                            3,484,135$          
42
43 418.50 157.00 113.00 324.00 66.00 1,221.50                7.00                        33.00 N/A
44 30,048$                  20,789$                  26,698$                  7,426$                    63,888$                  7,919$                    82,011$                  4,235$                    RESERVE
45 12,575,088$         3,263,873$            3,016,874$            2,406,024$            4,216,608$            9,673,059$            574,077$               139,755$               
46
47
48 2023-24 Total Revenue 42,984,729$          Beginning Reserve 425,320.65$          
49 2023-24 Total Expenses 39,500,593$          2023-24 Contribution to Early Start (224,204.67)$        
50  Ending Balance 3,484,135$             Balance of Reserve 201,115.98$                                    

TOTAL

Certificated Salaries
Classified Salaries
Employee Benefits

Fee-For-Service Rates 2023-24

Books & Supplies

Sub total 1000-5000 costs

Services & Other Operating Expenditures
Capital Outlay

Sub total
% of Total

Allocated Cost ( FN 210X, 2700, 3120, 3140, 8100)

Indirect Cost @ 8.5%

TOTAL EXPENSE

Final Excess Cost / Return

# of Services - Final 

TOTAL REVENUE:

9/9/2024

C-5

73



San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
West End County Operated Special Education Program

2023-24 Fee-For-Service Return

Total Return Total Return Total Return Total Return Total Return Total Return Total Return Total Return Grand Total
3,005,568$        263,115$          101,326$      (345,075)$         546,522$      (262,217)$     162,269$      12,630$        3,484,138$     

Alta Loma 23 6% 165,576.20$      9 6% 15,083.04$      20.5 6% 6,411$           10.5 9% (32,064)$           5 8% 41,403$        84 7% (18,099)$       0 0% -$               13.5 26% 3,248$           181,558$        
Central 70.5 17% 507,527.04$      36.5 23% 61,170.10$      14.5 4% 4,535$           20.5 18% (62,602)$           0 0% -$               133.5 11% (28,764)$       0 0% -$               17 32% 4,090$           485,955$        
Chaffey 124 30% 892,671.68$      0 0% -$                   117 36% 36,590$        0 0% -$                   45 68% 372,629$      294.5 24% (63,454)$       3 43% 69,544$        0 0% -$               1,307,980$     
Chino Valley 79.5 19% 572,317.73$      65 41% 108,929.94$    91.5 28% 28,615$        33 29% (100,774)$         6 9% 49,684$        345.5 28% (74,442)$       1 14% 23,181$        16 30% 3,849$           611,361$        
Cucamonga 26.5 6% 190,772.58$      16 10% 26,814.29$      12 4% 3,753$           15 13% (45,806)$           0 0% -$               65.5 5% (14,113)$       0 0% -$               0 0% -$               161,421$        
Etiwanda 5 1% 35,994.83$        0 0% -$                   36 11% 11,258$        4 4% (12,215)$           0 0% -$               67.5 6% (14,544)$       0 0% -$               0 0% -$               20,495$           
Mountain View 50.5 12% 363,547.74$      29.5 19% 49,438.85$      7.5 2% 2,346$           19 17% (58,021)$           4 6% 33,123$        106 9% (22,839)$       1 14% 23,181$        0 0% -$               390,776$        
Mt. Baldy* 0 0% -$                     0 0% -$                   0 0% -$               0 0% -$                   0 0% -$               0 0% -$               0% -$               0 0% -$               -$                 
Ontario/Montclair 6 1% 43,193.79$        0 0% -$                   0 0% -$               0 0% -$                   0 0% -$               8 1% (1,724)$         0 0% -$               0 0% -$               41,470$           
Upland 32.5 8% 233,966.37$      1 1% 1,675.89$         25 8% 7,818$           11 10% (33,591)$           6 9% 49,684$        112.5 9% (24,239)$       2 29% 46,362$        6 11% 1,443$           283,120$        
Total 417.5 100% 3,005,567.96$  157 100% 263,112$          324 100% 101,326$      113 100% (345,075)$         66 100% 546,522$      1217 100% (262,217)$     7 100% 162,269$      52.5 100% 12,630$        3,484,135$     

* Section F (2) of the fiscal allocation plan states "When a district receiving small school district protection qualifies for a give back, the total amount of that district's give back shall be redistributed to the remaining districts
based upon percentage of total give back recalculated without the small school district share included." Therefore 4 related services from Mt. Baldy were redistributed to the remaining districts.

District

Alta Loma
Central
Chaffey
Chino Valley
Cucamonga
Etiwanda
Mountain View
Mt. Baldy*
Ontario/Montclair
Upland
Total

District SAI
Services

% of 
Services

SAI/SDC
Pre-K

% of 
Services

Total Return
3,484,135.05$        

181,557.91$           
485,955.29$           

% of
 Services

Interpreters% of
 Services

% of
 Services

Related 
Services

First 
Class

% of
 Services

283,119.56$           
3,484,135.05$        

611,361.01$           
161,420.58$           

20,494.58$              
390,775.55$           

-$                          
41,470.10$              

1,307,980.47$        

% of 
Services

Intensive 
Autism

% of 
Services

1:1 Aides
Low 

Incidence 

9/9/2024

C-5

74



T. Chatkoo 8/27/24

Account

Range

2021/22

Actuals

2022/23

Actuals

2023/24

Actuals

REVENUE

District Contributions & Reimbursement Revenue 8677 11,184,500 12,919,670 13,526,165 

Other Local Revenues (SEIS/ECP) 8699 113,689 130,787 194,890 

TOTAL REVENUE 11,298,189$   13,050,457$   13,721,055$   

EXPENDITURES

Certificated Salaries 1000 242,762 257,546 275,902 

Classified Salaries 2000 211,242 367,014 421,845 

Employee Benefits 3000 189,165 240,113 259,926 

Supplies 4000 2,608 6,485 2,686 

Services & Other Operating 5000 10,905,377 12,201,348 12,918,787 

Trf of JRF Exp to PSRS 5000 (322,807) (177,963) (319,206) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,228,345$   12,894,544$   13,559,939$   

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 69,843$  155,913$  161,116$  

Beginning Balance 1,144,156 1,214,000 1,369,913 

ENDING BALANCE 1,214,000$  1,369,913$  1,531,028$  

Less: Reserve 400,000 400,000 400,000 

ENDING BALANCE AFTER RESERVE 814,000$  969,913$  1,131,028.35        

Cert FTEs 1.55 1.55 1.55 

Class FTEs 3.20 4.20 4.20 

TOTAL FTE 4.75 5.75 5.75 

Budget Assumptions:

- JRF Contribution rate of $50.73/ADA (Approved 5/19/23)

- Information Tehnology User Fees: $2,705 per full user, $123 per e-mail only user

- No Indirect

- $400,000 Reserve (Approved 12/14/18)

West End SELPA

2023/24 - Joint Risk Fund (JRF) - Management #0282

I:\Budgets\23-24 Budgets\23-24 Three Yr Summary Admin Budgets #4-FInal

0282

C-7

75



T. Chatkoo 8/27/24

Account

Range

2021/22

Actuals

2022/23

Actuals

2023/24

Actuals

REVENUE

State Apportionments - CY 8311 1,523,855             1,623,820             1,757,298             

Other Local Revenues 8699 4,104                    3,499                    3,300                    

TOTAL REVENUE 1,527,959$           1,627,319$           1,760,598$           

EXPENDITURES

Certificated Salaries 1000 412,316                422,486                509,088                

Classified Salaries 2000 318,424                330,591                289,670                

Employee Benefits 3000 279,434                309,381                314,274                

Supplies 4000 20,087                  34,211                  6,597                    

Services & Other Operating 5000 58,177                  94,882                  171,533                

Trf of JRF Exp to PSRS 5000 322,807                261,602                319,206                

Capital Outlay 6000 -                            34,113                  -                            

Indirect 7312 110,783                130,057                136,881                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,522,028$           1,617,323$           1,747,250$           

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 5,931$                  9,996$                  13,348$                

Beginning Balance 146,455                152,386                162,382                

ENDING BALANCE 152,386$              162,382$              175,730$              

Less: Reserve 152,386                162,382                175,730                

ENDING BALANCE AFTER RESERVE 0$                         -$                      (0)$                        

Cert FTEs 3.32                      3.33                      3.37                      

Class FTEs 3.75                      3.75                      3.75                      

TOTAL FTE 7.07                      7.08                      7.12                      

Budget Assumptions:

- Information Tehnology User Fees: $2,705 per full user, $123 per e-mail only user

- Indirect Cost Rate of 8.50%

- Reserve = 10% of CY funding

West End SELPA

2023/24 - Program Specialist/Regionalized Services - Management #0284

I:\Budgets\23-24 Budgets\23-24 Three Yr Summary Admin Budgets #4-FInal

0284

C-7

76



T. Chatkoo 8/27/24

Account

Range

2021/22

Actuals

2022/23

Actuals

2023/24

Actuals

REVENUE

State Apportionments - CY 8311 11,671                 11,372                 11,629                 

TOTAL REVENUE 11,671$               11,372$               11,629$               

EXPENDITURES

Certificated Salaries 1000 -                           -                           -                           

Classified Salaries 2000 -                           -                           -                           

Employee Benefits 3000 -                           -                           -                           

Supplies 4000 -                           2                          0                          

Services & Other Operating 5000 8,492                   14,932                 10,718                 

Indirect 7312 667                      1,337                   911                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,158$                 16,270$               11,629$               

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 2,513$                 (4,898)$                -$                     

Beginning Balance 2,385                   4,898                   -                           

ENDING BALANCE 4,898$                 -$                     -$                     

Cert FTE -                           -                           -                           

Class FTE -                           -                           -                           

TOTAL FTE -                           -                           -                           

Budget Assumptions:

- Rate of $0.945782 per pupil (approved 11/22/13)

- Based on Pupil Count of 12,296

- Indirect Cost Rate of 8.50%

West End SELPA

2023/24 - Personnel Development - Management #0463

I:\Budgets\23-24 Budgets\23-24 Three Yr Summary Admin Budgets #4-FInal

0463

C-7

77



BEST NET CONSORTIUM
86 - San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
Financial Activity Report - Summary (From: 7/1/2023 To: 6/30/2024)

Page 1 of 5

Criteria: Report Type = Summary; Budget Status = Revised; Running Balance = Yes; Default Column Order = Yes; Include GL Status =
Pended,Encumbered; Sort/Group = Management,Major Range,Object; Page Break by = Management; Management = 0282,0284,0463; Suppress Net
Zero Accounts = Yes; Display Columns FTR = GL Status

Run: 8/27/2024 10:18 AM  Copyright © 1998 The California Educational Computer Consortium Joint Powers Authority. All Rights Reserved.

Object Object Description
Revised
Budget

Actual
Activity

Encumbered
Pended Activity Balance

Management 0282 WE JOINT RISK FUND

Revenue

Other Local Revenue (8600 to 8799)

8677 INTERAGENCY SVCS BETWEEN LEA'S 15,077,533.00 13,526,164.81 0.00 1,551,368.19

8699 ALL OTHER LOCAL REVENUES 125,842.00 194,889.86 0.00 (69,047.86)

Total Other Local Rev (8600 to 8799) 15,203,375.00 13,721,054.67 0.00 1,482,320.33

Total Revenue 15,203,375.00 13,721,054.67 0.00 1,482,320.33

Expenditure

Certificated Salary (1000 to 1999)

1213 CE PPL SPT REG STRS MC UI WC 125,848.00 125,933.69 0.00 (85.69)

1313 CE SUP-AD REG STRS MC UI WC 149,585.00 149,967.90 0.00 (382.90)

Total Certificated Sa (1000 to 1999) 275,433.00 275,901.59 0.00 (468.59)

Classified Salary (2000 to 2999)

2414 CL CLER-OFC REG PERS MC UI WC 126,615.00 103,743.96 0.00 22,871.04

2425 CL CLER-OFC HRY ARS MC UI WC 38,246.00 36,334.08 0.00 1,911.92

2427 CL CLER-OFC HRY MC UI WC 1.00 0.85 0.00 0.15

2445 CL CLER-OFC SUB ARS MC UI WC 2,763.00 2,762.24 0.00 0.76

2913 CL OTHER REG STRS MC UI WC 207,174.00 207,708.32 0.00 (534.32)

2914 CL OTHER REG PERS MC UI WC 71,143.00 71,295.92 0.00 (152.92)

Total Classified Sala (2000 to 2999) 445,942.00 421,845.37 0.00 24,096.63

Employee Benefit (3000 to 3999)

3101 STRS-CERT 52,608.00 52,697.49 0.00 (89.49)

3102 STRS-CLASS 39,570.00 39,672.26 0.00 (102.26)

3202 PERS-CLASS 52,762.00 46,709.32 0.00 6,052.68

3312 SOCIAL SECURITY-CLASS 2,543.00 1,528.15 0.00 1,014.85

3331 MEDICARE-CERT 4,008.00 3,936.83 0.00 71.17

3332 MEDICARE-CLASS 6,499.00 6,065.29 0.00 433.71

3352 ARS-CLASS 0.00 325.10 0.00 (325.10)

3411 H&W BENEFITS-CERT 29,102.00 29,101.81 0.00 0.19

3412 H&W BENEFITS-CLASS 68,006.00 61,025.82 0.00 6,980.18

3501 SUI-CERT 138.00 51.36 0.00 86.64

3502 SUI-CLASS 224.00 134.68 0.00 89.32

3601 WC-CERT 6,939.00 6,927.82 0.00 11.18

3602 WC-CLASS 11,250.00 10,624.79 0.00 625.21

3922 CASH IN-LIEU-CLASS 1,125.00 1,125.00 0.00 0.00

Total Employee Benefi (3000 to 3999) 274,774.00 259,925.72 0.00 14,848.28

Books and Supplies (4000 to 4999)

4210 OTHER BOOKS (NOT TEXTS) 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

4340 COMP EQUIP/SOFTWARE/EXP < $500 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00

4350 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES < $500 4,000.00 2,685.75 0.00 1,314.25

Total Books and Suppl (4000 to 4999) 5,000.00 2,685.75 0.00 2,314.25

Services and Operating Expenditures (5000 to 5999)

5110 SUB-AGREEMENTS FOR SERVICES 11,500,000.00 10,343,185.04 0.00 1,156,814.96

5220 REIMBURSEMENT-BUS TRAVEL EXP 8,500.00 8,657.00 0.00 (157.00)

5221 REIMBURSEMENT-BUS MILEAGE 1,800.00 2,992.10 0.00 (1,192.10)

5225 PAYMENT-BUS TRAVEL EXP 10,000.00 14,728.01 0.00 (4,728.01)

C-7

78



BEST NET CONSORTIUM
86 - San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
Financial Activity Report - Summary (From: 7/1/2023 To: 6/30/2024)

Page 2 of 5

Criteria: Report Type = Summary; Budget Status = Revised; Running Balance = Yes; Default Column Order = Yes; Include GL Status =
Pended,Encumbered; Sort/Group = Management,Major Range,Object; Page Break by = Management; Management = 0282,0284,0463; Suppress Net
Zero Accounts = Yes; Display Columns FTR = GL Status

Run: 8/27/2024 10:18 AM  Copyright © 1998 The California Educational Computer Consortium Joint Powers Authority. All Rights Reserved.

Object Object Description
Revised
Budget

Actual
Activity

Encumbered
Pended Activity Balance

Management 0282 WE JOINT RISK FUND

Expenditure

Services and Operating Expenditures (5000 to 5999)

5271 CELL PHONE STIPEND-CERT 1,008.00 1,008.00 0.00 0.00

5272 CELL PHONE STIPEND-CLASS 1,152.00 1,120.00 0.00 32.00

5570 PEST CNTRL/CSTDIAL/LNDSCPNG 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

5630 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

5633 EQUIP/BLDG/VHCLE MAINT/REPAIR 2,000.00 7,108.82 0.00 (5,108.82)

5710 INTERPROGRAM SERVICES (194,891.00) (319,206.38) 0.00 124,315.38

5711 INTERPROGRAM PRINT SHOP 250.00 95.40 0.00 154.60

5714 INTERPROGRAM CONV COPIES 250.00 196.76 0.00 53.24

5722 INTERPROGRAM REGISTRATIONS 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

5733 INTERPROGRAM USER FEES 13,617.00 13,617.25 0.00 (0.25)

5737 INTERPROGRAM CONFERENCE ROOMS 200.00 30.00 0.00 170.00

5740 INTERPROGRAM OTHER (6,414.00) (6,370.00) 0.00 (44.00)

5748 INTERPROGRAM X-POT (10,546.00) (14,745.32) 0.00 4,199.32

5803 REIMB-PARENT 1,000,000.00 525,019.09 0.00 474,980.91

5810 PROF/CONSULTING/OPERATING EXP 1,322,045.00 972,024.58 0.00 350,020.42

5820 LEGAL, AUDIT, & ELECTION COSTS 1,200,000.00 920,005.76 0.00 279,994.24

5830 ADVERTISEMENT 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

5840 COMP LICENSES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 14,522.00 14,521.55 0.00 0.45

5845 MULTI-YR COMP LIC & SBSCRPTION 113,484.00 113,483.50 0.00 0.50

5880 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 250.00 75.00 0.00 175.00

5910 PHONE/INTERNET/CABLE/RADIO SVC 3,000.00 1,572.59 0.00 1,427.41

5950 POSTAGE/MAIL 600.00 461.75 0.00 138.25

Total Services and Op (5000 to 5999) 14,981,827.00 12,599,580.50 0.00 2,382,246.50

Total Expenditure 15,982,976.00 13,559,938.93 0.00 2,423,037.07

Total Management 0282 WE JOINT RISK FUND (779,601.00) 161,115.74 0.00 (940,716.74)

C-7

79



BEST NET CONSORTIUM
86 - San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
Financial Activity Report - Summary (From: 7/1/2023 To: 6/30/2024)

Page 3 of 5

Criteria: Report Type = Summary; Budget Status = Revised; Running Balance = Yes; Default Column Order = Yes; Include GL Status =
Pended,Encumbered; Sort/Group = Management,Major Range,Object; Page Break by = Management; Management = 0282,0284,0463; Suppress Net
Zero Accounts = Yes; Display Columns FTR = GL Status

Run: 8/27/2024 10:18 AM  Copyright © 1998 The California Educational Computer Consortium Joint Powers Authority. All Rights Reserved.

Object Object Description
Revised
Budget

Actual
Activity

Encumbered
Pended Activity Balance

Management 0284 WE REGIONALIZED SERVICES

Revenue

Other State Revenue (8300 to 8599)

8311 ST APPORTIONMENTS-CURR YR 1,757,298.00 1,757,298.00 0.00 0.00

Total Other State Rev (8300 to 8599) 1,757,298.00 1,757,298.00 0.00 0.00

Other Local Revenue (8600 to 8799)

8699 ALL OTHER LOCAL REVENUES 4,000.00 3,300.00 0.00 700.00

Total Other Local Rev (8600 to 8799) 4,000.00 3,300.00 0.00 700.00

Total Revenue 1,761,298.00 1,760,598.00 0.00 700.00

Expenditure

Certificated Salary (1000 to 1999)

1213 CE PPL SPT REG STRS MC UI WC 82,357.00 82,039.24 0.00 317.76

1313 CE SUP-AD REG STRS MC UI WC 229,089.00 229,669.87 0.00 (580.87)

1913 CE OTHER REG STRS MC UI WC 192,190.00 151,990.44 0.00 40,199.56

1914 CE OTHER REG PERS MC UI WC 52,195.00 45,388.70 0.00 6,806.30

Total Certificated Sa (1000 to 1999) 555,831.00 509,088.25 0.00 46,742.75

Classified Salary (2000 to 2999)

2314 CL SUP-AD REG PERS MC UI WC 129,964.00 118,594.76 0.00 11,369.24

2414 CL CLER-OFC REG PERS MC UI WC 197,979.00 171,067.67 0.00 26,911.33

2427 CL CLER-OFC HRY MC UI WC 7.00 7.67 0.00 (0.67)

Total Classified Sala (2000 to 2999) 327,950.00 289,670.10 0.00 38,279.90

Employee Benefit (3000 to 3999)

3101 STRS-CERT 96,194.00 87,250.71 0.00 8,943.29

3201 PERS-CERT 13,926.00 13,863.93 0.00 62.07

3202 PERS-CLASS 87,495.00 77,289.95 0.00 10,205.05

3331 MEDICARE-CERT 8,107.00 7,344.82 0.00 762.18

3332 MEDICARE-CLASS 4,808.00 4,206.66 0.00 601.34

3411 H&W BENEFITS-CERT 60,296.00 54,794.71 0.00 5,501.29

3412 H&W BENEFITS-CLASS 55,653.00 46,948.95 0.00 8,704.05

3501 SUI-CERT 279.00 98.23 0.00 180.77

3502 SUI-CLASS 166.00 82.53 0.00 83.47

3601 WC-CERT 14,032.00 12,803.74 0.00 1,228.26

3602 WC-CLASS 8,323.00 7,339.72 0.00 983.28

3922 CASH IN-LIEU-CLASS 2,250.00 2,250.00 0.00 0.00

Total Employee Benefi (3000 to 3999) 351,529.00 314,273.95 0.00 37,255.05

Books and Supplies (4000 to 4999)

4210 OTHER BOOKS (NOT TEXTS) 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

4320 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT < $500 500.00 146.80 0.00 353.20

4330 REFRESHMENTS 500.00 244.30 0.00 255.70

4340 COMP EQUIP/SOFTWARE/EXP < $500 5,500.00 1,488.25 0.00 4,011.75

4350 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES < $500 12,038.00 4,717.83 0.00 7,320.17

4420 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT > $499 5,000.00 (0.01) 0.00 5,000.01

4440 COMP EQUIP/SOFTWARE/EXP > $499 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00

4450 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES > $499 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

Total Books and Suppl (4000 to 4999) 29,538.00 6,597.17 0.00 22,940.83

C-7

80



BEST NET CONSORTIUM
86 - San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
Financial Activity Report - Summary (From: 7/1/2023 To: 6/30/2024)

Page 4 of 5

Criteria: Report Type = Summary; Budget Status = Revised; Running Balance = Yes; Default Column Order = Yes; Include GL Status =
Pended,Encumbered; Sort/Group = Management,Major Range,Object; Page Break by = Management; Management = 0282,0284,0463; Suppress Net
Zero Accounts = Yes; Display Columns FTR = GL Status

Run: 8/27/2024 10:18 AM  Copyright © 1998 The California Educational Computer Consortium Joint Powers Authority. All Rights Reserved.

Object Object Description
Revised
Budget

Actual
Activity

Encumbered
Pended Activity Balance

Management 0284 WE REGIONALIZED SERVICES

Expenditure

Services and Operating Expenditures (5000 to 5999)

5220 REIMBURSEMENT-BUS TRAVEL EXP 6,500.00 7,743.41 0.00 (1,243.41)

5221 REIMBURSEMENT-BUS MILEAGE 2,400.00 2,832.71 0.00 (432.71)

5225 PAYMENT-BUS TRAVEL EXP 30,500.00 30,719.73 0.00 (219.73)

5271 CELL PHONE STIPEND-CERT 2,966.00 2,668.80 0.00 297.20

5272 CELL PHONE STIPEND-CLASS 1,392.00 1,160.00 0.00 232.00

5310 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 3,500.00 3,560.00 0.00 (60.00)

5538 BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00

5620 OTHER RENTALS/LEASES/REPAIRS 5,900.00 2,796.69 0.00 3,103.31

5630 MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 5,525.00 5,002.74 0.00 522.26

5640 COMPUTER REPAIRS 400.00 10,288.32 0.00 (9,888.32)

5710 INTERPROGRAM SERVICES 194,891.00 319,206.38 0.00 (124,315.38)

5711 INTERPROGRAM PRINT SHOP 1,500.00 1,423.34 0.00 76.66

5714 INTERPROGRAM CONV COPIES 100.00 19.84 0.00 80.16

5715 INTERPROGRAM FINGER PRINTING 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00

5722 INTERPROGRAM REGISTRATIONS 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

5731 INTERPROGRAM EXPRESS MAIL 1,330.00 1,330.00 0.00 0.00

5733 INTERPROGRAM USER FEES 17,732.00 17,731.30 0.00 0.70

5737 INTERPROGRAM CONFERENCE ROOMS 2,000.00 1,980.72 0.00 19.28

5740 INTERPROGRAM OTHER 300.00 200.00 0.00 100.00

5741 INTERPROGRAM WAREHOUSE DELIV 1,330.00 1,330.00 0.00 0.00

5810 PROF/CONSULTING/OPERATING EXP 53,500.00 68,897.24 0.00 (15,397.24)

5812 STUDENT EVENTS & ACTIVITIES 3,750.00 2,500.00 0.00 1,250.00

5813 CATERING/FOOD SERVICE 2,500.00 1,279.22 0.00 1,220.78

5840 COMP LICENSES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,500.00 5,617.87 0.00 (117.87)

5880 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 0.00 450.00 0.00 (450.00)

5910 PHONE/INTERNET/CABLE/RADIO SVC 2,000.00 1,920.48 0.00 79.52

5950 POSTAGE/MAIL 300.00 80.40 0.00 219.60

Total Services and Op (5000 to 5999) 346,166.00 490,739.19 0.00 (144,573.19)

Other Outgo (7100 to 7499)

7312 INDIRECT COSTS - TRF OUT 136,936.00 136,881.34 0.00 54.66

Total Other Outgo (7100 to 7499) 136,936.00 136,881.34 0.00 54.66

Total Expenditure 1,747,950.00 1,747,250.00 0.00 700.00

Total Management 0284 WE REGIONALIZED SERVICES 13,348.00 13,348.00 0.00 0.00

C-7

81



BEST NET CONSORTIUM
86 - San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
Financial Activity Report - Summary (From: 7/1/2023 To: 6/30/2024)

Page 5 of 5

Criteria: Report Type = Summary; Budget Status = Revised; Running Balance = Yes; Default Column Order = Yes; Include GL Status =
Pended,Encumbered; Sort/Group = Management,Major Range,Object; Page Break by = Management; Management = 0282,0284,0463; Suppress Net
Zero Accounts = Yes; Display Columns FTR = GL Status

Run: 8/27/2024 10:18 AM  Copyright © 1998 The California Educational Computer Consortium Joint Powers Authority. All Rights Reserved.

Object Object Description
Revised
Budget

Actual
Activity

Encumbered
Pended Activity Balance

Management 0463 WE PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

Revenue

Other State Revenue (8300 to 8599)

8311 ST APPORTIONMENTS-CURR YR 11,629.00 11,629.00 0.00 0.00

Total Other State Rev (8300 to 8599) 11,629.00 11,629.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenue 11,629.00 11,629.00 0.00 0.00

Expenditure

Books and Supplies (4000 to 4999)

4330 REFRESHMENTS 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00

4350 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES < $500 50.00 0.05 0.00 49.95

Total Books and Suppl (4000 to 4999) 100.00 0.05 0.00 99.95

Services and Operating Expenditures (5000 to 5999)

5220 REIMBURSEMENT-BUS TRAVEL EXP 1,850.00 1,703.27 0.00 146.73

5221 REIMBURSEMENT-BUS MILEAGE 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

5225 PAYMENT-BUS TRAVEL EXP 7,818.00 9,014.65 0.00 (1,196.65)

5310 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

5722 INTERPROGRAM REGISTRATIONS 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00

5810 PROF/CONSULTING/OPERATING EXP 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00

Total Services and Op (5000 to 5999) 10,618.00 10,717.92 0.00 (99.92)

Other Outgo (7100 to 7499)

7312 INDIRECT COSTS - TRF OUT 911.00 911.03 0.00 (0.03)

Total Other Outgo (7100 to 7499) 911.00 911.03 0.00 (0.03)

Total Expenditure 11,629.00 11,629.00 0.00 0.00

Total Management 0463 WE PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C-7

82



PY CARRYOVER 32,361.74 

CY ALLOCATION 1,890,217.48 

TOTAL 1,922,579.22 

LESS:  PACIFIC HEARING EXPENSE (158,821.31) 

- ADJ FOR EVSELPA/OMSD BILLBACK OF 1/2 DAY WHOLE CLASS TESTINGS 1,175.16               

INDIRECT COST (8.5%) (2,125.00) 

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR DISTRICTS 1,762,808.07 

Col A Col B Col C Col D Col E Col F

DISTRICT PY PUPIL COUNT TOTAL LOW INCIDENCE LOW INCIDENCE LOW INCIDENCE

LOW INCIDENCE RATIO ALLOCATION EXPENDITURES/ OFFSET BALANCE

PUPIL COUNT As of 6/30/24 Col C - Col D - Col E

ALTA LOMA 32 6.18% 108,899.34 28,521.67 80,378.00 (0.33)

CENTRAL 24 4.63% 81,674.51 13,482.38 68,192.00 0.13

CHAFFEY 169 32.63% 575,124.64 101,363.71 473,761.00 (0.07)

CHINO VALLEY 136 26.25% 462,822.20 89,652.66 373,170.00 (0.46)

CUCAMONGA 12 2.32% 40,837.25 24,902.96 15,934.00 0.29

ETIWANDA 67 12.93% 228,007.99 48,959.95 179,048.00 0.04

MOUNTAIN VIEW 25 4.83% 85,077.61 6,608.01 48,269.00 30,200.60

MT. BALDY - 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

UPLAND UNIFIED 53 10.23% 180,364.53 49,144.00 131,221.00 (0.47)

PACIFIC HEARING EXPENSE 157,646.15 157,646.15 0.00 0.00

INDIRECT COST 2,125.00 2,125.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 518 100.00% 1,922,579.22 522,406.49 1,369,973.00 30,199.73 

WEST END SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

2023/24 Low Incidence

7/31/2024

C-8

83



Col. A Col. A1 Col. A2 Col. A3 Col. B Col. B1 Col. B2 Col. B3

NPS - LCI LCI LCI Net LCI Non LCI NPS/NPA NON LCI  NON LCI Non-LCI minus

100% ADA LCFF Cost 100 % COST ADA LCFF LCFF

Deduct Deduct Col. B-B2

WE Student Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SBCSS - 

Alta Loma 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 267,736.65 3.56 41,202.30 226,534.35 Alta Loma 11,573.68         

Central 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 378,679.26 4.29 57,598.14 321,081.12 Central 13,426.14         

Chaffey 44,915.86 1.07 15,909.27 29,006.59 5,363,039.58 79.43 1,181,003.37 4,182,036.21 Chaffey 14,868.48         

Chino 206,896.63 3.46 42,833.24 164,063.39 1,707,189.84 30.78 381,042.55 1,326,147.29 Chino 12,379.55         

Cucamonga 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 264,236.63 2.71 37,182.85 227,053.78 Cucamonga 13,720.61         

Etiwanda 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 943,000.18 13.22 154,159.35 788,840.83 Etiwanda 11,661.07         

Mountain View 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37,199.80 0.31 3,881.85 33,317.95 Mountain View 12,522.10         

Mount Baldy 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Mount Baldy Jt. 12,864.11         

Upland 69,543.06 1.66 22,767.61 46,775.45 1,736,081.27 22.38 306,951.32 1,429,129.95 Upland 13,715.43         

321,355.55 6.19 81,510.12 239,845.43 10,697,163.21 156.68 2,163,021.73 8,534,141.48

116,731.17       
Col. C Col. D Col. E Col. F Col. G Col. H Col. I Col. J

Function 1180 Function 1180 Function 1180 Function 2200 Function 2200 Function 2200 Function 1180 Function 2200

Net LCI Cost Net Non LCI, NPS LCFF Parent Reimb Legal Fees/ IEE/Services Consultants/ Various

/NPA 80% cost 70% cost Mediation Cost per Tech Assess

Col A3 Col. B3 Col A2 +B2 70% cost Mediation 70% Cost 100% Cost

WE Student Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,200.00 0.00 0.00

Alta Loma 0.00 181,227.48 41,202.30 87,367.32 41,685.00 0.00 0.00 19,734.00

Central 0.00 256,864.90 57,598.14 4,837.00 0.00 3,150.00 0.00 9,264.00

Chaffey 29,006.59 3,345,628.97 1,196,912.64 72,671.32 69,125.00 955.50 0.00 40,786.90

Chino 164,063.39 1,060,917.83 423,875.79 16,497.95 113,225.00 19,950.00 1,400.00 92,690.00

Cucamonga 0.00 181,643.02 37,182.85 0.00 9,660.00 4,200.00 0.00 5,970.73

Etiwanda 0.00 631,072.66 154,159.35 53,198.77 108,850.00 0.00 0.00 4,625.00

Mountain View 0.00 26,654.36 3,881.85 9,730.58 8,260.00 0.00 839.30 5,000.00

Mount Baldy 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,560.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Upland 46,775.45 1,143,303.96 329,718.93 115,650.43 59,255.00 374.50 0.00 40,585.00

239,845.43 6,827,313.18 2,244,531.85 367,513.37 410,060.00 32,830.00 2,239.30 218,655.63

Col. L Col. M Col. N Col. O Col. P Col. Q Col. R Col. S Col. T

4th Quarter Previous Reimb. Net District Cost

Cost 4th Qtr Function 1180 Function 2200 Function 1180 Function 2200 Function 1180 Function 2200

Col. C thru J Col. Q + R Col. L - M Col. S - Q Col. T - R Previous S Previous T Col. C thru E, I Col. F thru H, J

WE Student Services 4,200.00 0.00 4,200.00 0.00 4,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,200.00

Alta Loma 371,216.10 244,695.28 126,520.82 85,682.37 40,838.45 136,747.41 107,947.87 222,429.78 148,786.32

Central 331,714.04 231,946.67 99,767.36 96,767.36 3,000.00 217,695.67 14,251.00 314,463.04 17,251.00

Chaffey 4,755,086.92 3,400,343.48 1,354,743.44 1,334,923.48 19,819.96 3,236,624.72 163,718.76 4,571,548.20 183,538.72

Chino 1,892,619.96 1,254,182.94 638,437.02 588,873.22 49,563.80 1,061,383.79 192,799.15 1,650,257.01 242,362.95

Cucamonga 238,656.60 173,158.43 65,498.17 59,298.17 6,200.00 159,527.70 13,630.73 218,825.87 19,830.73

Etiwanda 951,905.78 741,117.57 210,788.21 208,125.71 2,662.50 577,106.30 164,011.27 785,232.01 166,673.77

Mountain View 54,366.09 28,368.73 25,997.36 15,737.36 10,260.00 15,638.15 12,730.58 31,375.51 22,990.58

Mount Baldy 7,560.00 7,560.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,560.00 0.00 7,560.00

Upland 1,735,663.27 1,230,747.59 504,915.68 428,043.41 76,872.27 1,091,754.93 138,992.66 1,519,798.34 215,864.93

10,342,988.76 7,312,120.71 3,030,868.05 2,817,451.07 213,416.98 6,496,478.69 815,642.02 9,313,929.76 1,029,059.00

DISTRICT REIMBURSEMENTS

TOTALS TRANSFERS

4th. Quarter Transfer Previous Reimb Total Transfers  at 4th  Quarter

WESELPA - JOINT RISK FUND REIMBURSEMENT  - FOURTH QUARTER 2023/2024 - FINAL 

August 21, 2024

LCI COST NON-LCI COST

2023/2024 Avg Revenue per ADA 

under LCFF

8/21/2024

B. Guerrero

J:\Admin\Acct Tech\NPSNPA\NPSNPA COST PROJ\23-24 NPS QTRLY COST PROJ

C-9

84



Col. A Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E Col. F1 Col. F2

Description Funded ADA 

(State)

Projected Per 

ADA Rate

Small School 

Protection

District MH 

Contributions

Initial 50% 

Contribution 

(50% x Col D)

Final 50% 

Contribution

Final YE 

Adjustment

(CY P-2 ADA) $54.56 (Col Q) (Col B + C) Nov-23 May-24 Jul-24

REVENUE

SBCSS 474.21 25,874.31$    12,066.00$    14,671.00$    (862.69) 

Alta Loma 5,299.30 289,145.58          105.75 289,251.33          SCH 202 134,499.00          164,080.00          (9,327.67) 

Central 4,055.47 221,278.51          80.93 221,359.44          SCH 209 101,626.00          127,033.00          (7,299.56) 

Chaffey 20,822.13 1,136,117.37       415.53 1,136,532.90       SCH 263 529,907.00          644,107.00          (37,481.10)           

Chino 24,090.69 1,314,459.72       480.76 1,314,940.48       SCH 210 613,646.00          744,659.00          (43,364.52)           

Cucamonga 2,215.47 120,882.64          44.21 120,926.85          SCH 215 55,011.00 69,904.00 (3,988.15) 

Etiwanda 12,941.09 706,104.38          258.26 706,362.64          SCH 218 332,017.00          397,641.00          (23,295.36)           

Mountain View 2,973.31 162,232.64          59.34 162,291.98          SCH 238 76,382.00 91,261.00 (5,351.02) 

Mt Baldy 93.40 5,096.18 (1,628.30) 3,467.88 SCH 236 1,549.00 1,827.00 91.88 

Upland 9,195.88 501,754.58          183.52 501,938.10          SCH 259 238,018.00          280,474.00          (16,553.90)           

Subtotal 82,160.95 4,482,945.91$    -$    4,457,071.60$    2,094,721.00$    2,535,657.00$    (173,306.40)        

EXPENSE FUNCTION OBJECT

SBCSS Contribution 5740 (25,874.31)$     

SELPA RS/Administrative 2200 1xxx-5xxx 389,091.12$     

Contract Residential Counseling/WRAP 3120 5110 1,821,544.62       

Contract Residential Room & Board 3900 5110 2,118,860.28       

Parent Reimb/Contracted Services 5803/5810 101,651.99          

Indirect 7312 51,797.90 

Subtotal 4,457,071.60$    

VARIANCE -$     

Col. G Col. H Col. I Col. J Col. K Col. L Col. M Col. N Col. O Col. P Col. Q

District Funded ADA 

(State)

Funded ADA 

(Federal)

6546 State

(P-2)

3327 Federal Less: Per ADA 

Contribution

Adjusted Total 

(Used for FY 

Small School)

PY Total after 

Small School 

Protection

Column M 

adjusted for 

COLA

Small School 

Protection 

Adjustment

Total Mental 

Health after 

Adjustments

(CY P-2 ADA) (PY P-2 ADA) 80.1024 12.766279 (Col B) (Col I thru K) (PY Column N) 1.0822 (Col L + P)
County Operations 474.21 461.64 37,985.00 5,895.00 (25,874.31)           18,005.69 - 18,005.69 

Alta Loma 5,299.30 5,190.62 424,487.00          66,289.00 (289,145.58)         201,630.42          6.49% (105.75) 201,524.67          

Central 4,055.47 3,958.99 324,853.00          50,560.00 (221,278.51)         154,134.49          4.97% (80.93) 154,053.56          

Chaffey 20,822.13 21,147.49 1,667,903.00       270,072.00          (1,136,117.37)      801,857.63          25.52% (415.53) 801,442.10          

Chino 24,090.69 23,900.18 1,929,723.00       305,226.00          (1,314,459.72)      920,489.28          29.53% (480.76) 920,008.52          

Cucamonga 2,215.47 2,153.05 177,465.00          27,496.00 (120,882.64)         84,078.36 2.72% (44.21) 84,034.15 

Etiwanda 12,941.09 12,620.65 1,036,613.00       161,177.00          (706,104.38)         491,685.62          15.86% (258.26) 491,427.36          

Mountain View 2,973.31 2,801.86 238,169.00          35,782.00 (162,232.64)         111,718.36          3.64% (59.34) 111,659.02          

Mt Baldy 93.40 87.88 7,482.00 1,122.00 (5,096.18) 3,507.82 4,746.00 5,136.12 1,628.30 5,136.12 

Upland 9,195.88 9,318.87 736,612.00          119,010.00          (501,754.58)         353,867.42          11.27% (183.52) 353,683.90          

TOTALS 82,160.95 81,641.23 6,581,292.00       1,042,629.00       (4,482,945.91)      3,140,975.09       4,746.00 5,136.12 100.00% - 3,140,975.09       

Notes:

1. SELPA RS/Administrative cost, Wrap Around Services, Contracted Residential Room & Board, Contracted Residential Counseling, and Contracted Services are paid via per ADA contribution

2. Contracted Services include Parent Reimbursements and the first $25k of sub-agreements coded to 5110.

 State Funded 

ADA Ratio 

Excluding Small 

District

Small School Protection

West End SELPA
SPECIAL EDUCATION MENTAL HEALTH REVENUE DISTRIBUTION

FY 2023/24

2
0

2
3

/2
4
 #

8

F
in

a
l M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth

U
p

d
a
ted

: 7
/3

0
/2

4

8/21/2024 8:04 AM I:\Grants\3327 & 6546 Mental Hlth\23-24 Mental Hlth\23-24 #8 Final Mental Health Distribution Model-July 2024

C-10

85



WESELPA

Mgmt WSMH

Mental Health

FY 2023-24

Personnel Costs Posn No FTE Salary & Benefits

Program Manager (AF) EJ010 0.250 61,139.39 

Admin Asst (NV) EJ006 0.100 13,407.00 

Consultant (TC) EJ011 0.250 61,623.49 

Psychologist (JF) EK033 0.500 118,925.13 

Psychologist (ML) EK034 0.200 49,381.66 

Program Technician (CM) EL025 0.100 11,908.88 

Accounting Technician (BG) EJ020 0.250 27,520.20 

Office Specialist II (AH) EJ025 0.250 1,005.38 

Office Specialist II (SC) EL020 0.100 11,378.28 

2.000             356,289.41 

Operating Costs
Matls & Supplies 3,928.96 Object: 4XXXs

Busn Trvl/Mileage 24,435.15 Object: 5220, 5221, 5225

Other Operating 712.00 Object 5271, 5272, 5310, 5711, 5714, 5722, 5737, 5950

Network Fee 3,725.60 Object 5733

  (Rounding - adj ADA Contribution total to whole dollar) - 

32,801.71 

389,091.12 

Indirect Cost 8.50% 33,072.75 

422,163.87 

5110 Residential & counseling 3,795,886.59 5810 Adj

5810 First $25k of sub-agreements 144,518.31 (3,500.00)    

5840 SBCSS Contribution (25,874.31) 

5803 Parent Reimb/5810 Contracted 101,651.99 3,500.00        

Indirect on 5810 18,725.16 

Rounding Adj - 

FAR 4,457,071.60 

Total 4,457,071.60 

0.00 

MJS 12-5-12 I:\Grants\3327 & 6546 Mental Hlth\23-24 Mental Hlth\23-24 #8 Final Mental Health Distribution Model-July 2024

C-10

86



                                                                                                                            

District Residential No.

Placement Stud July August September October November December January February March April May June Total Pymts

Alta Loma Alpine Academy 1 5,130.00           8,100.00             13,230.00             

South Coast 1 -                        

Uplift Family Services 4 -                        

6 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 5,130.00           8,100.00             13,230.00             

-                        

Central -                        

Uplift Family Services 1 -                        

1 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       -                        

-                        

Chaffey Jt Canyon View 2 -                        

Cornerstone 1 -                        

Devereux Florida 2 20,062.58        20,456.05        19,415.40    20,062.58    19,415.40    20,062.58    20,062.58    13,267.19    10,031.29    9,707.70      10,031.29        9,707.70             192,282.34           

Diamond Ranch Academy 1 4,405.59           4,405.59               

Discovery Ranch for Girls 1 7,700.00           7,700.00           7,700.00      7,700.00       7,700.00      7,084.00       45,584.00             

Joan Macy 2 34,540.00        47,100.00          81,640.00             

Laurel Heights 1 6,480.00       10,044.00    9,396.00      10,044.00    9,720.00      45,684.00             

Mountain Valley 1 24,474.50        24,474.50        23,685.00    24,474.50    23,685.00    24,474.50    24,474.50    22,895.50    24,474.50    23,685.00    24,474.50        15,790.00          281,062.00           

Oak Grove 2 32,656.00        32,656.00        28,301.87    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00        16,328.00          240,565.87           

Progress Learning 1 -                        

Provo Canyon 3 12,095.00        14,570.00        10,575.00    7,285.00       7,050.00      4,935.00       1,175.00      7,285.00           7,050.00             72,020.00             

Stoneridge Academy 1 -                        

Syracuse RTC 2 1,560.00       12,090.00    11,310.00    12,090.00    11,700.00    18,330.00        23,400.00          90,480.00             

  Vista School 1 15,239.47    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00        113,207.47           

West Shield Adolescent 6 2,052.10      19,637.16    9,821.01      6,384.39      12,859.58        5,496.73             56,250.97             

  South Coast 11 -                        

Uplift Family Services 25 -                        

63 101,393.67      99,856.55        89,677.27    75,850.08    91,469.97    116,889.24  99,327.08    99,345.70    89,295.79    95,028.09    140,176.37      124,872.43        1,223,182.24        

-                        

Chino Valley USD Canyon View 2 -                        

Cinnamon Hills 1 11,911.44        5,379.36           17,290.80             

Devereux Florida 1 15,415.97        9,707.70      10,031.29    9,707.70      10,031.29    10,031.29    9,384.11      10,031.29    9,707.70      7,442.57           101,490.91           

Diamond Ranch Academy 1 4,405.59           4,405.59               

Oak Grove 1 16,328.00        16,328.00        16,328.00    6,320.52       55,304.52             

Provo Canyon 1 4,810.00           7,285.00           7,050.00      7,285.00       1,553.90      27,983.90             

San Diego Center 1 4,746.63           14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56    14,714.56        2,942.91             140,120.58           

TTC4Success 1 -                        

West Shield Adolescent 1 8,366.77           8,366.77               

  South Coast 7 -                        

Uplift Family Services 14 -                        

31 37,455.03        49,154.96        47,800.26    38,351.37    25,976.16    24,745.85    24,745.85    24,098.67    24,745.85    24,422.26    30,523.90        2,942.91             354,963.07           

-                        

Cucamonga -                        

0 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       -                        

-                        

Etiwanda Oak Grove 1 6,847.23       16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00        16,328.00          104,815.23           

Progress Learning 1 -                        

San Diego Center 1 9,018.60           14,714.56        14,714.56    14,714.56    13,733.59    66,895.87             

West Shield Adolescent 1 1,737.18       1,737.18               

  South Coast 3 -                        

Uplift Family Services 13 -                        

20 9,018.60           14,714.56        14,714.56    14,714.56    13,733.59    8,584.41       16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00        16,328.00          173,448.28           

-                        

Mountain View -                        

-                        

Mt Baldy -                        

0 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       -                        

-                        

Upland Mountain Valley 1 24,474.50        24,474.50        23,685.00    24,474.50    23,685.00    24,474.50    24,474.50    22,895.50    24,474.50    23,685.00    4,737.00           245,534.50           

  Oak Grove 1 10,534.19    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00    16,328.00        16,328.00          108,502.19           

  Stoneridge Academy 1 -                        

  South Coast 2 -                        

Uplift Family Services 8 -                        

13 24,474.50        24,474.50        23,685.00    24,474.50    23,685.00    35,008.69    40,802.50    39,223.50    40,802.50    40,013.00    21,065.00        16,328.00          354,036.69           

-                        

Totals 134      172,341.80     188,200.57     175,877.09 153,390.51 154,864.72 185,228.19 181,203.43 178,995.87 171,172.14 175,791.35 213,223.27     168,571.34       2,118,860.28        

Totals without WRAP 45        172,341.80      188,200.57      175,877.09 153,390.51  154,864.72 185,228.19  181,203.43 178,995.87 171,172.14 175,791.35 213,223.27      168,571.34        2,118,860.28        
Total WRAP 89        -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       -                           

% Totals w/o WRAP 74.97%

Projected 2023/24 Mental Health Related 

Residential and Counseling Expenses

West End Special Education Local Plan 

Area

Room & Board

C-10

87



District Residential No.

Placement Stud

Alta Loma Alpine Academy 1

South Coast 1

Uplift Family Services 4

6

Central

Uplift Family Services 1

1

Chaffey Jt Canyon View 2

Cornerstone 1

Devereux Florida 2

Diamond Ranch Academy 1

Discovery Ranch for Girls 1

Joan Macy 2

Laurel Heights 1

Mountain Valley 1

Oak Grove 2

Progress Learning 1

Provo Canyon 3

Stoneridge Academy 1

Syracuse RTC 2

Vista School 1

West Shield Adolescent 6

South Coast 11

Uplift Family Services 25

63

Chino Valley USD Canyon View 2

Cinnamon Hills 1

Devereux Florida 1

Diamond Ranch Academy 1

Oak Grove 1

Provo Canyon 1

San Diego Center 1

TTC4Success 1

West Shield Adolescent 1

South Coast 7

Uplift Family Services 14

31

Cucamonga

0

Etiwanda Oak Grove 1

Progress Learning 1

San Diego Center 1

West Shield Adolescent 1

South Coast 3

Uplift Family Services 13

20

Mountain View

Mt Baldy

0

Upland Mountain Valley 1

Oak Grove 1

Stoneridge Academy 1

South Coast 2

Uplift Family Services 8

13

Totals 134      

Totals without WRAP 45        
Total WRAP 89        

% Totals w/o WRAP

Projected 2023/24 Mental Health Related 

Residential and Counseling Expenses

West End Special Education Local Plan 

Area

July August September October November December January February March April May June Total Pymts

3,420.00              5,400.00 8,820.00 

500.00          1,837.00           1,837.00 4,174.00 

6,095.00           6,846.25       1,487.50      1,356.25       3,370.00      2,645.00       3,730.00       5,240.00       8,182.50       5,833.75           3,893.75              1,992.50 50,672.50 

6,095.00           6,846.25       1,487.50      1,356.25       3,370.00      2,645.00       3,730.00       5,240.00       8,682.50       7,670.75           7,313.75              9,229.50 63,666.50 

- 

- 

1,597.50           3,193.75       1,901.25      1,726.25       1,857.50      1,157.50       1,827.50       1,050.00       1,603.75       2,450.00           855.00 19,220.00 

1,597.50           3,193.75       1,901.25      1,726.25       1,857.50      1,157.50       1,827.50       1,050.00       1,603.75       2,450.00           855.00 - 19,220.00 

- 

358.12          358.12          268.59          268.59          268.59          626.71          716.24          358.12 358.12 3,581.20 

4,820.47       4,820.47 

15,133.58         14,645.40    14,401.31    14,645.40    14,645.40    14,889.49    14,401.31    10,007.69    6,834.52       7,322.70           7,078.61              7,322.70 141,328.11              

3,492.72           3,492.72 

5,775.00           5,775.00       5,775.00      5,775.00       5,775.00      5,320.00       34,195.00 

- 

9,720.00       15,066.00    14,094.00    15,066.00    14,580.00        68,526.00 

- 

- 

150.00 150.00          300.00          300.00          300.00          225.00          300.00          300.00          300.00          225.00 300.00 75.00 2,925.00 

6,048.00           8,928.00       6,480.00      4,464.00       4,320.00      3,024.00       720.00 4,464.00              4,320.00 42,768.00 

121.87          487.48          487.48          487.48 487.48 2,071.79 

680.00          5,270.00       4,930.00       5,270.00       5,100.00           7,990.00              10,200.00             39,440.00 

24,460.41    27,375.89    14,885.26    30,710.56    28,845.84    31,030.77        36,953.13           194,261.86              

- 

7,612.00           13,387.00    13,887.00    21,524.89    16,109.00    16,976.76    18,349.00    20,430.96    20,474.00    22,324.50        18,840.84           18,330.75             208,246.70              

14,862.50         23,240.00    24,611.25    26,135.00    23,757.50    22,107.50    23,341.25    20,267.50    18,965.00    20,376.25        21,385.00           13,977.50             253,026.25              

53,073.80         66,125.40    65,812.68    73,202.41    89,635.90    100,587.23  92,003.28    106,675.37  96,959.08    102,524.82      97,857.18           54,225.95             998,683.10              

- 

716.24          179.06          537.18 716.24 358.12 2,506.84 

2,664.14           1,203.16       3,867.30 

4,149.53       7,322.70      7,566.79       7,322.70      7,566.79       7,566.79       7,078.61       7,566.79       7,322.70           5,614.07              69,077.47 

3,492.72           3,492.72 

- 

1,584.00           4,464.00       4,320.00      4,464.00       432.00          15,264.00 

1,298.48       4,025.28      4,025.28       4,025.28      4,025.28       4,025.28       4,025.28       4,025.28       4,025.28           4,025.28              805.06 38,331.06 

1,683.45       1,683.45      2,009.70       1,409.40      1,096.20       2,088.00       29.80            10,000.00 

- 

500.00 1,422.24       1,837.00      2,937.00       2,337.00      7,612.00       8,112.00       11,497.38    15,580.60    15,472.00        19,137.00           10,737.00             97,181.22 

7,341.25           13,593.75    12,328.75    16,322.50    14,456.25    11,775.00    10,927.50    11,070.00    8,763.75       10,420.00        10,241.25           6,340.00 133,580.00              

15,582.11         27,814.61    31,517.18    37,325.27    29,982.63    32,075.27    33,435.81    33,880.13    35,936.42    37,777.16        39,733.84           18,240.18             373,300.61              

- 

- 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

- 

- 

75.00            75.00 

2,467.11           4,025.28       4,025.28      4,025.28       3,756.93      18,299.88 

- 

5,775.00           5,775.00       5,775.00      5,775.00       5,775.00      8,061.36       8,400.00       8,400.00       8,400.00       8,400.00           8,776.70              8,400.00 87,713.06 

16,858.75         17,266.25    18,826.25    22,060.00    16,703.75    15,037.50    12,133.75    10,248.75    12,778.75    10,383.75        10,325.00           11,541.25             174,163.75              

25,100.86         27,066.53    28,626.53    31,860.28    26,235.68    23,098.86    20,533.75    18,723.75    21,178.75    18,783.75        19,101.70           19,941.25             280,251.69              

- 

- 

- 

- 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

- 

- 

- 

182.81          121.87          121.87          426.55 

500.00          1,448.32       2,625.00       1,837.00           3,125.00              3,849.60 13,384.92 

4,833.75           4,362.50       6,261.25      7,551.25       7,583.75      8,240.00       7,848.75       5,857.50       4,688.75       5,598.75           6,130.00              3,655.00 72,611.25 

4,833.75           4,362.50       6,261.25      7,734.06       7,705.62      8,361.87       8,348.75       7,305.82       7,313.75       7,435.75           9,255.00              7,504.60 86,422.72 

- 

106,283.02      135,409.04 135,606.39 153,204.52 158,787.33 167,925.73 159,879.09 172,875.07 171,674.25 176,642.23     174,116.47        109,141.48          1,821,544.62          

40,807.27         46,322.30    48,691.14    47,816.38    66,837.58    74,313.11    64,709.34    77,364.66    69,112.15    71,709.23        71,406.93           28,480.88             707,570.97 
65,475.75         89,086.74    86,915.25    105,388.14  91,949.75    93,612.62    95,169.75    95,510.41    102,562.10  104,933.00      102,709.54         80,660.60             1,113,973.65           

25.03%

Counseling

C-10

88



2023/24 Joint Risk Fund Return 

Background: 
As approved on April 21, 2014, an analysis of each district’s Joint Risk Fund (JRF) usage 
will be completed at year-end and factored into that year’s JRF return.  Districts that 
underutilize the JRF by contributing more than they spend will be given the following 
return priority:   

• If the return is large enough, underutilizing districts will be fully reimbursed for their
amount of under usage.  After which, the remaining balance of the JRF return will
be distributed to all member districts by their percentage of ADA.

• If the amount of JRF return is not enough to fully reimburse underutilizing districts,
then only districts that underutilized the JRF will get a return.  In this case, the
return would be distributed be proportionate share of under usage.  Districts that
over utilize the JRF by spending more than they contribute will not be eligible for a
JRF return.

Fiscal Impact: 
The 2023/24 JRF Return totals $1,131,028.35 and is summarized as follows: 

Recommendation: 
N/A - This item will move forward to the Superintendents’ Council for approval. 

Alta Loma 80,401.27 

Central 77,855.36 

Chaffey 133,813.86 

Chino 478,773.46 

Cucamonga 36,003.25 

Etiwanda 179,292.22 

Mountain View 69,661.93 

Mt. Baldy 1,076.26 

Upland 60,005.90 

WE Student Srvcs 14,144.84 

TOTAL 1,131,028.35 

 Total Return 2023/24

Return from RSPS 319,206.38 - ADA based return distribution

Return from JRF 811,821.97 - Usage based return distribution

Total Return 1,131,028.35 

C-11

89



T. Chatkoo 8/19/24

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E Column F Column G

(Col C + Col F)

P-2 ADA % ADA % Under Usage

Cert 6/19/24

Alta Loma 5,299.30 6.45% 20,588.50 139,180.17 7.37% 59,812.77 80,401.27 

Central 4,055.47 4.94% 15,756.05 144,500.78 7.65% 62,099.31 77,855.36 

Chaffey 20,822.13 25.34% 80,896.79 123,134.35 6.52% 52,917.07 133,813.86 

Chino 24,090.69 29.32% 93,595.58 896,282.24 47.45% 385,177.88 478,773.46 

Cucamonga 2,215.47 2.70% 8,607.40 63,748.24 3.37% 27,395.85 36,003.25 

Etiwanda 12,941.09 15.75% 50,277.88 300,207.42 15.89% 129,014.34 179,292.22 

Mountain View 2,973.31 3.62% 11,551.71 135,218.46 7.16% 58,110.22 69,661.93 

Mt. Baldy 93.40 0.11% 362.87 1,660.00 0.09% 713.39 1,076.26 

Upland 9,195.88 11.19% 35,727.23 56,494.77 2.99% 24,278.67 60,005.90 

WE Student Srvcs 474.21 0.58% 1,842.37 28,627.00 1.52% 12,302.47 14,144.84 

TOTAL 82,160.95 100.00% 319,206.38 1,889,053.43 100.00% 811,821.97 1,131,028.35 

Beginning Balance 1,369,912.61 

Plus: Revenue 13,721,054.67         

Less: Expenditures 13,559,938.93         

Ending Balance 1,531,028.35 

Less: Reserve 400,000.00 

Total Return 1,131,028.35 

Return from RSPS 319,206.38 - ADA based return distribution

Return from JRF 811,821.97 - Usage based return distribution

Total Return 1,131,028.35 

 Total Return 

West End SELPA

2023/24 Joint Risk Fund Return

 Revenue vs 

Expense (Usage) 

 Return from JRF 

(Distributed by % 

Under Usage) 

2023/24

 Return from RSPS 

(Distributed by % 

ADA) 

I:\JRF\23-24 JRF\23-24 JRF Return 8/19/20249:03 AM

C-11

90



Joint Risk Fund Annual Usage Analysis
Shared Expenses not distributed by % of ADA 

2023/24 Col A Col B Col C Col D Col E Col F Col G Col H Col I Col J Col K Col L Col M Col N

P-2 ADA % ADA Contributions District TOTAL  NPS/NPA/LCI Legal Costs Settlements/ Operating Other TOTAL VARIANCE JRF Return ADJUSTED 

Cert 6/19/24 $50.73/ADA Reimbursements REVENUE Services Expenses Expenses EXPENSE (Less PSRS Portion) VARIANCE

Alta Loma 5,299.30 6.45% 268,643.00 377,397.10 646,040.10 267,736.65 94,578.83 144,544.45 - 506,859.93 139,180.17 (59,812.77) 79,367.40 

Central 4,055.47 4.94% 205,734.00 338,120.04 543,854.04 378,679.26 - 20,674.00 - 399,353.26 144,500.78 (62,099.31) 82,401.47 

Chaffey 20,822.13 25.34% 1,056,307.00 4,783,839.92 5,840,146.92 5,407,955.44 155,558.06 145,968.07 7,531.00 5,717,012.57 123,134.35 (52,917.07) 70,217.28 

Chino 24,090.69 29.32% 1,222,121.00 1,922,280.96 3,144,401.96 1,914,086.47 187,274.75 146,758.50 - 2,248,119.72 896,282.24 (385,177.88) 511,104.36 

Cucamonga 2,215.47 2.70% 112,391.00 241,364.60 353,755.60 264,236.63 13,800.00 11,970.73 - 290,007.36 63,748.24 (27,395.85) 36,352.39 

Etiwanda 12,941.09 15.75% 656,501.00 968,189.78 1,624,690.78 943,000.18 300,859.94 80,623.24 - 1,324,483.36 300,207.42 (129,014.34) 171,193.08 

Mountain View 2,973.31 3.62% 150,835.00 57,524.09 208,359.09 37,199.80 15,841.00 20,099.83 - 73,140.63 135,218.46 (58,110.22) 77,108.24 

Mt. Baldy 93.40 0.11% 4,738.00 7,722.00 12,460.00 - - 10,800.00 - 10,800.00 1,660.00 (713.39) 946.61 

Upland 9,195.88 11.19% 466,507.00 1,749,464.27 2,215,971.27 1,805,624.33 147,517.27 206,334.90 - 2,159,476.50 56,494.77 (24,278.67) 32,216.10 

WE Student Srvcs 474.21 0.58% 24,057.00 10,570.00 34,627.00 - - 6,000.00 - 6,000.00 28,627.00 (12,302.47) 16,324.53 

Shared Expenses - - - 4,575.91 - 1,144,505.40 - 1,149,081.31 (1,149,081.31)         - (1,149,081.31)         

TOTAL 82,160.95 100.00% 4,167,834.00          10,456,472.76        14,624,306.76        11,018,518.76        920,005.76 793,773.72 1,144,505.40 7,531.00 13,884,334.64        739,972.12 (811,821.97) (71,849.85) 

Notes:

1. Contributions (Col C) may be based on projected P-2 ADA at the time of Mid-Year Final 50% transfer.  P-2 ADA (Col A) may differ from projected P-2 ADA.

2. District Reimbursements (Col D): District quarterly and SEIS

3. NPS/NPA/LCI (Col F): NPS, NPA, and LCI expenses

4. Legal Costs (Col G): District and Parent attorneys

5. Settlements/Services (Col H): Parent reimbursements as well as IEEs, consultations, tech assessments and misc. other

6. Shared Expenses include: Operating Expenses (salaries, benefits,  materials & supplies, services other than legal, NPS)

District

I:\JRF\Exp Analysis\Annual JRF Usage Analysis\JRF Annual Usage Analysis 1 of 1 8/19/20249:09 AM

C-11

91



AB602 Funding Models Certified June 19, 2024 

Background: 
The California Department of Education certifies the AB602 Special Education allocations in 
February and June of each fiscal year.   

Fiscal Impact: 

a. 2021/22 Annual R-3 – The 2021/22 Annual R-3 AB602 allocation was certified in
the amount of $65,394,360.  This represents no change when compared to the
Annual R-2 allocation.

b. 2022/23 Annual R-1 – The 2022/23 Annual R-1 AB602 allocation was certified in
the amount of $74,683,900.  This represents a net decrease of $3,388 when
compared to the AB602 Annual allocation.  The variance comes from changes in
funded ADA and the proportionate share of savings for statewide Out-of-Home
care funding.

c. 2023/24 P-2 – The 2023/24 P-2 AB602 allocation was certified in the amount of
$74,991,067.  This represents a net decrease of $402,562 when compared to the
May 2024 projection.  The variance comes from changes in funded ADA,
property tax deduct, and the proportionate share of savings for statewide Out-of-
Home Care funding.

Recommendation: 
N/A - For information only 

C-12

92



Schedule B

2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

Executive Summary

Total Apportionment - SELPA Wide

2021-22 Budget
A B C D E F G H I J (Col D thru I) K

Name 20/21 Annual R3 AB602 

Cert 6/19/23

21/22 Annual R3 AB602 

Cert 6/19/24

Growth/Decline AB602 Base w/COLA, 

Growth,  Local Asst, & 

Prop Tax

Low Incidence Prog Spec/Reg Svcs  Personnel Development NPS/LCI Extraordinary 

Cost Pool (Annual only)

Out of Home Care Total Apportionment Per ADA Amount

Rate

West End Student Services 556.47 470.37 (86.10) $483,628.00 1,510,472.00 $0.00 $20,852.00 $2,014,952.00 $4,283.76

Alta Loma 5,816.21 5,133.42 (682.79) 5,278,117.00 0.00 227,896.00 5,506,013.00 1,072.58 

Central 4,281.79 3,985.34 (296.45) 4,097,675.00 7,444.00 176,679.00 4,281,798.00 1,074.39 

Chaffey Joint 22,610.92 21,209.17 (1401.75) 21,806,997.00 53,849.00 972,371.00 22,833,217.00 1,076.57 

Chino Valley 26,373.12 23,836.85 (2536.27) 24,508,744.00 0.00 1,156,944.00 25,665,688.00 1,076.72 

Cucamonga 2,327.00 2,166.07 (160.93) 2,227,125.00 0.00 96,026.00 2,323,151.00 1,072.52 

Etiwanda 13,608.27 12,508.12 (1100.15) 12,860,688.00 9,298.00 554,511.00 13,424,497.00 1,073.26 

Mountain View 2,451.00 2,481.01 30.01 2,550,943.00 0.00 109,988.00 2,660,931.00 1,072.52 

Mt Baldy 101.88 75.79 (26.09) 77,926.00 0.00 3,360.00 81,286.00 1,072.52 

Upland 10,115.84 9,431.67 (684.17) 9,697,522.00 24,278.00 461,415.00 10,183,215.00 1,079.68 

SELPA 265,462.00 1,523,855.00 11,671.00 23,717.00 - 1,824,705.00

SELPA Wide Totals 88,242.50 81,297.81 (6,944.69) $83,589,365.00 $1,775,934.00 $1,523,855.00 $11,671.00 118,586.00$    $3,780,042.00 $90,799,453.00

Source Sched C Col K Sched C Col M Sched Ca Col B Sched H3 Col L Sched D I-2 Sched Q Col B Sched S Col C Sched K Col E Sched D Cell C79

Sched D I-3

Adjusted Apportionment - SELPA Wide
L M N O (Col L thru N) P Q R S (Col P thru R)

Name Total Apportionment 

Before Adjustments

Fee for Service 

Adjustment

Small School Protection Adjusted Apportionment County Property Tax Local Assistance  

(DO NOT USE FOR 

BUDGET)

AB602 Apportionment Adjusted Apportionment

Resource 0000/6500 3310/3311 6500

West End Student Services $2,014,952.00 $25,911,698.00 ($1,244.00) $27,925,406.00 4,897,445.00$    - $23,027,961.00 27,925,406.00$     

Alta Loma 5,506,013.00 (1,761,189.00) (13,577.00) 3,731,247.00 1,124,279.00 2,606,968.00 3,731,247.00

Central 4,281,798.00 (3,210,712.00) (10,541.00) 1,060,545.00 1,244,559.00 (184,014.00) 1,060,545.00

Chaffey Joint 22,833,217.00 (7,514,479.00) (56,096.00) 15,262,642.00 5,504,456.00 9,758,186.00 15,262,642.00

Chino Valley 25,665,688.00 (5,997,265.00) (63,047.00) 19,605,376.00 5,985,575.00 13,619,801.00 19,605,376.00

Cucamonga 2,323,151.00 (1,629,806.00) (5,729.00) 687,616.00 571,327.00 116,289.00 687,616.00

Etiwanda 13,424,497.00 (1,349,753.00) (33,083.00) 12,041,661.00 2,888,377.00 9,153,284.00 12,041,661.00

Mountain View 2,660,931.00 (2,963,070.00) (6,562.00) (308,701.00) 618,102.00 (926,803.00) (308,701.00)

Mt Baldy 81,286.00 (52,512.00) 214,825.00 243,599.00 18,376.00 225,223.00 243,599.00

Upland 10,183,215.00 (1,442,380.00) (24,946.00) 8,715,889.00 2,552,597.00 6,163,292.00 8,715,889.00

SELPA 1,824,705.00 9,468.00 1,834,173.00 0.00 1,834,173.00 1,834,173.00

SELPA Wide Totals $90,799,453.00 $0.00 $0.00 $90,799,453.00 $4,897,445.00 $20,507,648.00 $65,394,360.00 90,799,453.00$     

Source Col J Sched G Col F Sched I Col K Sched D Cell C79 Sched D C-3 Sched P1 & P2 Col F Sched D Cell C79

Budget from Sched P1 & P2 Col K

Certified: 6/19/24

Updated: 7/3/24

I:\AB602\21-22 AB602\2021-22 #10 Annual R3 AB602 Funding Model-Certified 6-19-24

B)Detail

Printed: 8/21/2024 at 11:26 AM Page 1 of 12

C-12a

93



Schedule B

Summary of All Inter SELPA Transfers/Expenditures
T U V W X Y Z (Col T thru Y)

Name NPS/Legal

Joint Risk Fund 

Contribution Facilities SEIS Fees SBCSS Transportation State Special Schools Total Exp/Transfer

ResourceObject

West End Student Services $0.00 ($22,824.00) $252,565.36 ($5,665.00) $224,076.36

Alta Loma (235,632.15) (251,311.00) 43,333.82 (5,075.00) (39,403.56) 0.00 (488,087.89)

Central (211,221.34) (198,499.00) (114,857.14) (5,286.00) 0.00 0.00 (529,863.48)

Chaffey Joint (4,054,087.89) (1,054,355.00) (93,407.81) (27,644.00) (1,121,031.38) 23,188.00 (6,327,338.07)

Chino Valley (1,284,521.72) (1,188,290.00) 9,198.77 (27,382.00) (911,207.38) 0.00 (3,402,202.33)

Cucamonga (65,328.66) (107,965.00) (59,920.27) (2,386.00) 0.00 0.00 (235,599.92)

Etiwanda (472,094.75) (657,693.00) 43,156.03 (12,814.00) (985.09) 0.00 (1,100,430.81)

Mountain View (35,472.00) (123,678.00) (48,163.78) (2,554.00) (350,691.74) 0.00 (560,559.52)

Mt Baldy (17,524.00) (3,778.00) 0.00 (84.00) 0.00 0.00 (21,386.00)

Upland (1,489,567.26) (469,788.00) (31,904.98) (12,477.00) (214,749.42) 0.00 (2,218,486.66)

SELPA 7,865,449.76 4,078,181.00 101,367.00 (23,188.00) 12,021,809.76

SELPA Wide Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,638,068.57) $0.00 ($2,638,068.57)

Source Sched J Col M Sched F Col B Sched L Col S+W-G Sched N Col C Sched M Col D+N Sched E Col C

DatePrepared by

Tim Chatkoo, WESELPA Consultant

I:\AB602\21-22 AB602\2021-22 #10 Annual R3 AB602 Funding Model-Certified 6-19-24

B)Detail

Printed: 8/21/2024 at 11:26 AM Page 2 of 12

C-12a

94



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 470.37     

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (86.10)      

District: West End Student Services

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code Mgmt

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 483,628.00 Sch Ca / Col B

Out of Home Care 20,852.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 504,480.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County 25,911,698.00 Sch G / Col F 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 1,510,472.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service 27,422,170.00

Small School Prot (1,244.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

27,420,926.00

Adjusted Apportionment $27,925,406.00 6500

Property Taxes 4,897,445.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col P 6500 5XXX 0000 8097 2800

State - AB602 23,027,961.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8311/8319 2800

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue

Mental Health 126,906.85 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590 2800

SBCSS Leased Facilities 252,565.36 Sch L / Col G 6500 5XXX 0000 8710 2821/2822/2827

Fedral Preschool/First Class 567,399.00 Sch O / Col A 3315 5730 0000 8182 0464

Preschool Local Entitlement/First Class 0.00 Sch O / Col B 3320 5730 0000 8182 0462

State Infant Funding/Early Start Program 808,387.00 Sch O / Col H 6510 5710 0000 8311 2850

Part C Federal Infant Funding 51,862.00 Sch O / Col D 3385 5710 0000 8182 0487

Infant Discretionary 89,117.00 Sch O / Col F 6515 5710 0000 8590 0468

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,896,237.21

Net Revenues $29,821,643.21

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 22,824.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5001 2100 5748 2800

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SEIS Fees 5,665.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5740 2800

Sub-Total 28,489.00                  

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $29,793,154.21

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

95



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 5,133.42  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (682.79)    

District: Alta Loma

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 5,278,117.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 227,896.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 5,506,013.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,821,354.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 60,165.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,761,189.00)

Small School Prot (13,577.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,774,766.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $3,731,247.00 6500

State - AB602 2,606,968.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 924,854.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (9,585.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 915,269.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 199,425.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction (2,067.00) Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 197,358.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 296,267.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 296,267.00

Net Revenues $4,015,862.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 251,311.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 147,179.17 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 88,452.98 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 22,266.58 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (65,600.40) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 39,403.56 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 5,075.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 488,087.89           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $3,527,774.11

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

96



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 3,985.34  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (296.45)    

District: Central

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 4,097,675.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 7,444.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 176,679.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 4,281,798.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA (3,787.00) Sch G / Col B

  County (3,276,116.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 69,191.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (3,210,712.00)

Small School Prot (10,541.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(3,221,253.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $1,060,545.00 6500

State - AB602 (184,014.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 1,023,798.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (17,801.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 1,005,997.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 220,761.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction (3,838.00) Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 216,923.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 234,007.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 234,007.00

Net Revenues $1,272,913.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 198,499.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 33,910.20 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 177,311.14 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 58,973.66 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 55,883.48 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 5,286.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 529,863.48           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $743,049.52

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

97



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 21,209.17  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (1,401.75)   

District: Chaffey

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 21,806,997.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 53,849.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 972,371.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 22,833,217.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA (3,787.00) Sch G / Col B

  County (7,992,340.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 481,648.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (7,514,479.00)

Small School Prot (56,096.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(7,570,575.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $15,262,642.00 6500

State - AB602 9,758,186.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 4,528,072.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (13,693.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 4,514,379.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 976,384.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction (2,953.00) Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 973,431.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 1,166,962.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,166,962.00

Net Revenues $16,412,958.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,054,355.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 148,182.08 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 3,905,905.81 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 93,407.81 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 1,121,031.38 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 27,644.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 6,350,526.07        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $10,062,431.93

OTHER:

State Special School 23,188.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

98



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 23,836.85  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (2,536.27)   

District: Chino

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 24,508,744.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 1,156,944.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 25,665,688.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (6,433,030.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 435,765.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (5,997,265.00)

Small School Prot (63,047.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(6,060,312.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $19,605,376.00 6500

State - AB602 13,619,801.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 4,923,849.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (30,126.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 4,893,723.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 1,061,726.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction (6,496.00) Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 1,055,230.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 1,380,855.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,380,855.00

Net Revenues $20,949,609.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,188,290.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 229,357.04 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,055,164.68 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 70,909.84 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (80,108.61) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 911,207.38 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 27,382.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 3,402,202.33        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $17,547,406.67

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

99



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 2,166.07  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (160.93)    

District: Cucamonga

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 2,227,125.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 96,026.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 2,323,151.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA (1,894.00) Sch G / Col B

  County (1,666,144.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 38,232.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,629,806.00)

Small School Prot (5,729.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,635,535.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $687,616.00 6500

State - AB602 116,289.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 469,985.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 469,985.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 101,342.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 101,342.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 127,278.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 127,278.00

Net Revenues $814,894.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 107,965.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 7,852.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 57,476.66 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 29,873.94 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 30,046.33 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 2,386.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 235,599.92           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $579,294.08

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

100



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 12,508.12   

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (1,100.15)   

District: Etiwanda

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 12,860,688.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 9,298.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 554,511.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 13,424,497.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,550,684.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 200,931.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,349,753.00)

Small School Prot (33,083.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,382,836.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $12,041,661.00 6500

State - AB602 9,153,284.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,376,035.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (30,125.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,345,910.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 512,342.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction (6,496.00) Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 505,846.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 775,344.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 775,344.00

Net Revenues $12,780,384.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 657,693.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 116,187.86 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 355,906.89 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 6,951.04 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (50,107.07) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 985.09 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 12,814.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 1,100,430.81         

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $11,679,953.19

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

101



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 2,481.01  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 30.01        

District: Mountain View

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 2,550,943.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 109,988.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 2,660,931.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,993,264.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 30,194.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,963,070.00)

Small School Prot (6,562.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,969,632.00)

Adjusted Apportionment ($308,701.00) 6500

State - AB602 (926,803.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 508,463.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 508,463.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 109,639.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 109,639.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 145,802.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 145,802.00

Net Revenues ($162,899.00)

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 123,678.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 33,600.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,872.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 36,476.61 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 11,687.17 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 350,691.74 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 2,554.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 560,559.52           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers ($723,458.52)

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

102



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 75.79        

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (26.09)       

District: Mt Baldy

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 77,926.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 3,360.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 81,286.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (52,512.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 0.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (52,512.00)

Small School Prot 214,825.00 Sch I / Col K 6500

162,313.00

Adjusted Apportionment $243,599.00 6500

State - AB602 225,223.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 15,116.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 15,116.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 3,260.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 3,260.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 4,454.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 4,454.00

Net Revenues $248,053.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 3,778.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 3,780.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 13,744.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 84.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 21,386.00             

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $226,667.00

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

103



2021/22 #10 Annual R3 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2021/22 ADA: 9,431.67     

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (684.17)       

District: Upland

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 9,697,522.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 24,278.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 461,415.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 10,183,215.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,636,726.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 194,346.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,442,380.00)

Small School Prot (24,946.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,467,326.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $8,715,889.00 6500

State - AB602 6,163,292.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,099,816.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (20,540.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,079,276.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 452,781.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction (4,429.00) Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 448,352.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 549,826.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 549,826.00

Net Revenues $9,240,746.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 469,788.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 211,144.06 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,278,423.20 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 27,113.69 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 4,791.29 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 214,749.42 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 12,477.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 2,218,486.66        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $7,022,259.34

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/3/24

C-12a

104



Schedule B

2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

Executive Summary

Total Apportionment - SELPA Wide

2022-23 Budget
A B C D E F G H I J (Col D thru I) K

Name 21/22 Annual R3 AB602 

Cert 6/19/24

22/23 Annual R1 AB602 

Cert 6/19/24

Growth/Decline AB602 Base, Local Asst, & 

Prop Tax

Low Incidence Prog Spec/Reg Svcs  Personnel Development NPS/LCI Extraordinary 

Cost Pool (Annual only)

Out of Home Care Total Apportionment Per ADA Amount

Rate

West End Student Services 470.37 471.82 1.45 $520,158.00 1,381,146.00 $0.00 $21,014.00 $1,922,318.00 $4,074.26

Alta Loma 5,133.42 5,200.43 67.01 5,733,216.00 0.00 231,619.00 5,964,835.00 1,146.99 

Central 3,985.34 3,961.51 (23.83) 4,367,369.00 28,557.00 176,439.00 4,572,365.00 1,154.20 

Chaffey Joint 21,209.17 21,200.90 (8.27) 23,372,942.00 183,012.00 962,891.00 24,518,845.00 1,156.50 

Chino Valley 23,836.85 23,948.36 111.51 26,401,880.00 0.00 1,163,160.00 27,565,040.00 1,151.02 

Cucamonga 2,166.07 2,208.89 42.82 2,435,192.00 23,560.00 98,380.00 2,557,132.00 1,157.65 

Etiwanda 12,508.12 12,632.19 124.07 13,926,364.00 27,978.00 562,618.00 14,516,960.00 1,149.20 

Mountain View 2,481.01 2,801.69 320.68 3,088,724.00 0.00 124,783.00 3,213,507.00 1,146.99 

Mt Baldy 75.79 87.96 12.17 96,972.00 0.00 3,918.00 100,890.00 1,147.00 

Upland 9,431.67 9,314.59 (117.08) 10,268,874.00 88,116.00 495,459.00 10,852,449.00 1,165.10 

SELPA 442,270.00 1,623,820.00 11,372.00 87,806.00 - 2,165,268.00

SELPA Wide Totals 81,297.81 81,828.34 530.53 $90,211,691.00 $1,823,416.00 $1,623,820.00 $11,372.00 439,029.00$    $3,840,281.00 $97,949,609.00

Source Sched C Col K Sched C Col N Sched C Col M Sched Ca Col B Sched H3 Col L Sched D I-2 Sched Q Col B Sched S Col C Sched K Col E Sched D Cell C75

Sched D I-3

Adjusted Apportionment - SELPA Wide
L M N O (Col L thru N) P Q R S (Col P thru R)

Name Total Apportionment 

Before Adjustments

Fee for Service 

Adjustment

Small School Protection Adjusted Apportionment County Property Tax Local Assistance  

(DO NOT USE FOR 

BUDGET)

AB602 Apportionment Adjusted Apportionment

Resource 0000/6500 3310/3311 6500

West End Student Services $1,922,318.00 $30,019,142.00 ($1,382.00) $31,940,078.00 5,689,062.00$    - $26,251,016.00 31,940,078.00$     

Alta Loma 5,964,835.00 (1,800,701.00) (15,228.00) 4,148,906.00 942,262.00 3,206,644.00 4,148,906.00

Central 4,572,365.00 (4,025,449.00) (11,600.00) 535,316.00 1,065,741.00 (530,425.00) 535,316.00

Chaffey Joint 24,518,845.00 (8,785,966.00) (62,080.00) 15,670,799.00 5,008,249.00 10,662,550.00 15,670,799.00

Chino Valley 27,565,040.00 (6,703,953.00) (70,124.00) 20,790,963.00 5,005,310.00 15,785,653.00 20,790,963.00

Cucamonga 2,557,132.00 (1,773,795.00) (6,468.00) 776,869.00 493,916.00 282,953.00 776,869.00

Etiwanda 14,516,960.00 (1,288,085.00) (36,989.00) 13,191,886.00 2,275,541.00 10,916,345.00 13,191,886.00

Mountain View 3,213,507.00 (3,467,638.00) (8,204.00) (262,335.00) 549,776.00 (812,111.00) (262,335.00)

Mt Baldy 100,890.00 (73,101.00) 239,350.00 267,139.00 16,170.00 250,969.00 267,139.00

Upland 10,852,449.00 (2,100,454.00) (27,275.00) 8,724,720.00 2,219,682.00 6,505,038.00 8,724,720.00

SELPA 2,165,268.00 0.00 2,165,268.00 0.00 2,165,268.00 2,165,268.00

SELPA Wide Totals $97,949,609.00 $0.00 $0.00 $97,949,609.00 $5,689,062.00 $17,576,647.00 $74,683,900.00 97,949,609.00$     

Source Col J Sched G Col F Sched I Col K Sched D Cell C75 Sched D C-3 Sched P1 & P2 Col F Sched D Cell C75

Budget from Sched P1 & P2 Col K

Certified: 6/19/24

Updated: 7/2/24

I:\AB602\22-23 AB602\2022-23 #8 Annual R1 AB602 Funding Model-Certified 6-19-24

B)Detail

Printed: 8/21/2024 at 11:27 AM Page 1 of 12

C-12b

105



Schedule B

Summary of All Inter SELPA Transfers/Expenditures
T U V W X Y Z (Col T thru Y)

Name NPS/Legal

Joint Risk Fund 

Contribution Facilities SEIS Fees SBCSS Transportation State Special Schools Total Exp/Transfer

ResourceObject

West End Student Services $0.00 ($24,619.00) $271,879.18 ($6,414.00) $240,846.18

Alta Loma (334,781.93) (276,544.00) 52,371.80 (5,907.00) (34,446.23) 0.00 (599,307.37)

Central (255,778.62) (211,133.00) (138,884.73) (6,202.00) (15,582.81) 0.00 (627,581.16)

Chaffey Joint (4,233,468.96) (1,127,796.00) (93,127.97) (29,875.00) (947,271.01) 15,313.00 (6,416,225.93)

Chino Valley (1,637,921.79) (1,274,597.00) 144.18 (29,921.00) (767,658.59) 0.00 (3,709,954.20)

Cucamonga (182,152.87) (114,704.00) (56,633.21) (2,557.00) (15,582.81) 0.00 (371,629.89)

Etiwanda (904,264.71) (673,059.00) 42,880.06 (15,598.00) 0.00 0.00 (1,550,041.65)

Mountain View (78,238.44) (149,423.00) (64,966.51) (3,258.00) (317,397.32) 0.00 (613,283.27)

Mt Baldy (7,560.00) (4,687.00) 0.00 (166.00) 0.00 0.00 (12,413.00)

Upland (1,758,027.90) (496,975.00) (13,662.81) (13,586.00) (232,922.05) 0.00 (2,515,173.75)

SELPA 9,392,195.21 4,353,537.00 113,484.00 (15,313.00) 13,843,903.21

SELPA Wide Totals $0.00 $0.00 ($0.00) $0.00 ($2,330,860.82) $0.00 ($2,330,860.82)

Source Sched J Col M Sched F Col B Sched L Col S+W-G Sched N Col C Sched M Col D+N Sched E Col C

I:\AB602\22-23 AB602\2022-23 #8 Annual R1 AB602 Funding Model-Certified 6-19-24

B)Detail

Printed: 8/21/2024 at 11:27 AM Page 2 of 12

C-12b

106



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 471.82     

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 1.45          

District: West End Student Services

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code Mgmt

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 520,158.00 Sch Ca / Col B

Out of Home Care 21,014.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 541,172.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County 30,019,142.00 Sch G / Col F 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 1,381,146.00 Sch B / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service 31,400,288.00

Small School Prot (1,382.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

31,398,906.00

Adjusted Apportionment $31,940,078.00 6500

Property Taxes 5,689,062.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col P 6500 5XXX 0000 8097 2800

State - AB602 26,251,016.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8311/8319 2800

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue

Mental Health 145,158.42 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590 2800

SBCSS Leased Facilities 271,879.18 Sch L / Col G 6500 5XXX 0000 8710 2821/2822/2827

Fedral Preschool/First Class 286,380.00 Sch O / Col A 3315 5730 0000 8182 0464

Preschool Local Entitlement/First Class 0.00 Sch O / Col B 3320 5730 0000 8182 0462

State Infant Funding/Early Start Program 864,066.00 Sch O / Col H 6510 5710 0000 8311 2850

Part C Federal Infant Funding 51,862.00 Sch O / Col D 3385 5710 0000 8182 0487

Infant Discretionary 89,117.00 Sch O / Col F 6515 5710 0000 8590 0468

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,708,462.60

Net Revenues $33,648,540.60

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 24,619.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5001 2100 5748 2800

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SEIS Fees 6,414.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5740 2800

Sub-Total 31,033.00                  

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $33,617,507.60

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

107



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 5,200.43  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 67.01        

District: Alta Loma

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 5,733,216.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 231,619.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 5,964,835.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,888,222.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 87,521.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,800,701.00)

Small School Prot (15,228.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,815,929.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $4,148,906.00 6500

State - AB602 3,206,644.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 942,262.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (18,983.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 923,279.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 252,402.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 252,402.00

Net Revenues $4,382,325.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 276,544.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 105,109.99 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 229,671.94 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 22,558.75 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (74,930.55) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 34,446.23 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 5,907.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 599,307.37           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $3,783,017.63

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

108



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 3,961.51  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (23.83)       

District: Central

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 4,367,369.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 28,557.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 176,439.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 4,572,365.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (4,057,506.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 32,057.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (4,025,449.00)

Small School Prot (11,600.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(4,037,049.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $535,316.00 6500

State - AB602 (530,425.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 1,065,741.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (24,824.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 1,040,917.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 188,614.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 188,614.00

Net Revenues $699,106.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 211,133.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 40,323.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 215,455.62 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 64,586.71 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 74,298.02 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 15,582.81 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 6,202.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 627,581.16           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $71,524.84

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

109



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 21,200.90  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (8.27)           

District: Chaffey

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 23,372,942.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 183,012.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 962,891.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 24,518,845.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (9,322,668.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 536,702.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (8,785,966.00)

Small School Prot (62,080.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(8,848,046.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $15,670,799.00 6500

State - AB602 10,662,550.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 5,008,249.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (2,920.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 5,005,329.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 1,004,922.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,004,922.00

Net Revenues $16,672,801.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,127,796.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 253,041.15 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 3,980,427.81 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 93,127.97 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 947,271.01 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 29,875.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 6,431,538.93        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $10,241,262.07

OTHER:

State Special School 15,313.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

110



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 23,948.36  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 111.51        

District: Chino

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 26,401,880.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 1,163,160.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 27,565,040.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (7,026,940.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 322,987.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (6,703,953.00)

Small School Prot (70,124.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(6,774,077.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $20,790,963.00 6500

State - AB602 15,785,653.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 5,005,310.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (39,426.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 4,965,884.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 1,179,018.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,179,018.00

Net Revenues $21,930,555.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,274,597.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 382,103.91 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,255,817.88 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 83,982.39 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (84,126.57) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 767,658.59 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 29,921.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 3,709,954.20        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $18,220,600.80

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

111



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 2,208.89  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 42.82        

District: Cucamonga

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 2,435,192.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 23,560.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 98,380.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 2,557,132.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,811,894.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 38,099.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,773,795.00)

Small School Prot (6,468.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,780,263.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $776,869.00 6500

State - AB602 282,953.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 493,916.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 493,916.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 100,014.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 100,014.00

Net Revenues $876,883.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 114,704.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 3,500.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 178,652.87 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 27,196.21 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 29,437.00 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 15,582.81 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 2,557.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 371,629.89           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $505,253.11

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

112



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 12,632.19   

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 124.07        

District: Etiwanda

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 13,926,364.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 27,978.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 562,618.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 14,516,960.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,429,704.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 141,619.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (1,288,085.00)

Small School Prot (36,989.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,325,074.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $13,191,886.00 6500

State - AB602 10,916,345.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,275,541.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (46,727.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,228,814.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 629,150.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 629,150.00

Net Revenues $13,774,309.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 673,059.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 95,217.95 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 809,046.76 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 6,311.36 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (49,191.42) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 15,598.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 1,550,041.65         

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $12,224,267.35

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

113



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 2,801.69  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 320.68      

District: Mountain View

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 3,088,724.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 124,783.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 3,213,507.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (3,512,245.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 44,607.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (3,467,638.00)

Small School Prot (8,204.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(3,475,842.00)

Adjusted Apportionment ($262,335.00) 6500

State - AB602 (812,111.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 549,776.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 549,776.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 138,563.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 138,563.00

Net Revenues ($123,772.00)

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 149,423.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 57,041.92 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 21,196.52 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 43,265.84 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 21,700.67 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 317,397.32 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 3,258.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 613,283.27           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers ($737,055.27)

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

114



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 87.96        

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 12.17        

District: Mt Baldy

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 96,972.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 3,918.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 100,890.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (73,101.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 0.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (73,101.00)

Small School Prot 239,350.00 Sch I / Col K 6500

166,249.00

Adjusted Apportionment $267,139.00 6500

State - AB602 250,969.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 16,170.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 16,170.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 4,746.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 4,746.00

Net Revenues $271,885.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 4,687.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 7,560.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 166.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 12,413.00             

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $259,472.00

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

115



2022/23 #8 Annual R1 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2022/23 ADA: 9,314.59     

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (117.08)       

District: Upland

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 10,268,874.00 Sch Ca / Col B

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 88,116.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 495,459.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 10,852,449.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,278,008.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 177,554.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,100,454.00)

Small School Prot (27,275.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,127,729.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $8,724,720.00 6500

State - AB602 6,505,038.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,219,682.00 Sch P1 / Col F

Private School deduction (10,222.00) Sch P1 / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,209,460.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P1 / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 Sch P2 / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P2 / Col H

Federal - 3305 ARP Local Assistance 0.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P2 / Col K 3305 5XXX 0000 8182

Other Grants/Sources

Mental Health 453,506.00 Sch R / Col N 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 453,506.00

Net Revenues $9,168,004.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 496,975.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 229,131.99 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,528,895.91 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 23,977.92 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (10,315.11) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 232,922.05 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 13,586.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 2,515,173.75        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $6,652,830.25

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 7/2/24

C-12b

116



Schedule B

2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

Executive Summary

Total Apportionment - SELPA Wide

2023-24 Budget
A B C D E F G H I J (Col D thru I) K

Name 22/23 Annual R1 AB602 

6/19/24

23/24 P-2 AB602 6/19/24 Growth/Decline AB602 Base, Local Asst, & 

Prop Tax

Low Incidence Prog Spec/Reg Svcs  Personnel Development NPS/LCI Extraordinary 

Cost Pool (Annual only)

Out of Home Care Total Apportionment Per ADA Amount

Rate

West End Student Services 471.82 474.21 2.39 $531,419.00 1,369,973.00 $0.00 $20,543.00 $1,921,935.00 $4,052.92

Alta Loma 5,200.43 5,299.30 98.87 5,938,605.00 0.00 229,566.00 6,168,171.00 1,163.96 

Central 3,961.51 4,055.47 93.96 4,544,720.00 0.00 175,683.00 4,720,403.00 1,163.96 

Chaffey Joint 21,200.90 20,822.13 (378.77) 23,677,563.00 0.00 931,023.00 24,608,586.00 1,181.85 

Chino Valley 23,948.36 24,090.69 142.33 26,996,979.00 0.00 1,207,673.00 28,204,652.00 1,170.77 

Cucamonga 2,208.89 2,215.47 6.58 2,482,743.00 0.00 95,974.00 2,578,717.00 1,163.96 

Etiwanda 12,632.19 12,941.09 308.90 14,502,297.00 0.00 560,609.00 15,062,906.00 1,163.96 

Mountain View 2,801.69 2,973.31 171.62 3,332,009.00 0.00 128,804.00 3,460,813.00 1,163.96 

Mt Baldy 87.96 93.40 5.44 104,668.00 0.00 4,046.00 108,714.00 1,163.96 

Upland 9,314.59 9,195.88 (118.71) 10,514,508.00 0.00 445,141.00 10,959,649.00 1,191.80 

SELPA 520,244.00 1,757,298.00 11,629.00 0.00 - 2,289,171.00

SELPA Wide Totals 81,828.34 82,160.95 332.61 $92,625,511.00 $1,890,217.00 $1,757,298.00 $11,629.00 -$    $3,799,062.00 $100,083,717.00

Source Sched C Col K Sched C Col P Sched Ca Col D Sched H3 Col L Sched D I-2 Sched Q Col B Sched S Col C Sched K Col E Sched D Cell C75

Sched D I-3

Adjusted Apportionment - SELPA Wide
L M N O (Col L thru N) P Q R S (Col P thru R)

Name Total Apportionment 

Before Adjustments

Fee for Service 

Adjustment

Small School Protection Adjusted Apportionment County Property Tax Local Assistance  

(DO NOT USE FOR 

BUDGET)

AB602 Apportionment Adjusted Apportionment

Resource 0000/6500 3310/3311 6500

West End Student Services $1,921,935.00 $34,170,414.00 ($1,292.00) $36,091,057.00 5,918,168.00$    - $30,172,889.00 36,091,057.00$     

Alta Loma 6,168,171.00 (2,261,762.00) (14,437.00) 3,891,972.00 1,066,207.00 2,825,765.00 3,891,972.00

Central 4,720,403.00 (4,623,207.00) (11,048.00) 86,148.00 1,248,090.00 (1,161,942.00) 86,148.00

Chaffey Joint 24,608,586.00 (9,630,540.00) (56,728.00) 14,921,318.00 5,294,973.00 9,626,345.00 14,921,318.00

Chino Valley 28,204,652.00 (8,143,974.00) (65,630.00) 19,995,048.00 5,307,516.00 14,687,532.00 19,995,048.00

Cucamonga 2,578,717.00 (2,127,743.00) (6,036.00) 444,938.00 501,745.00 (56,807.00) 444,938.00

Etiwanda 15,062,906.00 (882,021.00) (35,256.00) 14,145,629.00 2,684,333.00 11,461,296.00 14,145,629.00

Mountain View 3,460,813.00 (3,822,365.00) (8,100.00) (369,652.00) 661,676.00 (1,031,328.00) (369,652.00)

Mt Baldy 108,714.00 (35,636.00) 223,580.00 296,658.00 28,223.00 268,435.00 296,658.00

Upland 10,959,649.00 (2,643,166.00) (25,053.00) 8,291,430.00 2,381,719.00 5,909,711.00 8,291,430.00

SELPA 2,289,171.00 0.00 2,289,171.00 0.00 2,289,171.00 2,289,171.00

SELPA Wide Totals $100,083,717.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,083,717.00 $5,918,168.00 $19,174,482.00 $74,991,067.00 100,083,717.00$       

Source Col J Sched G Col F Sched I Col K Sched D Cell C75 Sched D C-3 Sched P Col F Sched D Cell C75

Budget from Sched P1 & P2 Col K

Certified: 6/19/24

Updated: 9/10/24

I:\AB602\23-24 AB602\2023-24 #8 P-2 AB602 Funding Model-Certified 6-19-24

B)Detail

Printed: 9/10/2024 at 7:47 AM Page 1 of 12

C-12c

117



Schedule B

Summary of All Inter SELPA Transfers/Expenditures
T U V W X Y Z (Col T thru Y)

Name NPS/Legal

Joint Risk Fund 

Contribution Facilities SEIS Fees SBCSS Transportation State Special Schools Total Exp/Transfer

ResourceObject

West End Student Services ($4,200.00) ($24,057.00) $309,331.69 ($6,370.00) $274,704.69

Alta Loma (371,216.10) (268,643.00) 60,902.64 (6,181.00) (64,079.74) 0.00 (649,217.19)

Central (331,714.04) (205,734.00) (156,421.43) (6,406.00) (23,660.21) 0.00 (723,935.68)

Chaffey Joint (4,755,086.92) (1,056,307.00) (85,771.75) (28,753.00) (1,018,374.81) 7,531.00 (6,936,762.48)

Chino Valley (1,892,619.96) (1,222,121.00) (18,530.82) (29,661.00) (990,771.21) 0.00 (4,153,703.99)

Cucamonga (238,656.60) (112,391.00) (73,614.28) (2,708.00) (9,858.42) 0.00 (437,228.31)

Etiwanda (951,905.78) (656,501.00) 70,208.91 (16,284.00) (4,929.21) 0.00 (1,559,411.09)

Mountain View (54,366.09) (150,835.00) (86,648.40) (3,158.00) (439,685.53) 0.00 (734,693.02)

Mt Baldy (7,560.00) (4,738.00) 0.00 (162.00) 0.00 0.00 (12,460.00)

Upland (1,735,663.27) (466,507.00) (19,456.55) (13,801.00) (324,342.04) 0.00 (2,559,769.86)

SELPA 10,342,988.76 4,167,834.00 113,484.00 (7,531.00) 14,616,775.76

SELPA Wide Totals $0.00 $0.00 ($0.00) $0.00 ($2,875,701.17) $0.00 ($2,875,701.17)

Source Sched J Col M Sched F Col B Sched L Col S+W-G Sched N Col C Sched M Col D+N Sched E Col C

I:\AB602\23-24 AB602\2023-24 #8 P-2 AB602 Funding Model-Certified 6-19-24

B)Detail

Printed: 9/10/2024 at 7:47 AM Page 2 of 12

C-12c

118



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 474.21      

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 2.39          

District: West End Student Services

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code Mgmt

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 531,419.00 Sch Ca / Col D

Out of Home Care 20,543.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 551,962.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County 34,170,414.00 Sch G / Col F 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 1,369,973.00 Sch B / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service 35,540,387.00

Small School Prot (1,292.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

35,539,095.00

Adjusted Apportionment $36,091,057.00 6500

Property Taxes 5,918,168.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col P 6500 5XXX 0000 8097 2800

State - AB602 30,172,889.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8311/8319 2800

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 5,895.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 37,985.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590 2800

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (25,874.31)          COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 18,005.69

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue

SBCSS Leased Facilities 309,331.69 Sch L / Col G 6500 5XXX 0000 8710 2821/2822/2827

Fedral Preschool/First Class 288,045.00 Sch O / Col A 3315 5730 0000 8182 0464

Preschool Local Entitlement/First Class 0.00 Sch O / Col B 3320 5730 0000 8182 0462

State Infant Funding/Early Start Program 919,889.00 Sch O / Col H 6510 5710 0000 8311 2850

Part C Federal Infant Funding 51,862.00 Sch O / Col D 3385 5710 0000 8182 0487

Infant Discretionary 72,654.00 Sch O / Col F 6515 5710 0000 8590 0468

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,641,781.69

Net Revenues $37,776,718.69

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 24,057.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5001 2100 5748 2800

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 4,200.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SEIS Fees 6,370.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5740 2800

Sub-Total 34,627.00                  

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $37,742,091.69

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

119



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 5,299.30  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 98.87        

District: Alta Loma

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 5,938,605.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 229,566.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 6,168,171.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,342,140.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 80,378.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,261,762.00)

Small School Prot (14,437.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,276,199.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $3,891,972.00 6500

State - AB602 2,825,765.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 1,066,207.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (17,167.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 1,049,040.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 66,289.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 424,487.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (289,251.33)      DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 201,524.67

Net Revenues $4,365,581.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 268,643.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 148,786.32 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 222,429.78 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 26,800.18 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (87,702.82) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 64,079.74 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 6,181.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 649,217.19           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $3,716,363.81

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

120



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 4,055.47  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 93.96        

District: Central

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 4,544,720.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 175,683.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 4,720,403.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (4,691,399.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 68,192.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (4,623,207.00)

Small School Prot (11,048.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(4,634,255.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $86,148.00 6500

State - AB602 (1,161,942.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 1,248,090.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (46,820.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 1,201,270.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 50,560.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 324,853.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (221,359.44)       DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 154,053.56

Net Revenues $414,741.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 205,734.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 17,251.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 314,463.04 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 71,186.09 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 85,235.34 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 23,660.21 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 6,406.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 723,935.68           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers ($309,194.68)

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

121



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 20,822.13  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (378.77)      

District: Chaffey

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 23,677,563.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 931,023.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 24,608,586.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (10,104,301.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 473,761.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (9,630,540.00)

Small School Prot (56,728.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(9,687,268.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $14,921,318.00 6500

State - AB602 9,626,345.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 5,294,973.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (35,896.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 5,259,077.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 270,072.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 1,667,903.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (1,136,532.90)    DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 801,442.10

Net Revenues $16,823,397.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,056,307.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 183,538.72 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 4,571,548.20 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 85,771.75 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 1,018,374.81 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 28,753.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 6,944,293.48        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $9,879,103.52

OTHER:

State Special School 7,531.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

122



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 24,090.69  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 142.33        

District: Chino

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 26,996,979.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 1,207,673.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 28,204,652.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (8,517,144.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 373,170.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (8,143,974.00)

Small School Prot (65,630.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(8,209,604.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $19,995,048.00 6500

State - AB602 14,687,532.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 5,307,516.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (37,457.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 5,270,059.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 305,226.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 1,929,723.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (1,314,940.48)     DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 920,008.52

Net Revenues $22,192,540.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,222,121.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 242,362.95 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,650,257.01 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 92,072.45 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (73,541.63) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 990,771.21 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 29,661.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 4,153,703.99        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $18,038,836.01

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

123



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 2,215.47  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 6.58          

District: Cucamonga

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 2,482,743.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 95,974.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 2,578,717.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,143,677.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 15,934.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,127,743.00)

Small School Prot (6,036.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,133,779.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $444,938.00 6500

State - AB602 (56,807.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 501,745.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 501,745.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 27,496.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 177,465.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (120,926.85)       DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 84,034.15

Net Revenues $649,899.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 112,391.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 19,830.73 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 218,825.87 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 28,985.08 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 44,629.20 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 9,858.42 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 2,708.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 437,228.31           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $212,670.69

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

124



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 12,941.09   

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 308.90        

District: Etiwanda

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 14,502,297.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 560,609.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 15,062,906.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,061,069.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 179,048.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (882,021.00)

Small School Prot (35,256.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(917,277.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $14,145,629.00 6500

State - AB602 11,461,296.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,684,333.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (53,063.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,631,270.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 161,177.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 1,036,613.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (706,362.64)           DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 491,427.36

Net Revenues $15,290,356.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 656,501.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 166,673.77 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 785,232.01 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 10,949.73 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (81,158.64) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 4,929.21 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 16,284.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 1,559,411.09         

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $13,730,944.91

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

125



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 2,973.31  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 171.62      

District: Mountain View

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 3,332,009.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 128,804.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 3,460,813.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (3,870,634.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 48,269.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (3,822,365.00)

Small School Prot (8,100.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(3,830,465.00)

Adjusted Apportionment ($369,652.00) 6500

State - AB602 (1,031,328.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 661,676.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 661,676.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 35,782.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 238,169.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (162,291.98)     DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 111,659.02

Net Revenues ($95,701.00)

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 150,835.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 22,990.58 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 31,375.51 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 54,356.60 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 32,291.80 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 439,685.53 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 3,158.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 734,693.02           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers ($830,394.02)

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

126



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 93.40        

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 5.44          

District: Mt Baldy

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 104,668.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 4,046.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 108,714.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (35,636.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 0.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (35,636.00)

Small School Prot 223,580.00 Sch I / Col K 6500

187,944.00

Adjusted Apportionment $296,658.00 6500

State - AB602 268,435.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 28,223.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 28,223.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 1,122.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 7,482.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (3,467.88)          DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 5,136.12

Net Revenues $305,262.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 4,738.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 7,560.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 162.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 12,460.00             

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $292,802.00

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

127



2023/24 #8 P-2 AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2023/24 ADA: 9,195.88     

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (118.71)       

District: Upland

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 10,514,508.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 445,141.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 10,959,649.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,774,387.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 131,221.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,643,166.00)

Small School Prot (25,053.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,668,219.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $8,291,430.00 6500

State - AB602 5,909,711.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,381,719.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (34,335.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,347,384.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 119,010.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 736,612.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (501,938.10)        DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 353,683.90

Net Revenues $9,112,717.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 466,507.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 215,864.93 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,519,798.34 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 24,981.56 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (5,525.01) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 324,342.04 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 13,801.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 2,559,769.86        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $6,552,947.14

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: 6/19/24
Updated: 9/10/24

C-12c

128



PY CARRYOVER 30,199.25 

CY ALLOCATION 1,814,050.00 

TOTAL 1,844,249.25 

LESS:  PACIFIC HEARING EXPENSE (147,192.00) 

ADJ FOR EVSELPA/OMSD BILLBACK OF 1/2 DAY AUDIO TESTINGS 1,100.00 

INDIRECT COST (7.56%) (1,890.00) 

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR DISTRICTS 1,696,267.25 

Col A Col B Col C Col D Col E Col F

DISTRICT PROJECTED PUPIL COUNT TOTAL LOW INCIDENCE LOW INCIDENCE LOW INCIDENCE

LOW INCIDENCE RATIO ALLOCATION EXPENDITURES/ OFFSET BALANCE

PUPIL COUNT Based on 23/24 Col C - Col D - Col E

ALTA LOMA 30 6.10% 103,430.93 0.00 74,909.00 28,521.93

CENTRAL 23 4.67% 79,297.05 0.00 65,815.00 13,482.05

CHAFFEY  169 34.35% 582,660.90 0.00 481,297.00 101,363.90

CHINO VALLEY 133 27.03% 458,543.79 0.00 368,891.00 89,652.79

CUCAMONGA 12 2.44% 41,372.37 0.00 16,469.00 24,903.37

ETIWANDA 62 12.60% 213,757.26 0.00 164,797.00 48,960.26

MOUNTAIN VIEW 20 4.07% 68,953.95 0.00 51,097.00 17,856.95

MT. BALDY - 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

UPLAND UNIFIED 43 8.74% 148,251.00 2,417.15 99,107.00 46,726.85

PACIFIC HEARING EXPENSE 146,092.00 146,092.00 0.00 0.00

INDIRECT COST 1,890.00 1,890.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 492 100.00% 1,844,249.25 150,399.15 1,322,382.00 371,468.10 

WEST END SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA

2024/25 Low Incidence

9/10/2024

C-13

129



2024/25 Projected AB602 Funding Model 

Background: 
The 2024/25 Projected AB602 Funding Model was based on the following assumptions:  

• Based on School Services 2024/25 template as of 2023/24 P-2

• Base rate of $896.90/ADA

• COLA of 1.07%

• Projected P-2 ADA provided by districts in August 2024

• FFS count projections based on prior year FFS counts and adjusted for district
program take backs (or additions)

• Low Incidence Offset based on prior year

• Local Assistance grant award based on prior year

• Joint Risk Fund contribution rate of $49.92

• Joint Risk Fund billback based on prior year expense increased by 10%

• Mental Health funding model based on prior year expense increased by 10%

• SBCSS Leased Facilities cost based on April 2024 projection (S. Hurley)

• SBCSS Transportation excess costs based on March 2024 projection (A. Nelson)

Fiscal Impact: 
West End SELPA District revenue and expenditure projections are reflected in the 
attached 2024/25 #2 Projected AB602 Funding Model and are summarized below. 

The SELPA-wide apportionment is projected to be $75,189,888 which is over $200K 
lower than the previous projection from May 2024.  The decrease is a result of changes 
in funded ADA, property tax deduction, and estimated Low Incidence pupil counts/rates. 

Recommendation: 
N/A – for information only 

District

 2024/25 #2 

Projected 

AB602 

West End Student Services 30,608,624 

Alta Loma 2,981,450 

Central (1,051,519) 

Chaffey 9,800,211 

Chino Valley 14,382,436 

Cucamonga (184,857) 

Etiwanda 11,365,808 

Mountain View (1,019,288) 

Mt Baldy 280,675 

Upland 5,746,649 

SELPA 2,279,699 

TOTAL 75,189,888 

C-14

130



Schedule B

2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

Executive Summary

Total Apportionment - SELPA Wide

2024-25 Budget
A B C D E F G H I J (Col D thru I) K

Name 23/24 P-2 AB602 6/19/24 24/25 Projected ADA per 

Districts - Aug 2024

Growth/Decline AB602 Base, Local Asst, & 

Prop Tax

Low Incidence Prog Spec/Reg Svcs  Personnel Development NPS/LCI Extraordinary 

Cost Pool (Annual only)

Out of Home Care Total Apportionment Per ADA Amount

Rate

West End Student Services 474.21 474.21 0.00 $536,919.00 1,322,382.00 $0.00 $17,351.00 $1,876,652.00 $3,957.43

Alta Loma 5,299.30 5,204.76 (94.54) 5,977,822.00 0.00 190,433.00 6,168,255.00 1,185.12 

Central 4,055.47 3,974.65 (80.82) 4,572,739.00 0.00 145,425.00 4,718,164.00 1,187.06 

Chaffey Joint 20,822.13 20,212.31 (609.82) 23,771,821.00 0.00 773,031.00 24,544,852.00 1,214.35 

Chino Valley 24,090.69 23,981.00 (109.69) 27,250,591.00 0.00 1,062,176.00 28,312,767.00 1,180.63 

Cucamonga 2,215.47 2,187.26 (28.21) 2,501,801.00 0.00 80,028.00 2,581,829.00 1,180.39 

Etiwanda 12,941.09 12,970.37 29.28 14,685,552.00 0.00 474,563.00 15,160,115.00 1,168.83 

Mountain View 2,973.31 3,089.00 115.69 3,497,485.00 0.00 113,021.00 3,610,506.00 1,168.83 

Mt Baldy 93.40 93.40 0.00 105,751.00 0.00 3,417.00 109,168.00 1,168.82 

Upland 9,195.88 9,238.27 42.39 10,528,376.00 0.00 391,742.00 10,920,118.00 1,182.05 

SELPA 491,668.00 1,776,101.00 11,930.00 0.00 - 2,279,699.00

SELPA Wide Totals 82,160.95 81,425.23 (735.72) $93,428,857.00 $1,814,050.00 $1,776,101.00 $11,930.00 -$    $3,251,187.00 $100,282,125.00

Source Sched C Col K Sched C Col P Sched Ca Col D Sched H3 Col L Sched D I-2 Sched Q Col B Sched S Col C Sched K Col E Sched D Cell C75

Sched D I-3

Adjusted Apportionment - SELPA Wide
L M N O (Col L thru N) P Q R S (Col P thru R)

Name Total Apportionment 

Before Adjustments

Fee for Service 

Adjustment

Small School Protection Adjusted Apportionment County Property Tax Local Assistance  

(DO NOT USE FOR 

BUDGET)

AB602 Apportionment Adjusted Apportionment

Resource 0000/6500 3310/3311 6500

West End Student Services $1,876,652.00 $34,651,118.00 ($1,391.00) $36,526,379.00 5,917,754.74$    - $30,608,624.26 36,526,379.00$     

Alta Loma 6,168,255.00 (2,055,838.00) (15,266.00) 4,097,151.00 1,115,701.00 2,981,450.00 4,097,151.00

Central 4,718,164.00 (4,483,593.00) (11,658.00) 222,913.00 1,274,432.00 (1,051,519.00) 222,913.00

Chaffey Joint 24,544,852.00 (9,605,941.00) (59,286.00) 14,879,625.00 5,079,414.00 9,800,211.00 14,879,625.00

Chino Valley 28,312,767.00 (8,585,215.00) (70,340.00) 19,657,212.00 5,274,776.00 14,382,436.00 19,657,212.00

Cucamonga 2,581,829.00 (2,226,077.00) (6,416.00) 349,336.00 534,193.00 (184,857.00) 349,336.00

Etiwanda 15,160,115.00 (973,880.00) (38,044.00) 14,148,191.00 2,782,383.00 11,365,808.00 14,148,191.00

Mountain View 3,610,506.00 (3,947,651.00) (9,060.00) (346,205.00) 673,083.00 (1,019,288.00) (346,205.00)

Mt Baldy 109,168.00 (39,578.00) 238,558.00 308,148.00 27,473.00 280,675.00 308,148.00

Upland 10,920,118.00 (2,733,345.00) (27,097.00) 8,159,676.00 2,413,027.00 5,746,649.00 8,159,676.00

SELPA 2,279,699.00 0.00 2,279,699.00 0.00 2,279,699.00 2,279,699.00

SELPA Wide Totals $100,282,125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,282,125.00 $5,917,754.74 $19,174,482.00 $75,189,888.26 100,282,125.00$       

Source Col J Sched G Col F Sched I Col K Sched D Cell C75 Sched D C-3 Sched P Col F Sched D Cell C75

Budget from Sched P1 & P2 Col K

Certified: N/A

Updated: 8/28/24

I:\AB602\24-25 AB602\2024-25 #2 Projected AB602 Funding Model-Sep 2024

B)Detail

Printed: 8/28/2024 at 10:34 AM Page 1 of 12

C-14

131



Schedule B

Summary of All Inter SELPA Transfers/Expenditures
T U V W X Y Z (Col T thru Y)

Name NPS/Legal

Joint Risk Fund 

Contribution Facilities SEIS Fees SBCSS Transportation State Special Schools Total Exp/Transfer

ResourceObject

West End Student Services ($4,620.00) ($23,673.00) $319,740.00 ($6,370.00) $285,077.00

Alta Loma (407,513.66) (259,822.00) 57,887.82 (6,181.00) (59,499.17) 0.00 (675,128.01)

Central (363,733.48) (198,415.00) (163,371.34) (6,406.00) (25,499.65) 0.00 (757,425.47)

Chaffey Joint (5,206,975.54) (1,008,999.00) (85,771.75) (28,753.00) (1,138,983.82) 7,531.00 (7,461,952.11)

Chino Valley (2,074,261.11) (1,197,132.00) (14,875.37) (29,661.00) (996,610.83) 0.00 (4,312,540.31)

Cucamonga (261,778.61) (109,188.00) (76,500.20) (2,708.00) (10,624.86) 0.00 (460,799.67)

Etiwanda (1,044,013.18) (647,481.00) 68,821.64 (16,284.00) 0.00 0.00 (1,638,956.54)

Mountain View (59,725.06) (154,203.00) (83,696.80) (3,158.00) (456,868.52) 0.00 (757,651.39)

Mt Baldy (8,316.00) (4,663.00) 0.00 (162.00) 0.00 0.00 (13,141.00)

Upland (1,903,090.57) (461,174.00) (22,233.99) (13,801.00) (361,244.88) 0.00 (2,761,544.44)

SELPA 11,334,027.21 4,064,750.00 113,484.00 (7,531.00) 15,504,730.21

SELPA Wide Totals $0.00 $0.00 ($0.00) $0.00 ($3,049,331.73) $0.00 ($3,049,331.73)

Source Sched J Col M Sched F Col B Sched L Col S+W-G Sched N Col C Sched M Col D+N Sched E Col C

I:\AB602\24-25 AB602\2024-25 #2 Projected AB602 Funding Model-Sep 2024

B)Detail

Printed: 8/28/2024 at 10:34 AM Page 2 of 12

C-14

132



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 474.21      

Growth/Decline from P/Y: -            

District: West End Student Services

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code Mgmt

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 536,919.00 Sch Ca / Col D

Out of Home Care 17,351.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 554,270.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County 34,651,118.00 Sch G / Col F 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 1,322,382.00 Sch B / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service 35,973,500.00

Small School Prot (1,391.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

35,972,109.00

Adjusted Apportionment $36,526,379.00 6500

Property Taxes 5,917,754.74 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col P 6500 5XXX 0000 8097 2800

State - AB602 30,608,624.26 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8311/8319 2800

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 5,895.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 38,392.00 COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590 2800

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (28,664.22) COUNTY TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 57XX

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 15,622.78

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue

SBCSS Leased Facilities 319,740.00 Sch L / Col G 6500 5XXX 0000 8710 2821/2822/2827

Fedral Preschool/First Class 288,045.00 Sch O / Col A 3315 5730 0000 8182 0464

Preschool Local Entitlement/First Class 0.00 Sch O / Col B 3320 5730 0000 8182 0462

State Infant Funding/Early Start Program 919,889.00 Sch O / Col H 6510 5710 0000 8311 2850

Part C Federal Infant Funding 51,862.00 Sch O / Col D 3385 5710 0000 8182 0487

Infant Discretionary 72,654.00 Sch O / Col F 6515 5710 0000 8590 0468

Other Grants/Sources of Revenue Sub-Total 1,652,190.00

Net Revenues $38,222,856.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 23,673.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5001 2100 5748 2800

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 4,620.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SEIS Fees 6,370.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5740 2800

Sub-Total 34,663.00                  

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $38,188,193.00

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

133



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 5,204.76  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (94.54)       

District: Alta Loma

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 5,977,822.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 190,433.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 6,168,255.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,130,747.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 74,909.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,055,838.00)

Small School Prot (15,266.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,071,104.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $4,097,151.00 6500

State - AB602 2,981,450.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 1,115,701.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (21,283.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 1,094,418.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 66,289.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 421,375.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (314,746.87)      DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 172,917.13

Net Revenues $4,563,532.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 259,822.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 163,664.95 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 243,848.71 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 29,815.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (87,702.82) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 59,499.17 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 6,181.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 675,128.01           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $3,888,403.99

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE:  Does not include Prior Year Adjustments.

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

134



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 3,974.65  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (80.82)       

District: Central

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 4,572,739.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 145,425.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 4,718,164.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (4,549,408.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 65,815.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (4,483,593.00)

Small School Prot (11,658.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(4,495,251.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $222,913.00 6500

State - AB602 (1,051,519.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 1,274,432.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (54,728.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 1,219,704.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 50,560.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 321,786.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (240,358.56)       DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 131,987.44

Net Revenues $540,531.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 198,415.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 18,976.10 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 344,757.38 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 78,136.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 85,235.34 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 25,499.65 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 6,406.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 757,425.47           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers ($216,894.47)

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

135



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 20,212.31  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (609.82)      

District: Chaffey

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 23,771,821.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 773,031.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 24,544,852.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (10,087,238.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 481,297.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (9,605,941.00)

Small School Prot (59,286.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(9,665,227.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $14,879,625.00 6500

State - AB602 9,800,211.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 5,079,414.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (50,167.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 5,029,247.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 270,072.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 1,636,379.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (1,222,296.76)    DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 684,154.24

Net Revenues $16,735,909.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,008,999.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 201,892.59 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 5,005,082.95 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 85,771.75 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 1,138,983.82 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 28,753.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 7,469,483.11        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $9,266,425.89

OTHER:

State Special School 7,531.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

136



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 23,981.00  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (109.69)      

District: Chino

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 27,250,591.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 1,062,176.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 28,312,767.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (8,954,106.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 368,891.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (8,585,215.00)

Small School Prot (70,340.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(8,655,555.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $19,657,212.00 6500

State - AB602 14,382,436.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 5,274,776.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (36,485.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 5,238,291.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 305,226.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 1,941,490.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (1,450,200.33)     DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 796,515.67

Net Revenues $21,867,443.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 1,197,132.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 266,599.25 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,807,661.86 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 88,417.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (73,541.63) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 996,610.83 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 29,661.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 4,312,540.31        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $17,554,902.69

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

137



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 2,187.26  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: (28.21)       

District: Cucamonga

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 2,501,801.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 80,028.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 2,581,829.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,242,546.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 16,469.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,226,077.00)

Small School Prot (6,416.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,232,493.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $349,336.00 6500

State - AB602 (184,857.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 534,193.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 534,193.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 27,496.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 177,080.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (132,269.93)       DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 72,306.07

Net Revenues $553,912.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 109,188.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 21,813.80 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 239,964.80 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 31,871.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 44,629.20 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 10,624.86 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 2,708.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 460,799.67           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $93,112.33

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

138



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 12,970.37   

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 29.28          

District: Etiwanda

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 14,685,552.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 474,563.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 15,160,115.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (1,138,677.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 164,797.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (973,880.00)

Small School Prot (38,044.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(1,011,924.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $14,148,191.00 6500

State - AB602 11,365,808.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,782,383.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (47,127.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,735,256.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 161,177.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 1,050,075.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (784,355.73)           DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 426,896.27

Net Revenues $15,312,316.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 647,481.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 183,341.15 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 860,672.03 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 12,337.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (81,158.64) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 16,284.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 1,638,956.54         

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $13,673,359.46

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

139



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 3,089.00  

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 115.69      

District: Mountain View

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 3,497,485.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 113,021.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 3,610,506.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (3,998,748.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 51,097.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (3,947,651.00)

Small School Prot (9,060.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(3,956,711.00)

Adjusted Apportionment ($346,205.00) 6500

State - AB602 (1,019,288.00) DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 673,083.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 673,083.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 35,782.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 250,084.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (186,800.75)     DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 99,065.25

Net Revenues ($60,339.00)

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 154,203.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 25,289.64 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 34,435.42 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 51,405.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 32,291.80 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 456,868.52 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 3,158.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 757,651.39           

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers ($817,990.39)

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

140



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 93.40        

Growth/Decline from P/Y: -            

District: Mt Baldy

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 105,751.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 3,417.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 109,168.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (39,578.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 0.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (39,578.00)

Small School Prot 238,558.00 Sch I / Col K 6500

198,980.00

Adjusted Apportionment $308,148.00 6500

State - AB602 280,675.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 27,473.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction 0.00 Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 27,473.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 1,122.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 7,562.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (3,492.92)          DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 5,191.08

Net Revenues $316,832.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 4,663.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 8,316.00 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 0.00 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities 0.00 Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 0.00 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 162.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 13,141.00             

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $303,691.00

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

141



2024/25 #2 Projected AB602

District Summary for Special Education Funding and Transfers/Expenses

School Year: 2024/25 ADA: 9,238.27     

Growth/Decline from P/Y: 42.39          

District: Upland

Description: Revenues Transfers Expenditures Sched/Col

Resource 

Code Goal Code

Function 

Code

Object 

Code

Revenues
AB602 Base plus COLA, Growth & Local Asst 10,528,376.00 Sch Ca / Col D

NPS/LCI Extraordinary Cost Pool 0.00 Sch S / Col C

Out of Home Care 391,742.00 Sch K / Col E

Total Apportionment 10,920,118.00

ADJUSTMENTS:

Fee for Service:

  SELPA 0.00 Sch G / Col B

  County (2,832,452.00) Sch G / Col C 6500

  Chaffey 0.00 Sch G / Col D 6500

  Low Incidence Offset 99,107.00 Sch G / Col E 6500

Total Fee for Service (2,733,345.00)

Small School Prot (27,097.00) Sch I / Col K 6500

(2,760,442.00)

Adjusted Apportionment $8,159,676.00 6500

State - AB602 5,746,649.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch B / Col R 6500 5XXX 0000 8792

(if negative) 0000 5XXX 9200 7141

3310 Local Assistance 2,413,027.00 Sch P / Col F

Private School deduction (25,844.00) Sch P / Col H

Federal - 3310 Local Assistance 2,387,183.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch P / Col K 3310 5XXX 0000 8181

Federal - 3327 Mental Health 119,010.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col J 3327 5XXX 0000 8182

State - 6546 Mental health 747,926.00 DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col I 6546 5XXX 0000 8590

Contribution to SELPA from State 6546 (558,664.87)        DISTRICTS TO BUDGET Sch R / Col D 6546 5XXX XXXX 5110

Balance Remaining - Mental Health 308,271.13

Net Revenues $9,000,768.00

EXPENSES:

Joint Risk Fund Contribution 461,174.00 Sch F / Col B 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

District Reimbursements:

  Joint Risk Fund Other Costs 237,451.42 Sch J / Col FGH&J 6500 5XXX 2100 5110

  Joint Risk Fund NPS Costs 1,665,639.15 Sch J / Col CDE&I 6500 5XXX 1180 5110

SBCSS Leased Facilities 27,759.00 Sch L / Col G 0000 0000 9200 7142

Provider Program Facilities (5,525.01) Sch L / Col S 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SBCSS Tranps 361,244.88 Sch M / Col D 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

CSDR Transp 0.00 Sch M / Col N 0000 5XXX 9200 7142

MTU Charge 0.00 Sch L / Col W 0000 XXXX 9200 7141/8710

SEIS Fees 13,801.00 Sch N / Col C 6500 5XXX 2100 5840

Sub-Total 2,761,544.44        

Funding Net of Exp/Transfers $6,239,223.56

OTHER:

State Special School 0.00 Sch E / Col C 0000 Current SELPA policy is to reimburse

  amount of SSS deduct

NOTE: Does not include Prior Year Adjustments

Certified: N/A
Updated: 8/28/24

C-14

142



Col. A Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E Col. F1

Description Funded ADA 

(State)

Projected Per 

ADA Rate

Small School 

Protection

District MH 

Contributions

Initial 50% 

Contribution 

(50% x Col D)

Final 50% 

Contribution

(CY P-2 ADA) $60.45 (Col Q) (Col B + C) Nov-23 May-24
REVENUE

SBCSS 474.21 28,664.22$    14,332.00$    14,332.22$    - 

Alta Loma 5,204.76 314,608.30          138.57 314,746.87          SCH 202 157,373.00          157,373.87          - 

Central 3,974.65 240,252.74          105.82 240,358.56          SCH 209 120,179.00          120,179.56          - 

Chaffey 20,212.31 1,221,758.62       538.14 1,222,296.76       SCH 263 611,148.00          611,148.76          - 

Chino 23,981.00 1,449,561.85       638.48 1,450,200.33       SCH 210 725,100.00          725,100.33          - 

Cucamonga 2,187.26 132,211.70          58.23 132,269.93          SCH 215 66,135.00 66,134.93 - 

Etiwanda 12,970.37 784,010.41          345.32 784,355.73          SCH 218 392,178.00          392,177.73          - 

Mountain View 3,089.00 186,718.51          82.24 186,800.75          SCH 238 93,400.00 93,400.75 - 

Mt Baldy 93.40 5,645.68 (2,152.76) 3,492.92 SCH 236 1,746.00 1,746.92 - 

Upland 9,238.27 558,418.91          245.96 558,664.87          SCH 259 279,332.00          279,332.87          - 

Subtotal 81,425.23 4,921,850.94$    (0.00)$    4,893,186.72$    2,460,923.00$    2,460,927.94$    

EXPENSE FUNCTION OBJECT

SBCSS Contribution 5740 (28,664.22)$     

SELPA RS/Administrative 2200 1xxx-5xxx 427,907.00$     

Contract Residential Counseling/WRAP 3120 5110 2,003,699.08       

Contract Residential Room & Board 3900 5110 2,330,746.31       

Parent Reimb/Contracted Services 5803/5810 110,000.00          

Indirect 7312 49,498.55 

Subtotal 4,893,186.72$    

VARIANCE -$     

Col. G Col. H Col. I Col. J Col. K Col. L Col. M Col. N Col. O Col. P Col. Q

District Funded ADA 

(State)

Funded ADA 

(Federal)

6546 State

(P-2)

3327 Federal Less: Per ADA 

Contribution

Adjusted Total 

(Used for FY 

Small School)

PY Total after 

Small School 

Protection

Column M 

adjusted for 

COLA

Small School 

Protection 

Adjustment

Total Mental 

Health after 

Adjustments

(CY P-2 ADA) (PY P-2 ADA) 80.9595 Prior Year (Col B) (Col I thru K) (PY Column Q) 1.0107 (Col L + P)
County Operations 474.21 474.21 38,392.00 5,895.00 (28,664.22)           15,622.78 - 15,622.78 

Alta Loma 5,204.76 5,299.30 421,375.00          66,289.00 (314,608.30)         173,055.70          6.44% (138.57) 172,917.13          

Central 3,974.65 4,055.47 321,786.00          50,560.00 (240,252.74)         132,093.26          4.92% (105.82) 131,987.44          

Chaffey 20,212.31 20,822.13 1,636,379.00       270,072.00          (1,221,758.62)      684,692.38          25.00% (538.14) 684,154.24          

Chino 23,981.00 24,090.69 1,941,490.00       305,226.00          (1,449,561.85)      797,154.15          29.66% (638.48) 796,515.67          

Cucamonga 2,187.26 2,215.47 177,080.00          27,496.00 (132,211.70)         72,364.30 2.71% (58.23) 72,306.07 

Etiwanda 12,970.37 12,941.09 1,050,075.00       161,177.00          (784,010.41)         427,241.59          16.04% (345.32) 426,896.27          

Mountain View 3,089.00 2,973.31 250,084.00          35,782.00 (186,718.51)         99,147.49 3.82% (82.24) 99,065.25 

Mt Baldy 93.40 93.40 7,562.00 1,122.00 (5,645.68) 3,038.32 5,136.12 5,191.08 2,152.76 5,191.08 

Upland 9,238.27 9,195.88 747,926.00          119,010.00          (558,418.91)         308,517.09          11.43% (245.96) 308,271.13          

TOTALS 81,425.23 82,160.95 6,592,149.00       1,042,629.00       (4,921,850.94)      2,712,927.06       5,136.12 5,191.08 100.00% 0.00 2,712,927.06       

 State Funded 

ADA Ratio 

Excluding Small 

District

Small School Protection

West End SELPA
SPECIAL EDUCATION MENTAL HEALTH REVENUE DISTRIBUTION

FY 2024/25

2
0

2
4

/2
5
 #

2

P
ro

jected
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth

U
p

d
a
ted

: 8
/2

8
/2

4

8/28/2024 10:25 AM I:\Grants\3327 & 6546 Mental Hlth\24-25 Mental Hlth\24-25 #2 Proj Mental Health Funding Model-Sep 2024

C-15

143



WESELPA

Mgmt WSMH

Mental Health

FY 2024-25

Personnel Costs Posn No FTE Salary & Benefits

Program Manager (AF) EJ010 0.250              63,527.00                       

Psychologist (JF) EK033 0.500              122,319.00                     

Psychologist (ML) EK034 0.750              156,326.00                     

Accounting Technician (BG) EJ020 0.150              17,859.00                       

Office Specialist II (VACANT) EJ025 0.250              23,964.00                       

Office Specialist II (SC) EL020 0.100              12,221.00                       

2.000             396,216.00                     

Operating Costs
Matls & Supplies 4,430.00                     Object: 4XXXs

Busn Trvl/Mileage 23,350.00                   Object: 5220, 5221, 5225

Other Operating 1,510.00                     Object 5271, 5272, 5310, 5711, 5714, 5722, 5737, 5950

Network Fee 2,401.00                     Object 5733

     (Rounding - adj ADA Contribution total to whole dollar) -              

31,691.00                       

427,907.00                     

Indirect Cost 7.56% 32,349.77                       

460,256.77                 

5110 Residential & counseling 4,188,945.39              5810 Adj

5810 First $25k of sub-agreements 145,500.00                 -               

5840 SBCSS Contribution (28,664.22)                  

5803 Parent Reimb/5810 Contracted 110,000.00                 -                 

Indirect on 5810 17,148.78                   

Rounding Adj -                               

FAR 4,893,186.72              

Total 4,893,186.72              

0.00                             

MJS 12-5-12 I:\Grants\3327 & 6546 Mental Hlth\24-25 Mental Hlth\24-25 #2 Proj Mental Health Funding Model-Sep 2024

C-15

144



                                                                                                                            

District Residential No.

Placement Stud Total Pymts Total Pymts

Alta Loma Alpine Academy 1 13,230.00             8,820.00                  

South Coast 1 -                        4,174.00                  

Uplift Family Services 4 -                        50,672.50                

6 13,230.00             63,666.50                

-                        -                             

Central -                        -                             

Uplift Family Services 1 -                        19,220.00                

1 -                        19,220.00                

-                        -                             

Chaffey Jt Canyon View 2 -                        3,581.20                  

Cornerstone 1 -                        4,820.47                  

Devereux Florida 2 192,282.34           141,328.11              

Diamond Ranch Academy 1 4,405.59               3,492.72                  

Discovery Ranch for Girls 1 45,584.00             34,195.00                

Joan Macy 2 81,640.00             -                             

Laurel Heights 1 45,684.00             68,526.00                

Mountain Valley 1 281,062.00           -                             

Oak Grove 2 240,565.87           -                             

Progress Learning 1 -                        2,925.00                  

Provo Canyon 3 72,020.00             42,768.00                

Stoneridge Academy 1 -                        2,071.79                  

Syracuse RTC 2 90,480.00             39,440.00                

  Vista School 1 113,207.47           194,261.86              

West Shield Adolescent 6 56,250.97             -                             

  South Coast 11 -                        208,246.70              

Uplift Family Services 25 -                        253,026.25              

63 1,223,182.24        998,683.10              

-                        -                             

Chino Valley USD Canyon View 2 -                        2,506.84                  

Cinnamon Hills 1 17,290.80             3,867.30                  

Devereux Florida 1 101,490.91           69,077.47                

Diamond Ranch Academy 1 4,405.59               3,492.72                  

Oak Grove 1 55,304.52             -                             

Provo Canyon 1 27,983.90             15,264.00                

San Diego Center 1 140,120.58           38,331.06                

TTC4Success 1 -                        10,000.00                

West Shield Adolescent 1 8,366.77               -                             

  South Coast 7 -                        97,181.22                

Uplift Family Services 14 -                        133,580.00              

31 354,963.07           373,300.61              

-                        -                             

Cucamonga -                        -                             

0 -                        -                             

-                        -                             

Etiwanda Oak Grove 1 104,815.23           -                             

Progress Learning 1 -                        75.00                        RTC & WRAP RTC WRAP

San Diego Center 1 66,895.87             18,299.88                Total Cost Cost Placements Cost Placements

West Shield Adolescent 1 1,737.18               -                             

  South Coast 3 -                        87,713.06                2021/22 Final 1,598,461.07   1,006,085.68   32                       592,375.39       57                      

Uplift Family Services 13 -                        174,163.75              

20 173,448.28           280,251.69              

-                        -                             2022/23 Final 2,636,186.17   1,701,944.65   30                       934,241.52       80                      

Mountain View -                        -                             2023/24 Final 3,940,404.90   2,826,431.25   45                       1,113,973.65    89                      

-                        -                             Increase 1,304,218.73   1,124,486.60   15                       179,732.13       9                         

Mt Baldy -                        -                             % Increase 49.47% 66.07% 50.00% 19.24% 11.25%

0 -                        -                             

-                        -                             2023/24 Final 3,940,404.90   2,826,431.25   45                       1,113,973.65    89                      

Upland Mountain Valley 1 245,534.50           -                             2024/25 Proj 4,334,445.39   3,109,074.38   45                       1,225,371.02    89                      

  Oak Grove 1 108,502.19           -                             Increase 394,040.49      282,643.13      -                      111,397.37       -                     

  Stoneridge Academy 1 -                        426.55                      % Increase 10.00% 10.00% 0.00% 10.00% 0.00%

  South Coast 2 -                        13,384.92                

Uplift Family Services 8 -                        72,611.25                

13 354,036.69           86,422.72                

-                        -                             % INCREASE R&B Counseling Totals

Totals 134      2,118,860.28        1,821,544.62          Totals 10.00% 2,330,746.31  2,003,699.08  4,334,445.39  

Totals without WRAP 45        2,118,860.28        707,570.97              Totals without WRAP 10.00% 2,330,746.31   778,328.07      3,109,074.38   
Total WRAP 89        -                           1,113,973.65           Total WRAP 10.00% -                      1,225,371.02   1,225,371.02   

% Totals w/o WRAP 74.97% 25.03% % Totals w/o WRAP 53.77% 46.23% 100.00%

Projected 2024/25 Mental Health Related 

Residential and Counseling Expenses

West End Special Education Local Plan 

Area

Room & Board Counseling

C-15

145



Program Transfer Notification Timeline 
2024/2025

September 
The district provides notification to the SELPA Administrator of programs, which 

are being considered for transfer pursuant to EC 56207. 

October 

Consideration of program transfer by the Program Transfer Committee, which will 

include three SELPA governance members.  This committee will be responsible for 

determining if the program transfer conforms to the requirements of EC 56207. 

November 

Program Transfer Committee provides SELPA Advisory Committee and 

Superintendents’ Council a summary of their findings.  Parents and staff have the 

opportunity to provide input regarding the proposed transfer during the SELPA 

Advisory meeting.  District initiating transfer responds to questions from the 

SELPA Advisory and the Superintendents’ Council. 

December 
The district provides an official letter to the SELPA Administrator of their decision 

to proceed with the transfer or discontinue the transfer.   

January 

SELPA Advisory Committee reports to the Superintendents’ Council their 

recommendation regarding the program transfer. Superintendents’ Council makes 

the final approval of the transfer request. 

February Necessary personnel actions initiated by districts affected by the program transfer. 

July 
District begins operation of the transferred program at conclusion of ESY unless
otherwise noted and agreed to by both parties.

D-1

146



West End SELPA Program Transfer Request 

LEA Requesting Program Transfer: Current Program Provider: 

Date of Request: Effective Date of Transfer: 

Description of Program Transfer:  
Entire Program  
Entire Identifiable Class(es) 
Transfer of Students from Multiple Classes at :______________________________________________ 

Program Location 
# of 

Students 
Impacted 

Other Relevant Information 

Submit to 
WESELPA Administrator 

By Oct. 1 

D-1

147



Description of Proposed LEA Program: 

Program Location # of 
Teacher(s) 

# of 
Aide(s) 

# of 
Students Other Relevant Information 

D-1

148



1. Will the proposed LEA program serve district students only?  If not, what other district(s) students will be
eligible?

2. If a district student is not appropriate for the district-operated program, how will the student be served?

3. How will related services be provided?

4. Is the LEA requesting a transfer of materials and equipment?

D-1

149



5. Is the LEA requesting a transfer of facilities?

6. Are the opportunities for education in the LRE different in the proposed program different from the
current program?

7. What is the impact of the transfer on other LEAs in the SELPA?

8. How will parents be involved in the program transfer planning process?

9. How will affected staff be involved in the program transfer planning process?

D-1

150



DAT E TIM E MEE TING TY PE

Monday, 
September 16, 2024

1:30 pm Business Meeting

Monday, 
November 04, 2024

1:30 pm Business Meeting

Monday, 
January 13, 2025 1:30 pm Business Meeting

Monday, 
March 03, 2025

1:30 pm  Business Meeting

**Monday, 
    April 07, 2025 1:30 pm Business Meeting

TBD 6:30 pm Annual Art & Writing Showcase

Monday, 
May 05, 2025

1:30 pm Business Meeting

MEETING LOCATION: WEST END EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER: 8265 ASPEN AVE.,  RANCHO
CUCAMONGA,  CA 91730

MEETING SCHEDULE 
2024-25

ANNUAL ART & WRITING SHOWCASE LOCATION:  TBD

SELPA ADVISORY COMMITTEE

 WEST END SELPA

D-2

151



Community Advisory Committee 
Representatives 

Community Advisory Committee representatives serve an important role as a 
liaison between the community and the district director of special education. 
Representatives recommend priorities for special education services, assist in 
parent education, and support activities on behalf of individuals with 
exceptional needs. 

In accordance with the Community Advisory Committee bylaws, the 
Chaffey JUHSD, Chino Valley USD, Etiwanda SD, and Upland USD 
school districts shall appoint parent representatives in odd-numbered years 
to the Community Advisory Committee for a two-year term, beginning July 
1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027. The representative should be a parent of 
a student residing and enrolled in the school district or a district-offered 
school program. The appointment is by the action of the District Board of 
Education. 

Once the School District Board of Education has approved the appointment 
of the district representative, please forward the name, and contact 
information for the representative, and a copy of the board approval to Natalie 
Vivar, Administrative Assistant, West End SELPA. 

D-3

152



  
We Educate • We Care • WESELPA        
8265 Aspen Avenue • Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-3271 
P: 909.476.6131 | F: 909.466.4509 
http://www.weselpa.net 

AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES 

This Agreement for Legal Services (“Agreement”) is by and between the West End Special 
Education Local Plan Area (“West End SELPA” or “Client”) and the law firm of Lozano Smith, 
LLP (“Attorney”) (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”). Attorney shall provide legal 
services to Client based on terms and conditions set forth below, effective July 1, 2024.  

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES: Client hires Attorney as its legal representative/counsel on an as-
requested basis with respect to matters the Client specifically refers to Attorney. The place
and time for such services are to be designated by the Chief Administrative Officer of the
West End SELPA or designee.

II. DUTIES OF PARTIES: When Client refers a matter to Attorney, Attorney shall confirm
availability and ability to perform legal services regarding the matter. If Attorney undertakes
to provide legal services to represent Client in such matters, Attorney shall keep Client
informed of significant developments and respond to Client’s inquiries regarding those
matters, and shall abide by the terms of this Agreement. Client understands that Attorney
cannot guarantee any particular results, including the costs and expenses of representation.
Client will assist Attorney in providing information and documents necessary for
representation in the described matter. Client further agrees to be forthcoming with
Attorney, to cooperate with Attorney in protecting Client’s interests, to keep Attorney fully
informed of developments material to Attorney’s representation of client, to pay Attorney’s
bills on-time, and to abide by the terms of this Agreement.

III. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. TERM: The term of this Agreement shall be for two year(s), commencing July 1, 2024,
through June 30, 2026, and thereafter shall continue from month to month at the then
current hourly rate set forth in the attached rate sheet until modified in writing by mutual
agreement or terminated by either party upon 30-days written notice. Parties agree, this
Agreement will not take effect until full execution of this Agreement by both Parties.

B. BILLING: Client agrees to pay Attorney by the hour for services rendered for all time spent
on Client’s matter by Attorneys legal personnel, according to the hourly rates provided on
the attached rate schedule. Attorney agrees, Client will be notified with regard to whether
legal work shall be provided by partners, associates, paralegals etc. as described on the
attached rate sheet, to ensure Client is aware of rates to be billed for each matter. Attorney
shall bill in 0.10 hour increments unless otherwise stated and agreed upon. The time

D-4

153

http://www.weselpa.net/


 

 

charged will include the time Attorney spends on telephone calls relating to Client’s matter, 
including calls with Client and other parties and attorneys. The legal personnel assigned to 
Client’s matter may confer among themselves about the matter, as required and 
appropriate. When they do confer, each person will charge for the time expended, as long 
as the work done is reasonably necessary and not duplicative. Likewise, if more than one 
of the legal personnel attends a meeting or other proceeding, each will charge for the time 
spent Agreements for legal fees on an other-than-hourly basis may be made by mutual 
agreement for special projects, including as set forth in future addenda to this Agreement.  

 
C. COSTS AND OTHER CHARGES: Attorney will incur various costs and expenses in 

performing legal services under this Agreement. Except as otherwise stated, Client agrees 
to pay for actual and necessary expenses and costs incurred in the course of providing legal 
services to Client in addition to hourly fees, including but not limited to expert, mediation 
and arbitration fees. These may also include other fees fixed by law or assessed by public 
agencies, messenger and other delivery fees, out of office copying/reproduction costs, and 
travel costs (including mileage charged at the standard IRS rate, parking, transportation, 
meals and hotel costs, if applicable), and other similar items. Also, to aid in the 
representation on Client’s matter, it may become necessary to hire consultants. Client 
authorizes Attorney, upon express consent of Client, to retain experts or consultants to 
perform services, and agrees to pay such fees and charges.  
 

D. OTHER NON-LEGAL SERVICES: Attorney works with professional consultants or may 
provide consulting services in addition to or in support of the legal services provided 
pursuant to this agreement. Qualified, non-attorney consultants may provide services, 
including but not limited to, public relations, educational consulting, leadership mentoring 
and professional development, financial, budgeting, management auditing, 
board/superintendent/chancellor relations, administrator evaluation and best practices, and 
intergovernmental relations. Attorney does not share its legal fees with such consultants. 
Attorney may offer these services to Client upon request.  

 
E. MONTHLY INVOICES:  Attorney shall send Client a statement for fees and costs incurred 

every calendar month (the “Statement”). Statements shall set forth the amount, rate and 
description of services provided. Client shall pay Attorney’s Statements within thirty (30) 
calendar days after receipt. An interest charge of one percent (1%) per month shall be 
assessed on balances that are more than forty-five (45) calendar days past due, not to exceed 
10% per annum. Client may request a statement at intervals of less than 30 days. If Client 
requests a bill, Attorney will provide one within 10 days. The statements shall include the 
amount, rate, basis of calculation or other method of determination of the fees and costs, 
which costs will be clearly identified by item and amount. Client agrees to revise the 
monthly statements promptly upon receipt and to notify Attorney in writing with respect 
to any disagreement with the monthly statement. 
 

F. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Attorney is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Client.  
 
 

D-4

154



 

 

G. DISCHARGE AND WITHDRAWAL.  
1. Termination by Client: Client may discharge Attorney at any time, with or without 

cause, by written notice to Attorney.  
 

2. Termination by Mutual Consent or Attorney: Attorney may withdraw with Client’s 
consent, for good cause or as allowed or required by law upon ten (10) days written 
notice. Good cause includes Client’s breach of this Agreement, refusal to cooperate 
with Attorney in protecting Client’s interests, failure to disclose material facts to 
attorney, or any fact or circumstance that would render Attorney’s continuing 
representation unlawful or unethical. Additionally, to the extent allowed by law, 
Attorney may decline to provide services on new matters or may terminate the 
Agreement without cause upon written notice to Client if Attorney is not then 
providing any legal services to Client. Even if this Agreement is not terminated, an 
attorney-client relationship exists only when Attorney is providing legal services to 
Client.  
 

3. Following Termination: When Attorney’s services conclude, all unpaid charges 
will immediately become due and payable. Following the conclusion of Attorney's 
representation, Client will cooperate with Attorney in facilitating the orderly 
transfer of any outstanding matters to new counsel. Attorney will, upon Client's 
request, deliver to Client the Client file(s) and property in Attorney's possession, 
whether or not Client has paid for all services.  
 

H. COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN ATTORNEY AND CLIENT. The Parties recognize 
that all legal advice provided by Attorney is protected by the Attorney-Client and Work 
Product Privileges. In addition to regular telephone, mail and other common business 
communication methods, Client hereby authorizes Attorney to use facsimile transmissions, 
cellular telephone calls and text, unencrypted email, and other electronic transmissions in 
communicating with Client. Unless otherwise instructed by Client, any such 
communications may include confidential information. By entering into this Agreement, 
Client is consenting to such e-mail transmissions with Client and Client’s representatives and 
agents, as well as to having communications, documents and electronic data pertinent to 
Client’s matter(s) stored through a cloud-based service.  
 

I. MAINTENANCE OF INSURANCE. Attorney agrees that, during the term of this 
Agreement, Attorney shall maintain liability and errors and omissions insurance.  

 
IV. POTENTIAL AND ACTUAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. If Attorney becomes aware of any 

potential or actual conflict of interest between Client and one or more other clients represented by 
Attorney, Attorney will comply with applicable laws and rules of professional conduct.  
 

V. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement with its attachments contains the entire agreement 
of the parties. No other agreement, statement, or promise made on or before the effective date 
of this Agreement will be binding on the parties. Each Party acknowledges that no 
representations, inducements, promises or agreements have been made by any person which are 
not incorporated herein.  

 

D-4

155



VI. MODIFICATION BY SUBSEQUENT AGREEMENT. This Agreement may be modified by
subsequent agreement of the parties only by an instrument in writing signed by both of them or
an oral agreement only to the extent that the parties carry it out.

VII. SEVERABILITY IN EVENT OF PARTIAL INVALIDITY. If any provision of this Agreement
is held in whole or in part to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision
and of the entire Agreement will be severable and remain in effect.

VIII. MEDIATION CLAUSE. If a dispute arises out of or relating to any aspect of this Agreement
between the Client and Attorney, or the breach thereof, and if the dispute cannot be settled
through negotiation, Attorney and Client agree to use mediation before resorting to arbitration,
litigation, or any other dispute resolution procedure.

IX. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement will govern all legal services performed by Attorney on
behalf of Client commencing with the date Attorney first performed services. The date at the
beginning of this Agreement is for reference only. Even if this Agreement does not take effect,
Client will be obligated to pay Attorney the reasonable value of any services Attorney may have
performed for Client.

THE PARTIES HAVE READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE FOREGOING TERMS AND HAVE 
SO AGREED.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement for Legal Services. 

WEST END SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 

Dated ____________  By ______________________________  

LOZANO SMITH, 

LLP Dated: 

__6.14.2024________  

By ______________________________ 
      Karen M. Rezendes, Managing Partner 
      Lozano Smith, LLP 

D-4

156



 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL RATE SCHEDULE  
FOR WEST END SPECIAL EDUCATION LOCAL PLAN AREA 

 
1. HOURLY PROFESSIONAL RATES 

 

Client agrees to pay Attorney by the following standard hourly rate*: 
 

Partner** 1/ Senior Counsel / Of Counsel $ 295- $ 395 per hour 

Associate $ 250 - $ 295 per hour 

Paralegal / Law Clerk $ 185 - $ 225 per hour 

Consultant $ 350 - $ 395 per hour 

* Rates for individual attorneys within each category above vary based upon years of 
experience. Specific rates for each attorney are available upon request. 
** Rates for work performed by Senior Partners with 20 years of experience or more may 
range from $395 - $450 per hour. 1 

 
2. BILLING PRACTICE 

 

Lozano Smith will provide a monthly, itemized Statement for services rendered. Time billed 
is broken into 1/10 (.10) hour increments, allowing for maximum efficiency in the use of 
attorney time. Invoices will clearly indicate the department or individuals for whom services 
were rendered. 

 
Written responses to audit letter inquiries will be charged to Client on an hourly basis, with the 
minimum charge for such responses equaling .5 hours. Travel time shall be prorated if the 
assigned attorney travels for two or more clients on the same trip. 

 
3. COSTS AND EXPENSES  

 
In-office copying/electronic communication printing 

Facsimile 

Postage 

Mileage 

$ 0.25 per page 

$ 0.25 per page 

Actual Usage 

IRS Standard Rate 
 

Other costs, such as messenger, meals, and lodging shall be charged on an actual and 
necessary basis. 

 

1 Sale or Lease of Real Property Work: 
 

Partner / Senior Counsel / Of Counsel $ 450 per hour 

Associate $ 375 per hour 

Paralegal / Law Clerk $ 225 per hour 

 

D-4

157



PROCEDURAL 
MANUAL 
2024 

WE EDUCATE • WE CARE • WESELPA 

D-5

158



Page 2 of 233 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
                              
Chapter 1 IDENTIFICATION AND REFERRAL  
Section A Child Find  
Section B Parent Referrals  
Section C The Student Study Team   
Section D Interim Placement  
Appendix A Special Education Timelines  
 
Chapter 2 ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA-INDIVIDUALS WITH EXCEPTIONAL 

NEEDS 
 

Section A State Eligibility Criteria  
Section B State Definition of Special Education  
Section C Considerations for SLD and ED Eligibility  
Section D Dismissal from Special Education 504 of the Rehabilitation Act                                                                  
Appendix A Form Letters for Use When Students Exit Special Education or Graduate  
Appendix B Specific Learning Disability-Discrepancy Response to Intervention, 

Patterns of Strengths & Weaknesses Documentation Report Form  
 

Appendix C Prior Written Notice Due to Parent Revocation of Consent for Special 
Education         

 

 
Chapter 3 EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT  
Section A Areas of Suspected Disability  
Section B Types of Assessments  
Section C English Learners  
Section D Evaluation of African-American Students  
Section E Suspension Or Expulsion Of Pupils With Exceptional Needs    
Section F Eligibility Evaluation  
Section G Independent Educational Evaluation   
Appendix A CDE Memorandum:  Administering I.Q. Test to African-American 

Students        
 

                                                                          
 
Chapter 4 INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING AND THE INDIVIDUALIZED 

EDUCATION PROGRAM  
 

Section A The IEP Meeting:  Preparation, Process, and Follow-Up  
Section B Writing the IEP Based on Common Core Standards  
Section C Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Students  
Section D Teaching and Assessing California’s English Language Development 

(ELD) and English-Language Arts (ELA) Standards For English 
Learners 

 

 

Table of Contents 

D-5

159



Page 3 of 233 
 

Chapter 5 SUPPORTS AND SERVICES – A CONTINUUM OF OPTIONS  
Section A Least Restrictive Environment – A Continuum of Services and 

Placement Options 
 

Section B Related Services  
Section C Assistive Technology  
Appendix A Guideline Statement – Least Restrictive Environment  
Appendix B Least Restrictive Environment Continuum  
 
Chapter 6 STUDENT PROMOTION AND RETENTION  
Section A General Promotion and Retention Information  
Section B Students with Special Needs  
 
Chapter 7 PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS  
Section A Procedural Safeguards  
Section B IEP Meeting Options  
Section C Due Process Procedures Frequently Asked Questions  
 
Chapter 8 SCHOOL-TO-ADULT LIVING  
Section A Transition Planning   
Section B Transfer of Rights  
Section C Interagency Agreements   
Section D West End SELPA Managed Programs  
Appendix A Quick Reference Array of WAI Services  
Appendix B West End SELPA WAI Policies and Procedures  
Appendix C Online Resources  
Appendix D OSER Question & Answers on Secondary Transition  
 
Chapter 9 POSITIVE BEHAVIORAL INTERVENTIONS  
Section A Behavior Support Plan Process   
Section B The Functional Behavior Assessment and Positive Behavior Intervention 

Plan Process                         
 

Section C Behavioral Emergency Procedures  
Section D Federal and State Regulations  
 
Chapter 10 SUPENSION AND EXPULSION PROCEDURES  
Section A Disciplinary Removals and Change of Placement  
Section B Manifestation Determination  
Section C Interim Alternative Educational Settings  
Section D Procedural Safeguards  
Appendix A Special Education Discipline Chart  
 
Chapter 11 LOW INCIDENCE FUNDING  
Section A Legal Requirements  
Section B Accessing Funding  
Section C Frequently Asked Questions  
 

D-5

160



Page 4 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Chapter 12 STATE SPECIAL SCHOOLS AND SERVICES  
Section A State Special Schools  
Section B Diagnostic Centers   
 
Chapter 13 STUDENT RECORDS  
Section A Student Records  
Section B Maintenance of Special Education Records   
 
Chapter 14 OTHER PUBLIC EDUCATON PROGRAMS  
Section A Alternative Education   
Section B Charter Schools  
Section C Community Day Schools - District/County  
Section D Court Schools  
Section E Continuation Schools   
Section F Independent Alternative Education  
 
Chapter 15 NON PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES  
Section A Nonpublic Agency Services  
Section B Nonpublic Nonsectarian School Services  
   
Chapter 16 PRIVATE SCHOOLS AND SERVICES  
Section A Parentally Placed Students with Disabilities in Private Schools  
Section B Calculation of Proportionate Amount of Federal Funds Individual 

Service Plan 
 

Appendix A Individual Service Plan  
 
Chapter 17 DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
Section A WESELPA Dispute Resolution Continuum  
Section B Preventative  
Section C Disagreement  
Section D Resolution  
  

D-5

161



Page 5 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

IDENTIFICATION AND REFERRAL 
 

SECTION A CHILD FIND 
 

SECTION B PARENT REFERRALS  

SECTION C THE STUDENT STUDY TEAM   

SECTION D INTERIM PLACEMENT  

APPENDIX A SPECIAL EDUCATION TIMELINES 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

D-5

162



Page 6 of 233 
 

 

Introduction 
 
The referral for special education assessment is the first step taken when it is suspected that a 
student will require special education supports and services to be successful in the educational 
system.  Parents, guardians, teachers, agencies, appropriate professionals, and other members of 
the public can make referrals.  Once submitted, the referral initiates timelines that are specified in 
the California Education Code.  The purpose of the referral process is to afford the assessment 
team the opportunity to review the referring party’s identified areas of concern, previous attempts 
in program modification, relevant educational history, and other pertinent student information to 
determine areas in need of assessment. 
 
The governing board of the West End Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) assure an 
ongoing effort to identify all individuals with disabilities including infants, children for whom 
English is not a primary language, students with low incidence disabilities, students attending 
private schools, children from families that are highly mobile, and children who are suspected of 
having a disability and in need of special education even though they are advancing from grade to 
grade. 
 
The West End SELPA works closely with public agencies such as Inland Regional Center, Head 
Start, California Children’s Services, Behavioral Health, and others as appropriate in the 
identification of individuals with disabilities.  Materials are distributed to pediatricians, health care 
professionals, and other agencies within the SELPA. 
 
Each local education agency within the West End SELPA has established procedures for the 
identification, location, and evaluation of students who may require special education services.  
Information regarding child find activities is included in the annual notice that is distributed to 
parents of all children. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

163



Page 7 of 233 
 

 
Responsibilities of the SELPA Governing Board—Superintendents Council (SC) 
 
The SELPA Governing Board members, under the direction of their respective elected 
Governing Boards, act to establish operational procedures and make decisions on any matters 
regarding the development, implementation, administration and operation of special 
education programs in accordance with the intent of the Local Plan. The SELPA Governing 
Board performs the following functions: 
 
 

• Review and approve needed modification of this agreement on behalf of all districts 
in the SELPA and adopt amendments to the permanent portion of the Local Plan on 
an “interim basis”, not to exceed one year. Amendments approved in this manner 
shall become permanent upon subsequent approval by LEA Governing Boards during 
the annual service and budget plan process and upon subsequent approval by the State 
Board of Education. 

 
 

• Adopt SELPA policies and procedures on behalf of their respective LEA Governing 
Boards to ensure compliance with the Local Plan and state and federal laws and 
regulations. 

 
 

• Assure equal access to programs and services for all individuals with exceptional 
needs within the SELPA regardless of their district of residence. 

 
 

• Approve the annual services plan and annual budget plan. 
 
 

• Adopt policies for the distribution of federal, state and local funds received for special 
education programs. 

 
 

• Adopt agreements including, but not limited to, interagency agreements with 
Behavioral Health, California Children’s Services, Inland Regional Center and other 
public agencies that provide services to students with exceptional needs. 

 
 

• Establish and promote the Community Advisory Committee. Encourage parental 
involvement through members of the CAC and consider requests and 
recommendations from the CAC and other parent groups. 

 
 

• Provide assistance in the selection, direction, discipline and evaluation of the SELPA 
Chief Administrative Officer. 

 

D-5

164



Page 8 of 233 
 

Section A – Child Find 
Each special education local plan area submitting a local 
plan to the Superintendent under this part shall endure that it 
has in effect policies, procedures, and programs that are 
consistent with state laws, regulations, and policies 
governing “child find and referral” (CA Education Code 
Section [§] 56205(a)(3).  
 
Having a coordinated system of identification and referral 
provides for meeting the legal requirements of each local 
educational agency (LEA) to actively and systematically 
seek out all individuals with exceptional needs, from birth to 
21 years of age, inclusive, including children not enrolled in public school programs, who reside 
in a school district or are under the jurisdiction of a special education local plan area or a county 
office of education (CA Education Code § 56300). 
 
Child find activities are the responsibility of each district and occur prior to a referral for special 
education services. Under both federal and state statutes and regulations, school districts are 
required to locate, identify, and assess all children with disabilities who reside within the district. 
This requirement is commonly known as “child find” mandate applies to all children who reside 
within a State, including children who attend private schools and public schools, highly mobile 
children, migrant children, homeless children, and children who are wards of the state. (20 United 
States Code [U.S.C.] § 1412(a)(3)).   
 
This includes all children who are suspected of having a disability including children who receive 
passing grades and are “advancing from grade to grade.” (34 Code of Federal Regulations [C.F.R.] 
§ 300.111(c)) California specifically, obligates a district to actively and systematically to seeks out 
“all individuals with exceptional needs.” (Education Code § 56300 et. seq.) 
 
Examples of child-find activities include:  

• Media announcements regarding availability of special education services, as well as 
feature articles and stories regarding special education programs and opportunities;  

• Development of Interagency Agreements that clearly define child find responsibilities of 
participating agencies (e.g., Inland Regional Center, Head Start, and California Children's 
Services);  

• Annual orientation/review for general education staff, provided by special education staff, 
regarding the referral procedures for special education, the eligibility criteria, and the 
continuum of special education programs and services available;  

• Disability/Ability Awareness activities provided to both general education staff and 
students that include simulation activities, speakers, literature review, and instructional 
videos; and  

• Information regarding the referral process for special education included in the annual 
notice of procedural safeguards. 

 
 

D-5

165



Page 9 of 233 
 

Infants, birth to three years, are referred directly by the district, parent, doctor, or agency to the 
Early Start Program at Inland Regional Center.  Intake information precedes the assignment of 
staff for assessment and the coordination with other agencies.  If an infant has a solely low 
incidence disability, such as hearing loss, vision loss, or orthopedic handicap, the infant should be 
referred directly to the San Bernardino County operated Early Start program.  An Early Start 
Program Referral Form is completed, which begins the assessment process timeline. 
 
SEARCH AND SERVE PROCEDURES 
 
School Responsibilities  
 
All schools are required to have procedures in place for identifying children who have or are 
suspected of having a disability and needing special education and related services. These 
procedures are commonly referred to as “search and serve” or “child find.” 
 
The school’s responsibilities for search and serve apply to the families and students attending and 
enrolling in the school. There are three (3) search and serve responsibilities that each school must 
implement: 
 

1. Students with disabilities, requiring special services, enrolling in the school are identified 
and promptly provided the appropriate services. 

2. There is a process in place, understood by all staff members, for referring students who 
may require special services. 

3. There is coordination with school site procedures, including referrals from the school site 
student intervention teams (e.g. Student Success Teams, etc.).  

Note: A child shall be referred for special education and related services only after the resources 
of the regular education program have been considered and, where appropriate, utilized. (CA 
Education Code § 56303)  
 
NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION INFORMATION AND 
RELATED SERVICES 
 
Federal and State policy requires the District to annually notify all students and their parents 
about the availability of and information on special education and related services. 
 
In addition, the following form must be maintained in the school office and made available to 
parents and staff upon request:  
 
Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards 
 
District staff should be prepared to assist parents in completing forms and answering questions 
they may have.  
 
 
Definition of Parent 
The definition of “Parent,” pursuant to CA Education Code § 56028, reads: 

D-5

166



Page 10 of 233 
 

(a) "Parent" means any of the following: 
(1) A biological or adoptive parent of a child. 
(2) A foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parents to make educational 
decisions on the child's behalf specifically has been limited by court order in accordance 
with Section 300.30(b)(1) or (2) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations. 
(3) A guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent, or authorized to make 
educational decisions for the child, including a responsible adult appointed for the child in 
accordance with Sections 361 and 726 of the Welfare and Institutions Code. 
(4) An individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a 
grandparent, stepparent, or other relative, with whom the child lives, or an individual who 
is legally responsible for the child's welfare. 
(5) A surrogate parent who has been appointed pursuant to Section 7579.5 or 7579.6 of 
the Government Code, and in accordance with Section 300.519 of Title 34 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations and Section 1439(a)(5) of Title 20 of the United States Code. 

(b) 
(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), the biological or adoptive parent, when attempting 
to act as the parent under this part and when more than one party is qualified under 
subdivision (a) to act as a parent, shall be presumed to be the parent for purposes of this 
section unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make 
educational decisions for the child. 
(2) If a judicial decree or order identifies a specific person or persons under paragraphs (1) 
to (4), inclusive, of subdivision (a) to act as the "parent" of a child or to make educational 
decisions on behalf of a child, then that person or persons shall be determined to be the 
"parent" for purposes of this part, Article 1 (commencing with Section 48200) of Chapter 2 
of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2, and Chapter 26.5 (commencing with Section 7570) of 
Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code, and Sections 361 and 726 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code. 

(c) "Parent" does not include the state or any political subdivision of government. 
(d) "Parent" does not include a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency under contract with a 

local educational agency for the provision of special education or designated instruction 
and services for a child.” 

 
IDENTIFYING AND SERVING STUDENTS ENROLLING IN SCHOOL 
 
All schools are responsible for having procedures in place to identify and promptly serve students 
who require or may need special services when they enroll in the school. The mechanism for 
implementing the procedures in the District’s Student Enrollment Form should be completed by 
parents at the time they are enrolling their child. The following four questions should be asked: 
 

1. Did the student receive special education services at his/her previous school?  
2. Did the student have an Individualized Education Program (IEP) at his/her  

previous school? 
3. Did the student have a Section 504 Plan at his/her previous school? 
4. Does the student have difficulties that interfere with his/her ability to go to school or 

learn? 
 

D-5

167



Page 11 of 233 
 

It is important that office personnel and administrator/designees familiarize themselves with the 
form and their duties to ensure that students who require special services are identified and 
promptly provided appropriate school programs and services. In so doing be sure to: 
 
 

• Print out the student’s active IEP from the IEP system when the student has an IEP from 
a previous school. Make every effort to obtain a copy of the student’s IEP from the 
parent(s) or the previous school district if the student has an IEP from another school 
district. 

 
• Review the IEP and provide the student the programs and services specified. Note: If the 

current IEP is out of date or no longer appropriate, continue implementation, but hold an 
IEP meeting within thirty days. 
 

• If the student enrolled with an IEP from another school district, review the IEP and 
provide the student the programs and services specified. Hold an IEP review meeting 
within thirty days. 
 

• If available, implement a student’s existing 504 plan, or hold a meeting to develop a 504 
plan. 
 

• Take the specified actions when the parents have indicated that the student has 
difficulties that interfere with his/her ability to go to school or learn. 

 
• Enter all appropriate information into IEP system for students who have an existing IEP. 

 
 
 

Section B – Parent Referrals 
 
EC 56301(d)(1) Each special education local plan area shall establish written policies and 
procedures pursuant to Section 56205 for use by its constituent local agencies for a continuous 
child find system that addresses the relationships among identification, screening, referral, 
assessment, planning, implementation, review and the triennial assessment.  The policies and 
procedures shall include, but need not be limited to, written notification of all parents of their 
rights under this chapter, and the procedure for initiating a referral for assessment to identify 
individuals with exceptional needs. 
 
All referrals for special education and related services shall initiate the process to determine if an 
assessment is warranted and shall be documented.  When a verbal referral is made, staff of the 
local education agency shall offer assistance to the parent or any other individual to make a request 
in writing.  Parents, whose primary language is not English, shall be informed both verbally and 
in writing in their primary language, unless to do so is clearly not feasible. Written referrals in 
languages other than English will be accepted.   
 

D-5

168



Page 12 of 233 
 

The West End SELPA shall annually distribute information regarding child find activities to 
private schools for dissemination to parents. 
 
If a parent requests, in writing, an assessment for possible special education services, the 
assessment team will develop an assessment plan and present it to the parent within 15 days.  A 
copy of the Parental Rights and Procedural Safeguards are reviewed and given to the parents at the 
time the assessment plan is presented.  The parent has 15 days from receipt of the assessment plan 
to provide permission to complete the assessment process.  Assessments may begin immediately 
upon receipt of the signed plan. 
 
Under Education Code Section 56344(a), an individualized education program required as a result 
of an assessment of a pupil shall be developed within a total time not to exceed 60 days, not 
counting days between the pupil s regular school sessions, terms, or days of school vacation in 
excess of five schooldays, from the date of receipt of the parent s written consent for assessment, 
unless the parent agrees, in writing, to an extension. However, an individualized education 
program required as a result of an assessment of a pupil shall be developed within 30 days after 
the commencement of the subsequent regular school year as determined by each local educational 
agency s school calendar for each pupil for whom a referral has been made 30 days or less prior to 
the end of the regular school year. In the case of pupil school vacations, the 60-day time shall 
recommence on the date that pupil schooldays reconvene. A meeting to develop an initial 
individualized education program for the pupil shall be conducted within 30 days of a 
determination that the pupil needs special education and related services pursuant to Section 
300.323(c)(1) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations. 
Infant:  Birth to Three Years 
If a parent refers an infant, birth to three years, to a district for possible special education services, 
they are referred directly to the Early Start Program at Inland Regional Center.  If it is clearly 
evident that the infant has a solely low incidence disability, such as hearing loss, vision loss, or 
orthopedic disability, the parent is referred directly to San Bernardino County operated Early Start 
program.  At this time, an Early Start Program Referral Form is completed, and the timelines for 
the referral process begin. 
 
Section 504 
Students may be referred for assessment under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 by 
parents, guardians, school staff, or agency.  Each district has defined written Section 504 
procedures to assess and meet the educational needs of general education students who are 
otherwise disabled due to a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more 
major life activities. 
 
 

Section C – The Student Study Team (Or as 
Designated by the District) 
 
EC 56303 A pupil shall be referred for special education instruction and services only after the 
resources of the regular education program have been considered and, where appropriate, 
utilized. 
 

D-5

169



Page 13 of 233 
 

Procedures have been developed in the individual districts for the receipt and processing of 
referrals for special education assessment.  In all districts, the school site Student Study Team 
(SST) meets regarding students for whom there are concerns. The team addresses the 
implementation and level of success of the general education classroom program interventions and 
available general education resources and programs, including categorical programs.  When the 
Student Study Team determines that general education interventions and resources have been 
exhausted, or the interventions, accommodations and/or modifications available are not 
appropriate, the Student Study Team or classroom teacher refers the student for an assessment for 
special education services. The parent is informed and encouraged to be a part of the Student Study 
Team process.  Parents are notified if a referral for a special education assessment is made by the 
team. 
 
The Student Study Team, or as designated by the district, is a regularly scheduled, structured 
meeting of general educators, supported by special education and other staff as appropriate.  Their 
purpose is to provide an effective support system in general education that will generate effective 
interventions for students who are experiencing challenges in learning or behavior difficulties at 
school.  The Student Study Team process is designed to meet the needs of all students and result 
in a team action plan to ensure student success.  The structure of the Student Study Team may be 
designed to fit the needs of individual school sites.  Team membership varies according to the 
needs of the student, but should include the people that can best support the student and the 
classroom teacher.  The majority of the team membership must be composed of general education 
teachers and should include the following team members:  the student’s classroom teacher(s), an 
administrator, the parent(s), the student, and in the case of an elementary school student, an upper 
grade teacher, and a lower grade teacher.  When appropriate, specialists and any others potentially 
providing support to the student, should be included.  
 
The Intervention process begins with a request from a teacher, counselor, parent, agency 
representative, or student that a concern has been identified.  Once the request is made, the school’s 
first-level intervention plan is implemented. It is important to note that a request does not 
automatically initiate a SST meeting.  If the concerns can be resolved without a SST meeting, then 
the student is monitored for successful progress.  If the concerns are not resolved, SST meeting 
preparation is started.  For the team to have optimum information to consider, the student’s teacher 
should provide essential information about the student to the SST team.  During the meeting, a 
group memory format is an effective practice to utilize to assist the team in efficient documentation 
of ideas generated during the meeting.  The team will develop an action plan that shall include a 
follow-up meeting to review the progress of the student for whom there are concerns.  The action 
plan should be evaluated at this meeting and a determination made if any further follow-up is 
necessary.  See forms located at the end of this chapter. 
 
 

D-5

170



Page 14 of 233 
 

Section D – Interim Placement 
 
EC 56325(a)(1) As required by subclause (I) of clause (i) of subparagraph (C) of paragraph (2) 
of subsection (d) of Section 1414 of Title 20 of the United States Code, the following shall apply 
to special education programs for individuals with exceptional needs who transfer from district to 
district within the state.  In the case of an individual with exceptional needs who has an 
individualized education program and transfers into a district from a district not operating 
programs under the same local plan in which he or she was last enrolled in a special education 
program within the same academic year, the local educational agency shall provide the pupil with 
a free appropriate public education, including services comparable to those described in the 
previously approved individualized education program, in consultation with the parents, for a 
period not to exceed 30 days, by which time the local educational agency shall adopt the previously 
approved individualized education program or shall develop, adopt, and implement a new 
individualized education program that is consistent with federal and state law. 
 
(2) In the case of an individual with exceptional needs who has an individualized education 
program and transfers into a district from a district operating programs under the same special 
education local plan area of the district in which he or she was last enrolled in a special education 
program within the same academic year, the new district shall continue, without delay, to provide 
services comparable to those described in the existing approved individualized education 
program, unless the parent and the local educational agency agree to develop, adopt, and 
implement a new individualized education program that is consistent with federal and state law. 
 
(3) As required by subclause (II) of clause (i) of subparagraph (C) of paragraph (2) of subsection 
(d) of Section 1414 of Title 20 of the United States Code, the following shall apply to special 
education programs for individuals with exceptional needs who transfer from an educational 
agency located outside the State of California to a district within California.  In the case of an 
individual with exceptional needs who transfers from district to district within the same academic 
year, the local educational agency shall provide the pupil with a free appropriate public education, 
including services comparable to those described in the previously approved individualized 
education program, in consultation with the parents, until the local educational agency conducts 
an assessment pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of Section 1414 of Title 20 of the United 
States Code, if determined to be necessary by the local educational agency, and develops a new 
individualized education program, if appropriate, that is consistent with federal and state law. 
 
EC 56325(b)(1) To facilitate the transition for an individual with exceptional needs described in 
subdivision (a), the new school in which the individual with exceptional needs enrolls shall take 
reasonable steps to promptly obtain the pupil's records, including the individualized education 
program and supporting documents and any other records relating to the provision of special 
education and related services to the pupil, from the previous school in which the pupil was 
enrolled, pursuant to paragraph (2) of subsection (a) of Section 99.31 of Title 34 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations. 
(2) The previous school in which the individual with exceptional needs was enrolled shall take 
reasonable steps to promptly respond to the request from the new school.(c) If whenever a pupil 
described in subdivision (a) was placed and residing in a residential nonpublic, nonsectarian 
school, prior to transferring to a district in another special education local plan area, and this 
placement is not eligible for funding pursuant to Section 56836.16, the special education local 

D-5

171



Page 15 of 233 
 

plan area that contains the district that made the residential nonpublic, nonsectarian school 
placement is responsible for the funding of the placement, including related services, for the 
remainder of the school year.  An extended year session is included in the school year in which 
the session ends. 

 
 
Due to changes in IDEA 2004 the procedures for placing students who transfer from one district 
to another have changed. Districts now must look at whether the student is coming from within 
the same SELPA or outside the SELPA, and at whether they are coming from within the state or 
outside the state.  
 
Students moving from one district within the West End SELPA to another district within the West 
End SELPA, within the same academic school year, shall be placed without delay in a comparable 
program based on the current, existing IEP.  There is no requirement to hold a new IEP meeting 
unless the district and parent determine there is a need to develop a new IEP.   
 
Students moving from a district outside the SELPA, but within the State, within the same academic 
year, with an existing IEP shall be placed in a comparable program for a timeline not to exceed 
thirty days.  The student’s program shall be based on the sending district’s current goals and 
objectives with the appropriate supports and services.  Within thirty days, the receiving district 
must adopt the previous IEP, or develop and implement a new IEP. 
 
Students moving from a district outside the state within the same academic year with an existing 
IEP shall be provided services comparable to those described in the previous IEP, until the district, 
if necessary, conducts an evaluation to determine if the student meets eligibility and identifies their 
educational needs, and develops a new IEP.  If the district determines the need to conduct an 
evaluation, it is considered to be an initial evaluation.  
 
In order to facilitate the transfer of a student transferring from another district, the new district 
must take steps to obtain the records relating to the provision of special education from the district 
where the student was previously enrolled.  If the district is unable to obtain the IEP from the 
previous district or the parent, the district must place the student in a regular education program 
and conduct an evaluation to determine eligibility and special education services.   
 
At the interim IEP review meeting, all aspects of the IEP need to be reviewed.  New goals and 
objectives can be developed or the previous ones continued if those goals continue to be in 
accordance with the student’s needs.  If the previous goals and objectives are accepted, the next 
annual review date must align with the previous goal review date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

172



Page 16 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A: Special Education Timelines 

 
 

Develop  a proposed
assessment plan 
Within 15 calendar
days of referral for
assessment*, unless
parent or guardian
agrees in writing to an
extension
EC 56043(a)

Need parent consent to
proposed assessment
plan 
Parent or guardian
shall have at least 15
calendar days from
the receipt of the
proposed assessment
plan to arrive at a
decision
56321(c)(4)

SPECIAL EDUCATION TIMELINES IN CALIFORNIA

DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS

Records request from
new district/LEA
where student has
enrolled
Within 5 working
days after receipt of
records
EC 56043(o)

Provide access to
copies of student
records
Within 5 business
days of oral or written
request from parent(s)
EC 56043(n), EC
56504

Conduct a
Manifestation
Determination Review
Within 10 school days
after the decision is
made for disciplinary
change of placement
34 C.F.R. 300.530 (e)

Send parents IEP
meeting notice
“Early enough to
ensure an opportunity
to attend” the IEP
meeting. 
10 days is generally
considered reasonable
and best practice 
EC 56302.1(e), EC
56341.5(b)

IEP Team Meeting to
review initial
assessments
30 days to develop the
IEP after
determination that
student needs special
education
EC 56043(f)(2), EC
56344(a)

Interim Placement or
30-day Review
Within 30 days of a
student transfer from
a different SELPA,
team must meet to
decide whether to
adopt prior IEP or
develop new IEP. 
EC 56325(a)(1)
(timeline applies only
to transfers within CA,
but not within
SELPA)

Convene Parent-
requested IEP Team
Meeting
Within 30 calendar
days of written
request from parent.
Tolled for school
breaks >5 school days. 
EC 56043(l), EC
56343.5

Respond to IEE
request
30 days is generally
considered reasonable
and best practice
34 C.F.R. 300.502(b)

Notice of student’s
graduation from high
school with diploma
30 days is generally
considered reasonable
and best practice
EC 56500.5

Convene IEP Team
meeting to review
initial assessments 
60 calendar days after
receipt of signed
assessment plan
EC 56043(c), EC
56302.1

IEP Team Meeting to
review re-assessment
(including reevaluation
assessments)
60 calendar days after
receipt of parent
consent to assessment
plan. Tolled for
school breaks in
excess of 5 school
days. If referral
received 30 days or
fewer before end of
school year, then due
within the first 30
days of next school
year. 
EC 56043(f)(1), EC
56343(a), EC 56344(a) 

5 10 15 30 60

“WITHIN A REASONABLE AMOUNT OF
TIME,” ETC.

Individual Transition
Plan (IEP) in IEP
Must be in IEP when
the student turns 16
EC 56043(h), EC
56345(a)(8)

Inform Student of
transfer of rights at
age 18
Must be in IEP when
student turns 17
EC 56041.5,
EC56043(g)(3), EC
56345(g)

IEP Team Meeting to
review student’s lack
of anticipated progress
No statutory timeline
EC 56343(b)

Obtain transfer
records
No statutory timeline
EC 56325(b)

Implement the IEP 
“As soon as possible”
after receipt of parent
consent
EC 56043(i), EC
56344(b)

Inter-district transfer
within SELPA
Implement the IEP
without delay
EC 56325(a)(2)

D-5

173



Page 17 of 233 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA – INDIVIDUALS 
WITH EXCEPTIONAL NEEDS  
 

SECTION A STATE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
 

SECTION B STATE DEFINITION OF SPECIAL EDUCATION  

SECTION C CONSIDERATIONS FOR SLD AND ED ELIGIBILITY  

SECTION D DISMISSAL FROM SPECIAL EDUCATION AND 
SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT                                                                 

 

APPENDIX A FORM LETTERS FOR USE WHEN STUDENTS EXIT 
SPECIAL EDUCATION OR GRADUATE  

APPENDIX B SPECIFIC LEARNING DISABILITY-DISCREPANCY 
RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION, PATTERNS OF 
STRENGTHS & WEAKNESSES DOCUMENTATION 
REPORT FORM  

 

APPENDIX C PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE DUE TO PARENT 
REVOCATION OF CONSENT FOR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION         

 

 
 

 
D-5

174



Page 18 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
Eligibility for special education is determined by the IEP team based upon a variety of sources of 
information. The student must be identified as meeting the criteria for one of the 13 handicapping 
conditions identified in CFR 300.8. and the student’s disability must adversely affect the student’s 
educational performance, such that the student is in need of special education services in order to 
benefit from his/her education.  If a student only requires a related service and not special 
education, then the student is not a student with a disability, unless the related service is considered 
special education under state standards.  In addition, a student may not be considered as having a 
disability if the reason for his difficulties is due to a lack of appropriate instruction or limited 
proficiency in English.   
 
The IEP team shall take into account all assessment information and use no single score or product 
of scores as the sole criterion for making a decision regarding the student’s eligibility for special 
education.  Once the IEP team has made a determination that both of these areas are satisfied, a 
student may be identified as a student with exceptional needs.  Processes and procedures for 
assessment are outlined in Chapter Two of this Procedural Manual. 
 
A student remains eligible for special education and related services for as long as the student 
continues to have a disability and requires special education services. The IEP team must 
determine if a student is a student with a disability at least every three years.   This entitlement 
remains in effect until the student reaches the maximum age for services, or when he/she graduates 
from high school with a regular high school diploma.   
 
Education Code 56026 (c)(4)(A) (C) states any person who becomes twenty-two (22) years of age 
during the months of January to June, inclusive, while participating in a program under this part 
may continue his or her participation in the program for the remainder of the current fiscal year, 
including any extended school year program.  A special education student shall not be allowed to 
begin a new fiscal year in a program if he or she becomes twenty-two (22) years of age in July, 
August, or September of that new fiscal year. However, if a student is in a year-round school 
program and is completing his or her IEP in a term that extends into the new fiscal year, then the 
person may complete that term.  Any person who becomes twenty-two (22) years of age during 
the months of October, November, or December while participating in a program under this act 
shall be terminated from the program on December 31 of the current fiscal year, unless the person 
would otherwise complete his or her individualized education program at the end of the current 
fiscal year. 
 
This chapter describes each of the disabling conditions as identified in CFR 300.8 and the criteria 
for meeting eligibility for special education services. 

D-5

175



Page 19 of 233 
 

Section A – State Eligibility Criteria  
 
CCR 3030 
(a) A child shall qualify as an individual with exceptional needs, pursuant to Education Code 
section 56026, if the results of the assessment as required by Education Code 
section 56320 demonstrate that the degree of the child's impairment as described in subdivisions 
(b)(1) through (b)(13) requires special education in one or more of the program options 
authorized by Education Code section 56361. The decision as to whether or not the assessment 
results demonstrate that the degree of the child's impairment requires special education shall be 
made by the IEP team, including personnel in accordance with Education Code section 56341(b). 
The IEP team shall take into account all the relevant material which is available on the child. No 
single score or product of scores shall be used as the sole criterion for the decision of the IEP 
team as to the child's eligibility for special education. 
(b) The disability terms used in defining an individual with exceptional needs are as follows: 
 
(1) Autism means a developmental disability significantly affecting verbal and nonverbal 
communication and social interaction, generally evident before age three, and adversely affecting 
a child's educational performance. Other characteristics often associated with autism are 
engagement in repetitive activities and stereotyped movements, resistance to environmental 
change or change in daily routines, and unusual responses to sensory experiences. 

(A) Autism does not apply if a child's educational performance is adversely affected 
primarily because the child has an emotional disability, as defined in subdivision (b)(4) of 
this section. 
(B) A child who manifests the characteristics of autism after age three could be identified 
as having autism if the criteria in subdivision (b)(1) of this section are satisfied. 
 

(2) Deaf-blindness means concomitant hearing and visual impairments, the combination of 
which causes such severe communication and other developmental and educational needs that 
they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for children with deafness or 
children with blindness. 
 
(3) Deafness means a hearing impairment that is so severe that the child is impaired in 
processing linguistic information through hearing, with or without amplification that adversely 
affects a child's educational performance. 
 
(4) Emotional disability means a condition exhibiting one or more of the following 
characteristics over a long period of time and to a marked degree that adversely affects a child's 
educational performance: 

(A) An inability to learn that cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, or health 
factors. 
(B) An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers 
and teachers. 
(C) Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances. 
(D) A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression. 
(E) A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school 
problems. 

D-5

176



Page 20 of 233 
 

(F) Emotional disability includes schizophrenia. The term does not apply to children who 
are socially maladjusted, unless it is determined that they have an emotional disability 
under subdivision (b)(4) of this section. 
 

(5) Hearing impairment means an impairment in hearing, whether permanent or fluctuating, that 
adversely affects a child's educational performance but that is not included under the definition 
of deafness in this section. 
 
(6) Intellectual disability means significantly subaverage general intellectual functioning, 
existing concurrently with deficits in adaptive behavior and manifested during the developmental 
period that adversely affects a child's educational performance. 
 
(7) Multiple disabilities means concomitant impairments, such as intellectual disability-blindness 
or intellectual disability-orthopedic impairment, the combination of which causes such severe 
educational needs that they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for 
one of the impairments. "Multiple disabilities" does not include deaf-blindness. 
 
(8) Orthopedic impairment means a severe orthopedic impairment that adversely affects a child's 
educational performance. The term includes impairments caused by a congenital anomaly, 
impairments caused by disease (e.g., poliomyelitis, bone tuberculosis), and impairments from 
other causes (e.g., cerebral palsy, amputations, and fractures or burns that cause contractures). 
 
(9) Other health impairment means having limited strength, vitality, or alertness, including a 
heightened alertness to environmental stimuli, that results in limited alertness with respect to the 
educational environment that: 

(A) Is due to chronic or acute health problems such as asthma, attention deficit disorder 
or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, diabetes, epilepsy, fetal alcohol spectrum 
disorder, a heart condition, hemophilia, lead poisoning, leukemia, nephritis, rheumatic 
fever, sickle cell anemia, and Tourette syndrome; and 
(B) Adversely affects a child's educational performance. 
 

(10) Specific learning disability means a disorder in one or more of the basic psychological 
processes involved in understanding or in using language, spoken or written, that may have 
manifested itself in the imperfect ability to listen, think, speak, read, write, spell, or do 
mathematical calculations, including conditions such as perceptual disabilities, brain injury, 
minimal brain dysfunction, dyslexia, and developmental aphasia. The basic psychological 
processes include attention, visual processing, auditory processing, phonological processing, 
sensory-motor skills, cognitive abilities including association, conceptualization and expression. 

(A) Specific learning disabilities do not include learning problems that are primarily the 
result of visual, hearing, or motor disabilities, of intellectual disability, of emotional 
disability, or of environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage. 
(B) In determining whether a pupil has a specific learning disability, the public agency 
may consider whether a pupil has a severe discrepancy between intellectual ability and 
achievement in oral expression, listening comprehension, written expression, basic 
reading skill, reading comprehension, mathematical calculation, or mathematical 
reasoning. The decision as to whether or not a severe discrepancy exists shall take into 
account all relevant material which is available on the pupil. No single score or product 
of scores, test or procedure shall be used as the sole criterion for the decisions of the IEP 

D-5

177



Page 21 of 233 
 

team as to the pupil's eligibility for special education. In determining the existence of a 
severe discrepancy, the IEP team shall use the following procedures: 

1. When standardized tests are considered to be valid for a specific pupil, a severe 
discrepancy is demonstrated by: first, converting into common standard scores, 
using a mean of 100 and standard deviation of 15, the achievement test score and 
the intellectual ability test score to be compared; second, computing the difference 
between these common standard scores; and third, comparing this computed 
difference to the standard criterion which is the product of 1.5 multiplied by the 
standard deviation of the distribution of computed differences of students taking 
these achievement and ability tests. A computed difference which equals or 
exceeds this standard criterion, adjusted by one standard error of measurement, 
the adjustment not to exceed 4 common standard score points, indicates a severe 
discrepancy when such discrepancy is corroborated by other assessment data 
which may include other tests, scales, instruments, observations and work 
samples, as appropriate. 
2. When standardized tests are considered to be invalid for a specific pupil, the 
discrepancy shall be measured by alternative means as specified on the 
assessment plan. 
3. If the standardized tests do not reveal a severe discrepancy as defined in 
subdivisions 1. or 2. above, the IEP team may find that a severe discrepancy does 
exist, provided that the team documents in a written report that the severe 
discrepancy between ability and achievement exists as a result of a disorder in one 
or more of the basic psychological processes. The report shall include a statement 
of the area, the degree, and the basis and method used in determining the 
discrepancy. The report shall contain information considered by the team which 
shall include, but not be limited to: 

(i) Data obtained from standardized assessment instruments; 
(ii) Information provided by the parent; 
(iii) Information provided by the pupil's present teacher; 
(iv) Evidence of the pupil's performance in the regular and/or special 
education classroom obtained from observations, work samples, and group 
test scores; 
(v) Consideration of the pupil's age, particularly for young children; and 
(vi) Any additional relevant information. 

4. A severe discrepancy shall not be primarily the result of limited school 
experience or poor school attendance. 

(C) Whether or not a pupil exhibits a severe discrepancy as described in 
subdivision (b)(10)(B) above, a pupil may be determined to have a 
specific learning disability if: 
1. The pupil does not achieve adequately for the pupil's age or to meet 
State-approved grade-level standards in one or more of the following 
areas, when provided with learning experiences and instruction 
appropriate for the pupil's age or State-approved grade-level standards: 
(i) Oral expression. 
(ii) Listening comprehension. 
(iii) Written expression. 
(iv) Basic reading skill. 
(v) Reading fluency skills. 
(vi) Reading comprehension. 

D-5

178

https://www.law.cornell.edu/regulations/california/5-CCR-1


Page 22 of 233 
 

(vii) Mathematics calculation. 
(viii) Mathematics problem solving, and 
2.(i) The pupil does not make sufficient progress to meet age or State-
approved grade-level standards in one or more of the areas identified in 
subdivision (b)(10)(C)(1) of this section when using a process based on 
the pupil's response to scientific, research-based intervention; or 

(ii) The pupil exhibits a pattern of strengths and weaknesses in performance, 
achievement, or both, relative to age, State-approved grade-level standards, or 
intellectual development, that is determined by the group to be relevant to the 
identification of a specific learning disability, using appropriate assessments, 
consistent with 34 C.F.R. sections 300.304 and 300.305; and 
3. The findings under subdivisions (b)(10)(C)(1) and (2) of this section are not 
primarily the result of: 
(i) A visual, hearing, or motor disability; 
(ii) Intellectual disability; 
(iii) Emotional disability; 
(iv) Cultural factors; 
(v) Environmental or economic disadvantage; or (vi) Limited English proficiency. 
4. To ensure that underachievement in a pupil suspected of having a specific 
learning disability is not due to lack of appropriate instruction in reading or math, 
the group making the decision must consider: 
(i) Data that demonstrate that prior to, or as a part of, the referral process, the 
pupil was provided appropriate instruction in regular education settings, delivered 
by qualified personnel; and 
(ii) Data-based documentation of repeated assessments of achievement at 
reasonable intervals, reflecting formal assessment of student progress during 
instruction, which was provided to the pupil's parents. 
5. In determining whether a pupil has a specific learning disability, the public 
agency must ensure that the pupil is observed in the pupil's learning environment 
in accordance with 34 C.F.R. section 300.310. In the case of a child of less than 
school age or out of school, a qualified professional must observe the child in an 
environment appropriate for a child of that age. The eligibility determination must 
be documented in accordance with 34 C.F.R. section 300.311. 
 

(11) A pupil has a language or speech disorder as defined in Education Code section 56333, and 
it is determined that the pupil's disorder meets one or more of the following criteria: 

(A) Articulation disorder. 
1. The pupil displays reduced intelligibility or an inability to use the speech mechanism 
which significantly interferes with communication and attracts adverse attention. 
Significant interference in communication occurs when the pupil's production of single or 
multiple speech sounds on a developmental scale of articulation competency is below that 
expected for his or her chronological age or developmental level, and which adversely 
affects educational performance. 
2. A pupil does not meet the criteria for an articulation disorder if the sole assessed 
disability is an abnormal swallowing pattern. 
(B) Abnormal Voice. A pupil has an abnormal voice which is characterized by persistent, 
defective voice quality, pitch, or loudness. 

D-5

179

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.304
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.305
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.310
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/34/300.311


Page 23 of 233 
 

(C) Fluency Disorders. A pupil has a fluency disorder when the flow of verbal expression 
including rate and rhythm adversely affects communication between the pupil and 
listener. 
(D) Language Disorder. The pupil has an expressive or receptive language disorder when 
he or she meets one of the following criteria: 
1. The pupil scores at least 1.5 standard deviations below the mean, or below the 7th 
percentile, for his or her chronological age or developmental level on two or more 
standardized tests in one or more of the following areas of language development: 
morphology, syntax, semantics, or pragmatics. When standardized tests are considered to 
be invalid for the specific pupil, the expected language performance level shall be 
determined by alternative means as specified on the assessment plan, or 
2. The pupil scores at least 1.5 standard deviations below the mean or the score is below 
the 7th percentile for his or her chronological age or developmental level on one or more 
standardized tests in one of the areas listed in subdivision (A) and displays inappropriate 
or inadequate usage of expressive or receptive language as measured by a representative 
spontaneous or elicited language sample of a minimum of 50 utterances. The language 
sample must be recorded or transcribed and analyzed, and the results included in the 
assessment report. If the pupil is unable to produce this sample, the language, speech, and 
hearing specialist shall document why a fifty utterance sample was not obtainable and the 
contexts in which attempts were made to elicit the sample. When standardized tests are 
considered to be invalid for the specific pupil, the expected language performance level 
shall be determined by alternative means as specified in the assessment plan. 
 

(12) Traumatic brain injury means an acquired injury to the brain caused by an external physical 
force, resulting in total or partial functional disability or psychosocial impairment, or both, that 
adversely affects a child's educational performance. Traumatic brain injury applies to open or 
closed head injuries resulting in impairments in one or more areas, such as cognition; language; 
memory; attention; reasoning; abstract thinking; judgment; problem-solving; sensory, perceptual, 
and motor abilities; psychosocial behavior; physical functions; information processing; and 
speech. 
(A) Traumatic brain injury does not apply to brain injuries that are congenital or degenerative, or 
to brain injuries induced by birth trauma. 
 
(13) Visual impairment including blindness means an impairment in vision that, even with 
correction, adversely affects a child's educational performance. The term includes both partial 
sight and blindness. 
 
 
Note: Authority cited: Section 56100, Education Code. Reference: Sections 56026, 56320, 
56333 and 56337, Education Code; 20 U.S.C. Sections 1401(3)(A) and 1414(a) and (b); and 34 
C.F.R. Sections 300.8, 300.300, 300.301, 300.304, 300.305, 300.306, 300.307, 300.308, 
300.309 and 300.311. 
 

 
 
 
 

D-5

180



Page 24 of 233 
 

Eligibility Requirements for Preschool Children 
EC 6441.11 

 

(a)     Notwithstanding any other provision of law or regulation, the special education eligibility 
criteria in subdivision (b) shall apply to preschool children, between the ages of three and 
five years. 

 
(b)    A preschool child, between the ages of three and five years, qualifies as a child who needs 

early childhood special education services if the child meets the following criteria: 
 

(1) Is identified as having one of the following disabling conditions, as defined 
in Section 300.7 of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, or an 
established medical disability, as defined in subdivision (d): 
(A) Autism 
(B) Deaf-blindness 
(C) Deafness 
(D) Hearing impairment 
(E) Mental retardation  
(F) Multiple disabilities 
(G) Orthopedic impairment  
(H) Other health impairment 
(I) Emotional disability 
(J) Specific learning disability 
(K) Speech or language impairment in one or more of voice, 

fluency, language and articulation 
(L) Traumatic brain injury 
(M) Visual impairment 
(N) Established medical disability 

 
(2) Needs specially designed instruction or services as defined in Sections 56441.2 
and 

56441.3. 
 

(3) Has needs that cannot be met with modification of a regular environment in 
the home or school, or both, without ongoing monitoring or support as 
determined by an individualized education program team pursuant to Section 
56431. 

 

(4) Meets eligibility criteria specified in Section 3030 of Title 5 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

 

(c)    A child is not eligible for special education and services if the child does not otherwise 
meet the eligibility criteria and his or her educational needs are due primarily to: 

(1) Unfamiliarity with English language 
(2) Temporary physical disabilities 
(3) Social maladjustment 
(4) Environmental, cultural, or economic factors 

 

D-5

181



Page 25 of 233 
 

(d)       For purposes of this section, "established medical disability" is defined as a disabling 
medical condition or congenital syndrome that the individualized education program team 
determines has a high predictability of requiring special education and services. 

 
(e)       When standardized tests are considered invalid for children between the ages of three 

and five years, alternative means, for example, scales, instruments, observations, and 
interviews shall be used as specified in the assessment plan. 

 

Section B – State Definition of Special Education 
 
EC 56031 (a) “Special education,” in accordance with Section 1401 (29) of Title 20 of the United 
States Code, means specially designed instruction, at no cost to the parent, to meet the unique 
needs of individuals with exceptional needs, including instruction conducted in the classroom, in 
the home, in hospitals and institutions, and other settings, and instruction in physical education.  
   (b) In accordance with Section 300.39 of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, special 
education includes each of the following, if the services otherwise meet the requirements of 
subdivision (a): 
   (1) Speech-language pathology services, or any other designated instruction and service or 
related service, pursuant to Section 56363, if the service is considered special education rather 
than a designated instruction and service or related service under state standards. 
   (2) Travel training 
   (3) Vocational education 
   (c) Transition services for individuals with exceptional needs may be special education, in 
accordance with Section 300.43(b) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, if provided as 
specially designed instruction, or a related service, if required to assist an individual with 
exceptional needs to benefit from special education. 
 (d) Individuals with exceptional needs shall be grouped for instructional purposes according to 
their instructional needs. 
 
 

Section C – IEP Team Considerations 
 
Specific Learning Disabilities 
 
IDEA 2004 made significant changes to the process for determining whether a student has a 
specific learning disability, by removing the requirement for a discrepancy between intellectual 
ability and achievement and allowing the use of a process that looks at whether the student 
responds to research based intervention.  IDEA 2004 also specified additional procedures that are 
required when making the determination of a specific learning disability.   
 
Determination of a specific learning disabilities is now a three-prong inquiry.  First, it must be 
determined that when provided with learning experiences and instruction appropriate for the 
child’s age or grade level, the student does not achieve adequately for their age, or meet state grade 
level standards in one or more of the following areas:   
 

1.  Oral expression 
2.  Listening comprehension 

D-5

182



Page 26 of 233 
 

3.  Written expression 
4.  Basic reading skill 
5.  Reading fluency skill 
6.  Reading comprehension 
7.  Mathematics calculation 
8.  Mathematics problem solving 

 

Second, one of the following must be true.: 
1. The student does not make adequate progress to meet age or grade level standards in one of 

the areas above, when using a process based on the child’s response to research based 
intervention.  This process is commonly referred to as response to intervention (RTI).…or 

 
2. The student demonstrates a pattern of strengths and weaknesses in performance, achievement, 

or both relative to their age grade level standards or intellectual development which is 
considered to be characteristic of a specific learning disability.   

Third the student’s difficulty may not be the result of any of the following factors: 
 
1. a visual, hearing or motor disability 
2 intellectual disability 
3 emotional disability 
4 cultural factors 
5 environmental or economic disadvantage 
6 limited English proficiency   
 

When making a determination of a specific learning disability, there are additional procedures that 
are required in addition to the evaluation requirements outlined in Chapter 3.  The team making 
the eligibility determination must analyze data regarding the student’s instruction, conduct an 
observation of the student in the regular classroom and document their determination.  
 

In order to ensure that the performance deficits of a student are not due to lack of appropriate 
instruction, the team is now required to consider data that demonstrates that the student was 
provided appropriate instruction by qualified personnel.  They must also review the results of 
repeated, formal assessment of the student’s instructional progress.  
 

An evaluation of a student suspected of having a specific learning disability must also include an 
observation of the student in their learning environment, including the regular education 
classroom.  This observation must document the student’s academic performance and behavior in 
their areas of difficulty.  This observation must be made by a member of the IEP team which 
determines eligibility. If a student is not school age or out of school, the observation must take 
place in an environment that is age appropriate. 
 

The IEP team determining that a student is eligible as a student with a specific learning disability 
must also document that decision in writing. The form for that documentation is found in the SEIS 
computerized IEP used by the districts in the West End SELPA, and is included in Appendix B of 
this chapter.  Each member of the IEP team must certify their agreement with the determination; 
if any member does not agree they must submit a separate statement documenting their 
conclusions.    
 

 

D-5

183



Page 27 of 233 
 

Emotional Disability  
 
Emotional disability means a condition exhibiting one or more of the following characteristics 
over a long period of time 
and to a marked degree that adversely affects a child's educational performance: 
a) An inability to learn that cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, or health factors. 
b) An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers and 
teachers. 
c) Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances. 
d) A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression. 
e) A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal 
or school problems. 
Emotional disability includes schizophrenia. The term does 
not apply to children who are socially maladjusted, unless it is determined that they have an 
emotional disability 
A student is eligible under emotional disability if she exhibits one or more of the following 
characteristics, over a long period of time and to a marked degree, which adversely affects 
educational performance: 
An inability to learn which cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, or health factors; 
An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers and teachers; 
Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances exhibited in several 
situations; 
A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression; and 
A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school problems.  
[34 C.F.R. Sec. 300.8(c)(4); 5 C.C.R. Sec. 3030(b)(4).]  
 
 

Section D – Dismissal from Special Education 
 
20 U.S.C. Section 1414(c)(5) 
(A) In general 
Except as provided in subparagraph (B), a local educational agency shall evaluate a child with a 
disability in accordance with this section before determining that the child is no longer a child with 
a disability. 
(B) Exception 

(i) In general 

The evaluation described in subparagraph (A) shall not be required before the termination 
of a child's eligibility under this subchapter due to graduation from secondary school with a 
regular diploma, or due to exceeding the age eligibility for a free appropriate public 
education under State law. 

(ii) Summary of performance 
For a child whose eligibility under this subchapter terminates under circumstances 
described in clause (i), a local educational agency shall provide the child with a summary 
of the child's academic achievement and functional performance, which shall include 
recommendations on how to assist the child in meeting the child's postsecondary goals. 

D-5

184



Page 28 of 233 
 

A student may be dismissed from special education when, based on an evaluation of the student, 
the IEP team determines the needs which were originally identified when the student was initially 
found eligible for special education have been addressed to the extent that the student can access 
and progress in the general education curriculum without special education services.  When a 
student is transitioning from special education to general education classes the IEP team must 
provide a description of the process that includes activities/supports necessary to support the 
transition of the student.   
 

A student’s eligibility for special education also terminates when a student graduates from high 
school with a regular diploma, or reaches the maximum age for services.  The LEA is not required 
to conduct an evaluation in these cases, but must provide prior written notice of the change in 
placement and must provide the student with a summary of their academic and functional 
performance.  Sample letters to use when a student is graduating or has reached the maximum age 
for service, and the Summary of Performance are included in Appendix A.     
 
References:  34CFR 300.8; CCR 3030; EC 56026, 56031, 56337, 56345, 56381; and 20 U.S.C. 
§1414 (c)(5). 
 

SECTION 504 – REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this guideline is to provide information regarding students who may meet the 
eligibility criteria under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 
 

Background 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) is a Federal civil rights statute 
which prohibits discrimination/harassment on the basis of a disability in any program or activity 
receiving federal financial assistance. Section 504 requires that school districts provide a free 
appropriate public education (FAPE) to qualified students in their jurisdictions who have a 
physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities. 
 
A student with a disability under Section 504 means any student who: 

• Has a mental or physical disability, which substantially limits one or more of the 
student’s major life activities;  

• Has a record of such a disability; or 
• Is regarded as having such a disability. 

 
In public elementary and secondary schools, unless a student actually has an impairment that 
substantially limits a major life activity, the mere fact that a student has a "record of" or is 
"regarded as" disabled is insufficient, in itself, to trigger those Section 504 protections that 
require the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE).  
 
The determination of whether a student has a physical or mental impairment that substantially 
limits a major life activity must be made on the basis of an individual inquiry. The Section 504 
regulatory provision  at 34 C.F.R. 104.3(j)(2)(i) defines a physical or mental impairment as any 

D-5

185



Page 29 of 233 
 

physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or 
more of the following body systems: neurological; musculoskeletal; special sense organs; 
respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular; reproductive; digestive; genito-urinary; 
hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine; or any mental or psychological disorder, such as 
intellectual disabilities, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific 
learning disabilities. The regulatory provision does not set forth an exhaustive list of specific 
diseases and conditions that may constitute physical or mental impairments because of the 
difficulty of ensuring the comprehensiveness of such a list. 
 
Major life activities, as defined in the Section 504 regulations at 34 C.F.R. 104.3(j)(2)(ii), 
include functions such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, 
hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, and working. This list is not exhaustive. Other functions 
can be major life activities for purposes of Section 504.  Congress has provided additional 
examples of general activities that are major life activities, including eating, sleeping, standing, 
lifting, bending, reading, concentrating, thinking, and communicating. Congress also provided 
a non-exhaustive list of examples of “major bodily functions” that are major life activities, such 
as the functions of the immune system, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, 
neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, endocrine, and reproductive functions.  This list of 
examples of major life activities is not exclusive, and an activity or function not specifically 
listed in the Section 504 regulatory provision can nonetheless be a major life activity 
 

Section 504 sets forth evaluation procedures to determine eligibility. The Section 504 regulatory 
provision at 34 C.F.R. 104.35(b) requires school districts to individually evaluate a student 
before classifying the student as having a disability or providing the student with special 
education. Tests used for this purpose must be selected and administered so as best to ensure 
that the test results accurately reflect the student's aptitude or achievement or other factor being 
measured rather than reflect the student's disability, except where those are the factors being 
measured. Section 504 also requires that tests and other evaluation materials include those 
tailored to evaluate the specific areas of educational need and not merely those designed to 
provide a single intelligence quotient. The tests and other evaluation materials must be validated 
for the specific purpose for which they are used and appropriately administered by trained 
personnel. 
 

Section 504 also sets forth procedures to develop an accommodations plan, If a student is 
eligible under IDEA, he or she must have an IEP. Under the Section 504 regulations, one way 
to meet Section 504 requirements for a free appropriate public education is to implement an 
IEP, a separate Section 504 plan is not required. 
 
Section 504 also provides procedural protections for students and parents. For example, OCR 
has interpreted Section 504 to require districts to obtain parental permission for initial 
evaluations. Section 504 also requires districts to provide notice to parents explaining any 
evaluation and placement decisions affecting their children and explaining the parents' right to 
review educational records and appeal any decision regarding evaluation and placement through 
an impartial hearing.  

D-5

186



Page 30 of 233 
 

It also protects individuals with disabilities from harassment. Harassment is unwelcome 
physical, verbal/non-verbal, or visual conduct that is severe or pervasive, that unreasonably 
disrupts an individual’s educational or work environment, or that creates a hostile educational 
or work environment. 
 
The Office of Civil Rights (OCR) and the U.S Department of Education enforce Section 504. 
Compliance with Section 504 is the responsibility of all school personnel and the operational 
responsibility of the general education program. 
 

West End SELPA 
The West End SELPA is committed to providing a working and learning environment that is 
free of discrimination and/or harassment. The District affirms that no qualified student with a 
disability shall, on the basis of that disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination/ harassment under any District program 
or activity. Disability-based harassment is a form of discrimination under both Federal and State 
law that may result in a denial of Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) to the student or 
the denial of an equal opportunity to an education. 
 

As printed on the Parent/Guardian Procedural Safeguards Under Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973,“Under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, students 
with disabilities have the right to receive free appropriate public education, which includes 
the right to be educated with students without disabilities to the maximum extent 
appropriate. Furthermore students with disabilities have the right to take part in, and 
receive benefits from, public education programs without discrimination or harassment 
based on those disabilities.” 

 
SECTION 504 PROCEDURES AND RESOURCES 

Procedures and forms for implementing Section 504 in schools can be found in each 
individual LEA through either the Student Services Department or the Superintendent’s 
Office.  Standard forms for a 504 Procedural Resource Guide include:   
 
 

• Protocol for Convening a Section 504 Committee Meeting 
• Section 504 Forms 

• Health Evaluation Referral 
• Parent Consent to Release of Medical Information 
• Health Evaluation Report 
• Section 504 Referral Form 
• Parent/Guardian Notification of Section 504 Evaluation 
• Parent/Guardian Procedural Safeguards Under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973 
• Response to Request for Section 504 Evaluation 
• Section 504 Teacher Observation Form 
• Section 504 Evaluation Documentation 
• Section 504 Plan  
• Section 504 Behavior Support Plan (Addendum Page to be used as applicable) 
• Section 504 Committee Decision 

D-5

187



Page 31 of 233 
 

• Section 504 Manifestation Determination Meeting 
• Section 504 Plan Distribution Notice 
• Section 504 Complaint Form 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

188



Page 32 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A: FORM LETTERS FOR USE 
WHEN STUDENTS EXIT SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
 

[SCHOOL DISTRICT LETTERHEAD] 
 
[Date] 
 
Dear Parent/Guardian, 
 
We are pleased to inform you that your child, [Student's Name], is currently on track to meet all 
the requirements for graduation with a regular high school diploma. It is anticipated that 
[Student's Name] will graduate on [Graduation Date]. 
 
In accordance with federal law, we are notifying you of this upcoming change in your child's 
educational placement. Graduation with a regular education diploma reflects [Student's Name]'s 
successful completion of both California and [District Name] School District's graduation 
requirements. As your child is expected to fulfill these criteria, graduation with a regular 
education diploma is the appropriate course of action. After graduation, [Student's Name] will no 
longer be eligible for special education services. The district has determined that alternative 
options, such as retention or a non-regular education diploma, are not suitable for [Student's 
Name] at this time. This decision will be reviewed at the upcoming IEP team meeting scheduled 
for [Month, Year]. 
 
The following evaluation procedures, tests, records, and/or reports were used to assess your 
student's status: 
 
[List of Procedures/Tests/Records/Reports] 
 
Please be aware that you have the right to procedural safeguards provided to parents and students 
eligible for special education services. If you have any questions or if you disagree with the 
information in this notification, please contact [Name and Contact Information]. Additionally, if 
you need assistance understanding any part of this notice, we are here to provide further 
resources. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
[Your Name]   
[Your Title]   
[School District Name]   
[Contact Information]  

D-5

189



Page 33 of 233 
 

APPENDIX B 
NOTE: THE FOLLOW FORMS ARE 

LOCATED IN THE 
 

SEIS LIBRARY 
 
 

• Specific Learning Disability Team Determination - Discrepancy  
 

• Specific Learning Disability Documentation Report -IEP  
 

• Specific Learning Disability Team Determination – Patterns of Strengths & 
Weaknesses 

 
• Specific Learning Disability Team Determination of Eligibility 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

D-5

190



Page 34 of 233 
 

APPENDIX C 
Prior Written Notice Due to Parent Revocation of 

Consent for Special Education 
 
 
Prior Written Notice                             
Due to Parent Revocation of Consent for Special Education 
(Date) 
(Address) 
 
Dear                          
 
This letter is in response to your written request revoking consent for special education placement 
and related services provided to the (Name) District on (Date).  The District agrees to your 
revocation and will cease providing the following special education services on (Date): 
 

1. List IEP services, including special transportation, ESY 
 
Upon this date your child will be considered a general education student and will be assigned to 
(School/Grade/Teacher or schedule of classes).  By revoking your consent for special education 
and related services, your child will no longer be eligible under the Individuals with Disabilities 
Act (IDEA) for a free and appropriate public education, triennial evaluations, or an annual IEP.  
Your child’s general education teacher is not required to provide the accommodations and 
modifications previously identified in the IEP, this includes state and district testing.  The school 
district will not be deemed to have knowledge that your child is a child with a disability; your child 
may be disciplined as a general education student and is not entitled to IDEA’s discipline 
protections.  You do retain the right to subsequently request an evaluation for special education, 
your request will be treated as a request for an initial evaluation and subject to the provisions and 
timelines in state and federal law.   
 
The District is directed by the IDEA and its regulations to agree to your written revocation in a 
timely manner.  The District is taking this action after review of your written request to revoke 
consent for special education and related services.  The District is not provided with other options 
to consider.   
 
Parents of a child with a disability have protections under the procedural safeguards of IDEA.  A 
copy of these procedural safeguards is enclosed with this notice.  If you need assistance in 
understanding the provisions of your rights and safeguards you may contact, Royal Lord, Program 
Manager, West End SELPA at 909 476-6135   
 
Sincerely, 
 
(Name) 
 

Revised 9/30/09 

D-5

191



Page 35 of 233 
 

Enclosure:  Procedural Safeguards Notice (Procedural Safeguards can be located in the SEIS 
Library) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EVALUATION AND ASSESMENT  
 
SECTION A AREAS OF SUSPECTED DISABILITY 

 

SECTION B TYPES OF ASSESSMENTS  

SECTION C ENGLISH LEARNERS  

SECTION D EVALUATION OF AFRICAN-AMERICAN STUDENTS  

SECTION E SUSPENSION OR EXPULSION OF PUPILS WITH 
EXCEPTIONAL NEEDS    

SECTION F ELIGIBILITY EVALUATION 
 

SECTION G INDEPENDENT EDUCATIONAL EVALUATION  
 

APPENDIX A CDE MEMORANDUM:  ADMINISTERING I.Q. TEST 
TO AFRICAN-AMERICAN STUDENTS         

 

 
D-5

192



Page 36 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
This section contains the requirements for evaluation and assessment of students who are not 
progressing in the general education program, even though modifications and accommodations 
have been provided.  Parents receive information about the assessment process and instruments.  
Following a signed parent consent, the evaluation and assessment process begins.  The initial 
evaluation and reevaluation are broad terms that apply to all individual testing, which includes 
observation and all other data-gathering activities that result in decisions about a student’s 
educational needs.  Generally, evaluation may be defined as the process to make an informed 
choice about a child’s eligibility for special education.  Assessment is a process through which the 
child’s abilities, present levels of performance and need for service are established.  It provides 
information that can be used by teachers and other specialists to determine how to teach a student 
with a disability in a way that he/she is most capable of learning. 
 
Each local education agency shall conduct, on at least an annual basis, reviews of all IEPs.  
Procedures shall provide for the review of the child’s progress and the appropriateness of 
placement and services, and the making of any necessary revisions.  Assessments may be 
conducted annually, as necessary, to provide the IEP team sufficient information to review the 
child’s progress and the appropriateness of placement and services.  Formal assessments require 
written parent consent. 
 
Evaluation for Determination of Eligibility for Special Education Services 
 
EC 56320 Before any action is taken with respect to the initial placement of an individual with 
exceptional needs in special education instruction, an individual assessment of the pupil’s 
educational needs shall be conducted, by qualified persons, in accordance with requirements 
including, but not limited to, all of the requirements summarized in EC 56320). 
 
The requirements in state and federal statutes and regulations that are related to special education 
programs include:  Part 30 of the Education Code, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations, 
and Title 5 Education Code   These document sections serve as a guide to the entire process of 
individualized evaluation and assessment and the individualized education program (IEP) team’s 
determination of eligibility. 
 
The tests and materials used are validated for the specific purpose of evaluation and assessment 
and are free from racial, cultural, or sexual bias.  They are administered in the child’s primary 
mode of communication unless otherwise specified.  Tests are administered by trained personnel.  
The tests selected ensure that results for students with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills 
reflect the pupil’s aptitude, achievement level, or other factors that the test purports to measure. 
 
 

  

D-5

193



Page 37 of 233 
 

Section A – Areas of Suspected Disability 
 

SPECIAL EDUCATION ASSESSMENT  
 
NOTE:  On September 23, 2010 the House of Representatives unanimously approved a bill 
paving the way for the term ―mental retardation to be replaced with ―intellectual disability 
in areas of federal law. The legislation also known as Rosa’s Law has been applied to the 
language herein. 
 
In July, of 2024 Governor Newsom signed AB 2173 into law. The law states that the term 
emotional disability can be used in place of the term emotional disability (The term “emotional 
disability,” as defined in Section 300.8(c)(4) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and used 
throughout this code and the California Code of Regulations, as it relates to the provision of special 
education services, may also be known as “emotional disability” under state law). 
 
ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES 
 
Initiation of the Special Education Assessment Process 
 
All referrals for special education and related services shall initiate the assessment process 
and shall be documented. When a verbal referral is made, educational staff shall offer 
assistance to the individual in making a request in writing, and shall assist the individual if the 
individual requests such assistance. All school staff referrals shall be written and include a 
brief reason for the referral and documentation of the resources of the regular education 
program that have been considered, modified, and when appropriate, the results of 
intervention. This documentation shall not delay the timelines for completing the assessment 
plan or assessment (California Code of Regulations [CCR] Title 5, §3021). 
 
A pupil shall be referred for special educational instruction and services only after the 
resources of the regular education program have been considered and, where appropriate, 
utilized. 
(Education Code [EC] §56303) 
 
What are the Procedures to Appropriately Identify the Referral Concern(s)? 
 
To ensure that all areas related to the suspected disability are addressed, review students’ 
records, interview, and observe, instead of solely focusing on the learner through testing. The 
first step in the process is to use a combination of record reviews and interviewing of key 
individuals to produce a clear and concise referral question. The question should be more 
specific than, “The purpose of this assessment is to determine if the student is eligible for 
special education services.” An example of a more specific referral question is: “The purpose 
of this assessment is to determine areas of strengths and weaknesses related to literacy and to 
determine whether the student responds adequately to a research based literacy intervention. 
This information will be used to determine if the student is best served in general or special 
education or a combination of the programs.” 
 

D-5

194



Page 38 of 233 
 

If the referral question is clear, then it will be fairly straightforward to judge whether a report 
is truly comprehensive. If the referral question is ambiguous and broad, then judging the 
degree to which all aspects of the concern have been addressed becomes significantly more 
difficult. It is also important to clearly understand the referral concern, before an assessment 
plan is created. This will entail using the appropriate processes with a specific focus on 
interviewing the student, teachers and parents using either an unstructured or structured 
interview process designed to identify the primary problem and lead to intervention ideas. 
 
For example, discussion with teachers or parents may suggest that the academic problem is 
accompanied by a concern about a student‘s emotional status or behaviors that appear related 
to the academic area of concern. The information gathered as part of developing the referral 
question should be included in the report in the background or assessment results section and 
addressed in the evaluation, even though the data was collected before the assessment plan 
was signed. 
 
What Are the Procedures When a Parent Makes a Referral for Special Education Assessment? 
 
If a parent makes an oral request for a special education assessment for their child, it is the 
responsibility of the District to inform the parents this request must be in writing and assist 
the parents with writing the request if needed (Education Code [EC] §56029; CCR §3021). 
This request starts the assessment process and should follow the same procedure as listed 
above. 
 
When the/District receives a written request for special education assessment from a parent, 
the LEA has 15 days to respond to the request with either a proposed assessment plan (see 
below for requirements) or a Prior Written Notice (see below) with the reason why the 
assessment is being denied (EC §56321, §56500.4). 
 
What Other Assessment Guidelines Need To Be Considered During the Process? 
 
 
1. A multidisciplinary team, including at least one teacher or specialist knowledgeable in the 

area of suspected disability, conducts assessments. 
 

2. An assessment shall be administered by qualified personnel who are appropriately trained 
to administer and interpret test results. Qualified personnel should be competent in both 
oral and written skills in the student‘s primary language or mode of communication, as 
well as have knowledge and understanding of the student‘s cultural and ethnic 
background. If an interpreter must be used the assessment report must document this 
condition (Title 5, CCR §3023). 

 
3. No single score or product of scores or test procedures shall be used as the sole criterion 

for the decision of the IEP Team as the student‘s eligibility for special education. 
 

4. For pupils with suspected learning disabilities, a regular education teacher shall 
participate in the assessment, and at least one team member, other than the pupil‘s regular 

D-5

195



Page 39 of 233 
 

teacher, shall observe the pupil's academic performance in the regular classroom setting. 
In the case of a child who is less than school age or out of school, a team member shall 
observe the child in an environment appropriate for a child of that age (CCR §3030 j (C 3-
4), EC §56341 (7) (c)). 

 
5. IQ test scores are not contained in files of African-American pupils. Please refer to the 

Guidelines on Assessing African American Students and purging IQ scores received from 
out-of-state LEAs or non-educational agencies (Guidelines for Assessing African-
American Students). 

 
6. Assessment results are documented and contain all required information (See Written 

Report Section). 
 

7. Each individual is reassessed/reviewed for determination of needed evaluation data at 
least every three years to determine eligibility or more frequently when requested by 
parent or teacher (EC §56381(a)(2)). 

 
8. Written consent by parent/guardian/adult student is necessary anytime an individual 

student is screened or assessed. If a group of students are being screened or assessed at the 
same time, then written consent is not required. 

 
9. Written consent by parent/guardian/adult student is required prior to observing an 

individual student if the data is being collected due to suspicion of a disability or a 
disability-related need. If the observation is conducted solely to provide feedback to the 
teacher regarding service delivery, then written consent will not be needed. 

 
What Are the Assessment Timelines? 
 
All referrals for assessment must come through a Child Find and/or the problem solving team 
process. If a parent requests an assessment in writing, it is recommended that a meeting be 
held with the parent and problem solving team within 15 calendar days to ensure that “all 
resources of the general education program have been considered and, where appropriate, 
utilized” (EC §56303). 
 
 

• If parent/guardian is unable to attend the meeting, the LEA must provide a written 
response to their request for evaluation within 15 days (EC §56043(a)). 

• If an assessment is indicated, the parent/guardian shall be provided a copy of the 
Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards, Prior Written Notice, and a proposed 
Assessment Plan. 

• If an assessment is not indicated, the parent/guardian shall be provided a copy of 
the Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards and Prior Written Notice. 

 
All assessments must be completed and an Individualized Education Program (IEP) 
developed within 60 calendar days after receipt of the signed assessment plan (EC 56043(c)). 
Vacations or off track days longer than 5 consecutive school days are not counted as 
part of the 60 calendar days. The number of days prior to the off school time is added to the 

D-5

196



Page 40 of 233 
 

days starting upon the student‘s return to total the 60 calendar days (EC §56043(f)(1)). The 
evaluation process is not completed until the IEP team meeting is held and the appropriate 
IEP pages written. 
 
If a referral is received with 10 days or fewer left in the school year, than an assessment plan 
is due within the first 10 days of the following school year. When a referral is received 10 
days or less prior to the end of the regular school year, the days between the pupil‘s regular 
school sessions or terms or days of school vacation in excess of five schooldays are not 
counted as part of the 60-days. However, the assessment plan shall be developed within 10 
days after the commencement of the subsequent regular school year or the pupil‘s regular 
school term as determined by the District school calendar.  
 
In the case of pupil school vacations, the 15-day time shall commence on the date that the 
pupil‘s regular schooldays reconvene. (EC §Section 56321a) 
 
When Do I Provide the Parent(s) with the Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards? 
 
The Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards must be given to the parent/guardian at multiple 
times throughout the Individualized Education Program (IEP) process (EC §56301(d)(2)): 
 
 

• Upon initial referral for assessment; 
• Upon notice of an IEP meeting; and, 
• Upon reassessment. 

 
It is critical that someone on the team explains the content to the parent/guardian to ensure that 
he/she understands their rights and the processes involved. 
 
When Do I Complete a Prior Written Notice? 
 
Prior Written Notice shall be given by the District to the parent(s) or guardian(s) of an 
individual with exceptional needs, or a child upon initial referral for assessment, whenever 
the District proposes or refuses to initiate or change the identification, evaluation, or 
educational placement of the child or the provision of FAPE to the child. (EC §56500.4) 
 
For guidance on completing the Prior Written Notice form, please see the IEP Manual.(What 
is this???) 
 
A compliant notice will be individualized for each student and must include the following 
components: 

• A description of the action proposed or refused by the agency; 
• An explanation of why the agency proposes or refuses to take action; 
• A description of any other options that the agency considered and the reasons why 

those options were rejected; 

D-5

197



Page 41 of 233 
 

•  A description of each assessment procedure, test, record, or report the agency 
used as a basis for the proposed or refused action; 

• A description of any other factors that are relevant to the agency’s proposal or 
refusal; and, 

• A statement that the parents of a child with a disability have protection under the 
procedural safeguards of this part and, if this notice is not an initial referral for 
evaluation; and, the means by which a copy of a description of the procedural 
safeguards can be obtained. (34 CFR §300.503) 

 
A legal opinion pertaining to Prior Written Notice suggests a separate form be sent out after 
the IEP team has made a decision for the change/rejection on the following actions: 

• Evaluation/Re-evaluation – intention of refusal (EC §56500.4); 
• Educational Placement – (change of placement); 
• Change of placement due to graduation; 
• Exiting student from special education; and,  

 
When the LEA is refusing to take an action requested by the parent in writing. 
 
The notice must be: 

• Written in language understandable to the parent/guardian; 
• Provided in the native language of the parent/guardian or other mode of 

communication used by the parent/guardian, unless it is clearly not feasible to do 
so; 

• That the parent/guardian understand the content of the notice and this is 
documented; and, 

• A copy of the Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards should be attached to the 
Prior Written Notice 

 
When is an Assessment Plan Developed? 
 
An assessment plan must be developed before any action is taken with respect to the initial 
placement of an individual with exceptional needs in special education instruction. An 
Assessment Plan must also be developed for all formal three-year reevaluations or any time 
an individualized assessment is being conducted. When the school site receives a written 
request for assessment from the parent/guardian, or school staff member has a question 
regarding eligibility or services, an assessment plan should be developed. 
 
Who Should Participate in Developing the Assessment Plan? 
 
Although only one person needs to complete the initial Assessment Plan form, it is ideally 
developed in consultation with school staff with knowledge of the student, and is based on 
current classroom assessment and observation by teachers and/or related service providers, 
utilizing findings and recommendations from the school site‘s problem solving team (e.g. 
Student Success Team (SST). The parent/guardian should be included in developing the 
Assessment Plan to ensure that their areas of concerns are addressed and they have the 
opportunity to share any information available from assessments completed by other 

D-5

198



Page 42 of 233 
 

agencies/professionals, such as independent assessments, which should be documented on the 
Assessment Plan. A member of the multidisciplinary team should explain the proposed 
Assessment Plan to the parent/guardian in the parent/guardian‘s native language to ensure that 
"informed" consent is obtained. 
 
What Should Be Included in the Assessment Plan? 
 
The proposed assessment plan given to parents or guardian shall meet all the following 
requirements (EC §56321b): 

1. Be in language easily understood by the general public. 
2. Be provided in the primary language of the parent, guardian, or other mode of 

communication used by the parent or guardian, unless to do so is clearly not 
feasible. 

3. Explain the types of assessments to be conducted. 
4. State that no individualized education program will result from the assessment 

without the consent of the parent. 
 
Please see the “IEP Manual” section in this Procedural Handbook for specifics on how to 
complete the Assessment Plan. 
 
Is Consent Required Prior to Starting the Assessment Process for an initial assessment? 
Yes 
 
No initial assessment shall be conducted unless the written consent of the parent or guardian 
is obtained prior to the assessment. The parent or guardian shall have at least 15 days from the 
receipt of the proposed assessment plan to arrive at a decision. Assessment may begin 
immediately upon receipt of the consent. (EC §56321(c)(4)) 
 
Parental consent is not required before reviewing existing data as part of an assessment or 
reassessment, or before administering a test or other assessment that is administered to all 
children, unless before administration of that test or assessment, consent is required of the 
parents of all the children. (EC §56321(e) and 34 Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] 
§300.300(3)(a)) 
 
What if a Parent Does Not Provide Consent for an Initial Assessment? 
 
If the parent of the child does not provide consent for an initial assessment, or the parent fails 
to respond to a request to provide the consent, the local educational agency may, but is not 
required to, pursue the initial assessment utilizing the procedural safeguards procedures, 
including mediation and due process procedures. (EC §56501(a)(3), 56506(e) and 34 CFR 
§300.300(a)) 
 
The local educational agency does not violate its obligation for child find, evaluation and 
eligibility determination if it declines to pursue the assessment. (34 CFR §300.300(a)(3)(ii) 
and EC §56321(2)(3)) 
 

D-5

199



Page 43 of 233 
 

Who Provides Consent if the Student Is a Ward of the State? 
 
If the child is a ward of the State and is not residing with the child's parent, the public agency 
is not required to obtain informed consent from the parent for an initial to determine whether 
the child is a child with a disability if— 
 

i.Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the public agency cannot discover the 
whereabouts of the parent of the child; 

ii.The rights of the parents of the child have been terminated in accordance with State 
law; or 

iii.The rights of the parent to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a 
judge in accordance with State law and consent for an initial evaluation has been 
given by an individual appointed by the judge to represent the child. (34 CFR 
§300.300(a)(2))  

iv.The court may also appoint a Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA). 
 
In the cases when the courts have not appointed an individual or CASA, the District/SELPA 
will need to appoint a surrogate parent. 
 
What if a Parent Does Not Provide Consent for a Triennial Assessment? 
 
If the parent refuses to consent to the reassessment, the local educational agency may, but is 
not required to, pursue the reassessment by using the consent override procedures by showing 
the public agency has made reasonable efforts to obtain the informed consent from the parent 
for the reassessment to determine whether the child is a child with a disability. 34 CFR 
§300.300(c). 
 
When Do I Need to Use Authorization for Use and/or Disclosure of Information? 
 
Confidentiality means the restriction of access to verbal and written communications, 
including clinical, medical and educational records to appropriate parties. (EC §49076) "Pupil 
record" means any item of information directly related to an identifiable pupil, other than 
directory information, which is maintained by a LEA or required to be maintained by an 
employee in the performance of his or her duties whether recorded by handwriting, print, 
tapes, film, microfilm or other means. "Pupil record" does not include informal notes related 
to a pupil compiled by a school officer or employee, which remain in the sole possession of 
the maker and are not accessible or revealed to any other person. (EC §49061(b)) "Access" 
means a personal inspection and review of a record or an accurate copy of a record, or receipt 
of an accurate copy of a record, an oral description or communication of a record or an 
accurate copy of a record, and a request to release a copy of any record. (EC § 49061(e)) The 
District may permit access to pupil records to any person for whom a parent of the pupil has 
executed written consent specifying the records to be released and identifying the party or 
class of parties to whom the records may be released. The recipient must be notified that the 
transmission of the information to others without the written consent of the parent is 
prohibited. The consent notice shall be permanently kept with the record file (EC §49075(a)). 
 

D-5

200



Page 44 of 233 
 

What Procedures Are Considered for Cultural Factors and Limited English Proficiency?  
 
Students should not be identified as eligible for special education when the cause for their 
academic difficulties is Limited English Proficiency or other cultural factors. Federal laws 
indicate that a determination of primary home language must be made for all students. 
 
Additionally, if the primary home language is other than English, the student’s proficiency in 
English (listening, speaking, reading, and writing) must be assessed by school personnel. 
Research (Cummins, 1979; Collier, 1987; Klesmer, 1994; Cummins, 1984) indicates that it 
takes approximately two years to acquire Basic Interpersonal Communication Skills (BICS) 
and between five and seven years to acquire the Cognitive Academic Language Proficiency 
(CALP) required to function effectively in content subjects. Failure to account for language 
development will lead to discriminatory outcomes in assessments, over-representation in 
referrals, and disproportionate placement in special education programs. 
 
Students who are in the process of learning English may often display academic behaviors 
and skill sets that are misinterpreted as learning disabilities. It should not be assumed that 
English Learners who are not acquiring academic skills according to the age and grade 
expectations of their English-speaking peers are displaying evidence of any handicapping 
condition. Before referring for a special education assessment, an analysis of the student‘s 
background and progress in one of the California state adopted English Language 
Development (ELD) curriculum programs should be conducted. This analysis should analyze 
prior education history which includes the student’s response to interventions, and 
comparison of the student’s educational progress in the school’s ELD curriculum with similar 
peers also in the ELD program. 
 
The impact of cultural factors on student’s academic performance represents a component of 
the exclusionary picture that should be considered. For immigrant students, the impact of 
acculturation should not be overlooked in examining effects on academic progress. Also, 
some students may exhibit low proficiency in Standard English Language (SEL), which may 
also negatively impact academic achievement. 
 
Thus, multi-disciplinary evaluation teams in examining cultural and language factors as 
exclusionary need to carefully review (a) the student‘s prior educational history, (b) progress 
in the ELD curriculum, (c) SEL difficulties, and (d) acculturation factors as part of the 
process to determine if those factors are the primary reason for the students‘ academic 
difficulties. This analysis should provide the basis for any individual assessment that may be 
conducted. The assessment should be conducted, if feasible, by bilingual assessors fluent in 
the student‘s primary language (Education Code citation) and will weigh the relative impact 
of language acquisition, cultural factors and indicators of a SLD on student’s academic 
progress, which includes their response to interventions. 
 
What Procedures Are Considered for Environmental or Economic Disadvantage? 
 
The evaluation team must also assess whether issues of environment or economic factors may 
be the primary source of a child‘s academic problems rather than a handicapping condition. 

D-5

201



Page 45 of 233 
 

 
Indicators of economic status are found by reviewing the student’s or school’s receipt of a 
federally subsidized meal program. Interviews with the family and developmental histories 
are also useful tools that provide further environmental information that may impact student 
achievement, such as illnesses, patterns of school attendance, availability of early 
intervention, etc. In addition, chronic health conditions,, medications, or other significant 
areas of difficulty for a child should be considered. Whether these factors are impacting the 
student’s academic skills should be documented in assessment reports, and may serve to rule 
out SLD. 
 
What Instruments Should Be Used? 
 
A variety of assessment tools and strategies are used to gather relevant functional and 
developmental information about the child, including information provided by the parent, and 
information related to enabling the child to be involved in and progress in the general 
curriculum (or for a preschool child, to participate in appropriate activities) (34 CFR 
§300.304(b)(2)). 
 
Assessments or measures are administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel in 
accordance with the instructions provided by the producer of the assessments to insure 
validity and reliability. Assessments or other evaluation materials include those tailored to 
assess specific areas of educational need and not merely those that are designed to provide a 
single general intelligence quotient. Assessment tools should be selected and administered to 
a child with impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills in a manner in which the assessment 
results accurately reflect the child‘s aptitude or achievement level or whatever other factors 
the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting the student‘s impaired sensory, manual or 
speaking skills (unless those skills are the factors that the test purports to measure). (34 CFR 
§300.304(c)). Any deviation from the standardized procedures identified in the instruction 
manual should be discussed in the body of the assessment report. In addition, the provider 
should consider how the assessment results were impacted by the deviation from the 
standardized protocol.  When standardized tests are considered to be invalid for the specific 
pupil an alternative assessment must be utilized and specified on the assessment plan. (CCR 
§3030(c)(4)(B) and §3030(j)(4)(B)) 
 
What Are Legal Requirements of Individualized Assessment for Suspected Disability? 
 
An individual assessment of the pupil's educational needs shall include, but not limited to, all 
the following: (EC §56320) 
 
a. Testing and assessment materials and procedures used for the purposes of assessment and 

placement of individuals with exceptional needs are selected and administered so as not to 
be racially, culturally, or sexually discriminatory. 

b. Tests and other assessment materials are provided and administered in the pupil's primary 
language or other mode of communication(unless the assessment plan indicates reasons why 
this provision and administration are not clearly feasible), have been validated for the 
specific purpose for which they are used, and are administered by trained personnel in 
conformance with the instructions provided by the producer of the tests and other assessment 

D-5

202



Page 46 of 233 
 

materials, except that individually administered tests of intellectual or emotional functioning 
shall be administered by a credentialed school psychologist. 

c. Tests and other assessment materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of 
educational need and not merely those, which are designed to provide a single general 
intelligence quotient. 

d. Tests are selected and administered to best ensure that when a test administered to a pupil 
with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills produces test results that accurately reflect 
the pupil's aptitude, achievement level, or any other factors the test purports to measure and 
not the pupil's impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills unless those skills are the factors 
the test purports to measure. 

e. No single  assessment is used as the sole criterion for determining whether a pupil is an 
individual with exceptional needs and for determining an appropriate educational program 
for the pupil. 

f. The pupil is assessed in all areas related to the suspected disability including, if appropriate, 
health and development, vision, including low vision, hearing, motor abilities, language 
function, general intelligence, academic performance, communicative status, self-help, 
orientation and mobility skills, career and vocational abilities and interests, and social and 
emotional status. A developmental history is obtained, when appropriate. For pupils with 
residual vision, a low vision assessment shall be provided. 

g. The assessment of a pupil, including the assessment of a pupil with a suspected low 
incidence disability, shall be conducted by persons knowledgeable of that disability. Special 
attention shall be given to the unique educational needs, including, but not limited to, skills 
and the need for specialized services, materials, and equipment. 

h. As part of an initial assessment, and if appropriate, as part of any reassessment, the group 
shall include members of the individualized education program team, and other qualified 
professionals, as appropriate. The group may conduct its review without a meeting. 
 

COMPREHENSIVE EVALUATION REPORT 
A comprehensive evaluation report provides the documentation that all legal and best practice 
aspects of an assessment have been completed, and should be viewed as a resource for 
teachers and other staff members as intervention options are considered. There is not one way 
to complete a comprehensive evaluation and the concept of a ―comprehensive evaluation is 
somewhat of a subjective conclusion. That being said, there are a set of general principles 
promulgated in the Test Standards that apply to all types of individualized assessments and 
evaluation that should be followed for every case. In addition, most author(s) who write about 
psycho-educational evaluation practices suggest it is critical to use a conceptual model to help 
organize and present results.  At a minimum, providers are encouraged to include a Review of 
Records, Interviews with parents/caregivers, student and staff (as well as outside providers 
when appropriate), Observations and standardized testing/assessments in order to assure all 
the components of a comprehensive assessment are included in the report (R.I.O.T; Hosp, 
2008).  
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

203



Page 47 of 233 
 

What Are the Legal Requirements for the Written Comprehensive Evaluation Report? 
 
The personnel who assess the pupil shall prepare a written report, or reports, as appropriate, 
of the results of each assessment. The report shall include, but not be limited to, all the 
following: (EC §56327) 
 
 

• Whether the pupil may need special education and related services; 
• The basis for making the determination; 
• The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the pupil in an appropriate 

setting; 
• The relationship of that behavior to the pupil's academic and social functioning; 
• The educationally relevant health and development, and medical findings, if any; 
• For pupils with learning disabilities, The methodology used to determine the presence 

or absence of a learning disability; for example, if utilizing the discrepancy model, the 
report should state whether or not there is such a discrepancy between achievement 
and ability that it cannot be corrected without special education and related services; 
For PSW, the report should indicate the model used, as well as the following: 

•  
1. Student exhibits a pattern of cognitive or processing strengths, indicated by a 

pattern of abilities in the average or above ranges  

2. Students exhibits both significant cognitive and academic weakness(es) 

3. A research-based link exists between the cognitive and academic weakness(es) 

4. The student requires special education to access the core curriculum 

• A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic 
disadvantage, where appropriate; and, 

• The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for pupils with low 
incidence disabilities 

 
A copy of the evaluation report and the documentation of determination of eligibility shall be 
given to the parent or guardian. (EC §56329 (a)) 
 
What Should a Comprehensive Evaluation Report Include? 
 
The evaluation report must also include information about: 
 

• The student’s demographic data; 
• The reason for the referral; 
• Documented interventions; 
• Results of tests; 
• Statements regarding validity of the assessments and whether test results are valid; 

and, 
• Consideration of independent assessments. 

 

D-5

204



Page 48 of 233 
 

What Components Should Be Included in the Comprehensive Evaluation Report? 
 

• The reason for the referral to special education, including the effects of the 
modifications attempted in the regular education setting and any previous assessment 
results. 

• The child’s developmental and health history, social and family dynamics including 
any socio-cultural factors and school history. 

• Document that the assessment was administered in student’s primary language (EC 
56320) 

• Include the child’s performance in school and the classroom, adaptive behavior 
functioning, academic achievement levels, cognitive abilities, psychological 
processing areas, emotional behavioral functioning, language/communication skills 
and care/vocational (as appropriate). 

• Documentation from the observation of the child in their natural environment that are 
under 5 years old and in the classroom for school age, as well as observation of the 
child during the assessment process. Include observations in structured and 
unstructured settings whenever possible.  

• A statement regarding the validity of the assessment. 
• The effects of the environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage status of the 

child in relation to the test results. 
• A summary and conclusion of the test results along with recommendations regarding 

eligibility and placement for special education services. 
 
 

• If an assessment is not considered under standards conditions, a description of the 
extent to which it varied from standard conditions (e.g., the e.g., the qualifications of 
the person administering the test, or the method of test administration, use of the 
interpreter), including the affects to validity (EC §56320(b)). 

• Indicate the name(s) and title/position of the multidisciplinary team members who 
assisted in compiling the evaluation report. 

• Include strategies, accommodations and/or modifications of the child who may need 
to progress and be involved in the general education curriculum and/or setting based 
on the evaluation results. 

 
Pursuant to EC § 56327,  Personnel who assess the pupil shall prepare a written report, or 
reports, as appropriate, of the results of each assessment. The report shall include, but not be 
limited to, all the following: 

 
a. Whether the pupil may need special education and related services. 
b. The basis for making the determination. 
c. The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the pupil in an appropriate setting. 
d. The relationship of that behavior to the pupil’s academic and social functioning. 
e. The educationally relevant health and development, and medical findings, if any. 
f. For pupils with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between 

achievement and ability that it cannot be corrected without special education and related 
services. 

D-5

205



Page 49 of 233 
 

g. A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic 
disadvantage, where appropriate. 

h. The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for pupils with low incidence 
disabilities, consistent with guidelines established pursuant to Section 56136. 

 
(Amended by Stats. 1982, Ch. 1334, Sec. 4.) 

 
Are There Any Exclusionary Factors That Must Be Considered? 
 
There are factors that the evaluation team and IEP team will need to consider to determine if 
they preclude the student from being identified with a disability. The multidisciplinary 
evaluation team must consider current legal requirements that describe exclusionary factors 
and how they are manifested. Some of the factors that apply to students who may be 
considered for having any disability are lack of appropriate instruction in reading, including 
phonemic awareness, phonics, vocabulary, fluency, text comprehension, lack of instruction in 
mathematics, and limited-English Proficiency. To make a determination that any of these 
factors are not the primary reason for the student achievement difficulties, evaluation teams 
need to document, in the evaluation report, evidence that each of these factors has been 
considered and ruled out as primary determining factors. If necessary, more data may need to 
be gathered to eliminate specified exclusionary factors from consideration. 
 
What are the Components of a Comprehensive Evaluation Report? 
 
This section provides best practices related to what is considered to be appropriate and 
necessary to include in a comprehensive evaluation. There may be some situations where 
additional information is needed and other times that not all the information listed here is 
required. 
 
General Testing Guidelines 

• All test scores used for decision-making or recommendations have a reliability above 
0.90. 

• Confidence intervals are reported for all scores. 
• The purposes of specific assessment tools are clearly specified. 
• Tools used have validity evidence for the purpose indicated. 
• For English Learners, evidence exists that test scores are reliable and valid. 

 
Referral Questions 

• Referral question is specific and designed to address more than eligibility 
determination. 

• All the assessment tools selected address the referral question. 
 
Instructional Factors 

• Core skills for the primary academic concern (e.g., literacy) are assessed. 
• An intervention that embraces instructional match in the academic area of concern is 

described. 
• Information about the degree to which the interventions was implemented is included. 

D-5

206



Page 50 of 233 
 

• A statement about the degree of match between the student’s skill and the intervention 
is included. 

• Empirically evaluated progress monitoring tools are used and clearly described. 
• Goal setting process is thoroughly described. 
• A decision about the impact of the interventions is included. 

 
Exclusionary Factors 
Statements with supporting data indicating the following factors are not the cause of the 
student’s low academic performance are included: 
 

• Visual Impairment; 
• Hearing Impairment; 
• Orthopedic Disability; 
• Intellectual Disability; 
• Emotional Disability; 
• Cultural factors and limited English proficiency; and, 
• Environmental or economic disadvantage. 

 

Defining Characteristics of the Disability 
• A statement about the student’s need for special education and a description of the 

sources of data used to make that conclusion is included. 
• A statement about the existence of a specific learning disability and a description of 

the sources of data used to make that conclusion is included. 
• A statement about the model selected for eligibility is included. 
• Only one model for eligibility determination is used. 

 
IDEA Guidelines 

• A statement or information regarding assessment of all areas that may be related to the 
area of disability. 

• A statement or information about the need for any services not commonly linked to 
the identified disability 

• Recommendations for instruction/intervention based on assessment information. 
• The use of multiple measures in determining eligibility. 

 
 
What Is the Requirement to Translate Written Reports in the Primary Language of 
Assessments Prior to an IEP? 
 
The District must provide written translation of the IEP document, upon request,. Providing 
an interpreter at the IEP to translate the assessment document and assessor information is 
appropriate. 
 
What Is the Requirement to Translate Written Independent Educational Evaluation (IEE) 
Reports in the Primary Language of Assessments? 
 

D-5

207



Page 51 of 233 
 

The rules are the same whether or not it is a District completed assessment or an IEE funded 
by the District. In looking at this requirement, whether or not we need to provide a written 
translation of an IEE, the answer is probably no. First, it is assumed the document is a true 
IEE (i.e., an independent evaluation that the District funded). If it were a parent-funded 
evaluation, any argument for written interpretation of the document would be even more 
tenuous. 
 
The District will also have to look at the context. For example, if the LEA attached the IEE 
as part of the IEP document itself (i.e., making the IEE a numbered page of the IEP), the 
District would arguably have to translate the document based upon Title 5 CCR §3040(b), 
which, again, requires us to provide a written translation of the "IEP program." 
 
If, for example, the IEE was in the student's file, and the parent requested all of the pupil's 
record, the LEA would have to provide either an oral or written interpretation of "the record" 
for parent pursuant to Title 5 CCR §431. 
 
If this is the normal situation, in which the IEE report itself is discussed at the IEP (and not 
made a part of the IEP document itself), then an oral translation is sufficient. That is the 
SELPA/District needs only be sure that the parent "understands" the IEP meeting, which can 
be done through oral interpretation (See EC §56341.5 and 34 CFR §300.322(e)). Remember, 
too, that OAH will simply examine the situation from a parental participation standpoint - i.e., 
whether or not the parent understood the IEP proceedings. Of course, oral translation is a 
sufficient method of providing that understanding. 
 
In the context of an IEP, the SELPA/District can provide an oral (line for line if need be) 
translation of assessment reports at an IEP, which will be sufficient to meet our translation 
obligation. Other documents (such as parents' rights) have more specific requirements that 
apply to them. 
 
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
 
A pupil shall qualify as an individual with exceptional needs(EC §56026)if the results of the 
assessment(EC §56320)demonstrate that the degree of the pupil’s impairment as described in 
§3030 (a through j) requires special education in one or more of the program options 
authorized(EC §56361). The decision as to whether or not the assessment results demonstrate 
that the degree of the pupil’s impairment requires special education shall be made by the IEP 
team, including assessment personnel (EC §56341(b) The IEP team shall take into account all 
the relevant material that is available on the pupil. No single score or product of scores shall 
be used as the sole criterion for the decision of the IEP team as to the pupil’s eligibility for 
special education. (CCR Title 5 §3030) 
 
The specific categories of eligibility under CCR Title 5 §3030 can be referenced in the 
California Special Education Programs Composite of Laws; and are delineated as follows: 
 
a. Autism 
b. Deaf-blindness 
c. Deafness 

D-5

208



Page 52 of 233 
 

d. Emotional Disability 
e. Hearing Impairment 
f. Intellectual Disability 
g. Multiple Disabilities 
h. Orthopedic Impairment 
i. Other Health Impairment 
j. Specific learning disabilities 
k. Speech or Language Impairment 
l. Traumatic Brain Injury 
m. Visual Impairment 
 
During an initial or triennial IEP team meeting, the school psychologist should summarize the 
findings of the multidisciplinary team evaluation by indicating whether the pupil may need 
special education and related services, the basis for making the determination, the relevant 
behaviors and their relationship to the student‘s learning disabilities. The discussion should 
also cover whether there is a discrepancy between achievement and ability that cannot be 
corrected with general education interventions and is not the effects of environmental, 
cultural, or economic disadvantage, when appropriate. The team members usually reach 
consensus on eligibility but, when one or more members disagree, they should sign the IEP as 
being in attendance and attach a letter of dissent explaining why they disagree. It is important 
to note that eligibility and placement are two separate IEP team decisions. 
 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Autism? 
 
Must exhibit any combination of the following, to include but not limited to: 
 

• An inability to use oral language for appropriate communication. 
• A history of extreme withdrawal or relating to people inappropriately and continued 

impairment in social interaction from infancy through early childhood. 
• An obsession to maintain sameness. 
• Extreme preoccupation with objects or inappropriate use of objects or both. 
• Extreme resistance to controls. 
• Displays peculiar motoric mannerisms and motility patterns. 
• Self-stimulating, ritualistic behavior 

 
FROM CASP and CDE- Autism means a developmental disability significantly affecting 
verbal and nonverbal 
communication and social interaction, generally evident before age three, and adversely 
affecting a child's educational performance. Other characteristics often associated with 
autism are engagement in repetitive activities and stereotyped movements, resistance 
to environmental change or change in daily routines, and unusual responses to sensory 
experiences. 
(A) Autism does not apply if a child's educational performance is adversely affected 
primarily because the child has an emotional disability, as defined in subdivision 
(b)(4) of this section. 
(B) A child who manifests the characteristics of autism after age three could be 
identified as having autism if the criteria in subdivision (b)(1) of this section are satisfied. 

D-5

209



Page 53 of 233 
 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ca/disablecodes.asp 
 

 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Deaf/Blind Impairment? 
 

• Severe communication problems. 
• Severe developmental problems. 
• Severe educational problems. 

 
Deaf-blindness means concomitant hearing and visual impairments, the combination 
of which causes such severe communication and other developmental and educational 
needs that they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for 
children with deafness or children with 
blindness.  https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ca/disablecodes.asp 

 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Emotional Disability? 
 
Because of a serious Emotional Disability, a student exhibits one or more of the 
characteristics described as follows: 
 

• An inability to learn that cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, or health 
factors. 

• An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers 
and teachers. 

• Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances in several 
situations. 

• A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression. 
• A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school 

problems. 
 
Characteristics identified from the list above must have been demonstrated over a long period 
of time to a marked degree, and have adversely affected educational performance. 
 
The term emotionally disturbed does not include children: 
 

• Who are socially maladjusted. 
• Unless it is determined that they have Emotional Disability. 

 
Emotional disability means a condition exhibiting one or more of the following 
characteristics, over a long period of time and to a marked degree, that adversely affects 
educational performance: (A) An inability to learn which cannot be explained by intellectual, 
sensory, or health factors; (B) An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal 
relationships with peers and teachers; (C) Inappropriate types of behavior or feeling under 
normal circumstances; (D) A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression; or (E) A 
tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school problems. 
The term (ED) includes schizophrenia. The term does not apply to children who are socially 

D-5

210

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ca/disablecodes.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ca/disablecodes.asp


Page 54 of 233 
 

maladjusted, unless it is determined that they have an emotional disability. (34 CFR Sec. 
300.8(c)(4)). 
 
 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Hearing Impairment ? 
 
Must meet all conditions as follows: 
 

• Student has a hearing impairment, whether permanent or fluctuating, that has been 
identified by an audiological specialist. 

• Regardless of amplification, the hearing impairment reduces the processing of 
linguistic information, including reception and speech discrimination as identified by 
a speech and language specialist. 

 
The hearing impairment results in either one or both of the following: 
 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the ability of the student to learn 
academic material presented in a modified regular education setting. 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the student’s ability to function in the 
non-academic areas of modified regular education setting. 

 

CDE- Hard of Hearing means hearing, impairment, whether permanent or fluctuating, that 
adversely affects a child's educational performance, but that is not included under the 
definition of deaf in this section. 
 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Intellectual Disabilities/Limited 
Cognitive Functioning (Mild, Moderate, and Severe)? 
 
Must meet all: 
 
 

• Significantly below average general intellectual functioning. 
• Concurrent deficits in behavior. 
• Manifested during the developmental period of birth up to nine years. 
• The intellectual disability results in one and/or both of the following: 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the pupil’s ability to learn 
academic material presented in a modified general education setting. 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the pupil’s ability to function in 
the non-academic areas of a modified general education setting. 

 

CDE- Intellectual Disability means significantly subaverage general intellectual functioning, 
existing concurrently with deficits in adaptive behavior, and manifested during the 
developmental period, that adversely affects a child's educational performance. (34 Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR), Sec. 300.8(c)(6)). 
 

D-5

211



Page 55 of 233 
 

What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Multiple Disabilities? 
 
Federal Regulations (34 CFR 300.8) define multiple disabilities as: concomitant impairments 
(such as intellectual disability-blindness or intellectual disability-orthopedic impairment), the 
combination of which causes such severe educational needs that they cannot be 
accommodated in special education programs solely for one of the impairments. 
 
Multiple disabilities do not include deaf-blindness (because it has its own disability category). 
Thus under the federal definition, SLD-SLI or ED-SLD would not be examples of a multiple 
disability since it is unlikely that the combination of these disabilities would result in such 
severe educational need that the education of the child would have to be conducted in a 
separate special education program that was uniquely designed to meet the needs of the 
student as a result of this combination of disabilities. 
 
CDE- Multiple Disabilities means concomitant impairments (such as intellectual disability-
blindness, intellectual disability-orthopedic impairment, etc.,) the combination of which 
causes such severe educational needs that they cannot be accommodated in special education 
programs solely for one of the impairments. The term does not include deaf-blind children. 
(34 CFR Sec. 300.8(c)(7)). 
 

What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Orthopedic Impairment? 
 
Must meet both of the following criteria: 
 
 

• Student has severe orthopedic impairment cause by congenital abnormality, disease, 
or other causes, as determined by medical evaluation. 

• The orthopedic impairment results in either one or both of the following: 
• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the ability of the pupil to learn 

academic material presented in a modified general education setting. 
• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the ability of the pupil to 

function in non-academic areas of a modified general education setting. 
CDE- Orthopedic Impairment means a severe orthopedic impairment that adversely affects a 
child's educational performance. The term includes impairments caused by congenital anomaly 
(e.g., clubfoot, absence of some member, etc.), impairments caused by disease (e.g., 
poliomyelitis, bone tuberculosis, etc.), and impairments from other causes (e.g., cerebral palsy, 
amputations, and fractures or burns which cause contractures). (34 CFR Sec. 300.8(b)(6 Sec. 
300.8(c)(8)) 
 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Other Health Impairment? 
 
Demonstrated one or more of the following: 
 

• Limited strength. 
• Limited vitality. 
• Limited alertness. 

D-5

212



Page 56 of 233 
 

• Condition must be either one or both of the following: 
• Chronic 
• Acute 

• Must be a non-temporary health problem. 
• The problem must result in one or both of the following: 

• The handicapping condition adversely affects the pupil’s educational 
performance in listening comprehension, oral expression, basic reading skills, 
reading comprehension, written expression, math calculations, or math 
reading. 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the pupil’s ability to function in 
the non-academic areas of a modified general education setting. 

Other Health Impairment means having limited strength, vitality or alertness, due to  chronic 
or acute health problems such as asthma, attention deficit disorder or attention deficit 
hyperactivity disorder, diabetes, epilepsy, a heart condition, hemophilia, lead poisoning, 
leukemia, nephritis, rheumatic fever, sickle cell anemia, and Tourette syndrome, which 
adversely affects a child's educational performance. (5 CCR Section 3030) 
 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Speech/Language Impairment? 
 
Must meet any of the following criteria: 
 

• Articulation – The student displays reduced intelligibility or an inability to use the 
speech mechanism, which significantly interferes with communication and attracts 
adverse attention. 

• Abnormal Voice – A student is eligible for voice therapy by a speech and language 
specialist when there is a persistent defective voice quality, pitch or loudness. 

• Fluency Disorder – A pupil has a fluency disorder when the flow of verbal expression 
including rate and rhythm adversely affects communication between the student and 
listener. 

• Language Disorder – The student has an expressive language disorder when he or she 
meets one of the following criteria: 

• The student scores at least 1.5 standard deviations below the mean or below 
the 7th percentile for his or her chronological age or developmental level on 
two or more standardized tests in one or more of the following areas of 
language development: morphology, syntax, semantics, or pragmatics. 

• The student scores at least 1.5 standard deviations below the mean or below 
the 7th percentile for his or her chronological age or developmental level on 
one or more standardized tests in one of the areas listed above and displays 
inappropriate or inadequate usage or expressive and receptive language as 
measured by a representative spontaneous or elicited language sample of a 
minimum of fifty utterances. 

 
Speech or Language Impairment means a communication disorder such as 
stuttering, impaired articulation, language impairment, or a voice impairment, that 
adversely affects a child's educational performance. (34 CFR Sec. 300.8(c)(11)) 
 

D-5

213



Page 57 of 233 
 

What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Traumatic Brain Injury? 
 

• The child has acquired an injury to the brain by an external force. 
• Resulting in total or partial disability and/or psychological impairment. 
• Causes impairment in one or more areas: 

 
 

• Cognition 
• Memory 
• Attention 
• Reasoning 
• Abstract thinking 
• Judgment 
• Problem Solving 
• Language & Speech 
• Sensory 
• Perceptual 
• Motor abilities 
• Psychosocial behavior 
• Physical 

 
Does not apply to brain injuries that are congenital, degenerative, or induced by birth trauma. 
 
Traumatic Brain Injury means an acquired injury to the brain caused by an external physical 
force, resulting in total or partial functional disability or psychosocial impairment, which 
adversely affects educational performance. The term applies to both open or closed head 
injuries resulting in impairments in one or more areas, such as cognition; language; memory; 
attention; reasoning; abstract thinking; judgment; problem-solving; sensory, perceptual and 
motor abilities; psychosocial behavior; physical functions; information processing; and 
speech. The term does not include brain injuries that are congenital or degenerative, nor brain 
injuries induced by birth trauma. (34 CFR Sec. 300.8(c)(12)). 
 
 
What Criteria Do I Use for Determining Eligibility for Visual Impairment? 
 
Must meet all of the following criteria: 
 

• Student has a visual impairment, as determined by an eye specialist and educators. 
• Even with correction, conditions results in either one or both of the following: 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduced the ability of the student to 
learn academic material presented in a modified general education setting. 

• The handicapping condition markedly reduces the student’s ability to function 
in the non-academic areas of a modified general education setting. 

• Visually Impaired, including blindness means impairment in vision that, 
even with correction, adversely affects a child's educational performance. 

D-5

214



Page 58 of 233 
 

The term includes both partially seeing and blind children. (34 CFR Sec. 
300.8(c)(13)). 

 
What Criteria Do I Use For Determining Eligibility for a Student Suspected of Having, or 
Diagnosed with, Attention Deficit Disorder (ADD) or Attention Deficit Hyperactive 
Disorder (ADHD)? 
 
If the pupil has been diagnosed by a medical doctor as having ADD or ADHD, or if a pupil has 
not been diagnosed by a medical doctor but demonstrates characteristics and behavior consistant 
with a diagnosis of ADD or ADHD, and through assessment it has been determined special 
education services and/or related services are require to access the general education curriculum 
and environment, the assessment team may consider the eligibility requirements listed above 
under Other Health Impairment.The assessment team may also consider eleibgly requirements 
listed above under Emotional Disability and/or Specific Learning Disability.  
 
Under both of the conditions listed above, the student suspected or diagnosed with ADD or 
ADHD must still meet the eligibility requirements listed in Title 5, CCR §3030 to qualify for 
special education services (EC §56339). 
 
Other Health Impairment means having limited strength, vitality or alertness, due to chronic or 
acute health problems such as asthma, attention deficit disorder or attention deficit hyperactivity 
disorder, diabetes, epilepsy, a heart condition, hemophilia, lead poisoning, leukemia, nephritis, 
rheumatic fever, sickle cell anemia, and Tourette syndrome, which adversely affects a child's 
educational performance. (5 CCR Section 3030).  
OTHER TYPES OF ASSESSMENTS 
 
The West End SELPA has guidelines and/or procedures to support the LEA with addressing the 
following assessment areas: 
 

• Preschool Guidelines for information on Preschool to Kindergarten or 1st assessment. 
• Behavior Guidelines for behavioral assessments and intervention plans. 
• Guidelines for English Language Learners 
• Guidelines for assessing African American students. 
• Related services for independence assistance from instructional aides. 
• Assistive technology. 
• Determination of the Need for Triennial Review Evaluation. 
• Community Resources for information regarding: 

• Inland Regional Center 
• California Children Services (CCS) 
• Department of Rehabilitation (DOR) 
• State Schools 

 
EC 56320 (f) The pupil is assessed in all areas related to the suspected disability including, if 
appropriate, health and development, vision, including low vision, hearing, motor abilities, 
language function, general intelligence, academic performance, communicative status, self-help, 
orientation and mobility skills, career and vocational abilities and interests, and social emotional 

D-5

215



Page 59 of 233 
 

status.  A developmental history shall be obtained, when appropriate. For pupils with residual 
vision, a low vision assessment shall be provided in accordance with guidelines established 
pursuant to Section 56136. In assessing each pupil under this article, the assessment shall be 
conducted in accordance with Sections 300.304 and 300.305 of Title 34 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations. 
 
EC 56322.  The assessment shall be conducted by persons competent to perform the assessment, 
as determined by the local educational agency. 
 
EC 56327 The personnel who assess the pupil shall prepare a written report, or reports, as 
appropriate, of the results of each assessment.  The report shall include, but not be limited to all 
of the following: 
 

(a) Whether the pupil may need special education and related services. 
(b) The basis for making the determination. 
(c) The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the pupil in an appropriate setting. 
(d) The relationship of that behavior to the pupil’s academic and social functioning. 
(e) The educationally relevant health and development, and medical findings, if any. 
(f) For pupils with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between 

achievement and ability that it cannot be corrected without special education and related 
services. 

(g)   A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic 
disadvantage, where appropriate. 

(h)  The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for pupils with low 
incidence disabilities, consistent with guidelines established pursuant to Section 56136. 

 
No single procedure for evaluation will be used as the sole criterion for determining an educational 
program for a student with exceptional needs.  The assessment of the individual, including 
individuals with suspected low incidence disabilities, is conducted by appropriate personnel who 
are knowledgeable of that disability.  Consideration is given to the need for specialized services, 
materials, and equipment consistent with students who experience a low incidence disability.   
 

The statement of present levels is a summary that describes the student’s current academic 
achievement and functional performance across a variety of educationally related domains. The 
statement of present levels creates a baseline for designing educational programming and 
measuring future progress.  Based on this information, areas of need are determined. In addition, 
with regard to the student’s involvement in the general education curriculum, the statement of 
present levels of academic achievement and functional performance is important because it 
provides the basis for determining what the individual student needs in order to meaningfully 
participate in the least restrictive environment (LRE). 
 

Current, specific, measurable, objective, baseline information links evaluation results to 
expectations of the core curriculum or alternative curriculum.  This information forms the basis 
for the development of goals for the student.  If the student will be age 16 or older prior to their 
next Annual Review, the statement of present levels also addresses the student’s transition needs 
in the areas of instruction, employment and post-school adult living, community, and related 
services.  

D-5

216



Page 60 of 233 
 

If the purpose of the present level of educational performance is to identify a student’s needs and 
establish a baseline from which to develop meaningful and measurable goals, then, the statement 
of present levels should: 

• Be stated in terms that are specific, measurable, and objective; 
• Describe current performance, but not past performance; 
• Describe current performance in narrative terms versus relying on standardized scores 

and/or classification labels; 
• Prioritize and identify needs that will be written as goals; and 
• Provide baseline information for each identified goal to be developed. 

 
Section B – Types of Assessment 
 
Ongoing Assessments and Individualized Planning 
 
Once a student is identified for special education services, ongoing assessments play a crucial role 
in guiding individualized planning. Each year, we review goals and benchmark objectives through 
the IEP process. The student's current performance levels are assessed using various tools such as 
classroom observations, checklists, student work, and norm-referenced assessments. Throughout 
the year, benchmark objectives are continuously reviewed to determine if they need to be 
completed, modified, or redeveloped. We rely on a combination of ecological and empirical data 
to create an appropriate learning environment tailored to each student receiving special services. 
The development of goals and objectives for the IEP is directly informed by this assessment data, 
which also supports the instructional plan for IEP implementation. 
 
Norm-Referenced Tests 
 
Norm-referenced assessments are standardized tests developed by publishers and normed for 
specific populations, developmental stages, or grade levels. These assessments are valuable when 
developing and evaluating a student’s instructional program. Initially, results from these 
assessments help determine a student's eligibility for special education services. 
 
Curriculum-Based Assessment 
 
In addition to norm-referenced tests, curriculum-based assessments are used for ongoing 
monitoring of student progress toward educational goals and objectives. These assessments can 
include unit tests, portfolios, oral interviews, presentations, rubric scoring, informal inventories, 
written tests, checklists, and student-created products. These tools help teachers prepare future 
lessons and shape classroom instruction, providing insights into both individual and group 
progress. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

217



Page 61 of 233 
 

Alternative Assessment 
 
Alternative assessments are specialized techniques used for students with particular needs or 
disabilities who may not be adequately assessed through standardized methods. These students 
often follow a curriculum centered around functional life skills rather than the core curriculum. 
Examples of alternative assessments include portfolios, community-based observations, and 
modifications to standard assessments. As of July 1, 2000, federal regulations require that students 
following an alternative curriculum must have a specified plan for alternative assessment. 
 
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) and Response to Intervention (RtI2) 
 
MTSS is a comprehensive framework that integrates the Common Core State Standards (CCSS), 
core instruction, differentiated learning, and supports for student-centered and individualized 
needs. MTSS aims to create systemic change by aligning services and supports to quickly address 
and meet the needs of all students, including those who are gifted or high achievers. 
 
Comparing MTSS and RtI2 
 
RtI2 focuses on identifying struggling students and using teamwork and data-driven decision-
making to improve their performance before problems escalate. MTSS, however, takes a broader 
approach by aligning all school initiatives, supports, and resources to systematically address the 
needs of all students. This includes promoting district-wide participation and supporting the 
alignment of resources across all levels. MTSS encourages a paradigm shift toward providing 
integrated services that raise expectations for all students through Universal Design for Learning 
(UDL) strategies. 
 
While MTSS is not specifically designed for special education placement decisions, such as 
determining specific learning disabilities, it shares many components with RtI2, including: 
- High-quality, research-based, culturally and linguistically relevant instruction for all students. 
- An integrated data collection and assessment system for informed decision-making at each tier 
of service delivery. 
- A problem-solving process to identify problems, develop interventions, and evaluate their 
effectiveness. 
- Research-based interventions to improve student learning. 
- School-wide positive behavioral supports to achieve social and learning outcomes. 
- A collaborative approach to analyzing student data and working together in the intervention 
process. 
 
 

Section C – English Learner 
 
Assessment Requirements and Linguistic Considerations 
 
EC 56320(b): 
When conducting assessments, it is essential that the tests and materials used meet the following 
criteria: 

D-5

218



Page 62 of 233 
 

1. They should be provided and administered in the language and format that is most likely to yield 
accurate information about what the student knows and can do academically, developmentally, 
and functionally. This should be done unless it’s not feasible, as required by federal law (Title 20, 
U.S. Code, Section 1414(b)(3)(A)(ii)). 
 
CCR 3022: 
In addition to the requirements outlined in the Education Code Section 56321, the proposed written 
assessment plan must include: 
- A description of any recent assessments conducted, including any independent assessments 
available. 
- Consideration of any assessment information the parent requests. 
- Details about the student’s primary language and their proficiency in that language, as determined 
by Education Code Section 52164.1. 
 
CCR 3023 - Assessment and Reassessment: 
 
(a) All assessments and reassessments must be carried out by qualified personnel who are: 
- Competent in both the oral/sign language and written skills of the student’s primary language or 
mode of communication. 
- Knowledgeable and understanding of the student’s cultural and ethnic background. 
 
If it is not feasible to provide a qualified assessor, an interpreter must be used, and the assessment 
report should document this. The report should also note that the validity of the assessment may 
have been affected due to the use of an interpreter. 
 
(b) The normal process of acquiring a second language, as well as differences in dialect and 
sociolinguistic variations, should not be misidentified as a disability. 
 
CCR 3001 - Definitions and Goals: 
 
(q) "Primary Language": 
The primary language refers to the language other than English (or another mode of 
communication) that the individual first learned, or the language used in the person’s home. 
 
(m) “Linguistically Appropriate Goals, Objectives, and Programs”: 
1. These include activities that help develop English language proficiency. 
2. They also encompass instructional systems at both elementary and secondary levels that address 
the language development needs of students who are limited in English proficiency. 
 
For students whose primary language is not English and who are identified by the IEP team as 
having a severely limited ability to learn a second language, the IEP team may determine that 
instruction should be provided through an alternative program. This decision is made through a 
waiver under Education Code Section 311. However, the IEP team must reconsider the student’s 
ability to receive instruction in English at least once a year. 

 

D-5

219



Page 63 of 233 
 

Section D – Evaluation of African-American 
Students   
At the time of publication, no new definitive information is available regarding the evaluation and 
assessment of intelligence of African-American students referred for special education.  Under the 
Larry P. v. Riles decision of 1979 there are no approved instruments.  The decision identified only 
those tests that are prohibited.  Additionally, there is no criterion or a process for selecting 
acceptable instruments.  Consequently, according to the California Department of Education, 
Special Education Division, African-American students cannot be assured that decisions about 
their eligibility for special education will be based on technically or educationally adequate 
instruments.  To provide equal treatment and effective educational decisions for African-American 
students in special education, according to a presentation to the Advisory Commission on Special 
Education, November 20, 1998: 
 
The California Association of School Psychologists (CASP) in cooperation with the Special 
Education Division of the California Department of Education asks the Advisory Commission on 
Special Education to participate in establishing criteria and a committee to select acceptable tests 
or procedures. 

 
Intelligence is assessed in education for identification and documentation of an educational 
disability as required for special education services. However, identification of all educational 
disabilities does not require the assessment of intelligence, and several of the educational 
disabilities include the term intellectual ability or a synonym of the concept.  Terms of general or 
specific intellectual abilities are found as special education service requirements for specific 
learning disability, intellectual disability, emotional disability, and traumatic brain injury. 
 
Implications for California Speech Language Pathologists – Toya Wyatt Article 
Although the original ruling applies to the use of standardized IQ tests with African American 
children, many standardized speech and language tests also fall under the Larry P. mandate.  This 
is because they directly or indirectly purport to measure IQ and their construct validity is partially 
or fully determined through correlations with other IQ tests. 
 
See Appendix A for an opinion letter regarding the propriety of administering I.Q. tests to African-
American students. 
 
 

Section E–Suspension or Expulsion of Pupils with 
Exceptional Needs   
 

 
California Education Code Section 48915.5 
Suspension or Expulsion of Pupils With Exceptional Needs; 
Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE); 
Provision of Transportation 
 

D-5

220



Page 64 of 233 
 

48915.5. (a) An individual with exceptional needs, as defined in Section 56026, may be 
suspended or expelled from school in accordance with Section 1415(k) of Title 20 of the United 
States Code, the discipline provisions contained in Sections 300.530 to 300.537, inclusive, of 
Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and other provisions of this part that do not conflict 
with federal law and regulations. 
 
(b) A free appropriate public education for individuals with exceptional needs suspended or 
expelled from school shall be in accordance with Section 1412(a)(1) of Title 20 of the United 
States Code and Section 300.530(d) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations. 
 
(c) If an individual with exceptional needs is excluded from school bus transportation, the pupil 
is entitled to be provided with an alternative form of transportation at no cost to the pupil or 
parent or guardian provided that transportation is specified in the pupil s individualized 
education program. 
 
(d) If the individual with exceptional needs is a foster child, as defined in Section 48853.5, and 
the local educational agency has proposed a change of placement due to an act for which a 
decision to recommend expulsion is at the discretion of the principal or the district 
superintendent of schools, the attorney for the individual with exceptional needs and an 
appropriate representative of the county child welfare agency shall be invited to participate in the 
individualized education program team meeting that makes a manifestation determination 
pursuant to Section 1415(k) of Title 20 of the United States Code. The invitation may be made 
using the most cost-effective method possible, which may include, but is not limited to, 
electronic mail or a telephone call. 
 
(e) If the individual with exceptional needs is a homeless child or youth, as defined in Section 
11434a(2) of Title 42 of the United States Code, and the local educational agency has proposed a 
change of placement due to an act for which a decision to recommend expulsion is at the 
discretion of the principal or the district superintendent of schools, the local educational agency 
liaison for homeless children and youth designated pursuant to Section 11432(g)(1)(J)(ii) of Title 
42 of the United States Code shall be invited to participate in the individualized education 
program team meeting that makes a manifestation determination pursuant to Section 1415(k) of 
Title 20 of the United States Code. The invitation may be made using the most cost-effective 
method possible, which may include, but is not limited to, electronic mail or a telephone call. 
 
(Amended by Stats. 2014, Ch. 767, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 2015. 
Procedural Safeguards (in part) 
20 United States Code (USC) Section 1415 
 
(j) MAINTENANCE OF CURRENT EDUCATIONAL PLACEMENT 
Except as provided in subsection (k)(4), during the pendency of any proceedings conducted 
pursuant to this section, unless the State or local educational agency and the parents otherwise 
agree, the child shall remain in the then-current educational placement of the child, or, if 
applying for initial admission to a public school, shall, with the consent of the parents, be placed 
in the public school program until all such proceedings have been completed. 
 
(k) PLACEMENT IN ALTERNATIVE EDUCATIONAL SETTING 

D-5

221



Page 65 of 233 
 

 (1) AUTHORITY OF SCHOOL PERSONNEL 
(A) Case-by-case determination 
School personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when 
determining whether to order a change in placement for a child with a disability who 
violates a code of student conduct. 
(B) Authority 
School personnel under this subsection may remove a child with a disability who violates 
a code of student conduct from their current placement to an appropriate interim 
alternative educational setting, another setting, or suspension, for not more than 10 school 
days (to the extent such alternatives are applied to children without disabilities). 
(C) Additional authority 
If school personnel seek to order a change in placement that would exceed 10 school days 
and the behavior that gave rise to the violation of the school code is determined not to be 
a manifestation of the child’s disability pursuant to subparagraph (E), the relevant 
disciplinary procedures applicable to children without disabilities may be applied to the 
child in the same manner and for the same duration in which the procedures would be 
applied to children without disabilities, except as provided in section 1412(a)(1) of this 
title although it may be provided in an interim alternative educational setting. 
(D) Services 
A child with a disability who is removed from the child’s current placement under 
subparagraph (G) (irrespective of whether the behavior is determined to be a 
manifestation of the child’s disability) or subparagraph (C) shall— 

(i) continue to receive educational services, as provided in section 1412(a)(1) of this 
title, so as to enable the child to continue to participate in the general education 
curriculum, although in another setting, and to progress toward meeting the goals set 
out in the child’s IEP; and 
(ii) receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment, behavioral 
intervention services and modifications, that are designed to address the behavior 
violation so that it does not recur. 

(E) Manifestation determination 
(i) In general Except as provided in subparagraph (B), within 10 school days of any 
decision to change the placement of a child with a disability because of a violation of 
a code of student conduct, the local educational agency, the parent, and relevant 
members of the IEP Team (as determined by the parent and the local educational 
agency) shall review all relevant information in the student’s file, including the 
child’s IEP, any teacher observations, and any relevant information provided by the 
parents to determine— 

(I) if the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial 
relationship to, the child’s disability; or 
(II) if the conduct in question was the direct result of the local educational 
agency’s failure to implement the IEP. 

(ii) Manifestation 

D-5

222

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/lii:usc:t:20:s:1412:a:1
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/lii:usc:t:20:s:1412:a:1
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/lii:usc:t:20:s:1412:a:1
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/lii:usc:t:20:s:1412:a:1


Page 66 of 233 
 

If the local educational agency, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP Team 
determine that either subclause (I) or (II) of clause (i) is applicable for the child, the 
conduct shall be determined to be a manifestation of the child’s disability. 

(F) Determination that behavior was a manifestation 
If the local educational agency, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP Team make 
the determination that the conduct was a manifestation of the child’s disability, the IEP 
Team shall— 

(i) conduct a functional behavioral assessment, and implement a behavioral 
intervention plan for such child, provided that the local educational agency had not 
conducted such assessment prior to such determination before the behavior that 
resulted in a change in placement described in subparagraph (C) or (G); 
(ii) in the situation where a behavioral intervention plan has been developed, review 
the behavioral intervention plan if the child already has such a behavioral intervention 
plan, and modify it, as necessary, to address the behavior; and 
(iii) except as provided in subparagraph (G), return the child to the placement from 
which the child was removed, unless the parent and the local educational agency 
agree to a change of placement as part of the modification of the behavioral 
intervention plan. 
 

(G) Special circumstances 
School personnel may remove a student to an interim alternative educational setting 
for not more than 45 school days without regard to whether the behavior is determined to 
be a manifestation of the child’s disability, in cases where a child— 

(i) carries or possesses a weapon to or at school, on school premises, or to or at a 
school function under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency; 
(ii) knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a 
controlled substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function 
under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational agency; or 
(iii) has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school 
premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of a State or local educational 
agency. 

(H) Notification 
Not later than the date on which the decision to take disciplinary action is made, the local 
educational agency shall notify the parents of that decision, and of all procedural 
safeguards accorded under this section. 

 
(2) DETERMINATION OF SETTING 
The interim alternative educational setting in subparagraphs (C) and (G) of paragraph (1) 
shall be determined by the IEP Team. 
 
(3) APPEAL 

(A) In general 
The parent of a child with a disability who disagrees with any decision regarding 
placement, or the manifestation determination under this subsection, or a local 

D-5

223



Page 67 of 233 
 

educational agency that believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is 
substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others, may request a hearing. 
(B) Authority of hearing officer 

(i) In general 
A hearing officer shall hear, and make a determination regarding, an appeal requested 
under subparagraph (A). 
(ii) Change of placement order 
In making the determination under clause (i), the hearing officer may order a change 
in placement of a child with a disability. In such situations, the hearing officer may— 

(I) return a child with a disability to the placement from which the child was 
removed; or 
(II) order a change in placement of a child with a disability to an appropriate 
interim alternative educational setting for not more than 45 school days if the 
hearing officer determines that maintaining the current placement of such child is 
substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others. 

 
(4) PLACEMENT DURING APPEALS 
When an appeal under paragraph (3) has been requested by either the parent or the local 
educational agency— 

(A) the child shall remain in the interim alternative educational setting pending the 
decision of the hearing officer or until the expiration of the time period provided for in 
paragraph (1)(C), whichever occurs first, unless the parent and the State or local 
educational agency agree otherwise; and 
(B) the State or local educational agency shall arrange for an expedited hearing, which 
shall occur within 20 school days of the date the hearing is requested and shall result in a 
determination within 10 school days after the hearing. 

(5) PROTECTIONS FOR CHILDREN NOT YET ELIGIBLE FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION AND 
RELATED SERVICES 

(A) In general 
A child who has not been determined to be eligible for special education and related 
services under this subchapter and who has engaged in behavior that violates a code of 
student conduct, may assert any of the protections provided for in this subchapter if the 
local educational agency had knowledge (as determined in accordance with this 
paragraph) that the child was a child with a disability before the behavior that precipitated 
the disciplinary action occurred. 
(B) Basis of knowledge 
A local educational agency shall be deemed to have knowledge that a child is a child with 
a disability if, before the behavior that precipitated the disciplinary action occurred— 

(i) the parent of the child has expressed concern in writing to supervisory or 
administrative personnel of the appropriate educational agency, or a teacher of the 
child, that the child is in need of special education and related services; 
(ii) the parent of the child has requested an evaluation of the child pursuant to section 
1414(a)(1)(B) of this title; or 

D-5

224

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/lii:usc:t:20:s:1414:a:1:B
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/lii:usc:t:20:s:1414:a:1:B


Page 68 of 233 
 

(iii) the teacher of the child, or other personnel of the local educational agency, has 
expressed specific concerns about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child, 
directly to the director of special education of such agency or to other supervisory 
personnel of the agency. 

(C) Exception 
A local educational agency shall not be deemed to have knowledge that the child is a 
child with a disability if the parent of the child has not allowed an evaluation of the child 
pursuant to section 1414 of this title or has refused services under this subchapter or the 
child has been evaluated and it was determined that the child was not a child with a 
disability under this subchapter. 
(D) Conditions that apply if no basis of knowledge 

(i) In general 
If a local educational agency does not have knowledge that a child is a child with a 
disability (in accordance with subparagraph (B) or (C) prior to taking disciplinary 
measures against the child, the child may be subjected to disciplinary measures 
applied to children without disabilities who engaged in comparable behaviors 
consistent with clause (ii). 
(ii) Limitations 
If a request is made for an evaluation of a child during the time period in which the 
child is subjected to disciplinary measures under this subsection, the evaluation shall 
be conducted in an expedited manner. If the child is determined to be a child with a 
disability, taking into consideration information from the evaluation conducted by the 
agency and information provided by the parents, the agency shall provide special 
education and related services in accordance with this subchapter, except that, 
pending the results of the evaluation, the child shall remain in the educational 
placement determined by school authorities. 

(6) REFERRAL TO AND ACTION BY LAW ENFORCEMENT AND JUDICIAL AUTHORITIES 
(A) Rule of construction 
Nothing in this subchapter shall be construed to prohibit an agency from reporting a 
crime committed by a child with a disability to appropriate authorities or to prevent State 
law enforcement and judicial authorities from exercising their responsibilities with regard 
to the application of Federal and State law to crimes committed by a child with a 
disability. 
(B) Transmittal of records 
An agency reporting a crime committed by a child with a disability shall ensure that 
copies of the special education and disciplinary records of the child are transmitted for 
consideration by the appropriate authorities to whom the agency reports the crime. 
 

(7) DEFINITIONS In this subsection: 
(A) Controlled substance 
The term “controlled substance” means a drug or other substance identified under 
schedule I, II, III, IV, or V in section 202(c) of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 
812(c)). 
 
(B) Illegal drug 

D-5

225

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/1414
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/lii:usc:t:21:s:812:c
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/lii:usc:t:21:s:812:c


Page 69 of 233 
 

The term “illegal drug” means a controlled substance but does not include a controlled 
substance that is legally possessed or used under the supervision of a licensed health-care 
professional or that is legally possessed or used under any other authority under that Act 
[21 U.S.C. 801 et seq.] or under any other provision of Federal law. 
 
(C) Weapon 
The term “weapon” has the meaning given the term “dangerous weapon” under section 
930(g)(2) of title 18. 
 
(D) Serious bodily injury 
The term “serious bodily injury” has the meaning given the term “serious bodily injury” 
under paragraph (3) of subsection (h) of section 1365 of title 18. 
 

(6) RULE OF CONSTRUCTION  
Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to restrict or limit the rights, procedures, and remedies 
available under the Constitution, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 [42 U.S.C. 
12101 et seq.], title V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 [29 U.S.C. 790 et seq.], or other Federal 
laws protecting the rights of children with disabilities, except that before the filing of a civil 
action under such laws seeking relief that is also available under this subchapter, the procedures 
under subsections (f) and (g) shall be exhausted to the same extent as would be required had the 
action been brought under this subchapter. 
 (7) TRANSFER OF PARENTAL RIGHTS AT AGE OF MAJORITY 

(1) In general  
A State that receives amounts from a grant under this subchapter may provide that, when a 
child with a disability reaches the age of majority under State law (except for a child with a 
disability who has been determined to be incompetent under State law)— 

(A) the agency shall provide any notice required by this section to both the individual 
and the parents; 
(B) all other rights accorded to parents under this subchapter transfer to the child; 
(C) the agency shall notify the individual and the parents of the transfer of rights; and 
(D) all rights accorded to parents under this subchapter transfer to children who are 
incarcerated in an adult or juvenile Federal, State, or local correctional institution. 

(2) Special rule 
If, under State law, a child with a disability who has reached the age of majority under State 
law, who has not been determined to be incompetent, but who is determined not to have the 
ability to provide informed consent with respect to the educational program of the child, the 
State shall establish procedures for appointing the parent of the child, or if the parent is not 
available, another appropriate individual, to represent the educational interests of the child 
throughout the period of eligibility of the child under this subchapter. 

 
Suspension and Expulsion Rates 
34 Code of Federal Regulations Section 300.170 
(a) General. The LEA must examine data, including data disaggregated by race and ethnicity, to 
determine if significant discrepancies are occurring in the rate of long-term suspensions and 
expulsions of children with disabilities - 

D-5

226

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/21/801
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/lii:usc:t:18:s:930:g:2
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/lii:usc:t:18:s:930:g:2
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/18/1365
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/12101
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/12101
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/29/790


Page 70 of 233 
 

(1) Among LEAs in the State; or 
(2) Compared to the rates for nondisabled children within those agencies. 

(b) Review and revision of policies. If the discrepancies described in paragraph (a) of this section 
are occurring, the SEA must review and, if appropriate, revise (or require the affected State 
agency or LEA to revise) its policies, procedures, and practices relating to the development and 
implementation of IEPs, the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and 
procedural safeguards, to ensure that these policies, procedures, and practices comply with the 
Act. 
(Authority: 20 U.S.C. 1412(a)(22)) 
 
 

 

Section F – Eligibility Evalution  
 
EC 56381(a)(2) A reassessment shall occur not more frequently than once a year, unless the 
parent and the local educational agency agree otherwise, and shall occur at least once every three 
years, unless the parent and the local educational agency agree, in writing, that a reassessment is 
unnecessary.  If the reassessment so indicates, a new individualized education program shall be 
developed. 
 

Each local education agency shall conduct a reassessment of each child with a disability if 
conditions warrant a reassessment, or if the child’s parent or teacher requests a reassessment, but 
at least once every three years.   
 
 

Section G - Independent Educational Evaluation  
 

 
EC 56329(b) A parent or guardian has the right to obtain, at public expense, an independent 
educational assessment of the pupil from qualified specialists, as defined by regulations of the 
board, if the parent or guardian disagrees with an assessment obtained by the public education 
agency, in accordance with Section 300.502 of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  A 
parent or guardian is entitled to only one independent educational assessment at public expense 
each time the public agency conducts an assessment with which the parent or guardian disagrees.  
If a public education agency observed the pupil in conducting its assessment, or if its assessment 
procedures make it permissible to have in-class observation of a pupil, an equivalent opportunity 
shall apply to an independent educational assessment of the pupil in the pupil’s current 
educational placement and setting, and observation of an educational placement and setting, if 
any, proposed by the public education agency, regardless of whether the independent educational 
assessment is initiated before or after the filing of a due process hearing proceeding. 
 
When a parent or guardian requests an independent educational evaluation, the public education 
agency may initiate a due process hearing to show that its assessment is appropriate.  If the final 
decision resulting from the due process hearing is that the assessment is appropriate, the parent or 
guardian maintains the right for an independent educational evaluation, but not at public expense.   
 
If the school district agrees to an independent evaluation at public expense, the district director 
should contact the SELPA with the names of the assessors they have agreed to.  and release (s) of 

D-5

227

https://www.govregs.com/uscode/20/1412


Page 71 of 233 
 

information will be developed by the district which specifies those areas to be evaluated and who 
will complete each assessment.  The assessment(s) completed will comply with the locations of 
the evaluator(s), the minimum qualifications of evaluator/s, the costs of the evaluation, and use of 
approved assessment instruments as set out in the Criteria for Independent Educational Evaluation.   
 
Parents will be required to sign appropriate releases to exchange information between the 
independent educational evaluator(s) and the SELPA/school district as a condition of the school 
district’s agreement to provide for an independent evaluation. 
 
As part of an independent educational evaluation, the examiner shall follow guidelines as 
articulated in current educational code and state law for school district evaluations, which include, 
but are not limited to, observing the student in an appropriate setting and interviews with parents 
and staff.   
 
The independent educational evaluation must be reviewed at an individualized education program 
(IEP) meeting.  The District is responsible for scheduling the IEP meeting.  The independent 
examiner shall attend the IEP team meeting in person or through phone contact at which time the 
evaluation will be discussed.  The SELPA/school district will pay the independent examiner to 
attend the IEP team meeting as part of the evaluation responsibilities.  
 
See West End SELPA Policies and Procedures:  Independent Educational Evaluation BP 6159.8 
AR 6159.8 
 
DENYING A REQUEST FOR A SPECIAL EDUCATION ASSESSMENT  
 
The District has the right to refuse a request for a special education assessment if it does not 
believe that the student may have a disability requiring special education and related services. 
This right should only be exercised only when there is evidence that the student is receiving 
passing grades, progressing from grade to grade, or that the student’s instructional difficulties are 
the results of factors other than a suspected disability. 
 
Parents have the right to a due process hearing to challenge the refusal. At the hearing the 
District will have to provide evidence to defend its decision. Thus, a decision to deny a request 
for a special education assessment should only be made when the school site administrator or 
designee has documented evidence to support their decision.  
 
Evidence should be based on a review of the following: 

• Student records, academic history; 
• Prior assessments including curriculum-based assessments, standardized tests, and 

alternative measures and procedures; 
• Progress in current program; 
• Progress in meeting content standards, including literacy and mathematics; 
• Results of State and District assessments; 
• Results of proficiency examinations; 
• Results of portfolio assessments and student work samples; 
• Types and results of academic intervention provided;  
• Teacher information and concerns; 
• Parent information and concerns; 

D-5

228



Page 72 of 233 
 

• Results of situational observations. 
• Review of past medical records and other documents provided by parents/guardians 

 
Denial of Request for Special Education Assessment 
 
If it is decided to deny a request for a special education assessment, the following steps must be 
taken: 

1. Notify the parents in writing of the decision. 
2. The letter must include the following: 

a. A description of the decision made by the school; 
b. A description of the evaluation procedure, test record, or report used as a basis for 

the decision; 
c. An explanation of why the decision was made; 
d. A description of any other options considered and the reason those options were 

rejected; 
e. A description of any other factors relevant to the decision; 
f. A statement that parents of a child with a suspected or confirmed disability are 

protected by procedural safeguards 
3. Attach a copy of the Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards to the prior written 

notice. 
4. Be sure that the letter is provided to the parent/guardian within 15 days of receipt of the 

request for a special education assessment.  
 
Timelines  
 
The timeline noted above must be followed. A Timeline Chart can be used to determine due 
dates. For example, calculating ccalculate the number of days that have elapsed from the date the 
referral was received date to when to then the completed the Assessment Plan and/or Prior 
Written Notice (15 days) are due, as well asand when consent for assessment was received to the 
IEP due date (60 days). This chart does not take into consideration suspension of timelines for 
dates when schools are closed or students are not in attendance for more than five (5) days or the 
extra days allowed for obtaining parental consent. 
 
The referral through assessment process is not completed until the IEP team meeting is held, the 
student is identified as eligible or ineligible for special education services, and the appropriate 
IEP pages written.  
 

 
 

 

D-5

229



Page 73 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A 
California Department of Education 

Memorandum 
Date: September 14, 2022 

To: Special Education Local Plan Area Directors 

From: Heather Calomese, Division Director, Opportunities for All Branch 

Subject: Special Education Assessment of African American Students 

Background 
Recently questions have arisen about special education assessment of African American students 
for identification and placement and the Larry P. court decision, as detailed below. This memo is 
intended to provide guidance on that issue. This memo reflects the most current federal and state 
statutory, regulatory and case law, and supersedes any previous guidance on this issue. 

Laws Relating to Assessment for Special Education 
In the many years since the original Larry P. decision, a body of federal and state special 
education statutes and regulations have evolved that emphasize nondiscriminatory assessment 
that gathers a wide range of information about the student, using multiple measures, and without 
focusing on a single criterion such as an intelligence quotient (IQ) score. A summary of key legal 
requirements for assessment follows. The California Department of Education (CDE) considers 
these principles in its monitoring of local educational agencies (LEAs) in relation to special 
education assessment of African American students. 

1. No single measure or assessment may be used as the sole criterion for determining 
whether the child has a disability or for determining an appropriate educational program 
for the child. (20 United States Code [U.S.C.] § 1414[b][2][B]; 34 Code of Federal 
Regulations [C.F.R.] part 300.304[b][2]; Education Code [EC] §§ 56001[j] and 56320[e]; 
California Code of Regulations [Cal. Code Regs.], Title 5, § 3030[j][4].) 
 

2. Assessments and other evaluation materials must include those tailored to assess specific 
areas of educational need and not merely those that are designed to provide a single 
general intelligence quotient. (34 C.F.R. part 300.304[c][2]; EC § 56320[c].) 
 

3. A variety of assessment tools and strategies must be used, in order to gather relevant 
functional, developmental and academic information about the child. (20 U.S.C. § 
1414[b][2][A]; 34 C.F.R. part 300.304[b][1]; EC § 56320[b][1].) 
 

4. Assessments and other evaluation materials must be valid and reliable for the purpose for 
which they are used. (20 U.S.C. § 1414[b][3][A][iii]; 

D-5

230



Page 74 of 233 
 

34 C.F.R. part300.304[c][1][iii]; EC § 56320[b][2].) 
 

5. Assessments and other evaluation materials must be selected and administered so as not 
to be discriminatory on a racial or cultural basis. (20 U.S.C. § 1414[b][3][A][i]; 
34 C.F.R. part 300.304[c][1][i]; EC §§ 56001[j]; 56320[a].) 

The Larry P. Case 
In 1972 in the Larry P. case, the United States District Court for the Northern District of 
California found that African American students in the San Francisco Unified School District 
were being placed into classes for “Educably Mentally Retarded (EMR)” students in 
disproportionate numbers, based on criteria that relied primarily on the results of intelligence 
quotient (IQ) tests that were racially and/or culturally discriminatory and not validated for the 
purposes for which they were being used1. In 1979, the court permanently enjoined LEAs 
throughout California from using standardized intelligence tests2 for (1) the identification of 
African American students as EMR or its substantial equivalent or (2) placement of African 
American students into EMR classes or classes serving substantially the same functions3. 

The court held that court approval would be required for the use of any standardized intelligence 
tests for African American students for the above purposes. The court laid out a state process for 
this.  

The EMR category no longer exists. The court has never held hearings to determine the 
“substantial equivalent” of the EMR identification or placement, or whether IQ tests are 
appropriate for assessing African American students for identifications or placements other than 
the substantial equivalent of EMR. The state process to seek approval has not been invoked. 

Although the law on assessment has evolved, as described above, the Larry P. injunction 
remains in place, and the court retains jurisdiction over its enforcement. The Larry P. injunction 
does not apply to tests that are not considered standardized intelligence tests. 

Assessment for Learning Disabilities 
So long as LEAs follow legal requirements, generally speaking they have discretion in selecting 
which particular assessments to use in determining eligibility for special education4. When 
assessing for a learning disability, LEAs are not required to consider whether the student has a 
severe discrepancy between intellectual ability and achievement. Rather, they must permit a 
model based on a student’s response to intervention, or RTI. (20 U.S.C. § 1414[b][6].)5 When 
assessing for a learning disability using a severe discrepancy model, LEAs are not required to 
use IQ tests to determine intellectual ability6. 

 
 
 

 
 

D-5

231

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/memo091422.asp#footnote1
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/memo091422.asp#footnote2
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/memo091422.asp#footnote3
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/memo091422.asp#footnote4
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/memo091422.asp#footnote5
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/memo091422.asp#footnote6


Page 75 of 233 
 

 
 
 

  

 
 

 
INSTRUCTIONAL PLANNING AND THE 
INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION A THE IEP MEETING:  PREPARATION, PROCESS, AND 
FOLLOW-UP 

 

SECTION B WRITING THE IEP BASED ON COMMON CORE 
STANDARDS 

 

SECTION C CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY DIVERSE 
STUDENTS 

 

SECTION D TEACHING AND ASSESSING CALIFORNIA’S 
ENGLISH LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT (ELD) AND 
ENGLISH-LANGUAGE ARTS (ELA) STANDARDS FOR 
ENGLISH LEARNERS 

 

 
D-5

232



Page 76 of 233 
 

 
 
Introduction 
 
The Individualized Education Program (IEP) document is the foundation that directs instructional 
planning for the student with exceptional needs.  Therefore, the process of preparing for, 
conducting, and following-up any IEP meeting is crucial to the development and implementation 
of the IEP.  This chapter will give an overview of the IEP meeting process, including the IEP 
document, which describes the student’s program. 
 
The West End SELPA web-based Individualized Education Program (IEP) is used by all local 
education agencies within the West End SELPA and includes all required components. 
 
All special education and related services determined by the Individualized Education Program 
(IEP) team to be necessary for a student to benefit from special education shall be listed on the 
IEP.  The IEP shall include date of initiation, frequency, duration and location of service.  A Local 
Education Agency (LEA) shall assure that each student with a disability is provided services in 
accordance with his/her IEP, regardless of which agency or contractor provides the service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

233



Page 77 of 233 
 

Section A – The IEP Meeting: Preparation, 
Process, and Follow-up 
 
EC  56340 Each district, special education local plan area, or county office shall initiate and 
conduct meetings for the purposes of developing, reviewing, and revising the individualized 
education program of each individual with exceptional needs. 
 
EC 56341 (a) Each meeting to develop, review, or revise the individualized education program of 
an individual with exceptional needs, shall be conducted by an individualized education program 
team. 
 
EC 56343 An individualized education program team shall meet whenever any of the following 
occurs: 
a) A pupil has received an initial formal assessment.  The team may meet when a pupil receives 

any subsequent formal assessment. 
b) The pupil demonstrates a lack of anticipated progress. 
c) The parent or teacher requests a meeting to develop, review, or revise the individualized 

education program. 
d) At least annually, to review the pupil’s progress, the individualized education program, 

including whether the annual goals for the pupil are being achieved, and the appropriateness 
of placement, and to make any necessary revisions. 

 
Activities Prior to the Meeting 

• Develop and distribute Invitation/Notice of Meeting 
• Request translator, if applicable 
• Develop proposed agenda, with team member roles designated 
• Complete progress report on current goals and objectives 
• Attach assessment reports to SEIS, if applicable 
• Contact parent to confirm IEP date if Invitation/ Notice of meeting has not 
been received 

• Ensure all required IEP team members are invited. 
 
 
Preparation is required for an effective and collaborative IEP meeting.  It is best practice to have 
the Case Manager of the IEP team contact the parent prior to the IEP meeting to obtain input on 
his/her priorities for goals and objectives, any concerns they may have, and to determine the 
parent’s expectations for the meeting.  The chairperson should also ask the parent if s/he has any 
reports or evaluations that the parent would like the IEP team to consider.   
 
The special education service providers have responsibility for reviewing the criteria for 
achievement in the goals from the previous IEP and determining if they have been met or not met.  
Draft goals and objectives based on student progress and parent input should be written and 
submitted to the case manager.  The case manager should send a copy of the draft goals and 
objectives proposed for the new IEP to the parent(s) for their review in advance of the IEP meeting 
when feasible to do so.  If assessments have been completed in preparation for the IEP meeting, 

D-5

234



Page 78 of 233 
 

these reports should also be shared with the parent prior to the IEP meeting.  This may be through 
an informal meeting, email, U.S. mail, or phone contact.  
 
In cases where the student has many different service providers, the service providers and Case 
Manager may elect to meet prior to the IEP meeting to clarify their roles and the scope of the IEP 
meeting.   
 
Meeting Notification  
Each local education agency shall make every reasonable effort to ensure that one or both parents 
of the child with a disability are present at the IEP meeting and are afforded the opportunity to 
participate.  Parents should be notified of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have 
an opportunity to attend.  The meeting should be scheduled at a mutually agreed time and place.  
When a student reaches the age of majority, the district shall provide notice of the IEP to the 
student. 
 
If neither parent can attend, the local education agency shall use other methods to ensure 
meaningful parent participation, including individual or conference telephone calls and other 
reasonable accommodations.  If the parent cannot be convinced to attend the IEP meeting, the LEA 
must document attempts to arrange the meeting at a mutually agreeable time and place.  
Documentation may include record of phone call(s) made or attempted and the results, copies of 
correspondence sent to the parent(s) and any responses received, copies of meeting notices, and 
records of visits to the parent’s home or place of employment and the results of those visits.  Local 
policy has suggested a minimum of ten calendar days’ notice to the parents and other parties who 
have assessed or who serve the student.  The notice must contain the following elements: 
 

• Purpose, time, and location of the meeting 
• The positions of the people invited to the meeting 
• Identification of any other local agency invited to send a representative 
• The right to bring other people to the meeting who has knowledge or special expertise 

regarding the student with disabilities   
• Student’s aged 16 or younger, if appropriate, a statement indicating that the purpose is to 

consider needed transition services and the student is invited to the meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

235



Page 79 of 233 
 

IEP Team Members  
34 CFR Section 300.321 IEP Team. 

(a) General. The public agency must ensure that the IEP Team for each child with a disability 
includes— 

(1) The parents of the child; 
(2) Not less than one regular education teacher of the child (if the child is, or may be, 
participating in the regular education environment); 
(3) Not less than one special education teacher of the child, or where appropriate, not less 
than one special education provider of the child; 
(4) A representative of the public agency who— 

(i) Is qualified to provide, or supervise the provision of, specially designed 
instruction to meet the unique needs of children with disabilities; 
(ii) Is knowledgeable about the general education curriculum; and 
(iii) Is knowledgeable about the availability of resources of the public agency. 

(5) An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of evaluation results, 
who may be a member of the team described in paragraphs (a)(2) through (a)(6) of this 
section; 
(6) At the discretion of the parent or the agency, other individuals who have knowledge 
or special expertise regarding the child, including related services personnel as 
appropriate; and 
(7) Whenever appropriate, the child with a disability. 

(b) Transition services participants. 
(1) In accordance with paragraph (a)(7) of this section, the public agency must invite a 
child with a disability to attend the child’s IEP Team meeting if a purpose of the meeting 
will be the consideration of the postsecondary goals for the child and the transition 
services needed to assist the child in reaching those goals under §300.320(b). 
(2) If the child does not attend the IEP Team meeting, the public agency must take other 
steps to ensure that the child’s preferences and interests are considered. 
(3) To the extent appropriate, with the consent of the parents or a child who has reached 
the age of majority, in implementing the requirements of paragraph (b)(1) of this section, 
the public agency must invite a representative of any participating agency that is likely to 
be responsible for providing or paying for transition services. 

(c) Determination of knowledge and special expertise. The determination of the knowledge or 
special expertise of any individual described in paragraph (a)(6) of this section must be made by 
the party (parents or public agency) who invited the individual to be a member of the IEP Team. 
(d) Designating a public agency representative. A public agency may designate a public agency 
member of the IEP Team to also serve as the agency representative, if the criteria in paragraph 
(a)(4) of this section are satisfied. 
(e) IEP Team attendance. 

(1) A member of the IEP Team described in paragraphs (a)(2) through (a)(5) of this 
section is not required to attend an IEP Team meeting, in whole or in part, if the parent of 
a child with a disability and the public agency agree, in writing, that the attendance of the 
member is not necessary because the member’s area of the curriculum or related services 
is not being modified or discussed in the meeting. 

D-5

236

https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/1
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/2
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/3
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/4
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/4/i
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/4/ii
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/4/iii
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/5
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/6
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/a/7
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/b
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/b/1
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.320
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/b/2
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/b/3
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/c
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/d
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/e
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/e/1


Page 80 of 233 
 

(2) A member of the IEP Team described in paragraph (e)(1) of this section may be 
excused from attending an IEP Team meeting, in whole or in part, when the meeting 
involves a modification to or discussion of the member’s area of the curriculum or related 
services, if— 

(i) The parent, in writing, and the public agency consent to the excusal; and 
(ii) The member submits, in writing to the parent and the IEP Team, input into the 
development of the IEP prior to the meeting. 

(f) Initial IEP Team meeting for child under Part C. In the case of a child who was previously 
served under Part C of the Act, an invitation to the initial IEP Team meeting must, at the request 
of the parent, be sent to the Part C service coordinator or other representatives of the Part C 
system to assist with the smooth transition of services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The responsibilities of the general education teacher include:   
 

• Sharing information about the general education curriculum and the general education 
classroom environment 

• Assisting in developing positive behavioral interventions and strategies, if needed 
• Assisting in identifying supplemental aids and services, program modifications, and 

supports for school personnel needed to allow the student to be involved and progress in 
the general education curriculum and environment         

 
 

The responsibilities of the special education teacher include:   
 
The special education teacher and/or related service provider provides individual information 
about the student’s unique needs, including strengths and weaknesses.  Their responsibilities 
include: 
 

• Identifying the student’s present level of academic and functional performance 

D-5

237

https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/e/2
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/e/2/i
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/e/2/ii
https://sites.ed.gov/idea/regs/b/d/300.321/f


Page 81 of 233 
 

 
• Identifying progress toward identified goals  
• Developing measurable annual goals and objectives in all areas of need 
• Providing suggestions for maximizing the extent to which the student is educated with non-

disabled peers 
• Making recommendations for related services, specialized equipment, or assistive 

technology 
• Assisting in developing positive behavioral interventions and strategies, if needed 

 
 

1. A district representative who: is qualified to provide, or supervise the provision of, specially 
designed instruction to meet the unique needs of children with disabilities; ii) is knowledgeable 
about the general education curriculum; and iii) is knowledgeable about the availability of 
district resources. 

 
2. An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of evaluation results. 

 
3. At the discretion of the parent(s) or the district, other individuals who have knowledge or 

special expertise regarding the child, including related services personnel as appropriate. 
 

4. Whenever appropriate, the child.   

(34 CFR 300.321 (a))  
A district should document IEP meeting attendees to be able to later prove that the meeting was 
properly constituted according to 34 CFR 300.321.  
 
When the purpose of the meeting is to consider postsecondary goals and transition services needed 
to reach these goals, the student shall be invited to attend the IEP.  The student’s input regarding 
preferences and interests will be solicited if he/she is unable or unwilling to attend. The LEA, with 
the consent of the parent or a child who has reached the age of majority, must also invite any other 
agency that is likely to be responsible for providing or paying for transition services. 
 
Education Code § 56341.2 requires an invitation be sent to a representative of the group home in 
those cases in which a pupil with exceptional needs has been placed in a group home by a juvenile 
court.   
 

(a) In the case of a pupil with exceptional needs who has been placed in a group home, as 
defined in subdivision (g) of Section 80001 of Title 22 of the California Code of 
Regulations, by the juvenile court pursuant to Section 300, 601, or 602 of the Welfare and 
Institutions Code, the district, special education local plan area, or county office shall invite 
to the individualized education program team meetings a representative of the group home. 

 
When an infant or toddler who had previously received IDEA Part C services becomes eligible for 
Part B FAPE-based coverage, an invitation to the initial IEP meeting for a child previously served 
under Part C must, at the request of the parents, be sent to the Part C services coordinator or other 
representatives of the Part C system to assist with the smooth transition of services. 34 CFR 
300.321 (f). 

D-5

238

http://www.specialedconnection.com/LrpSecStoryTool/servlet/GetReg?cite=34+CFR+300.321
http://www.specialedconnection.com/LrpSecStoryTool/servlet/GetReg?cite=34+CFR+300.321
http://www.specialedconnection.com/LrpSecStoryTool/servlet/GetReg?cite=34+CFR+300.321
http://www.specialedconnection.com/LrpSecStoryTool/servlet/GetReg?cite=34+CFR+300.321


Page 82 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Excusal of an IEP team member 
 
IDEA 2004 has provisions for a required IEP team member to be excused from the IEP meeting.  
The purpose of this provision is to provide additional flexibility in scheduling IEP meetings and 
to avoid delays in holding IEP meetings.  
 
A member of the IEP Team described in 34 CFR 300.321(a)(2) through (a)(5) above is not required 
to attend an IEP Team meeting, in whole or in part, if the parent of a child with a disability and 
the public agency agree, in writing, that the attendance of the member is not necessary because the 
member's area of the curriculum or related services is not being modified or discussed in the 
meeting.  When an IEP meeting involves a modification to or a discussion of the member’s area 
of the curriculum or related services, a member of the IEP Team may be excused from attending 
an IEP Team meeting, in whole or in part, if: 
 
•  The parent, in writing, and the public agency consent to the excusal; and 
•  The member submits, in writing to the parent and the IEP Team, input into the development 
of the IEP prior to the meeting.   
 [34 CFR 300.321(e)] [20 U.S.C. 1414(d)(1)(C)] 

D-5

239



Page 83 of 233 
 

 
The consent for excusal of an IEP team member must be in writing on the IEP Team Member 
Excusal Form found in SEIS, and must be provided to Parent prior to the IEP team meeting.  
Each Local Educational Agency (LEA) will designate the individual in the LEA that has the 
authority to provide consent on behalf of the LEA. The excusal applies to attending the meeting in 
whole or in part. The LEA may not routinely excuse IEP team members from meetings, in whole 
or in part; it is expected that this provision will only be used when necessary.  This provision only 
applies to the required members of the IEP team meeting, members who are not required may be 
absent without any formal excusal.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE IEP MEETING 
 
An IEP must be developed annually for every student placed 
in a special education program.  The IEP is developed by an 
IEP team after the assessment process is completed, or when 
the student transfers into the LEA.  An IEP meeting is held 
and shall be reviewed at least once each year.  An IEP shall 
be in effect for each student at the beginning of each school 
year.  A single IEP shall be developed for each student that 
includes all special education services.   
 
The IEP team meeting is conducted by a chairperson (i.e., the member of the IEP team leading the 
IEP meeting.  The chairperson is responsible for facilitating the meeting.  The chairperson’s 
responsibilities include: 
 

• Soliciting input from the parent(s), and other team members 
• Ensuring that a discussion of pertinent data, reports, and educational alternatives takes 

place in a positive, productive, and non-adversarial manner 
• Prioritizing needs and facilitating determination of goals and objectives, 
• Facilitating a discussion of recommended services and placement in the least restrictive 

environment 

It is important to ensure that the decision to excuse a team member is made based on the unique 
needs of the student and not as a matter of routine or convenience. The excusal of any IEP team 
member should be determined on a case-by-case basis and must not be uniformly or consistently 
applied for any particular setting or meeting type. 
 

D-5

240



Page 84 of 233 
 

• Ensuring the IEP contains a clear written offer of FAPE  
• Obtaining parent signature for consent for placement and services 
• Providing the parent with a copy of the IEP 
• Ensuring that all general education and special education providers are informed of their 

responsibilities in the IEP, including accommodations and modifications and have access 
to a copy of the IEP 

• Determining when it is necessary to recess the IEP meeting in order to seek advice or 
obtain additional information 

• Following up on referrals, arrangement for services, or other necessary actions 
• Notifying the Director of Special Education of the LEA if consensus could not be reached 

or if the parent requests a due process hearing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Transition Services 
 
For each student with a disability, the IEP in effect at the time the student turns age 16, or younger 
if determined appropriate by the IEP team, shall contain a statement of the transition service needs 
of the student that focuses on the student’s courses of study and measurable goals based upon age-
appropriate transition assessments related to post-secondary training/education, competitive 
integrated employment and when appropriate, independent living skills.   
 
“Transition Services” means a coordinated set of activities for a student with a disability that:  
 
1. is designed within a results-oriented process, that is focused on improving the academic and 

functional achievement of the child with a disability to facilitate movement from school to 
post-school activities, including post-secondary education, vocational training, integrated 
employment including supported employment, continuing and adult education, adult services, 
independent living, or community participation; 

 
2. is based on the individual student’s needs, taking into account the student’s preferences, 

strengths, and interests; and 
 
3. includes – 
 

D-5

241



Page 85 of 233 
 

• instruction 
• related services 
• community experiences 
• the development of employment and other post-school adult living 
• if appropriate, acquisition of daily living skills and functional vocational evaluation. 

 
Transition services for students with disabilities may be special education, if provided as specially 
designed instruction, or related services, if required to assist a student with a disability to benefit 
from special education.   
 
Offer of FAPE 
 
The written offer of a Free and Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) is the formal offer of 
placement and services made by the LEA.  The purpose of the offer is to allow the parent to have 
a clear understanding of the services being offered to the student, which they can either accept or 
deny.   
 
The formal written offer should include: 
 
• The type of program being offered 
• The portion of the school day the student will be in the general education class and the 

necessary accommodations and supplemental supports and services  
• Special equipment or assistive technology to be provided 
• Specialized training or support for staff 
• Extended school year services, if appropriate  
• A description of the means by which the individualized education program will be provided 

under emergency conditions, as described in Section 46392, in which instruction or services, 
or both, cannot be provided to the pupil either at the school or in person for more than 10 
school days. The description shall include all of the following: 

• (i) Special education and related services. 
• (ii) Supplementary aids and services. 
• (iii) Transition services, as defined in Section 56345.1. 
• (iv) Extended school year services pursuant to Section 300.106 of Title 34 of the Code of 

Federal Regulations. 

  
The IEP document is designed to address all of these components. A summary of the offer of 
FAPE may be included in the notes section.  In some cases, it may be necessary to also include 
other components related to the student’s unique needs such as class size, socialization 
opportunities, or schedule; these should be identified in the comments portion of the related 
services section of the IEP.     
 
In addition, whenever a LEA proposes or refuses to change the identification, evaluation or 
placement of a student, they are required to provide prior written notice.  The federal regulations 
at 34 C.F.R Section 300.503 delineates the requirements for prior written notice; which must 
include: 

D-5

242

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000205&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=If2207e4071d211ed9c90b70ee3305ff1&cite=CAEDS46392
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000205&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=If220a55071d211ed9c90b70ee3305ff1&cite=CAEDS56345.1
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000547&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=If220cc6071d211ed9c90b70ee3305ff1&cite=34CFRS300.106
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000547&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=If220cc6071d211ed9c90b70ee3305ff1&cite=34CFRS300.106


Page 86 of 233 
 

 
• A description of the action proposed or refused by the agency 
• An explanation why the agency is proposing or refusing the action 
• An explanation of any other options the agency considered and why they were rejected 
• A description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record or report the agency used as a 

basis for the proposed or refused action  
• A description of other factors that are relevant to the agency’s proposal or refusal 
• A statement that the parents of a child with a disability have protection under the procedural 

safeguards of the IDEA and the means by which a copy of the procedural safeguards may be 
obtained 

• Sources for the parent to contact to receive assistance in understanding the provisions of the 
IDEA 

 
In many cases the IEP and the IEP comments will delineate all of the above requirements, however 
for difficult or complex cases; it is advisable that as a follow-up to the IEP a letter of prior written 
notice which refers to the IEP and summarizes the offer of educational placement and services be 
sent to the parent.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PARENT CONSENT 
 
Parent Revocation of Consent 
If at any time subsequent to the initial provision of services, the 
student’s parent/guardian revokes consent, in writing, for the 
continued provision of special education services, the LEA shall 
provide prior written notice within a reasonable time period before 
ceasing to provide services to the student.  The district shall not 
request a due process hearing or pursue mediation in order to 
require an agreement or ruling that services be provided to the 
student. (34CFR300.300, 300.503) 
 
It is important to note the revocation of consent only applies to the 
case where the parent is withdrawing the student from all special 
education services.  If the parent disagrees with the continued provision of a particular service that 
the district feels is necessary for the student to receive a free and appropriate education (FAPE), 
then the parent may use the established due process procedures to obtain an agreement or ruling 
that the services with which the parent disagrees is not appropriate.  The district would continue 
to provide the disputed service pending the outcome of the due process proceedings. 
 

D-5

243



Page 87 of 233 
 

Once the district has ceased providing special education services in response to the 
parent/guardian’s revocation of consent, the student shall be classified as a general education 
student.  In the context of school discipline, the school would be able to discipline the student in 
the same manner as any other general education student.  In regard to state testing, the student 
would participate in the state testing program (SBAC) as a general education student and be 
considered a general education student who exited special education services for accountability 
purposes.   
 
The district is not required to amend the student’s educational records to remove any reference to 
the student’s receipt of special education services.  The student’s special education files would be 
treated in the same manner as any other student who exited special education.   
 
The district is relieved of its obligation to provide FAPE under IDEA; however, child find 
requirements continue to apply.  If the student is not making progress in general education, the 
district should use the student study team process and when appropriate, re-refer the student for 
assessment for special education services.   
 
If a parent who revoked consent for special education and related services later requests that the 
student be re-enrolled in special education, the district must treat this as an initial evaluation. 
 
Providing a Copy of the IEP to the IEP Team Members 
 
It is required that the parent be provided a completed copy of the IEP.  This typically occurs at the 
conclusion of the IEP meeting unless the IEP team specifies in writing within the IEP document 
that a final copy will be provided at a different time.  Those individuals who will be responsible 
for implementing the IEP, such as general education teachers, special education staff and related 
service providers must be informed of the content of the IEP.  Each person needs to know their 
specific responsibilities for implementing the IEP, including the accommodations, modifications 
and supplemental supports the student is to receive as determined by the IEP team.   
 
 
Amending the IEP 
 
The annual IEP may be amended if necessary.  All amendments to the IEP must be in writing and 
consented to by the parent.  There are no restrictions set on the changes to the IEP that can be made 
through an amendment.  All IEP members must be notified of the changes to the IEP.  If the parent 
requests a revised copy of the IEP with the amendments incorporated it must be provided.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

D-5

244



Page 88 of 233 

Section B – Writing the IEP Based on Common 
Core State Standards 
Standards-Based IEP 
Standards-Based IEPs integrate targeted instruction within an accountability framework, enabling 
the measurement of student progress within general education curriculum. Individual Education 
Plans based on standards, focus on student outcomes by setting measurable goals aligned with 
grade level expectations. By establishing standard based goals and objectives, student progress can 
be effectively tracked and measured. As noted in the Supreme Court’s decision in Endrew F. v. 
Douglas County School District (2017) “To meet its substantive obligation under the IDEA, a 
school must offer an IEP reasonably calculated to enable a child to make progress appropriate in 
light of the child’s circumstances.” 

Goals and Objectives Aligned to Standards 
IEPs that align with Common Core State Standards (CCSS) promote inclusive practices by 
providing consistency in educational instruction across schools, districts and the state.  
When IEP goals reflect Common Core State Standards, IEP teams can communicate using a 
common language. At the student level, targeting instruction to these standards provides students 
with disabilities access to the general education curriculum. 

D-5

245



Page 89 of 233 

The IEP bridges current student function to student needs in relation to Common Core State 
Standards. It is imperative to review assessment results as part of the IEP process. Every student 
should be assessed throughout the year to verify progress towards meeting identified standards and 
goals. 

The following questions should be considered at an initial IEP meeting and throughout the year: 

1. Will the student require supplemental supports and services to meet grade-level
standards, or as appropriate, goals scaffoleded to the child’s current levels but aligned 
to grade level standards? 

2. Will the student require designated supports or accommodations to demonstrate
mastery on statewide assessments? 

3. Will the student require a highly-modified curriculum and a focus on functional
skills, therefore needing an alternate assessment on statewide assessments? 

Choosing Grade-Level Standards for Special Education Students 
After assessing the student, the next step is to identify the target standard.  Once the student has 
been assessed, review the results and decide which standard strand is most appropriate for that 
student. Start at the student’s current grade level and begin unpacking the standard through task 
analysis. 

After careful assessment, the case carrier/teacher should be able to accurately identify the 
portion of a standard that needs to be addressed. Once a portion of a standard is identified 
as an area of need, a goal can be developed. 

In summary, unpacking the Common Core State Standards are key components to provide students 
access in general education curriculum. 

Writing Measurable Annual Goals and Objectives/Benchmarks Related to California 
Content Standards 

Develop the Goal and Write an Objective/benchmark 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) Goals and Objectives/Benchmarks Required in the 
IDEA, as Amended in 2004 

This section follows the organizational structure of the Association of California School 
Administrators (ACSA) Goals and Objectives Handbook. 

One of the changes from IDEA, as amended in 2004, was to eliminate the requirement for 
objectives/benchmarks for all students with disabilities except those students with disabilities who 
take the alternate assessment. [20 USC § 1414 (d)(1)(A)(i)(I)] 

The IEP definition in 20 USC § 1414(D)(1)(A)(i)(II) provides that the IEP must include 
the following: 

D-5

246



Page 90 of 233 

(II) a statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional
goals, designed to— 

(aa) meet the child's needs that result from the child's disability to enable the 
child to be involved in and make progress in the general education curriculum; and 

(bb)  meet each of the child's other educational needs that result from the child's disability 

 Annual educational goals should be developed that directly correlate with the student’s 
present levels of academic achievement and functional performance, as delineated in 
the first portion of the student's IEP (34 CFR § 300.346(a)(1))  

Goals should not be too broad or vague, nor should they be as specific as the short-term 
objectives. When developing annual goals, goals should be written to build on the 
student’s strengths. Educators should consider three things: past and present 
educational performance, the priority of various needs, and the amount of time 
anticipated for the student to attain each of the goals. 

Components of a Performance Goal and Objective/Benchmark   

A well-written goal and objective/benchmark communicate the same intended outcome to 
whomever reads it. A performance goal and objective/benchmark must address six components: 
who, does what, when, given what, how much (criteria/mastery), and how will it be measured. 

Who - the student    

a. This is expressed either by a pronoun or a noun.
b. It is either singular or plural.
c. This is the individual who has the responsibility of achieving the objective and
whose performance will be observed for evaluation purposes.

Does what— describes observable behavior that the student will do to complete the 
goal or objective/benchmark       

Observable behavior 
a. This is the measurable and observable behavior that is proof of the performance
that will be exhibited. 
b. It is expressed in action words (action verb).

• Each standard uses verbs to describe a learner outcome.

D-5

247



Page 91 of 233 

• In writing objectives/benchmarks, it is important to use verbs that
are open to few interpretations and that require an overt, observable 
action e.g., write, solve, compare, list, recite, define, construct, 
read). 

c. The observable behavior represents a state of doing, not a state of being nor
observable activities. 
• Correct:

Will read aloud 
Will point to specific letters 

• Incorrect:
Will be able to read aloud 
Will know how to point to specific letters 

Note: Never use be able, as this represents a state of being, a verb form which is observable. It is 
an overwriting trap which many objective writers oftentimes fall into.

When—relates to a specific point in time when something will have been learned or 
completed.          

  By reporting date 
a. This is the timeline by which the objective/benchmark should be completed.
b. The actual day and year needs to be written, (e.g., by April 12, 2004).
c. The dates should be aligned with your objective/benchmark dates to your report
card grading periods. 
d. The action is to be assessed and/or terminated by the reporting date given.

Given what—describes the conditions that will need to be in place for the goal or 
objective/benchmark to be completed.       

Conditions 
State where, when, and under what circumstances the observable behavior will occur. 

a. This is under what conditions the objective/benchmark will be completed.
b. This is the setting in which the activity takes place.
c. This describes the “conditions” that will need to be in place for the
objective/benchmark to be completed.

How much - Mastery, criteria 

Criteria: State the extent of achievement or standard of performance which is required of the 
student.            

Mastery: State the level of achievement required of the student before proceeding to the next 
objective. Mastery should be an 80 percent or higher level of success. 

D-5

248



Page 92 of 233 

• Mastery – describes the performance accuracy of the behavior needed
for the goal and objective/benchmark to be considered completed. 

• Criteria – describes how many times the behavior must be observed for
the goal or objective/benchmark to be considered completed. 

a. Although not law, best practice includes both trials and accuracy.
b. Refers to the acceptable level of mastery successfully obtained in the assessment
condition. 
c. Unless stated, the implication is without error, 100 percent or perfect
performance. 

How will it be measured – describes performance data 

• Performance data
a. Methods of measurement may include student work samples, various data
collection strategies, portfolios, teacher observations, and summative and formative 
assessments. 
b. The assessment condition activity, if not stated, is implied as being some form
of observation by the supervisor, teacher, or manager in charge of the activity or 
program who can hold the performer accountable 
c. Also implies that the observer will be reporting the results of observation to the
performer. 

Two Examples of a Performance Goal 
• Reading/Language Arts, Sample Goal:

By Date, after reading a 4th grade reading passage, Student will summarize the text by
providing explicit details and identify the page and/or paragraph where the details can be
found in 4/5 opportunities with 80% accuracy as measured by teacher record and work
samples.

• Behavior, Sample Goal:

By Date, when given different scenarios, Student will state what would be an appropriate
response to a particular emotional state in 4/5 opportunities as measured by
counselor/teacher record.

Remember: The IEP goals and objectives/benchmarks bridge current student functioning with 
state or district content standards. 

D-5

249



Page 93 of 233 

Section C – Culturally and Linguistically Diverse 
Students 
IDEA Part B: Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Students 
What IDEA Says 
IDEA Part B regulations support appropriate service delivery to culturally and linguistically 
diverse (CLD) populations. Areas of practice include the following: 

• Assessment and other evaluation materials should not be racially or culturally
discriminatory.

• Assessment and other evaluation materials are to be provided in the child's native
language or other mode of communication unless it is clearly not feasible to do so.

• A child must not be determined to be a child with a disability if the determinant factor
is lack of appropriate instruction in reading or math or limited English proficiency.

• Parents are entitled to an interpreter at the individualized education program (IEP)
meeting if needed to ensure that the parents understand the proceedings.

When developing an IEP, in the case of a child with limited English proficiency, the language 
needs of the child as they relate to their IEP must be considered. To ensure the IEP includes the 

D-5

250



Page 94 of 233 

uage needs of the child, the IEP must include linguistically appropriate goals, programs and 

Section D – Teaching and Assessing California’s 
English Language Development (ELD) and 
English-Language Arts (ELA) Standards for 
English Learners 

English Learners with Disabilities 

This section provides information and resources regarding best practices and 
regulatory requirements for identifying, providing services, and reclassifying English Learners 
(EL) with disabilities. 

Review of Laws & Regulations Governing Instruction for ELs 

The English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) is the required state test 
for English language proficiency (ELP) that must be given to students whose primary language is 
a language other than English. State and federal law require that local educational agencies 
administer a state test of ELP to eligible students in kindergarten through grade twelve. The 
California Department of Education (CDE) transitioned from the California English Language 
Development Test (ELPAC) to the ELPAC as the state ELP assessment in 2018. The ELPAC is 
aligned with the 2012 California English Language Development Standards. It consists of two 
separate ELP assessments: one for the initial identification of students as English learners (ELs), 
and a second for the annual summative assessment to measure a student’s progress in learning 
English and to identify the student's level of ELP.  

The Initial ELPAC has one purpose: 
• To identify students who are ELs or are initial fluent English proficient (IFEP)

The Summative ELPAC has two purposes: 
• To determine the level of ELP of EL students
• To assess the progress of EL students in acquiring the skills of listening, speaking,

reading, and writing in English

All students in kindergarten through grade twelve (K–12), ages three through 1 twenty-one, 
whose primary language is a language other than English must take the lnitial ELPAC to 
determine whether they are ELs. This must be done within 30 calendar days after they are 
first enrolled in a California public school or 60 calendar days prior to instruction, but not 
before July 1, per ELPAC regulations. The Summative ELPAC must be given annually to 
students identified as ELs until they are reclassified to fluent English proficient (RFEP). 

D-5

251



Page 95 of 233 

(Source: “2019-20 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California,” California 
Department of Education, 2019.) 

  American Sign Language 

For purposes of ELPAC testing and Title III services, American Sign Language (ASL), in 
and of itself, is not considered a “language other than English,” according to the US 
Department of Education (ED). Students who use ASL for communication and have not been 
exposed to any language other than English should not be considered for ELPAC testing. For 
a student who uses ASL for communication because of deafness or hearing impairment, and 
for whom there is another primary language other than English indicated on the student’s 
HLS, the individualized education program (IEP) team should consider (1) ELPAC testing 
with appropriate universal tools, designated supports, and accommodations; or (2) alternate 
assessment(s).  

Hearing students of deaf parents who use ASL as the primary means to communicate upon 
entering school and who have been exposed to a language other than English by another 
adult, such as a grandparent or a caregiver, may be considered for ELPAC testing. The LEA 
may consider ELPAC testing in addition to other appropriate language assessments to 
determine whether the child may benefit educationally from English language development 
(ELD) instruction. The LEA should base its decision to administer the ELPAC on whether 
the student has been exposed to another language other than English, not on the basis of 
whether the hearing student of deaf parents uses ASL in the home. 

(Source: “2019-20 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California,” California 
Department of Education, 2019.) 

Identification of English Learners (ELs) 

Step 1. Determination of Students’ Primary Language 
For all students in K–12, upon first enrollment in a California public school, the LEA uses a 
standardized procedure to determine a student’s primary language. This procedure begins with a 
home language survey (HLS), which is completed once by the parent or guardian at the time the 
student is initially enrolled in a California public school. The HLS should not be readministered 
every year nor readministered if a student enrolls in a new LEA.  
If the HLS is completed in error, the parent or guardian may make a request to change it prior to 
the assessment. However, once a student is identified as an EL on the basis of the results of the 
Initial ELPAC, and the student has been administered the Summative ELPAC, changing the HLS 
will not change the student’s identification. ENGLISH LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY 
ASSESSMENTS FOR CALIFORNIA 2019–20 ELPAC Information Guide 15 California 
Department of Education  

A sample HLS is available on the CDE English Learner Forms web page at: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/cr/elforms.asp 

D-5

252

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/cr/elforms.asp


Page 96 of 233 

The State Board of Education (SBE) approved the following guidelines for interpreting the sample 
survey:  

• If a language other than English is indicated on any of the first three questions, the student
should be tested with the Initial ELPAC.

• If a language other than English is indicated on the fourth question, the student may be
tested at the LEA’s discretion.

Assessment of English Language Proficiency 
• In the event of RFEP classification, a regular instructional program is implemented, and

the student’s progress is monitored for four years following reclassification.

Federal Guidance for Learners with Disabilities 

According to 5 CCR sections 11511 and 11516 through 11516.7 (Division 1, Chapter 11, 
Subchapter 7.5) as well as EC Section 313, the initial and summative administration of the ELPAC 
are the responsibilities of the LEA. Most students with disabilities are able to participate effectively 
on the ELPAC. For students whose disabilities preclude them from participating in one or more 
domains of the ELPAC, their IEP teams may recommend accommodations or an alternate 
assessment (see EC Section 56385, 5 CCR 11516.5 through 11516.7). Approved universal tools, 
designated supports, and accommodations are listed in Matrix Four: Universal Tools, Designated 
Supports, and Accommodations for the ELPAC, which is found on the CDE website at: 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ep/documents/elpacmatrix4.docx 

Matrix Four will be updated with additional accessibility resources in the coming year as we 
transition to a computer-based assessment.  

In accordance with 34 CFR sections 300.304 through 300.305, initial identification for determining 
whether a student is a student with a disability takes into consideration existing data, which 
includes LEA and statewide assessments. For those who participate in programs for students with 
disabilities, the LEA may be a school district, an independent charter school, the county office of 
education, or a state special school.  

When an EL with disabilities is not able to take the ELPAC (the entire test or any portion of it), 
that information is shared at the IEP team meeting. IEP team members may determine that alternate 
assessments are appropriate and necessary. Per the ED, the alternate assessment must be aligned 
with the ELD Standards. The results of alternate assessments and/or the ELPAC are part of the 
current levels of performance in the IEP. The scores or performance levels are a part of the 
information considered by the team to develop linguistically appropriate goals (EC sections 
56341.1[b] and 56345[b][2]).  

Because such alternate means of assessments fundamentally alter what the ELPAC measures, 
students receive the lowest obtainable scale score (LOSS) on each domain affected. Caution should 
be used when interpreting results because the LOSS on one or more domains may lower the Overall 

D-5

253

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/tg/ep/documents/elpacmatrix4.docx


Page 97 of 233 

performance level on the ELPAC. The LOSS on the ELPAC will be used to calculate the ELPI for 
Title I accountability purposes. If the student is not reclassified, the LOSS will be entered as the 
“Most Recent Previous Scale Score(s)” at the next year’s administration of the ELPAC.  

Because of the unique nature of individual students’ disabilities, the CDE does not make specific 
recommendations as to which alternate assessment instruments to use. However, the appropriate 
alternate assessment must be identified annually in a student’s IEP. The LEA must ensure that the 
IEP team includes an individual who can interpret the instructional implications of evaluation 
results (e.g., an ELD specialist to interpret ELPAC results) (34 CFR Section 300.321[a][5]). 
Identified ELs with disabilities must take the ELPAC with any accommodations specified in their 
IEP or take appropriate alternate assessments, as documented in their IEP, every year until they 
are reclassified.  

When a student’s IEP or Section 504 plan specifies that the student has a disability for which there 
are no appropriate accommodations for assessment in one or more of the Speaking, Listening, 
Reading, and Writing domains, the student shall be assessed in the remaining domains in which it 
is possible to assess the student, per 34 CFR Section 200.6. A student may be assigned an overall 
score only if assessed in both oral and written language. To be considered as having been assessed 
in oral language, the student must have been assessed in either Speaking or Listening. To be 
considered as having been assessed in written language, the student must have been assessed in 
either Reading or Writing. 

Reclassification Criteria 

The reclassification criteria set forth in EC Section 313 and Title 5 California Code of 
Regulations (5 CCR) Section 11303 remain unchanged. LEAs should continue using the following 
four criteria to establish reclassification policies and procedures: 

Criterion 1: Assessment of English Language Proficiency 
Assessment of language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument, including, but not 
limited to, the English language development test that is developed pursuant to EC Section 
60810 : 

Criterion 2: Teacher Evaluations 
Teacher evaluations, including, but not limited to, a review of the pupil's curriculum mastery: 

Criterion 3: Parent Consultation 
Parental opinion and consultation 

Resources to Support Criterion 3 

D-5

254

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=60810.&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=60810.&lawCode=EDC


Page 98 of 233 

The following resources may be helpful for LEAs looking for tools to support parent consultations 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Criterion 4: Basic Skills Relative to English Proficient Students 
Comparison of the performance of the pupil in basic skills against an empirically established range 
of performance in basic skills based upon the performance of English proficient pupils of the same 
age, which demonstrates whether the pupil is sufficiently proficient in English to participate 
effectively in a curriculum designed for pupils of the same age whose native language is English 

Detailed information for each criterion can be found here: 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ml/reclassification.asp 

This guidance can be found on the CDE Reclassification web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el/rd/. 

D-5

255

https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ml/reclassification.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el/rd/


Page 99 of 233 

SUPPORTS AND SERVICES – 
A CONTINUUM OF OPTIONS 
SECTION A LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT – A 

CONTINUUM OF SERVICES AND PLACEMENT 
OPTIONS 

SECTION B RELATED SERVICES 

SECTION C ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY 

APPENDIX A GUIDELINE STATEMENT – LEAST RESTRICTIVE 
ENVIRONMENT 

APPENDIX B LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT CONTINUUM 

Introduction 

D-5

256



Page 100 of 233 

West End SELPA Philosophy and Commitment 

The West End SELPA is dedicated to ensuring that all individuals 
with exceptional needs receive a Free and Appropriate Public 
Education (FAPE) in the Least Restrictive Environment (LRE), 
in compliance with state and federal mandates. 

If related services cannot be provided by an LEA employee, the 
LEA may contract with a certified nonpublic, nonsectarian school 
or agency under the terms of a master contract and individual 
services agreement. For mental health services or medically 

necessary occupational and physical therapy, services may be provided by employees, vendors, or 
contractors of the State Department of Health Services or Mental Health, or any designated local 
public health or mental health agency, as outlined in local interagency agreements. 

All special education and related services determined by the Individualized Education Program 
(IEP) team to be necessary for a student’s educational benefit will be listed on the IEP. The LEA 
ensures that each student with a disability receives services in accordance with their IEP, whether 
provided by the LEA, an agency, or a contractor. 

If another agency fails to provide a related service listed on the IEP, the LEA will assume 
responsibility, ensuring the service is delivered without disruption and at no cost to the parent, 
unless otherwise provided by law. 

Special education programs tailored to student needs are integrated into general education 
campuses and leased sites throughout the SELPA to serve individuals with disabilities as close to 
their homes as possible. Each LEA will strive to select program locations that promote continued 
social interaction with nondisabled students and ensure equal access to general education activities, 
programs, and facilities. The West End SELPA IEP form includes a statement of supplementary 
aids and services necessary for the child’s participation in the general education curriculum. 
Collaboration among school personnel is encouraged to foster opportunities for social and 
academic interaction between students with disabilities and their nondisabled peers. The IEP will 
detail the program modifications or supports for school personnel required to educate and include 
students with disabilities alongside nondisabled students in all activities. 

Students with disabilities are removed from the general education environment only if their 
disability’s nature or severity makes satisfactory education in general education classes, with 
supplementary aids and services, unfeasible. The IEP will explain any extent to which the child 
will not participate with nondisabled children in general education classes and extracurricular or 
other nonacademic activities. 

Each LEA will provide the necessary support to school personnel to ensure student success. The 
SELPA’s funding allocation plan considers resource distribution to support each LEA’s ability to 
offer necessary supports. Referrals for special education instruction and services occur only after 
the general education program’s resources have been considered and, where appropriate, utilized. 

D-5

257



Page 101 of 233 
 

These resources may include Student Study Teams, early literacy programs, and remedial 
programs. 
 
The West End SELPA coordinates the distribution of low-incidence equipment, providing 
specialized equipment and services to each eligible student with disabilities at their school, thereby 
minimizing the need to serve students at isolated sites. Annually, the SELPA will distribute 
procedures for accessing specialized equipment and services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

258



Page 102 of 233 
 

Section A - Least Restrictive Environment - A 
Continuum of Services and Placement Options 
 
Continuum of Program Options for Special Education According to California Special Education 
Laws 
 
Legal Requirements: 
 
- EC 56360: Each Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) must ensure that a continuum of 
program options is available to meet the needs of individuals with exceptional needs for special 
education and related services. This requirement is in accordance with the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and corresponding federal regulations. 
 
- EC 56361: The continuum of program options includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
 
  - (a) Regular Education: Integration in the general education classroom with appropriate 
supports. 
  - (b) Resource Specialist Program: Specialized instruction for students with exceptional needs 
who are assigned to a general education classroom for the majority of the school day. 
  - (c) Designated Instruction and Services: Related services provided to students to support their 
individualized education program (IEP). 
  - (d) Special Classes and Centers: Specialized settings designed to provide intensive instruction 
for students with significant needs. 
  - (e) Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School Services: Private educational placements when the public 
school system is unable to provide an appropriate program. 
  - (f) State Special Schools: State-operated schools offering specialized services for students with 
significant disabilities. 
  - (g) Instruction in Alternative Settings: Education provided outside the traditional classroom 
setting, such as in a home, hospital, or other institution. 
  - (h) Itinerant Instruction: Specialized instruction provided in various settings, including regular 
classrooms, resource rooms, or other environments, as required by federal law. 
  - (i) Telecommunication and Home/Hospital Instruction: Instruction provided through 
telecommunication or in the home, hospitals, or other institutions, as required by federal law. 
 
Full Continuum of Program Options: 
 
A full continuum of program options is available for the educational placement of students with 
exceptional needs. These options range from placements in general education classrooms to highly 
specialized services in separate settings. The continuum ensures that: 
 
- IEP Team Decision-Making: The Individualized Education Program (IEP) team is the primary 
decision-making body for determining a student’s individual needs and appropriate placement. 
Decisions are based on the student’s needs, rather than the student’s disability, service 
configuration, staff availability, or administrative convenience. 
 

D-5

259



Page 103 of 233 
 

- Access to State Standards: Efforts are made to ensure that students with disabilities have access 
to state-determined frameworks and standards. This includes participation in both academic and 
extracurricular activities. 
 
- Support for Placement: Placement decisions are supported by staff development activities such 
as disability awareness training, classroom visitations, and the development of appropriate 
curricular programs. 
 
Least Restrictive Environment (LRE): 
 
The goal is to place students in the least restrictive environment (LRE) that meets their individual 
needs. This involves: 
 
-Transition Support: SELPA and district resources encourage the successful transition of students 
toward the least restrictive environment. 
 
Summary: 
 
Students are placed in educational settings based on the needs identified in their IEP. Placement 
is determined by the student’s individual needs and not solely by the nature of their disability, the 
configuration of available services, staff availability, or administrative convenience. 
 
 

Section B - Related Services 
 
EC 56363(a) As used in this part, the term "designated instruction “and services" means "related 
service”" as that term is defined” in Section 1401(26) of Title 20 of the United States Code and 
Section 300.34 of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations. The term "related services" means 
transportation, and such developmental, corrective, and other supportive services (including 
speech-language pathology and audiology services, interpreting services, psychological services, 
physical and occupational therapy, recreation, including therapeutic recreation, social work 
services, school nurse services designed to enable an individual with exceptional needs to receive 
a free appropriate public education as described in the individualized education program of the 
child, counseling services, including rehabilitation counseling, orientation and mobility services, 
and medical services, except that such medical services shall be for diagnostic and evaluation 
purposes only) as may be required to assist an individual with exceptional needs to benefit from 
special education, and includes the early identification and assessment of disabling conditions in 
children. 
 
(b) These services may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

1. Language and speech development and remediation 
The speech and language development and remediation services may be provided by a speech-
language pathology assistant as defined in subdivision (f) of Section 2530.2 of the Business 
and Professions Code. 
5 CCR 3051.1 Language and speech remediation means screening, assessment, individualized 
education program development and direct speech and language services delivered to children 

D-5

260



Page 104 of 233 
 

with disabilities who demonstrate difficulty understanding or using spoken language to such 
an extent that it adversely affects their educational performance and cannot be corrected 
without special education and related services. 
2. Audiological services 
5 CCR3051.2 Audiological services means aural rehabilitation (auditory training, speech 
training, speech reading, language habilitation, and speech conservation) and habilitation 
with individual pupils in the general classroom; monitoring hearing levels, auditory behavior, 
and amplification for all pupils requiring personal or group amplification in the instructional 
setting; planning, organizing, and implementing an audiology program for individuals with 
auditory dysfunctions, as specified in the individualized education program; or consultative 
services regarding test finding, amplification needs and equipment, otological referrals, home 
training programs, acoustic treatment of rooms, and coordination of educational services to 
hearing-impaired individuals. 

 
3. Orientation and mobility services 
5 CCR3051.3 "Orientation and mobility instruction" means specialized instruction for 
individuals in orientation and mobility techniques or consultative services to other educators 
or parents regarding instruction planning and implementation of the individualized education 
program relative to the development of orientation and mobility skills and independent living 
skills. 

 
4. Instruction in the home or hospital 
5 CCR3051.4  "Home and hospital services" means instruction delivered to children with 
disabilities, individually, in small groups, or by teleclass, whose medical condition such as 
those related to surgery, accidents, short-term illness or medical treatment for a chronic illness 
prevents the individual from attending school. 

 
5. Adapted physical education 
5 CCR 3051.5 Adapted physical education is for individuals with exceptional 
needs who require developmental or corrective instruction and who are precluded 
from participation in the activities of the general physical education program, 
modified general physical education program, or in a specially designed physical 
education program in a special class. Consultative services may be provided to 
pupils, parents, teachers, or other school personnel for the purpose of identifying 
supplementary aids and services or modifications necessary for successful 
participation in the regular "D" Physical education program or specially designed 
physical education programs. 

 
6. Physical and occupational therapy 
5 CCR 3051.6 "Physical therapy" means the: 
a) administration of active, passive, and restrictive therapeutic exercises and local or general 

massage, muscle training and corrective exercises and coordination work; 
b) administration of hydrotherapy treatments; 
c) assistance in administering various types of electrotherapy including ultraviolet, infrared, 

diathermy and inductothermy; 
d) teaching parents of hospitalized pupils exercises which are to be continued at home and 

interpret to them the significance of physical therapy services; and  

D-5

261



Page 105 of 233 
 

e) instruction in walking, standing, balance, use of crutches, cane, or walker, and in the care 
of braces and artificial limbs. 

 
 “Occupational Therapy” means the use of various treatment modalities including self-help, 
skills, language and educational techniques as well as sensory motor integrations, physical 
restoration methods, and pre-vocation exploration to facilitate physical and psychosocial 
growth and development. 
 
7. Vision services 
5 CCR 3051.7 “Vision services” means: 
a) adaptations in curriculum, media, and the environment, as well as instruction in special 

skills, or 
b) consultative services to pupils, parents, teachers, and other school personnel. 
 
 
8. Specialized driver training instruction 
5 CCR 3051.8  “Specialized driver training instruction” means instruction to children with 
disabilities to supplement the general driver-training program. 
 
9. Counseling and guidance 
5 CCR 3051.9 “Counseling and guidance” means educational counseling in which the 
pupil is assisted in planning and implementing his or her immediate and long-range 
educational program; career counseling in which the pupil is assisted in assessing his or her 
aptitudes, abilities, and interests in order to make realistic career decisions; personal 
counseling in which the pupil is helped to develop his or her ability to function with social and 
personal responsibility; or counseling with parents and staff members on learning problems 
and guidance programs for pupils. 
 
10. Psychological services other than assessment and development of the individualized 
education program. 
5 CCR 3051.10 “Psychologist services” means: 
a) psychological counseling provided to children with disabilities: 
b) consultative services to parents, pupils, teachers, and other school personnel; or 
c) planning and implementing a program of psychological counseling for children with 

disabilities and parent by a credentialed or licensed psychologist or other qualified 
personnel 

d) This term does not include assessment services and the development of an individualized 
education program. 

 
11. Parent counseling and training 
5 CCR 3051.11 “Parent counseling and training” means assisting parents in understanding 
the special needs of their child and providing parents with information about child 
development. 
 
12. Health and nursing services, including school nurse services designed to enable an 
individual with exceptional needs to receive a free and appropriate public education as 
described in the individualized education program. 
5 CCR3051.12  “Health and nursing service” means: 
a) managing the child’s health problems on the school site; 

D-5

262



Page 106 of 233 
 

b) consulting with pupils, parents, teachers, and other personnel; 
c) group and individual counseling with parents and pupils regarding health problems; 
d) maintaining communication with health agencies providing care to  individuals with 

disabilities; or 
e) providing services by qualified personnel. 
 
13. Social worker services 
5 CCR 3051.13 “Social worker services” means: 
a) individual and group counseling with the individual and his or her immediate family; 
b) consultation with pupils, parents, teachers, and other personnel regarding the effects of 

family and other social factors on the learning and developmental requirements of children 
with disabilities; or 

c) developing a network of community resources, making appropriate referral and 
maintaining liaison relationships among the school, the pupil, the family, and the various 
agencies providing social income maintenance, employment development, mental health, 
or other developmental services. 

14. Specially designed Vocational education and career development: 
5 CCR 3051.14 “Specially designed vocational and career development” means: 
a) providing prevocational programs and assessing work-related skills, interests, aptitudes, 

and attitudes; 
b) coordinating and modifying the general vocational education program; 
c) assisting pupils in developing attitudes, self-confidence, and vocational competencies to 

locate, secure, and retain employment in the community or shelter environment, and to 
enable such individuals to become participating members of the community; 

d) establishing work training programs within the school and community; 
e) assisting in job placement; 
f) instructing job trainers and employers as to the unique needs of the individuals; 
g) maintaining regularly scheduled contract with all work stations and job-site trainers; or 
h) coordinating services with the Department of Rehabilitation, the Employment 

Development Department and other agencies as designated in the individualized education 
program. 

 
15. Recreation services 
5 CCR 3051.15 “Recreation services” means: 
a) therapeutic recreation and specialized instructional programs designed to assist pupils to 

become as independent as possible in leisure activities, and when possible and appropriate 
facilitate the pupil’s integration into general recreation programs; 

b) recreation programs in schools and the community which are those programs that 
emphasize the use of leisure activity in the teaching of academic, social, and daily living 
skills and the provision of nonacademic and extracurricular leisure activities and the 
utilization of community recreation programs and facilities; or 

c) leisure education programs which are those specific programs designed to prepare the 
pupil for optimum independent participation in appropriate leisure activities, and 
developing awareness of personal and community leisure resources. 

 
16. Specialized services for Low-incidence disabilities, such as readers, transcribers, and 

vision and hearing services 
5 CCR 3051.16 “Specialized services for low-incidence disabilities” means: 

D-5

263



Page 107 of 233 
 

a) specially designed instruction related to the unique needs of pupils with low-incidence 
disabilities; or 

b) specialized services related to the unique needs of individual with low incidence 
disabilities. 

 
   Per Education Code Section 56363 (c), The terms "designated instruction and services” 
and “related services” do not include a medical device that is surgically implanted, 
including cochlear implants, the optimization of the functioning of a medical device, 
maintenance of that device, or the replacement of that device, pursuant to Section 
300.34(b) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations. In accordance with Section 
300.34(b) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, nothing in this subdivision shall 
do any of the following: 
(1) Limit the right of an individual with exceptional needs with a surgically implanted 
device, including a cochlear implant, to receive related services or designated instruction 
and services that are determined by the individualized education program team to be 
necessary for the individual to receive a free appropriate public education. 
(2) Limit the responsibility of a local educational agency to appropriately monitor and 
maintain medical devices that are needed to maintain the health and safety of the 
individual, including breathing, nutrition, or operation of other bodily functions, while the 
individual is transported to and from school or is at school. 
(3) Prevent the routine checking of an external component of a surgically implanted device 
to make sure it is functioning properly, as required by Section 300.113(b) of Title 34 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

 
All services currently listed in EC 56363 (b) are available to students with exceptional needs within 
the West End SELPA based upon what the student needs to benefit from their instructional 
program.  Services are offered to appropriately identified students.   Care is continually taken in 
order to ensure a uniformity of meaningful and appropriate services.  Caseload assignments to 
various related services staff members are periodically reviewed to ensure compliance with state 
regulations and adherence to program guidelines. 
 
There are basic tasks performed by related services personnel.  First, to assist with identification 
of students with special needs.  Second, to conduct therapeutic and remedial work that attempts to 
offset or to mitigate the effects of the student’s disability.  The emphasis is to extend education 
services provided by the regular classroom teacher, the resource specialist, or the special day class 
teacher.  These specialized educational services promote student success with the standards and 
frameworks through appropriate application of the core curriculum or the alternate curriculum. 

 
The individual education program substantiates the need for specific related services and identifies 
the goals and objectives to be reached.  Related services may be provided through public agencies, 
such as California Children’s Services, or the Department of Behavioral Health when appropriate.  
When needed services are not available within the SELPA, they are contracted through state 
certified non-public agencies.  This is accomplished through the referral of the case to the West 
End SELPA Program Manager or designee who participates in the IEP team meeting.  The SELPA 
initiates all contracts for private services and in conjunction with the district is responsible for 
evaluating and monitoring those services to students and parents. 
 
 

D-5

264



Page 108 of 233 
 

General Provisions for Related Services 
1. Related services may be provided to individuals or to small groups in a specialized area of 

education need, and throughout the full continuum of educational settings. 
2.  Related services, when needed as determined by the individualized education program team, 

shall be specified in the individualized education program, frequency and duration of services 
are specified. 

3. All individuals providing related and services through the Local Education Agencies shall be 
qualified.  

4. All entities and individuals contracted to provide related services shall be: 
• Employees of the school district or county office; or 
• Employed under contract pursuant to Education Code sections 56365-56366.7.  Such 

persons shall be certified by the Department pursuant to Sections 3060-3064 of this Title; 
or 

• Employees, vendors, or contractors of the State Department of Health Services, or Mental 
Health, or any designated local public or mental health agency.  

5.   Instruction and services shall be provided by the regular class teacher, the special class teacher, 
or the resource specialist if the teacher or specialist is competent to provide such instruction 
and services and if the provision of such instruction and services by the teacher or specialist is 
feasible.  If not, the appropriate designated instruction and services specialist shall provide 
such instruction and services. 

6. Related services shall be provided during the school day unless approved by the district 
director of special education, or designee. 

 
Section C – Assistive Technology 
 
Assistive Technology needs must be considered for each individual with a disability.  Amendments 
to the Individuals with Disabilities Act of 1997 (IDEA) require the IEP team to consider whether 
the child requires assistive technology and services (IDEA; 20 U.S.C. Section 1414 (d) (3) (B) (v)) 
 
Assistive Technology and Services is defined in Federal Law as follows: 
 
Assistive Technology Device:  The term “assistive technology device” means any item, piece of 
equipment or product system, whether acquired commercially off the shelf, modified or 
customized, that is used to increase, maintain or improve functional capabilities of a child with a 
disability. 
 
Assistive Technology Service:  The term “assistive technology service” means any service that 
directly assists a child with a disability in the selection, acquisition or use of an assistive technology 
device.  Such terms include: 
 

• The evaluation of the needs of such child, including a functional evaluation of the child in the 
child’s customary environment; 

• Purchasing, leasing or otherwise providing for the acquisition of assistive technology devices 
by such child; 

• Selecting, designing, fitting, customizing, adapting, applying, maintaining, repairing, or 
replacing of assistive technology devices; 

D-5

265



Page 109 of 233 
 

• Coordinating and using other therapies, interventions or services with assistive technology 
devices, such as those associated with existing education and rehabilitation plans and 
programs; 

• Training or technical assistance for such child, or when appropriate, the family of such child; 
• Training or technical assistance for professionals, including individuals providing education 

and rehabilitation services to the child or otherwise substantially involved in the major life 
functions of such child. 

 
Assistive Technology Services are further defined by California Code of Regulations as: 
CCR § 3051.19  

(a) “Assistive technology service” means any service that directly assists an individual with 
exceptional needs in the selection or use of an assistive technology device that is 
educationally necessary. The term includes the evaluation of the needs of an individual 
with exceptional needs including a functional evaluation of the individual in the 
individual's customary environment; coordinating and using other therapies, interventions, 
or services with assistive technology devices, such as those associated with existing 
education programs and rehabilitation plans and programs; training or technical assistance 
for an individual with exceptional needs or, where appropriate, the family of an individual 
with exceptional needs or, if appropriate, that individual's family; and training or technical 
assistance for professionals (including individuals providing education and rehabilitation 
services), employers or other individuals who provide services to, employ, or are otherwise 
substantially involved in the major life functions of individuals with exceptional needs. 

 
Types of Assistive Technology and Services that are to be Considered by the IEP Team 
It is important that members of the IEP team recognize that technology is just one strategy in a 
multi-faceted approach in addressing the needs and strengths of students with disabilities.  IEP 
teams will therefore need to balance the degree of technology assistance with the student’s learning 
potential, motivation, chronological developmental level and goals/objectives, which include, but 
are not limited to: 
 
1. Low-Tech:  Equipment and other supports readily available in schools, including off-the-shelf 

items to accommodate the needs of students, which can be provided by general/special 
education through the Student Study Team (SST)/IEP processes (e.g., calculators, tape, 
recorder, pencil grip, and larger pencils). 

 
2. High-Tech:  Supports students who may need more specialized equipment and support 

services beyond basic assistive technology, often students with low incidence and/or 
significant/severe disabilities, which requires more in-depth assessment (e.g., closed circuit 
television (CCTV), FM systems, augmentative communication devices, , alternative computer 
access, and specialized software). 

 
The Process for Considering Whether the Child Requires Assistive Technology and Services 
Assistive technology is as much a process as a product.  Assistive technology is a tool for access 
(e.g., school environment, core curriculum,) and for independence (e.g., communication, mobility) 
and will therefore change as the needs of the student and technology continues to evolve.  The 
need for assistive technology should therefore be an integral part of a comprehensive assessment 
for students with disabilities in all areas related to their disabilities, as appropriate, for each student 
and must be considered by the IEP team, based upon the student’s assessed needs and strengths.  

D-5

266



Page 110 of 233 
 

It is important to use a collaborative school-based team approach in education settings for 
assessment, planning, and provision of needed assistive technology, which includes individuals 
who are knowledgeable about the student’s disability needs and strengths in the area of assistive 
technology. 
 
The Wisconsin Assistive Technology Initiative (WATI) developed a “checklist” of additional 
examples of assistive technology which may be needed by students. 
 
Free copies of the most current version of the WATI Resource Manual for Assessing Students’ 
Needs for Assistive Technology (ASNAT), and additional AT related information, can be found 
at www.wati.org.  
 
References 
EC 56360, 56361, 56363,  
5 CCR 3051,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

267

http://www.wati.org/


Page 111 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A: WEST END SELPA 
GUIDELINE STATEMENT – LEAST 

RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT 
 
West End Special Education Local Plan Area Philosophy 
 
The West End Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) is committed to providing all 
individuals with exceptional needs a free and appropriate education in the least restrictive 
environment. This philosophy aligns with state and federal mandates, including the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), which emphasizes educating students with disabilities in 
the least restrictive environment (LRE). 
 
A full continuum of program options is available for the educational placement of students with 
disabilities, offering a spectrum of educational settings, from regular classroom alternatives to 
specialized service sites. The Individual Education Program (IEP) team is the primary decision-
making body, ensuring that each student’s unique needs are met and that the most appropriate 
placement is selected. We prioritize educating students with disabilities in general education 
classes with the necessary aids and services, promoting their participation in meaningful 
academic and extracurricular activities, including meals, recess, and other school activities. 
 
Students' instructional programs encompass the core curriculum along with the specific goals 
and objectives outlined in their IEPs. Instruction and coordination of instruction vary depending 
on the concepts and skills being taught and may occur in regular classrooms, special education 
classrooms, or community environments. 
 
Students with low-incidence disabilities receive services consistent with state guidelines. 
Ethnically and culturally diverse students are referred to special education only after general 
education modifications are deemed unsuitable. These students are identified and served 
following legal assessment standards. SELPA staff and district program administrators regularly 
review programs and services to ensure proportional representation. 
 
If the IEP team identifies a need for staff support, these services are detailed in the student’s IEP. 
This may include staff development activities such as disability awareness in-services, classroom 
visitations, and training in appropriate curricular programs. 
 
When the IEP team determines that a student requires supplemental aids or services, these are 
also specified in the IEP and provided accordingly. These supports may include Braille 
instruction, positive behavioral interventions, communication aids, assistive technology devices 
and services, language supports, related services, curricular modifications or adaptations, and 
classroom assistant support. 
 
If it is determined that a student with disabilities cannot be satisfactorily educated in a general 
education classroom for any portion of the school day, the IEP team will provide specific 
rationale and select an appropriate alternative placement. Regardless of the placement, 

D-5

268



Page 112 of 233 
 

opportunities for interaction with non-disabled peers are maximized. Discussions about 
transitioning to less restrictive settings within the continuum of options are ongoing, with every 
effort made to encourage successful transitions toward the least restrictive environment where 
the student can achieve. 
 
In compliance with state requirements, SELPA collaborates with the California Department of 
Education to address the success of special education programs and services. All students with 
disabilities, regardless of placement, must have access to the general education curriculum and 
participate in district and state assessments. High expectations are held for all students, including 
those with disabilities, in accordance with state and district performance standards as outlined in 
their IEPs. If a student cannot participate in district and/or state assessments even with 
accommodations, they will participate in the state alternative assessment program. 
 
In summary, all students will be educated to the maximum extent possible alongside non-
disabled children unless compelling reasons necessitate education in a special class or center. 
When appropriate, a special education student may be educated with peers who have less severe 
disabilities, providing an environment that is less restrictive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

D-5

269



Page 113 of 233 
 

APPENDIX B: CONTINUUM 

 
 

 Residential Facility

SPECIAL EDUCATION LEAST
RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT

CONTINUUM 

Placement options are fluid. A student might receive some services in one setting and other services
in a different setting. Further, placements can change over time based on factors such as changes in
a student’s progress or needs. For some students, the general eduction classroom is not necessarily
the least restrictive setting.

REGULAR CLASSROOM WITH
ACCOMMODATIONS/MODIFICATIONS 

SEPARATE CLASSROOM 

SEPARATE SCHOOL

A full continuum of program options is available for educational
placement of students with exceptional needs. 

HOME EDUCATION/HOME HOSPITAL

RESIDENTIAL FACILITIY

REGULAR CLASSROOM WITH PULL-OUT
SERVICES

D-5

270



Page 114 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
STUDENT PROMOTION AND RETENTION 
 
SECTION A GENERAL PROMOTION AND RETENTION 

INFORMATION 
 

SECTION B STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
D-5

271



Page 115 of 233 
 

Section A – General Promotion and Retention 
Information 
 
Promotion and Retention Policy According to California Education Code 
 
Legal Requirements: 
 
Student Promotion and Retention: 
EC 48070: The governing board of each school district and each county superintendent of 
schools must adopt policies regarding pupil promotion and retention. A student may only be 
promoted or retained based on the policies adopted under this article. 
   
EC 48070.5: This section outlines the requirements for school districts to formulate policies and 
procedures concerning student promotion and retention. Key components include: 
 
Grade Levels Affected: 

• Between second grade and third grade. 
• Between third grade and fourth grade. 
• Between fourth grade and fifth grade. 
• Between the end of intermediate grades and the beginning of middle school grades 

(typically between sixth and seventh grades, depending on district configuration). 
• Between the end of middle school grades and the beginning of high school (typically 

between eighth and ninth grades, depending on district configuration). 
 
Identification of At-Risk Students: 

• Based on state assessments (EC 60640) and minimum proficiency levels recommended 
by the State Board of Education. 

• Based on the student’s grades and other indicators of academic achievement designated 
by the district. 

 
Proficiency Criteria: 

• In grades 2-3, identification is based on reading proficiency. 
• In grades 4-5 and beyond, identification is based on proficiency in reading, English 

language arts, and mathematics. 
 
Teacher’s Role in Retention: 

• If assessments indicate a student is below the minimum standard for promotion, they are 
retained unless the regular classroom teacher provides a written statement explaining why 
retention is not appropriate, including recommended interventions. 

 
Parental Involvement: 

• The policy requires that parents be notified as early as possible when a student is 
identified as at risk of retention and provides them an opportunity to consult with 
teachers. 

D-5

272



Page 116 of 233 
 

• The policy also includes an appeal process for parents who disagree with the retention 
decision, with the burden of proof on the appealing party. 

 
Remedial Instruction: 

• The policy must include provisions for providing remedial instruction to students 
recommended for retention or identified as at risk of retention, using a range of programs 
including tutorial services, before/after-school programs, Saturday classes, summer 
school, intersession, and more. 

 
Policy Adoption: 

• The policy must be adopted at a public meeting of the governing board of the school 
district, ensuring transparency and community involvement. 

 
Local School District Responsibilities: 
 
Local school districts must develop a comprehensive policy outlining promotion and retention 
procedures, including the following components: 

1. Parental Notification: 
Early notification for parents when a student is at risk of retention. 

 
2. Appeal Process: 

A clear process for parents to appeal retention decisions, with the burden of proof on the 
appealing party. 
 

3. Early Identification:  
Early identification of students at risk of retention, particularly in key grade levels, using 
reading proficiency in early grades and proficiency in reading, English language arts, and 
mathematics in later grades. 

4. Intervention Programs: 
5. Development of intervention programs to assist students at risk of retention. This 

includes supplemental instruction, tutorial programs, before/after-school programs, 
Saturday classes, and summer school programs, which must be provided in addition to 
the regular curriculum without removing students from core instruction time. 

6. Teacher’s Role in Decision-Making: 
- The classroom teacher is responsible for deciding whether a student should be 

promoted or retained based on district criteria. If a student has multiple teachers, 
the district policy will designate the teacher responsible for the decision. 

7. Summer School Participation: 
- Participation in summer school programs may be required for students at risk of 

retention. Prioritization is given to students recommended for retention or 
identified as scoring low in key academic areas. 

8. Accelerated Placement for High-Achieving Students: 
- The district may recommend accelerating a student to a higher grade based on 

high academic achievement, considering the student's emotional and social 
development before making such a decision. 

 
9. Implementation and Community Involvement: 

D-5

273



Page 117 of 233 
 

 
The policy must be adopted at a public meeting to ensure community awareness and 
involvement.  
Once established, the school district should inform the community of the intent and requirements 
of these policies. 
 
Summary: 
 
Local school districts are responsible for developing and implementing a promotion and 
retention policy that addresses the needs of all students, including those with special needs. The 
policy must include provisions for parental notification, an appeal process, early identification of 
at-risk students, and opportunities for academic interventions. Decisions about student promotion 
or retention are based on the student's academic performance, with the classroom teacher playing 
a central role in the process. The policy must be adopted at a public meeting to ensure 
transparency and community involvement. 
 
 

Section B – Students with Special Needs 
 
The IEP document continues to be the critical process in determining the expected level of 
performance and achievement.  Therefore, retention and promotion issues should be topics of 
discussion at the student’s annual IEP meeting.  Promotion or retention of students with special 
needs should be based on the level of mastery expected and achieved on the IEP goals and 
objectives.  The IEP team may develop individual promotion standards within the context of the 
district adopted standards.  Individual promotion standards should be developed before the first 
day of school or at the next IEP meeting.  Each of the IEP team members should be aware that 
individualized promotion standards might not meet the district requirements for graduating with a 
diploma. 
 
Since IDEA requires that students with special needs participate in state and district assessment to 
the greatest extent possible, the local school district is required to ensure that these students are 
involved in the core curriculum or an alternate curriculum that is based upon the core curriculum.  
If accommodations are necessary for the student to successfully participate in the curriculum or 
testing, the IEP team should outline these accommodations in the student’s IEP.  
 
If retention is a possibility for a student with special needs, an IEP meeting should be called as 
soon as possible.  The following should be considered at the IEP meeting: 
 

• Is the current IEP for the student’s academic, linguistic, social, emotional, and behavioral 
needs appropriate? 

• Is the manner of assessment, including any accommodations and modifications, identified 
in the IEP appropriate? 

• Were all the services required by the student to make progress in the general education 
curriculum appropriately identified in the student’s IEP? 

• Did the student receive all the services identified in the IEP? 
• Were the linguistic needs of English language learners appropriately identified? 

D-5

274



Page 118 of 233 
 

• Was the assessment conducted consistent with the IEP? 
• Was the student’s promotion standard appropriate and clarified at the IEP? 

 
If the above questions were answered positively, the student should be required to attend the 
Intensive Instructional Program developed by the local school board pursuant to EC 37252.5.  If 
the summer school program is an option, before the end of the school year, the IEP team should 
document all supported and related services the student will need to benefit from that program.  If 
the above questions were answered in the negative, the IEP team should determine why such 
supports were not provided, develop an alternative plan, provide the summer school option, and 
consider not retaining the student.  
 
“Promotion, Retention, and Grading: Frequently Asked Questions from the field 
regarding the promotion, retention, and grading of students with disabilities.” 

 
PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 
 
1. May students with disabilities be retained? 
Yes, students with disabilities may be retained; however, careful consideration in the 
development, implementation, and revision of the student’s individualized education program 
(IEP) should prevent student failure in most cases. 
 
“Research indicates that neither grade retention nor social promotion (the practice of promoting 
students with their same age-peers although they have not mastered current grade level content) 
is likely to enhance a child’s learning. Research and common sense both indicate that simply 
having a child repeat a grade is unlikely to address the problems a child is experiencing.” 
 
2. Do local governing board-adopted standards for promotion apply to students with 

disabilities? 
Local governing board adopted standards for promotion apply to students with disabilities; 
however, IEP teams should consider whether the student’s disability adversely impacts the 
student’s potential for learning or rate of learning. If so, the IEP teams should consider whether 
accommodations or curricular modifications can minimize this impact. 
 
3. Are individualized promotion standards determined by the location where services are 

provided to students with disabilities? 
No, for example, a student with significant disabilities who spends all or most of the instructional 
day in general education classrooms learning social or communication skills may have 
individualized promotion standards. Yet, a student with emotional or behavioral disabilities who 
spends most or part of the instructional day in a more restrictive environment may be held to the 
regular promotion standards. 
 
 
 
 

D-5

275



Page 119 of 233 
 

4. What if a student with a disability fails to meet board-adopted or individualized 
promotion standards? 

 
If a student with a disability fails to meet board-adopted or individualized promotion standards, 
the IEP team should reconvene immediately to consider the following: 

• Is the current IEP for the student's academic, linguistic, social, emotional, and behavioral 
needs appropriate? 

• Is the manner of assessment appropriate, including accommodations and modifications 
identified in the IEP? 

• Were all the services required by the student to make progress in the general education 
curriculum appropriately identified in the student's IEP? 

• Were the linguistic needs of English Learners appropriately identified? 
• Did the student receive all the services identified in the IEP? 
• Was the assessment conducted consistent with the IEP? 

 
5. Was the student's promotion standard appropriate and clarified in the IEP?What if the 

IEP was written to consider the student’s individualized needs, but the student still 
failed to meet the promotion standards? 

 
If the questions in item #5 above were answered positively, but the student still failed to meet the 
promotion standards, then the student should participate in intensive supplemental instruction 
developed by the local board pursuant to Education Code 37252.2 – 37252.8. The IEP team 
should document all the supports and related services the student will need to benefit from 
supplemental instruction. 
 
If after intensive supplemental instruction, the student still does not meet the board-adopted or 
individualized promotion standards, an IEP meeting should be held to develop an appropriate 
plan to support student progress. 
 
If the questions in item #4 were answered in the negative, the IEP team should determine why 
such supports were not provided, develop an alternate plan, amend the IEP, provide intensive 
supplemental instruction, and consider not retaining the student because the district did not 
provide the supports and services necessary for the student to benefit from the educational 
program. 
 
6. May students with disabilities participate in intensive supplemental instruction pursuant 

to Education Code 37252.2 – 37252.8 and Extended School Year (ESY) under the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) simultaneously? 

 
Yes, a student may participate in the two programs simultaneously, but only if the need for 
supplemental instruction is documented in the student’s IEP. In order to receive both services, 
ESY and supplemental instruction, the IEP must reflect that the student needs to participate in an 
intensive supplemental instruction program as part of the ESY services necessary for the 
provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE). In other words, the student is receiving 
supplemental instruction in order to meet the standards-based goals of the IEP, and special 

D-5

276



Page 120 of 233 
 

education and related services will be provided in order for the student to benefit from that 
instruction. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS 
SECTION A PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS  

SECTION B IEP MEETING OPTIONS  

SECTION C DUE PROCESS PROCEDURES FREQUENTLY ASKED 
QUESTIONS 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D-5

277



Page 121 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
The West End SELPA is committed to the assessment, identification, and placement of students 
with exceptional needs in the appropriate and least restrictive environment.  During these 
processes, parents are afforded their rights through procedural safeguards that are established in 
accordance with state and federal guidelines.  A due process hearing can be initiated at any time 
during these processes by the parent, the student and/or the school district.  Hearings may be filed 
when a dispute exists between the parent and the education agency concerning the provision of 
special education services, the student’s eligibility for special education, need for assessment, 
and/or the student’s program.  Alternative options and guidelines for filing are outlined in this 
chapter.  If programs and services are not provided according to the IEP, the parent may file a 
complaint with the California Department of Education. 
 
Each participating local education agency shall ensure that parents receive written notification of 
their procedural safeguards including their right to file a complaint or for a due process hearing.  
Per Ed Code 56301(d)(2) parents shall be given a copy of their rights and procedural safeguards 
only one time a year, except that a copy also shall be given to the parents: 
 
(1) Upon initial referral for assessment 
(2) Upon parental request for assessment 
(3) Upon the first occurrence of the filing for a due process hearing; and 
(4) Upon request by a parent. 
 
The notice of procedural safeguards shall be available in the primary language of parents whose 
primary language is not English, unless to do so is clearly not feasible.  The written notice shall 
be in language easily understood by the general public and shall include the following: 
 
(1) The right to initiate a referral of a child for special education services 
(2) The right to obtain an independent educational assessment 
(3) The right to participate in the development of the IEP and to be informed of the availability 

of free appropriate public education and of all available alternative programs, both public 
and nonpublic. 

 
Planning for the needs of non-English speaking parents shall include access to interpreters and 
translators, unless to do so clearly is not feasible. 
 

Section A – Procedural Safeguards 
 
EC 56500.1 (a) All procedural safeguards under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
shall be established and maintained by each non-educational and educational agency that 
provides education, related services, or both, to children who are individuals with exceptional 
needs.  (b) At each individualized education program meeting, the public education agency 
responsible for convening the meeting shall  
inform the parent and pupil of the federal and state procedural safeguards that were provided in 
the notice of parent rights pursuant to Section 56321. 
EC 56028 (a) (1)-(5) “Parent” means any of the following: 

(1) A biological or adoptive parent of a child. 

D-5

278



Page 122 of 233 
 

(2) A foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parents to make educational 
decisions on the child’s behalf specifically has been limited by court order in accordance 
with Section 300.30 (b) (1) or (2) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  

(3) A guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent, or authorized to make 
educational decisions for the child. 

(4) An individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a 
grandparent, stepparent, or other relative, with whom the child lives, or an individual who 
is legally responsible for the child’s welfare. 

(5) A surrogate parent who has been appointed pursuant to Section 7579.5 or 7579.6 of the 
Government Code, and in accordance with Section 300.519 or Title 34 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations and Section 1439 (a)(5) of Title 20 of the United States Code 

 
Procedural Safeguards 
The law requires that local education agencies establish procedures to protect the rights of 
individuals with exceptional needs and their parents or guardians.  These procedures are called 
procedural safeguards.  Parents have a right to receive a written copy of the West End SELPA 
procedural safeguards.  These are provided:  Per Ed Code 56301(d)(2) parents shall be given a 
copy of their rights and procedural safeguards only one time a year, except that a copy also shall 
be given to the parents: (1) Upon initial referral for assessment; (2) Upon parental request for 
assessment; (3) Upon the first occurrence of the filing for a due process hearing; and (4) Upon 
request by a parent. 
 
Parents are afforded these rights through the processes of assessment, as well as under the design 
and implementation of their student’s IEP.  Definitions of terms used in the document are included 
in order to assist parents with further understanding of their rights.  The written copy of the parent’s 
rights is provided in the parent’s native language, unless it is clearly not feasible, or in their primary 
mode of communication, if their language is not written. 
 
A complete copy of the West End SELPA Notice to Parent/Guardian/Surrogate regarding parental 
procedural safeguards is available in both English and Spanish (Form 004-E and 004-S) and is 
available through the district special education office or West End SELPA office. 

Foster Parents 
In cases where the juvenile court has limited the right of the parent or guardian to make educational 
decisions, California Education Code 56055 allows foster parents to represent the foster child for 
the duration of the foster parent-foster child relationship in matters relating to identification, 
assessment, instructional planning and development, educational placement, reviewing and 
revising an individualized education program, if necessary, and in all other matters relating to the 
provision of a free appropriate public education of the child. 
 
EC 56055(d) For purposes of this section, a foster parent shall include a person, relative 
caretaker, or non-relative extended family member as defined in Section 362.7 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code, who has  
been licensed or approved by the county welfare department, county probation department, or 
the State Department of Social Services, or who has been designated by the court as a specified 
representative.   
 
 

D-5

279



Page 123 of 233 
 

Surrogate Parents 
Federal Regulation, 34 C.F.R. 300.514, and California State Statute, EC 56050, mandates the 
appointment of a surrogate parent to ensure the educational rights of a child with exceptional needs 
when (1) (A) The child is adjudicated a dependent or ward of the court, (B) the court has 
specifically limited the right of the parent or guardian to make educational decisions for the child 
and (C) the child has no responsible adult to represent him. (2) No parent for the child can be 
identified. (3) The local educational agency, after reasonable efforts, cannot discover the location 
of a parent. The surrogate parent shall act as the child’s parent and have all rights as delineated in 
federal and state law. 
A local educational agency shall make reasonable efforts to ensure the appointment of a surrogate 
parent not more than 30 days after there is a determination by the local educational agency that a 
child needs a surrogate parent. 
 
In order to meet the needs of the federal and state mandates, the West End SELPA staff supports 
the utilization of surrogate parents by developing procedures for the surrogate parent program and 
implementing a training program for districts’ staff and surrogate parent nominees.  Individual 
districts will determine which students require the services of a surrogate parent, nominate 
surrogate parent volunteers, appoint the surrogate parent after they have successfully completed 
West End SELPA training, supervise the surrogate parent, and then evaluate the surrogate parent 
annually. 
 
Applications for the surrogate parenting program are available from the West End SELPA office.  
The prospective candidate should complete and return the application to that office.  To be eligible, 
it must be established that the volunteer has no interest that would conflict with the interest of the 
student.  For example, the volunteer cannot be employed by any local education agency or hold a 
position that might restrict or bias his/her ability to make decisions regarding the student’s 
educational needs.  Once the West End SELPA trains the surrogate, the district is free to appoint 
the parent to serve as a surrogate for students with exceptional needs within that district.  The 
surrogate parent may represent the student in matters relating to:  identification, assessment, 
instructional planning and development, educational placement, reviewing and revising the 
individualized educational program, and in all other matters relating to the provision of a free 
appropriate public education for the student. 
 
Age of Majority 
 
EC 56014.5 When an individual with exceptional needs reaches the age of 18, with the exception 
of an individual who has been determined to be incompetent under state law, the local education 
agency shall provide any notice of procedural safeguards required by this part to both the 
individual and the parents of the individual.  All other rights accorded to the parent under this 
part shall transfer to the individual with exceptional needs.  The local education agency shall 
notify the individual and the parent of the transfer of rights. 
 

 
 
 

D-5

280



Page 124 of 233 
 

Section B – IEP Meeting Options 
 
In an attempt to resolve disagreements regarding placement and/or services, districts have varying 
levels of IEP meetings that can be conducted prior to referral for WESELPA assistance. 
 
School/District IEP Meeting 
Within SIXTY (60) days of receipt of the signed Assessment Plan, the case carrier will schedule a 
school site IEP meeting to review results and come to agreement on district level special education 
placement and/or services.   
 
County Operations or Provider District IEP Meeting 
If appropriate placement and/or services are not available at the school or district site, the district 
office refers to County Operations or a Provider District for an IEP meeting.  At this meeting, the 
team members discuss program options offered through County Operations or a Provider District.   
 
Standard Referral Process 
 

1. District sends referral packet to the provider district office.  Referral packet is to include: 
• Referral for Placement Consideration cover sheet (WESELPA 014) signed by district 

office 
• Current IEP including behavior support plan if applicable 
• Current Triennial evaluations 

 
Note: When the referral is for initial placement in special education, the student will not 
have a current IEP or current triennial evaluation, the Referral for Special Education form 
should be submitted in place of these documents. 

 
2. The provider district will log and send referral to appropriate administrator/ 

administrative designee. 
 

3. The administrator/administrative designee will review referral then contact district 
representative to discuss referral and to agree upon IEP meeting date and location. 
 

4. Referring district to send IEP notices. 
 

5. Joint IEP meeting is held. 
                Referring district staff to: 

• Chair IEP meeting 
• Provide present levels of functioning and suggested goals, if initial IEP or 

annual review 
• Provide provider district with: 

• A copy of the signed IEP 
• Assessment data supporting a change in placement (observations, 

academic progress monitoring, behavioral intervention data, FBA, 
private evaluations) 

• Teacher reports, related specialist reports 
• Health evaluations and immunization records 
• Transcripts for students in grades 9-12, state testing results 

D-5

281



Page 125 of 233 
 

• Other agency reports 
• Home Language Survey and CELDT test results, if applicable 
• History of counseling services, if applicable. 

 
           Provider district to: 

• Describe class being considered for placement 
• Provide enrollment packet for parents if program selected 
• Arrange for observation of program if requested 

 
     6.    If a provider county/district program is agreed to, and upon receipt of parent enrollment 

packet, transportation will be arranged and a student file will be provided to the receiving 
teacher before the student’s start date.  
 

See Chapter 15 for information regarding referrals for Non-Public Agency and Non-Public School 
consideration. 

 
If the parent or district continues to disagree and requests a due process hearing, specific 
procedures as outlined in Section C of this chapter must be followed. 

 
Section C – Due Process Procedures Frequently 
Asked Questions 
 

OAH Form 65; Rev.6/05 SPECIAL EDUCATION DUE PROCESS HEARINGS  
   PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS  

 
DUE PROCESS HEARING RIGHTS INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:  

1. The right to request a mediation conference at any point during the hearing process. The 
mediation process is not to be used to deny or delay a parent(s) or guardian(s) right to a 
due process hearing, or to deny any other rights afforded to parties. Attorneys and 
advocates are permitted to participate in mediation conferences scheduled after the filing 
of a request for due process hearing. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(e) (1); 34 C.F.R. § 300.506; Ed. 
Code § 56501, subd. (b)(2).)  

2. The parent has the right to examine all school records of the child, and to receive copies of 
the records within five days of an oral or written request by the parent. A public educational 
agency may charge no more than the actual cost of reproducing the records, but if the cost 
effectively prevents the parent from exercising this right, then the parent is entitled to 
receive a copy or copies at no cost. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(b)(1); 34 C.F.R. § 300.501(a)(1)(i); 
Ed. Code § 56501, subd. (b)(3).)  

3. The parents’ right to have the pupil who is the subject of the state hearing present at the 
hearing. (34 C.F.R. § 300.509(c)(1)(i); Ed. Code § 56501, subd. (c)(1).)  

4. The parents’ right to open the state hearing to the public. (34 C.F.R. § 300.509(c)(1)(ii); Ed. 
Code § 56501, subd. (c)(2).)  

5. The parents’ right to an interpreter at no cost if their primary language or mode of 
communication is other than English. (20 U.S.C. § 1415 (b)(4); 34 C.F.R. § 300.501(c)(5).)  

 
 

D-5

282



Page 126 of 233 
 

MAINTENANCE OF CURRENT EDUCATIONAL PLACEMENT (STAY PUT)  
A child shall remain in his/her current educational placement “stay put” while due process 
hearing proceedings are pending, unless the parents and the State or local educational agency, 
agree to a different placement. This provision is subject to certain exceptions in disciplinary 
matters involving the child. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(j); 34 C.F.R. § 300.514; Ed. Code § 56505 subd. 
(d).)  
 
RESOLUTION SESSION  
Prior to the setting or conduct of any due process hearing, and within 15 days of receiving notice 
of the complaint, the public educational agency shall convene a resolution meeting. The meeting 
shall include the parent(s), a public educational agency representative, and relevant member(s) of 
the IEP team who have specific knowledge of the facts of the complaint. The purpose of the 
meeting is to provide an opportunity for the parent(s) to discuss their complaint and its factual 
basis, and to provide the public educational agency an opportunity to resolve the complaint. If the 
complaint is unresolved 30 days after its receipt by the public educational agency, a due process 
hearing may be held and the applicable timelines shall begin. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(f)(1)(B)(i-iv).)  
The resolution session may be waived only under two circumstances; (1) a written waiver signed 
by the parent(s) and public educational agency representative, or (2) agreement by the parties to 
participate in mediation. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(f)(1)(B)(i)(IV).)  
 
CONDUCT OF THE HEARING AND RIGHTS OF PARTIES AT HEARING:  

 1. The hearing shall be held at a time and place reasonably convenient to the parent or guardian 
and the pupil. (Ed. Code § 56505, subd. (b).)  
 

 2. All parties to the hearing have the following rights consistent with state and federal statutes 
and regulations:  
 
A. The right to be accompanied and advised by counsel and by individuals with special 
knowledge or training relating to the problems of children with disabilities. (20 U.S.C. § 
1415(h)(1); 34 C.F.R. § 300.509(a)(1); Ed. Code § 56505, subd. (e)(1).)  
B. The right to present evidence, as well as written and oral argument. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(h)(2); 
34 C.F.R. § 300.509(a)(3).)  

 
C. The right to confront, cross-examine, and compel the attendance of, witnesses. (20 U.S.C. § 
1415(h)(2); 34 C.F.R. § 300.509(a)(2); Ed. Code § 56505, subd. (e)(3).)  

 
D. At their option, parent(s) or guardian(s) have the right to receive a written or electronic 
verbatim record of the proceeding at no cost to the parent or guardian. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(h)(3); 
34 C.F.R. § 300.509(a)(4); Ed. Code § 56505, subd. (e)(4).)  

 
E. At their option, parent(s) or guardian(s) have the right to receive the written or electronic 
findings of fact and decision, at no cost to the parent(s) or guardian(s). The findings and decision 
shall be made available to the public after any personally identifiable information has been 
deleted consistent with confidentiality requirements. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(h)(4)(A); Ed. Code § 
56505, subd. (e)(5); 34 C.F.R. § 300.509(a)(5).)  

 
 F. The right to receive from the other parties, at least five (5) business days prior to the 

hearing, a copy of all documents and a list of all witnesses and their general area of testimony, 

D-5

283



Page 127 of 233 
 

which the parties intend to present at the hearing. This shall include all assessments completed 
by that date and any  

 recommendations based on those assessments that the parties intend to use at the hearing. (20 
U.S.C. § 1415(f)(2)(A); 34 C.F.R. § 300.509(b)(1); Ed. Code § 56505, subd. (e)(7).)  

 
G. The right to prohibit the introduction of any evidence at the hearing not disclosed at least 
five (5) business days prior to the hearing. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(f)(2)(B); 34 C.F.R. § 
300.509(a)(3); Ed. Code § 56501, subd. (f).)  

 
REPRESENTATION AT DUE PROCESS HEARING  
If either party to a due process hearing intends to be represented by an attorney at the state hearing, 
notice of that intent shall be given to the other party at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
hearing. Failure to provide the required notice shall constitute good cause to grant a continuance. 
(Ed. Code § 56507, subd. (a).)  
 
WRITTEN DECISION UPON COMPLETION OF HEARING  
Upon completion of the due process hearing, the Administrative Law Judge shall prepare a written, 
reasoned decision. The decision shall include reason(s) for any nonpublic school placement or 
agency services or reimbursement for any nonpublic school placement or agency services. The 
decision shall be mailed to all parties to the hearing within 45 days from the receipt of the request 
for a hearing. (20 U.S.C. § 1415(g)(2); 34 C.F.R. § 300.511(a).)  
Either party to a hearing may request an extension from the Administrative Law Judge, which 
request shall be granted upon a showing of good cause. Any extension shall extend the time for 
rendering a final administrative decision for a period only equal to the length of the extension. (34 
C.F.R. § 300.511(c).)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

284



Page 128 of 233 
 

Special Education FAQs: 
IDEA/Due Process Hearings Before the 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
Special Education Division 
   
SETTING DUE PROCESS HEARINGS 
  
Where do parties send requests for due process hearings?  
OAH, Special Education Division, 2349 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 
95833.  This information is also on the OAH website. 
 
How do parties receive the request for due process hearing from the filing party, as well as 
other communications sent to OAH?  
By both state and federal law, it is the parties' responsibility to serve all documents filed with OAH 
on the other parties.  A party who files a request for due process hearing is responsible for 
delivering or serving the request on all other named parties, as well as sending a copy to OAH for 
filing.  The request sent to OAH should include some form of confirmation that all other parties 
have received the request.  Parties represented by an attorney are expected to provide a proof of 
service. 
  
At what stage of the proceedings are hearing dates scheduled?  
It depends on which party is requesting the due process hearing.  If a parent is requesting the due 
process hearing (other than an expedited hearing and absent a written waiver of the required 
resolution session signed by both sides), OAH will not set the matter for hearing until the 
expiration of the 30 days for the resolution session.  At that point, if the matter has not resolved, 
OAH will set a hearing date approximately  
20 to 25 days out to provide sufficient time to conduct a hearing and issue a decision within the 
45-day time period.  
  
When a school district is requesting a hearing date, OAH will almost immediately set the hearing 
date approximately 20 to 25 days out, as no resolution session is required.  
  
In both scenarios, OAH will typically set the initial hearing date for one day only, because of the 
high percentage of cases which are continued during mediation.  If mediation is unsuccessful, 
OAH will generally consult with the parties to determine a reasonable estimate of the number of 
days necessary to hear the matter and the availability of the parties and legal counsel.  
  
Should the parties advise OAH if the resolution session is unsuccessful, so as to initiate the 
scheduling of a hearing date? 
Yes.  However, if no communication is received, OAH will assume that the resolution session was 
unsuccessful and will set the matter for hearing.  This is necessary because the 45-day time period 
begins to run at the end of the 30 days provided for the resolution session.  
 
 Do the parties have to wait 30 days before notifying OAH that they can't resolve issues in a 
resolution session and therefore need to proceed to hearing?  
Yes, ordinarily.  However, if the parties have reached impasse prior to expiration of the 30-day 
period and submit to OAH a written statement to that effect signed and dated by both sides, the 
matter will proceed to hearing.  OAH will not set the matter for hearing based on one party's 
assertion that the parties are at impasse.The parties may also jointly agree to waive the resolution 

D-5

285

http://www.oah.dgs.ca.gov/default.htm


Page 129 of 233 
 

session and communicate that in a dated, signed statement.  OAH will then set the hearing date 
and refer the matter to mediation.  
 
Should the parties advise OAH if the mediation is unsuccessful? 
Yes. If the parties do not resolve the matter through mediation, the parties should notify OAH that 
the matter was not resolved through mediation, and the hearing date can be set or reset as 
necessary.   
 
What timeline for scheduling hearings will OAH follow once they receive notification that 
the resolution solution has not been successful?     
OAH follows all timelines specified in the IDEA.  As noted above, if a parent filed the request for 
a due process hearing, the 45-day period begins to run with the expiration of the 30 days allowed 
for the resolution session.  If the District filed the request, the time period begins to run almost 
immediately. 
  
How will expedited hearings be handled? 
Expedited hearings will be handled in accordance with applicable provisions of law.  Please note 
that the 20 days in which to hold a hearing and the 10 days in which to issue a decision thereafter 
are school days.  
  
How and when will the parties be advised that a hearing date has been scheduled? 
OAH will mail a notice of the hearing date to parties (or designated legal counsel or lay advocate) 
when the matter has been set or reset for hearing. 
 
When and where will the due process hearings be scheduled?  
When:  Hearings are scheduled on any regular business day, depending on the availability of an 
ALJ.  The starting time will depend on the location and the time that will be required for the ALJ 
to travel to the hearing site.  If the travel time is not excessive, the hearing will likely begin at 9:00 
a.m.   
  
Where:  Typically, unless the parties agree otherwise, the hearings are set at school district sites. 
 
Will OAH send copies of notices of due process hearings to a particular law firm for a school 
district upon receipt of written notice to do so? 
Typically, OAH will notify the District’s chosen representative provided OAH has been notified 
of the representation. If no notice of representation has been filed, OAH will serve the notice of 
due process hearing to the school district named in the filing.  
  
What is the OAH policy regarding scheduling more than one hearing on the same day for an 
attorney or school district? 
In large school districts with many pending requests for hearing, OAH may initially set multiple 
matters for hearing on the same day.  Generally, districts with multiple requests for hearings are 
expected to have an adequate number of attorneys available to handle the caseload.   Experience 
has shown that most of these matters will be resolved in mediation.  However, when cases are 
continued and reset, there is a greater likelihood the hearing will take place.  Thus, OAH will 
attempt to avoid resetting multiple hearings involving the same school district or attorney on the 
same dates.  However, this may not be feasible for large school districts that have multiple requests 
for hearings.   
 

D-5

286



Page 130 of 233 
 

CONTINUANCES 
  
Are parties permitted to stipulate to continuances? 
No.  By law, the party or parties seeking a continuance must establish good cause.  A stipulation 
by the parties is not a substitute for the requisite showing of good cause; however, the fact that the 
parties jointly request a continuance will be considered in the assessment of good cause. 
 
Are parties permitted to stipulate to specific hearing dates as part of a continuance? 
No.  The parties may not stipulate to a date, however, OAH will consider the parties' preferences 
in resetting the matter. 
 
May matters be taken off calendar if the parties agree? 
No.  OAH maintains control of the calendar. When a request for continuance is granted, OAH will 
always set another date for some further proceeding in the case. 
 
PLEADING REQUIREMENTS 
 
What are OAH pleading requirements?  Must all motions and requests be on pleading paper 
or is a letter acceptable in some circumstances?  
Pleading requirements are described in OAH Regulations, specifically CCR, title 1, sections 1006 
and 1022, which regulate format and filing of papers and motions.  (Pro per parties will be given 
some latitude, in that their filings need not rigidly conform to the requirements of these 
sections.  Less latitude will be  
given to attorneys and/or experienced advocates, who are expected to adhere to the statutes and 
regulations governing their profession.) 
 
 What is the OAH standard in determining whether a complaint is sufficient pursuant to 20 
U.S.C. sections 1415(b)(7)(A) and (B) and (c)(2)(C)? 
The standards are the same as those articulated in the provisions of the IDEA cited.  In addition to 
the name of the child, his or her address, and the school attended, the request must include a 
description of the problem, the facts relating to the problem and a proposed resolution for each 
problem alleged.   
 
Please do not phrase problems ("complaint" in the IDEA) as "issues"; rather, list contentions or 
allegations as such.  For example, if a parent is requesting a due process hearing and the perceived 
problem is the alleged failure of a school district to assess ("evaluate" in the IDEA) in an area of 
suspected disability, do not phrase the "issue" as: "Whether the district assessed in all areas of 
suspected disability."  Rather, include in your contention the areas(s) of suspected disability 
allegedly known by the district and the assessments that you contend that the district failed to 
undertake. 
 
When deadlines fall on a weekend or holiday, when will OAH expect the document to be 
served?  
When deadlines fall on a weekend or holiday, the deadline is extended to the following business 
day.  
 
By what time of day must documents be filed with OAH?   
Between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., on regular business days.  OAH accepts documents delivered 
by mail, personal delivery, facsimile (FAX), and, in some cases, email. Usually, documents will 

D-5

287



Page 131 of 233 
 

be filed on the day received.  However, documents received by FAX or, in some cases, e-mail, 
after 5:00 p.m., or outside of regular business hours, will be filed on the next business day.  (CCR, 
title 1, section 1006, subd. (h)). 
 
What forms should parties use?  
Parties should use the forms available on the California Department of Education (CDE) website 
and/or the OAH website. (CDE determines the content of the request form for hearing and 
mediation.) 
  
Due Process Hearing Request Form:www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/dgs/fmc/dgs/oah038.pdf 
 
Request Mediation Only Form: www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/oah/SE/Forms/OAH%2063.pdf  
  
Links to these forms are available on the OAH website, in the Special Education section. 
 
CONFERENCES PRIOR TO HEARING 
 
What occurs at the status conferences, trial-setting conferences, and pre-hearing 
conferences?   
Generally, a trial-setting conference is conducted to obtain a time estimate for the hearing and to 
schedule hearing dates, pretrial motions, prehearing conferences, settlement conferences and status 
conferences.  Any other matter which may be resolved at the time may be discussed and resolved.  
  
A status conference may be scheduled to follow up on specific issues, such as progress on 
settlement or stipulations.   
 
A pre-hearing conference may deal with the same topics as status and trial setting 
conferences.  However, the focus of the pre-hearing conference is to ensure that the parties will be 
ready to proceed at the hearing.  Motions may be brought and resolved, exhibit and witness lists 
are generally exchanged, and other expediting measures are taken.  Pre-hearing conferences will 
not be set for all cases. They will generally be set for longer running cases and where there are 
legal and procedural issues which are appropriate to dispose of prior to the hearing.  The Presiding 
Administrative Law Judge will determine whether a pre-hearing conference is appropriate and the 
timing thereof.  
 
Which conferences are held telephonically? 
Some conferences are conducted by telephone conference call.  Several factors are taken into 
consideration in setting a conference telephonically.  Some of these factors are calendar 
commitments and the travel time and distance for the parties, counsel and the ALJ.   
 
Are the telephonic conferences recorded? 
That depends; if only routine issues are discussed and resolved, there is generally no need for 
testimony or the recording of oral argument.  If a significant legal issue is to be argued or evidence 
received in the form of oral testimony, that part of the pre-hearing conference will likely be 
recorded to provide a record for judicial review.  
 
 
 
 

D-5

288

http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/dgs/fmc/dgs/oah038.pdf
http://www.oah.dgs.ca.gov/default.htm


Page 132 of 233 
 

MOTIONS 
Are pre-hearing motions assigned to the ALJ handling the case? 
It depends on the timing of the motion.  OAH has centralized special education case filing in 
Sacramento.  Cases are transferred to a regional office close to the time of the scheduled hearing 
date.   
Most motions filed before the transfer of the file to a regional office will be handled by the 
Presiding Administrative Law Judge of the Sacramento office or his designee.  Motions filed after 
the file transfer may be handled by the regional Presiding Administrative Law Judge, his or her 
designee, or by the Administrative Law Judge assigned to hear the matter.   
 If motions are filed in Sacramento after the file transfer, the motion will be transferred by OAH 
to the appropriate office.  
 
What types of motions will OAH consider (continuance, dismissal, motion for summary 
adjudication, consolidation, bifurcation or joinder)? 
OAH will consider any motion over which it has apparent jurisdiction, including all of the cited 
examples. 
 
What types of requests do not require a motion? 
Most requests should be in the form of a motion.  Some requests, such as a request for an 
interpreter, need not be.   
 
What are the deadlines to respond, reply and rule on motions (briefing schedule)? 
These will depend on the nature of the motion, the urgency with which the matter must be decided, 
and the proximity to the hearing date.  OAH will, when appropriate, provide deadlines for 
response.  Parties should  
refer to CCR, title 1, sections 1022 and 1026.  OAH prefers an expeditious response by the party 
opponent without OAH prompting.  No deadlines for rulings exist except where provided by law. 
  
Does OAH request oral arguments on a motion? 
The ALJ deciding the motion has the discretion whether to request oral argument on a motion.  The 
ALJ may also seek declarations/affidavits where factual contentions must be addressed in order to 
rule upon a motion. 
  
Before OAH rules on a motion, will OAH ensure that all parties get a copy of the motion and 
an opportunity to respond orally and/or in writing? 
With the exception of those matters permitting ex parte motions, OAH will endeavor to ensure 
that the party opponent has been served and has an opportunity to respond either verbally or in 
writing.  Generally, OAH will rely on proof of service documents attached to the proponent's 
motion.  
  
CONDUCT OF HEARINGS 
  
Are the hearings recorded? 
Yes, currently, the hearings are recorded by digital recording systems loaded as software into 
laptops with sound mixer and microphones. 
 
 
 
 

D-5

289



Page 133 of 233 
 

May a party request a court reporter and who arranges it? 
Yes.  The parties, with the permission of the ALJ, may agree to use a certified shorthand reporter 
(court reporter) at their own expense to produce the official record.  If a court reporter is used, the 
court reporter shall comply only with the directions of the assigned ALJ during the hearing. 
 
Parties who agree to use a court reporter at their own expense must contact the OAH calendaring 
department to make arrangements for retaining a court reporter.  If the parties do not request a 
court reporter, the record provided by the OAH electronic recording device will be the exclusive 
record upon appeal.   
 
May a party request that security be present at either the mediation or the due process 
hearing? 
Yes.  See CCR title 1, section 1019.  
 
Who requests and makes arrangements for an interpreter? 
A party who requires an interpreter makes the request to OAH.  Upon request, OAH will arrange 
for the presence of the interpreter.  
 
How does OAH handle in pro per proceedings?  Does OAH provide any special assistance to 
parents representing themselves? 
The ALJ will do his or her best to help the pro per litigant comprehend the proceedings, beginning 
with an explanation of the rights accorded pro per parties and answering any questions posed by 
the pro per litigant about the hearing process.  However, the ALJ may not act as an advocate for 
the pro per party.  
 
OAH has many years of experience presiding over matters in which one or more of the parties 
appear in proper.  
 
Does OAH set time limits for hearings?    
OAH will, in consultation with the parties, attempt to determine a reasonable number of days 
necessary to complete the presentation of evidence.  OAH will typically "reserve" that number of 
days on the calendar for the case and notice the hearing accordingly.  If the hearing does not 
conclude in the days allotted, normally the parties and the ALJ will obtain the necessary additional 
hearing days to complete the matter.  
 
Does OAH set time limits for witness testimony? 
OAH has not historically limited time for the presentation of evidence.  However, ALJs have the 
power to do so in any particular case in the exercise of their discretion.  
 
What can the parties expect to happen at the first day of a due process hearing? 
The ALJ will address any preliminary motions and issues, invite opening statements, and begin 
the process of receiving evidence.  Parties must appear at the hearing prepared to proceed with the 
hearing.  Parties should not assume the first day of hearing (or any significant portion of the day) 
will be spent in settlement discussions. 
 
Is telephonic testimony permitted?  
Yes, telephonic testimony is permitted under the California Education Code at the discretion of 
the assigned ALJ. 
 
 

D-5

290



Page 134 of 233 
 

Are the technical rules of evidence followed in hearings? 
No.  CCR, title 5, sections 3082, subdivision (b) and 3089, apply.  These regulations generally 
incorporate the APA rules of evidence found in California Government Code section 11513.   
 
Are closing briefs accepted? 
Yes, if the assigned ALJ, in consultation with parties and counsel, determines that closing briefs 
are appropriate in a particular case.  
 
DECISIONS 
 
Does OAH use a format for writing decisions? 
Yes.  The general OAH format for decisions includes identification of parties, hearing dates and 
location(s) and other preliminary information.  This will typically be followed by a statement of 
the issue(s) presented; factual findings; legal conclusions, and the order.  
 
What is the timeframe for issuing decisions after the hearings?  
Unless timelines are waived by the parties, OAH will endeavor to meet the timelines within 
applicable federal and state law.  
 
Does OAH abide by the 45-day timeline in which to issue a decision following a hearing?    
Forty-five days is the deadline to complete the hearing process. Absent a waiver by the parties, 
OAH will comply with the timelines of the IDEA and implementing federal regulations for 
issuance of decisions.  
  
What precedential value will OAH give to SEHO decisions and to its own decisions? 
OAH will follow California Code of Regulations, title 5, section 3085, which characterizes prior 
decisions (by SEHO or OAH) as "persuasive, but not binding authority."  
 
Will OAH post its decisions on a website?  Will the decisions be published?  Will OAH send 
the decisions to a publisher such as LRP and allow them to publish the decisions? 
The decisions, after redaction of confidential information, will be sent to the CDE, which will 
continue to post them on its website.  OAH will not independently publish decisions.  OAH intends 
to discuss with LRP the logistics and propriety of including decisions on the LRP website.  
 
RESOLUTION SESSIONS 
  
What is the process for notification of the resolution session?  How will meetings be 
scheduled after notification? 
The obligation for convening the resolution session and assembling the required participants falls 
on the school district.  It is not clear that OAH has any responsibility for resolving disputes which 
arise in the course of the resolution session.  OAH's responsibility is limited to ruling on motions 
that relate generally to the matter and processing of the case if no resolution is reached within the 
30 days.   
  
If parents don't want to attend the resolution session, can a district move to have the request 
for hearing dismissed? (The statute states that parties "may proceed" to hearing if no 
resolution has been reached.)  
 No.  As noted above, both parties may waive the resolution session or opt to go to mediation.  The 
agreement must be signed by both (or all) parties. 
  

D-5

291



Page 135 of 233 
 

Does OAH expect the parties to notify OAH of the outcome of the resolution session?   
OAH does not expect to be notified of the outcome of the resolution session other than whether 
there was or was not a resolution.  If the parties do not notify OAH that the matter was resolved, 
OAH will assume after 30 days that the case was not resolved and will set the matter for hearing 
and refer it to OAH for mediation.  
  
Does the resolution session have to include the entire IEP team?  (The statute says it has to 
include the IEP team.)  
This is covered in IDEA, which does not, as suggested by the question, require the entire IEP team. 
The IDEA requires participation by "relevant" IEP members who have knowledge of the 
complaint. 
 
How does OAH interpret the phrase "relevant members of the IEP team" as it relates to the 
resolution session?   
The phrase "relevant members of the IEP team" will be interpreted by the assigned ALJ in the 
context of any case in which this becomes an issue.  However, OAH will not typically become 
involved in issues which relate exclusively to the conduct of the resolution session.  
 
MEDIATIONS 
  
How are mediations currently scheduled?    
After receiving a request for mediation or a request for mediation and hearing, OAH will schedule 
and notify all parties on record dates set for mediation. 
 
How are mediation dates selected? 
Mediators schedule the dates of mediation with the parties. 
 
How will the parties be advised that a mediator has been assigned to the case?    
OAH will notify all parties and including the mediator's name and resume in the hearing notice. 
  
Will the mediations have to be held during the 30-day period for the resolution session? 
No.  If the school district files the due process hearing request, a hearing date will be noticed and 
the parties notified of the name mediator who will contact them.  The OAH mediator will schedule 
the mediation. 
 If a parent files the due process hearing request, OAH will wait the requisite 30 days to notice the 
matter for hearing and notify the parties of the name of the mediator. Mediations will not be held 
during the 30 days allocated for a resolution session.  The parties can opt to proceed to mediation 
by joint agreement or may jointly agree to waive the resolution session in writing.  
  
How does OAH ensure that the same ALJ does not mediate a case and then hear a case 
involving the same school district but a different student?  For example, on July 1st the ALJ 
mediates a case involving student 1 and school district A and on August 1st hears a case 
involving student 2 and school district A.  
There is no legal or ethical impediment to this practice.  Civil courts, arbitrators, and dispute 
resolution services follow this practice.  In some of the larger school districts, ALJs will regularly 
mediate and hear cases involving the school district.  ALJs, of course, will not hear cases they have 
mediated.   
 
 

D-5

292



Page 136 of 233 
 

 
SUBSTANTIVE LEGAL ISSUES 
 
How does OAH deal with the current differences between IDEA as amended in 2004, the 
federal regulations, and state law? 
OAH follows case law regarding the relative precedence of federal law, state law and state 
regulations whenever a conflict exists.  
 
Will there be consistency in terms of rulings and procedures within each Regional Office and 
among the Regional Offices? 
OAH will endeavor to provide a generally consistent hearing process among all of the regional 
offices and ALJs.  However, each ALJ has an individual responsibility to hear and resolve issues 
that come before him or her.  As is true with any adjudicative body, ALJs may not always agree 
on the correct manner in which to interpret the law.   
  
What is OAH's position with regard to the applicability of IDEA 2004 for cases filed before 
July 1, 2005? 
As a general matter, while the reauthorized IDEA provisions do not appear to apply 
retroactively, these kinds of issues will be resolved by Presiding ALJs or assigned ALJs on a 
case by case basis within the context of matters assigned to them. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
  
EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
  
When is it appropriate, if ever, to receive calls from ALJs even to discuss procedural 
matters?  (See CCR, title 5, Section 3084 and California Government Code Section 
11430.10.) 
 
These matters are covered in the sections cited.  See also Government Code section 11430.20 for 
permissible communications to the Administrative Law Judge. Generally, communications 
regarding "issues in the proceeding" are prohibited, although communications concerning "a 
matter of procedure or practice, including a request for a continuance that is not in controversy" 
are permitted.   
 
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TRAINING  
Is OAH ensuring that the ALJs are properly trained pursuant to Education Code section 
56505(c)? 
Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

293



Page 137 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SCHOOL TO ADULT LIVING 
SECTION A TRANSITION PLANNING   

SECTION B TRANSFER OF RIGHTS  

SECTION C INTERAGENCY AGREEMENTS   

SECTION D WEST END SELPA MANAGED PROGRAMS  

APPENDIX A QUICK REFERENCE ARRAY OF WAI SERVICES  

APPENDIX B WEST END SELPA WAI POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

APPENDIX C ONLINE RESOURCES  

APPENDIX D OSER QUESTION & ANSWERS ON SECONDARY 
TRANSITION 

 

 
D-5

294



Page 138 of 233 
 

 
 

Introduction  
According to IDEA 2004, transition services are a set of coordinated activities for a student that is 
designed within a results-oriented process, that is focused on improving the academic, and 
functional achievement of the student to facilitate movement from school to post-school activities, 
including postsecondary education, vocational education, integrated employment, continuing and 
adult education, adult services, independent living, or community participation.  IDEA requires 
that transition services be provided to all youth with disabilities beginning at sixteen years of age 
or younger as appropriate.   
 
The transition services are based on the student’s individual needs, taking into account strengths, 
preferences and interests. They include instruction, related services, community experiences, the 
development of employment and other post-school adult living objectives and if appropriate, may 
include daily living skills and a functional vocational evaluation.  Transition services for children 
with disabilities may be special education, if provided as specially designed instruction, or a related 
service, if required to assist a child with a disability to benefit from special education. 
 
[34 CFR 300.43 (a)] [20 U.S.C. 1401(34)] 
 
The Individual Transition Plan (ITP) drives the Individual Education Plan (IEP) by clearly defining 
the desired goals of the student in the areas of Postsecondary Education and or Training, 
Employment, and Independent Living when appropriate.  The purpose is to improve academic and 
functional achievement to facilitate movement from school to post school activities.  Both formal 
and informal age appropriate transition assessments including student interview, person centered 
planning and progress monitoring are used to assist in determining the skills, strengths, transition 
readiness and specific needs of the student.  A prescribed course of study, revision of goals, and 
appropriate transition related activities contribute to a comprehensive and individualized transition 
plan. 

D-5

295



Page 139 of 233 
 

Section A – Transition Planning 
 
According to the Federal Regulations for the implementation of IDEA 2004, beginning not later 
than the first IEP to be in effect when the child turns 16, or younger, if determined appropriate by 
the IEP team, and updated annually, thereafter, the IEP must include: 
(1) Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate transition 
assessments related to training, education, employment, and, where appropriate, independent 
living skills; and 
(2) The transition services (including courses of study) needed to assist the child in reaching 
those goals. 
 

[34 CFR 300.320(b) and (c)] [20 U.S.C. 1414 (d)(1)(A)(i)(VIII)] 
 

While age-appropriate transition assessments are not defined in the law, The Division of Career 
Development and Transition, Council for Exceptional Children defines transition assessment as 
“the ongoing process of collecting data on the individual’s needs, preferences and interests as they 
relate to the demands of current and future working, educational, living, and personal and social 
environments”. Transition assessments should assist in identifying the student’s interests, 
preferences and strengths and provide the information needed to plan an appropriate course of 
study, identify appropriate post-school outcomes, and document student progress. The assessment 
process can be informal or formal.  Informal assessments include checklists, observations, surveys 
and review of records.  Formal assessments include the use of standardized assessment tools.  
Whatever process is used, the assessment must provide clear and objective present levels of 
performance in the areas of education and training, employment and when appropriate independent 
living skills.  The results of the assessment shall be reviewed at the IEP meeting convened prior to 
the student’s 16th birthday. 
 
Measurable postsecondary goals are a new requirement in IDEA 2004.  Measurable postsecondary 
goals are statements of what a student wants to do after school.  Measurable postsecondary goals 
are required in the areas of education and training, employment and when appropriate independent 
living.  Measurable annual goals are then developed that will assist the student in achieving their 
postsecondary goals.  While school districts are not responsible for ensuring the achievement of 
the student’s postsecondary goals, the transition plan should be designed and reasonably calculated 
to assist the student in meeting their long term postsecondary goals.    
 
For information on transition planning please refer to Transition to Adult Living: An Information 
and Resource Guide, 2007.  This guide is available from CalSTAT and may be downloaded from 
the CalSTAT publications website: www.calstate.org/info.html.   
 

Section B – Transfer of Rights 
 
When students with disabilities reach the age of majority, age18, the legal rights for special 
education services move from the parents to the student.  Parents and students are notified one year 
before the student’s 18th birthday of this transfer of rights.  §300.520 [see 20 U.S.C. 1415(m).  If 
parents or care providers determine that the student is unable to, or incapable of, making decisions 
about education or independent living, there are two options.  A legal guardianship or 
conservatorship can be established.  The legal guardian makes decisions on behalf of the student 

D-5

296

http://www.calstate.org/info.html


Page 140 of 233 
 

for medical care, financial management, education, and all other life situations.  An alternate option 
is conservatorship.  Conservatorship differs from a legal guardianship in that it may be limited to 
certain powers as appointed by the court. 
 
A limited conservator may ask the court to grant any or all of the following 7 powers: 
 
1. Determine the conservatee’s residence or dwelling 
2. Access the conservatee’s confidential records or documents 
3. Consent or withhold consent to marriage on behalf of the conservatee 
4. Enter into contracts on behalf of the conservatee 
5. Give or withhold medical consent on behalf of the conservatee 
6. Select the conservatee’s social and sexual contacts and relationships 
7. Make educational decisions for the conservatee 
 
Page 2 of the Individual Transition Plan of the West End SELPA IEP form provides the means for 
documenting those students have been advised of the transfer of their rights at least one year before 
they reach the age of majority; age 18.   
 

Section C – Interagency Agreements 
 
EC 56462 The transition services shall include, but not be limited to the following: (a) (3) the 
roles of other agencies in the transition process including, but not limited to, the scope of their 
services, eligibility criteria, and funding.  (b) (4) The coordination of the transition planning 
process, including the development of necessary interagency agreements and procedures at both 
state and local levels.  (g) Coordination with other specialized programs that serve students who 
face barriers to successful transition. 
Interagency agreements shall contain a description of the scope of the agency’s services, eligibility 
criteria, and funding.  Services will be coordinated to serve students who face a barrier to a 
successful transition from school to adult living.  The case carrier will review student’s abilities 
and challenges and with the consent of the parent or the student if the student has attained the age 
of majority, will invite appropriate agency representatives to the IEP annual review.  The notice to 
parents and to the students, in cases where the student is 18 or older, shall contain notification of 
the agency’s participation in the IEP meeting.  It is clear that the inclusion of agency participation 
in the student’s transition planning should start prior to the last year of the student’s high school 
education. 
Interagency access is accomplished through the IEP process.  All students have the right to access 
services offered by the community agencies; however, the school system is not financially 
responsible for services beyond the scope of the IEP.  Methods chosen to accomplish written goals 
are at the discretion of the education professionals. 
 

 
 

D-5

297



Page 141 of 233 
 

Section D – West End SELPA Managed 
Programs 
 
These programs are not mandated under California Education Code, but are available to students 
who meet criteria imposed by the funding source or the West End SELPA Program Advisory 
Committee. 

• The Transition Partnership Program (TPP) – This is an interagency contract with the 
Department of Rehabilitation.  Eligible students receive pre-employment transition skills 
(PETS) training and exploratory work experience.  Services are delivered within the TPP 
classroom and include instruction in career development, employment counseling and 
preparation, as well as job development and placements.  Students may be referred to the 
program in their sophomore year through the beginning of their senior year if they are 
demonstrating school success in the areas of behavior and responsibility, while at the same 
time, receiving special education services.  Students need to complete a TPP application 
packet that is available from their case carrier and provide proof of disability with a current 
psychological report or medical records.  The West End SELPA enters into a contractual 
agreement with the Department of Rehabilitation on an annual basis to provide these 
services to the high school member districts. 

 

• WorkAbility I - The West End SELPA applies annually to the California Department of 
Education for funding for this vocational service.  All high schools in the SELPA are 
eligible to submit student applications for this program.  The scope of the program ranges 
from pre-employment transition skills training and work experience services through initial 
job placement and payment of wages.  WorkAbility I is a statewide grant funded program 
that encourages students with disabilities ages 16-22 to complete high school and supports 
them in acquiring marketable job skills.  It is a program supported by the State of California 
and sustained by the community’s partnering employers.  WorkAbility I pays the student’s 
wages, provides Worker’s Compensation for a specified training period, provides 
employers with an opportunity to evaluate potential employees via a trial work period, and 
encourages employers to hire students who are prepared to work. 

 
A student may access the WorkAbility I program by requesting a WorkAbility I application 
from the special education case carrier or SELPA Transition Case Technician during a 
WorkAbility I presentation.  This application must be completed as requested, and the student 
will then be scheduled for an interview with the WorkAbility I Transition Case Technician.  
Following the interview, a decision will be made concerning the student’s readiness for job 
placement.  Collaborative efforts between the teacher, career center personnel, WorkAbility I 
staff, and parents prepare the student for employment.  Preparation includes pre-employment 
skills, job-seeking skills, job attainment, and retention of employment. 
 
When a special education student is 16-22 years of age, he/she may apply for a WorkAbility I 
position if the student: 

• Can be responsible for transportation to and from the job site. 
• Maintains satisfactory attendance and classroom achievement. 
• Is responsible, reliable, and honest. 
• For additional information see Appendix B 

D-5

298



Page 142 of 233 
 

 

• WorkAbility Middle School Project - This program is part of the WorkAbility I grant 
project.  It is a program designed to meet the needs of students in grades 6-8.  It is also 
supported by the California Department of Education.  The goal of this project is to 
empower middle school students to create a personal vision and to prepare them to enter 
high school with academic skills, social skills, and career awareness information that will 
allow them to make informed decisions regarding their future as it relates to their high 
school course of study, and future areas of transition into adult life.  These goals will be 
accomplished by cooperative work between the WorkAbility I staff and teachers to engage 
middle school students in a variety of classroom activities and community experiences, 
including secondary education and transition planning based on career and vocational 
interest inventories. 

 

• Work Projects – This program is part of the WorkAbility I grant project.  The program 
involves partnering with local businesses to supply students with severe disabilities with 
work projects that can be completed in the classroom to enhance the school curriculum.  
The goals are to enhance the student’s time on task and develop the social and work 
behaviors necessary to be a successful employee.  All high school students with moderate 
to severe handicapping conditions are eligible to participate in the Work Projects Program 
if the work complements their curriculum and meets the goals set forth in their IEP.  The 
student’s teacher must decide if this experience aligns with the curriculum set forth by the 
district and used in the classroom.  The teacher then contacts the transition Case Technician 
assigned to that school to develop an appropriate work project appropriate.  In the case of 
damage, loss, or theft the teacher is responsible for the value of the materials provided by 
Work Projects’ staff. 

 

• CaPROMISE – Promoting the Readiness of Minors in Supplemental Security Income 
(PROMISE) is a joint initiative between the U.S. Department of Education, the U.S. Social 
Security Administration, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, and the U.S. 
Department of Labor to promote positive outcomes for children who receive Supplemental 
Security Income (SSI) and their families.   

 

• The grant is a 5-year demonstration grant, scheduled to end on September 30, 2018. The 
purpose of the program is to improve the provision and coordination of services and 
supports for child SSI recipients and their families in order to achieve improved outcomes, 
such as completing postsecondary education and job training to obtain competitive 
employment in an integrated setting that may result in long-term reductions in the child 
recipient’s reliance on SSI.  The CaPROMISE grant is focused on supporting one of the 
key provisions of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) enacted on July 
22, 2014, which is to strengthen the Department of Rehabilitation focus on Competitive 
Integrated Employment (CIE).  Participants were chosen via random selection from an 
eligibility list uploaded to a secure database by the Social Security Administration.  Staff 
authorized to access this database must undergo a federal security background check for 
clearance. 

 
Expected Outcomes for the Youth and Their Families:  
• Increased education attainment in high school, postsecondary education and/or training  
• Increased access to community services based on individual need  

D-5

299



Page 143 of 233 
 

• Improved employment outcomes for youth and family members  
• Increased exploration, understanding and utilization of SSA work incentives  
• Improved understanding of financial and benefits planning  
• Post-program reduction in SSI payments  

 
Interventions: 
• Case Management and Transition Services 
• Financial Planning and Benefits Management Services 
• Career and Work-based Learning Services 
• Parent and Guardian Training and Information Services 
• Other Support and Services 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

D-5

300



Page 144 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A 
QUICK REFERENCE ARRAY OF 

WORKABILITY I (WAI) SERVICES 
  

Source: https://sites.google.com/a/workabilitycentral.com/workability-1/high-
school-array-of-services 

 

WESELPA 
West End Special Education Local Plan Area 

WorkAbility I 
Matrix – Array of Services Quick Reference 
Please use this as a quick reference for explanation of services on the matrix form.  The 
matrix form is available upon request from the WESELPA WorkAbility Office. 

 
SCHOOL-BASED COMPONENT 

 
The integration of school-based and work-based learning is identified as a best practice for 
transition (National Transition Standards, Office of Disability Employment Policy, High School 
Reform and the newly reauthorized Carl Perkins Career and Technology Act).  This incorporates 
common core, academic and occupational learning and links elementary schools, middle schools, 
high schools and postsecondary education. 
 
The School-Based component refers to those elements that are commonly part of the school 
curriculum and the education delivery system.  The following elements are included: 
 
Career/Vocational Assessment: Assessments that evaluate the student’s interests, skills and 
abilities.  The results are utilized to assist students to choose a satisfying, lasting career and to 
evaluate transition needs.   
Types of assessments include: 

• Self-Assessment: a self-inventory that requires students to reflect on their personal traits, 
skills, interests and aptitudes to identify their natural talents and abilities. 

• Formal Assessments are typically in one of five categories:   
• Aptitude / Ability Tests- measure overall abilities, general intelligence, achievement, 

aptitude. 
• Interest Inventories- help individuals identify their preferences for a particular activity. 
• Personality Surveys- match types of interests to the Holland Code (Self Directed Search) 

or Myers Briggs. 
• Values Assessments- assist individuals to identify characteristics of occupations of value 

to them. 
• Career Development Assessments- determine where a person is in the career 

development process. 

D-5

301

https://sites.google.com/a/workabilitycentral.com/workability-1/high-school-array-of-services
https://sites.google.com/a/workabilitycentral.com/workability-1/high-school-array-of-services


Page 145 of 233 
 

• Informal Assessments:  card sorts, interviews, individual and group discussion, job 
shadow, and situational assessments. 

• Computerized Information Systems: match data assessment, data for research, and 
exploration. 

• Special Vocational Assessment:  may include a diagnostic process to identify learning 
styles, vocational interests, skills, talents and aptitudes, and/or the student’s need for 
accommodation.  

• Monitoring progress and attainment of employment goals 
 

Employment/ Post-Secondary Education Planning: services that guide students through a 
process to make and implement educational and occupational plans based on informed choices; 
services should assist students in exploring career options with attention to surmounting gender, 
race, ethnic, disability, language or socioeconomic impediments to career options and encourage 
nontraditional career choices when appropriate.  Services may be delivered individually or through 
group or class activities.  The National Career Development Guidelines (NCDG) and National 
School Counseling Standards provide an extensive list of age and grade appropriate competencies. 

 
Youth Development and Leadership: Training to assist students to understand their rights and 
responsibilities, express themselves and their ideas, state their needs, and know where to go for 
assistance and support (self-advocacy skills).  Disability awareness, awareness of learning styles 
and needed accommodations are encompassed in youth development and leadership. 
 
Curriculum Integration of Work Readiness Skills: Academic and work readiness skills (as 
reflected in the SCANS Competencies and Common Core) are taught in a manner that emphasizes 
the relationship and application of skills in the workplace.  Documentation of these skills may 
include: 
 

• Career/Transition Portfolio: A collection of a student’s transition related documents 
and assessment results.  An age appropriate Career or Transition Portfolio may contain: 

o Personal information 
o Academic information (transcripts, awards, etc.) 
o Exhibits of personal accomplishments 
o Career assessment information (e.g. interest, aptitude, values, learning styles 

and/or personality survey assessment results) 
o Career exploration results 
o Documentation of career technical skills 
o Work related documents (e.g. resume, master job application, list of references, 

letters of recommendation, and copies of important documents like driver’s 
license, certificates, etc.)  

o The student’s IEP/ITP, dreams and goals, and/or career plan  
 

Career/ Vocational Education: General Education classes that provide introduction to job skills 
in the areas of agriculture, business, home economics, industrial technology, and health care.  
Regional Occupational Programs/ Career Technical Education that provide students occupational 
training and certification in entry level positions through a community classroom model or school-
based classes.  A collaboration of these options help to enhance college and career readiness. 
 

D-5

302



Page 146 of 233 
 

Independent Living/Functional Skills: Activities and curriculum that teach the use of 
community resources and help develop domestic skills, money management skills and other skills 
required for independent living. 
 
CONNECTING ACTIVITIES 

 
Connecting Activities are programs and services that help link school and work based learning 
opportunities. 
 
Partnership/Collaboration: Cooperative relationships with entities within the school system or 
in the community that provide students work readiness and life skills or assist in their transition 
from school to life after high school. The following relationships are included: 

a. Interdisciplinary: collaboration among departments, services, and programs within a 
school 

b. Interagency: partnerships/collaboration with agencies that provide support for student 
transitions 

c. Community: facilitating access to community resources for students 
d. Business: partnerships with business community members who provide career resources 

for youth, serve as advisors, and offer employment and training opportunities for youth 
 
Family Participation/Support of Transition: Involves and recognizes the role of the family as 
essential to assisting students to become economically self-sufficient individuals. 
 

CAREER PREPARATION AND WORK BASED LEARNING COMPONENT 
 

Activities and learning experiences to increase career awareness, provide students with work-
readiness skills and connect the classroom to work.   Work Based Learning Component includes 
activities that involve actual worksite learning experiences or connect classroom learning to 
work.  All community-based placements (paid and unpaid) are in compliance with the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA).  Key elements of this component include: 
 
Career Awareness Activities: On and/or off-campus activities designed to make students aware 
of the broad range of careers and/or occupations in the world of work.  These activities are typically 
occasional experiences that may include field trips, guest speakers, career fairs, conducting 
interviews with employees and/or employers and career research using career information, internet 
and/or computer information systems. 
 
Career Exploration Activities: Activities designed to provide more in-depth exposure to career 
options for students.  They are of longer duration (2 hours to one semester).  These activities may 
include:  
 

• Job Shadows: A student follows an employee at a worksite to learn about a 
particular occupation of interest.  The activity is designed to assist the student to explore 
a range of career/occupational choices and to select a career/occupational goal as they 
advance into the latter part of high school. 
• School-Based Project/Business: An enterprise in which goods or services are 
produced by students as part of their school program.  Project-Based Learning is a type 
of school based project that provides an opportunity for students to tackle a “real world” 
problem and identify potential solutions by applying academic skills, social skills, life 
skills and problem-solving and creative thinking skills. 

D-5

303



Page 147 of 233 
 

• Service Learning: a method of instruction that combines community service with a 
structured school-based opportunity for reflection about that service, emphasizing the 
connections between service experiences and academic learning.  Most programs are 
balanced between students’ needs to learn and the recipients need for service.  Students 
benefit from acquiring skills and knowledge, and learning civic responsibility. 

 
Work-Based Learning: Includes activities that involve actual work site learning experiences or 
connect classroom learning to work. All community-based placements (paid and unpaid) are in 
compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 

• Internship:  provides students an opportunity to participate in unpaid, work based 
learning for a specified period of time to learn about a particular industry or occupation.  
In most internship situations, a workplace mentor instructs the student, critiques the 
performance, challenges and encourages the student to do well. It is critical to ensure 
that all aspects of criteria outlined by the FLSA are met to ensure that this experience 
is a work-based learning experience – not employment. 
• Apprenticeship:  Youth apprenticeship programs are formal, multi-year programs 
that combine school and work based learning in a specific occupational area or cluster 
and are designed to lead directly into either a postsecondary program, entry level job 
or registered apprenticeship program.  Most apprenticeship programs are developed in 
collaboration with the State Apprenticeship Standards Board. 
• Community Classroom: a method of instruction which utilizes unpaid on-the-job 
training experiences at business, industry, or public agency sites to assist students in 
acquiring those competencies needed to acquire entry level employment.  The intent of 
the community classroom experience is to augment classroom instruction that can be 
extended into the community.  It is most typically associated with ROP. It is critical to 
ensure that all aspects of criteria outlined by the FLSA are met to ensure that this 
experience is a work-based learning experience – not employment. 
• Community Based Vocational Instruction: the development of learning experiences 
in the community through WorkAbility and in compliance with all FLSA requirements 
for a work-based learning experience. 

 
FLSA Requirements for Unpaid Training: 
§ a comprehensive training plan 
§ activity involving the performance of work 
§ planned, sequential learning occurs, resulting in skills documentation 
§ youth are exposed to all aspects of the industry 
§ placement provides challenging real or simulated tasks 

 
Career Preparation/Job Search: Community based activities that provide the opportunity to 
develop work readiness skills and career-related technical skills.  These activities may include: 

• Preparation for the Worksite: Activities that develop awareness of employer 
requirements in a specific work based learning opportunity and/or work 
experience placement in the areas of duties to be performed, appropriate attire, 
work place rules and other expectations.   

• Job Search: Curriculum and activities that provide students with the needed skills 
to find a job such as interview skills, use of a portfolio in job search, where to find 

D-5

304



Page 148 of 233 
 

job listings, how to make use of resources and networking, and how to contact 
employers.  

 
Job Development and Placement Services: WAI staff develop job training sites in the 
community or connect students with other placement opportunities. The typical placement 
process involves contacting employers, developing training plans, securing a training agreement, 
arranging schedules, and scheduling the student interview and/or orientation. A training plan 
includes the following elements: 

• Clear statement of student hours and wages  
• Name of worker’s compensation insurance company  
• Statement of related goals and interests  
• Statement of employment skills addressed in work experience  
• Statement of how performance will be evaluated 
• Designation of a work site supervisor and a school coordinator/supervisor 

 
Employment/Work Experience: Provide on the job training experience. Students are productive 
employees, receiving pay for performing tasks independently. The work experience education 
component encourages a connection between school and work. 
 
Job Retention: Curriculum and activities that reinforce the skills that a student needs to maintain 
and/or upgrade a job and the appropriate way to leave a job. 
 
Work Site Mentor: A mentor serves as an advocate and role model for the student.  A workplace 
mentor instructs the student, critiques the performance, challenges and encourages the student to 
do well and works in consultation with the classroom teacher. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

305



Page 149 of 233 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

West End SELPA  
WorkAbility I Policies and Procedures 

 

WEST END SELPA WorkAbility I 
Policies & Procedures 

 
Mission of WorkAbility I “WAI” 

The mission of WorkAbility I (WAI) is to promote the involvement of key stakeholders, including 
students, families, educators, employers, and other agencies in planning and implementing an array of 
services that will culminate in successful student transition to employment, lifelong learning and quality 
adult life. 
 
WorkAbility I Program Information 

The WAI program assists all referred secondary students with an active IEP in one of the following ways:  
Ø Prescreening assessment (formal or informal career survey/interest inventory).  
Ø Pre-Employment Transition Skills (PETS) training and presentations.  
Ø Counseling information for post-secondary education or training.  
Ø Subsidized (WAI paid) temporary employment placement and site support, based on grant 

funding  
Ø Two-year follow-up after program exit.  

 

WorkAbility I Job Training Referral Process (age 16+) 

Ø Student completes WAI referral packet, available from site Transition Case Technician or 
special education staff, and obtains necessary parent permission.  

Ø Student returns the completed packet, which includes photocopies of Social Security 
Card/Permanent Residence Card, photo identification and work permit to the Transition 
Case Technician 

Ø Consideration for paid employment is not a guarantee, but a privilege.  
 
If Considered for Temporary Job Placement, Student: 

Ø Must maintain excellent attendance, behavior, and classroom citizenship/achievement.  
Ø If under age 18, must obtain a work permit from school.  
Ø Must be able to work independently with supervision by an on-site manager and off-site 

support from Transition Case Technician. 
Ø Must take responsibility for transportation to and from work.  
Ø Will work as scheduled and agreed upon by employer and Transition Case Technician, per 

state and federal labor laws.  
Ø Must notify the employer and Transition Case Technician when he/she will be absent from 

work.  
Ø Must notify Transition Case Technician of any change of address or phone number.  
Ø Is responsible for correctly completing and submitting time sheets to Transition Case 

Technician and signing time card.  

D-5

306



Page 150 of 233 
 

Ø Will be paid once a month for a predetermined number of hours based on available grant 
funding; check will be issued by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools. 

 
WorkAbility I is funded by a grant from the California Department of Education, Special Education Division 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

307



Page 151 of 233 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

ON LINE RESOURCES 
IDEA 2004 

http://idea.ed.gov/explore/view/p/,root,dynamic,TopicalBrief,17, 
 
National Center on Secondary Education and Transition 
http://www.ncset.org/ 
 
Transition:  CA’s School to Adult Life Core Messages 
Transition to Adult Life Leadership Team & CDE, 
Special Education Division 
Each core message is followed by related web sites  

http://www.calstat.org/transitionmessages.html 
U.S. Department of Education: Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act 

http://www2.ed.gov/policy/sectech/leg/perkins/index.html 
WorkAbility Central 
https://sites.google.com/a/workabilitycentral.com/workability-1/high-school-array-of-services 
 
CaPROMISE - Promoting the Readiness of Minors in Supplemental Security Income  
https://www.capromise.org/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

D-5

308

http://idea.ed.gov/explore/view/p/,root,dynamic,TopicalBrief,17
http://www.ncset.org/
http://www.calstat.org/transitionmessages.html
http://www2.ed.gov/policy/sectech/leg/perkins/index.html
https://sites.google.com/a/workabilitycentral.com/workability-1/high-school-array-of-services
https://www.capromise.org/


Page 152 of 233 
 

APPENDIX D 
 
 

OSERS: Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services Questions and 
Answers on Secondary Transition 

 
Source: 

idea.ed.gov/object/fileDownload/model/QaCorner/field/PdfFile/primary_key/10 
 
 

Questions and Answers 
On Secondary Transition 
Revised September 2011 

(New Section B) 
 
Regulations for Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) were published 
in the Federal Register on August 14, 2006, and became effective on October 13, 2006.  Additional 
regulations were published on December 1, 2008 and became effective on December 31, 2008.  
Since publication of the regulations, the Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services 
(OSERS) in the U.S. Department of Education (Department) has received requests for clarification 
of some of these regulations.  This is one of a series of question and answer (Q&A) documents 
prepared by OSERS to address some of the most important issues raised by requests for 
clarification on a variety of high-interest topics.  Each Q&A document will be updated to add new 
questions and answers as important issues arise or to amend existing questions and answers as 
needed. 
 
OSERS issues this Q&A document to provide State educational agencies (SEAs), local educational 
agencies (LEAs), parents, advocacy organizations, and other interested parties with information 
regarding secondary transition for students with disabilities.  This Q&A document represents the 
Department’s current thinking on this topic.  It does not create or confer any rights for or on any 
person.  This guidance does not impose any requirements beyond those required under applicable 
law and regulations.  This Q&A document supersedes the Department’s guidance, entitled:  
Questions and Answers on Secondary Transition, Revised June, 2009. 
 
The IDEA and its implementing regulations continue to address transition services for children 
with disabilities. Transition services may be special education, if provided as specially designed 
instruction, or a related service, if required to assist a child with a disability to benefit from special 
education.  See 34 CFR §300.43(b).  The term “transition services” means a coordinated set of 
activities for a child with a disability that: (a) is designed to be within a results-oriented process 
that is focused on improving the academic and functional achievement of the child with a disability 
to facilitate the child’s movement from school to post-school activities, including postsecondary 
education, vocational education, integrated employment (including supported employment), 
continuing and adult education, adult services, independent living, and community participation; 
(b) is based on the individual child’s needs, taking into account the child’s strengths, preferences, 

D-5

309



Page 153 of 233 
 

and interests; and (c) includes instruction, related services, community experiences, the 
development of employment and other post-school adult living objectives, and, if appropriate, 
acquisition of daily living skills and functional vocational evaluation.  See 20 U.S.C. 1401(34) and 
34 CFR §300.43(a). 
 
Generally, the questions, and corresponding answers, presented in this Q&A document required 
interpretation of the IDEA and its implementing regulations and the answers are not simply a 
restatement of the statutory or regulatory requirements.  The responses presented in this document 
generally are informal guidance representing the interpretation of the Department of the applicable 
statutory or regulatory requirements in the context of the specific facts presented and are not legally 
binding.  The Q&As in this document are not intended to be a replacement for careful study of the 
IDEA and its implementing regulations.  The IDEA, its implementing regulations, and other 
important documents related to the IDEA and the regulations are found at http://idea.ed.gov. 
 
If you are interested in commenting on this guidance, please email your comments to 
OSERSguidancecomments@ed.gov and include Secondary Transition in the subject of your email 
or write us at the following address:  Ruth Ryder, U.S. Department of Education, Potomac Center 
Plaza, 550 12th Street, SW, room 4108, Washington, DC 20202. 

D-5

310

http://idea.ed.gov/
mailto:OSERSguidancecomments@ed.gov


Page 154 of 233 
 

Table of Contents 
 

A. Federal Activities ……………………………………………………………… 
 
A-1. Are there activities at the Federal level to support secondary transition services? 
 
B. Individualized Education Program (IEP) Goals for  

Postsecondary Transition……………………………………….…………….. 
 
B-1. Must an IEP include measurable postsecondary goals in each of the areas of training, 

education, employment, and independent living skills?  Are there any circumstances in 
which goals for training and education can be combined? 

 
C. Summary of Performance (SOP) ……………………………………………. 
 
C-1. What is the purpose of the SOP, “a summary of the child’s academic achievement and 

functional performance, which shall include recommendations on how to assist the child 
in meeting the child’s postsecondary goals”? 

 
C-2. What information is required and what information would be helpful to include in the 

SOP? 
 
C-3. Does a general educational development credential (GED) or alternate diploma trigger 

the creation of an SOP? 
 
C-4. Is a public agency required to include in the SOP the documentation necessary to 

determine a student’s eligibility for the Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) Services program 
and/or accommodations in institutions of higher education? 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

311



Page 155 of 233 
 

A. Federal Activities 
 
      Authority: The requirements for transition services are found in the regulations  
   at 34 CFR §§300.43 and 300.320(b).  
 

Question A-1: Are there activities at the Federal level to support secondary 
transition services? 

 
Answer: Yes.  There are State Performance Plan/Annual Performance Report 

(SPP/APR) indicators that address secondary transition.  In the SPP/APR, 
a State is required to set measurable and rigorous targets and annually 
report data on: graduation rates; competitive employment rates; 
postsecondary school enrollment rates; and percent of eligible IEPs that 
contain the required secondary transition elements.  The Office of Special 
Education Programs (OSEP) funds three centers to provide technical 
assistance for the collection and analysis of data for these indicators:  the 
National Secondary Transition Technical Assistance Center (NSTTAC); 
the National Dropout Prevention Center for Students with Disabilities 
(NDPC-SD); and the National Post-School Outcomes Center (NPSO).  
Additionally, OSEP is involved in collaborative activities with other 
Federal agencies with a focus on improving the academic and functional 
achievement of students with disabilities.   These collaborative activities 
include the Matrix-Mapping Federal Resources for Technical Assistance 
and Information Services; the Interagency Committee on Disability 
Research/Interagency Subcommittee on Employment; the Federal Partners 
in Transition Workgroup; and the Youth Vision Federal Collaborative 
Partnership.  The agencies involved in these and other activities include 
the Departments of Education, Labor, Health and Human Services, 
Transportation, Justice, Housing and Urban Development, and the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission. 

 

B.  Individualized Education Program (IEP) Goals for Postsecondary  
Transition  

 
Authority: The requirements for the content of the IEP related to transition services 

are found in 34 CFR §300.320(b). 
 
   Question B-1:  Must an IEP include measurable postsecondary goals in each of the areas 

of training, education, employment, and independent living skills?  Are 
there any circumstances in which goals for training and education can be 
combined?   

 
Answer: The Under 34 CFR §300.320(b)(1), the IEP for each child with a disability, 

must, beginning not later than the first IEP to be in effect when the child 
turns 16, or younger if determined appropriate by the IEP Team, and 
updated annually thereafter, include (1) appropriate measurable 
postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate transition assessments 
related to training, education, employment, and, where appropriate, 

D-5

312



Page 156 of 233 
 

independent living skills; and (2) the transition services (including courses 
of study) needed to assist the child in reaching those goals.  The Department 
explained in the Analysis of Comments and Changes section of the 
preamble of the August 2006 final Part B regulations that “…the Act 
requires a child’s IEP to include measurable postsecondary goals in the 
areas of training, education, and employment, and, where appropriate, 
independent living skills.  Therefore, the only area in which postsecondary 
goals are not required in the IEP is in the area of independent living skills….  
It is up to the child’s IEP Team to determine whether IEP goals related to 
the development of independent living skills are appropriate and necessary 
for the child to receive FAPE.”  [Emphasis added] 71 Fed. Reg. 46668 (Aug. 
14, 2006).    

  
Regarding postsecondary goals related to training and education, the IDEA 
and its implementing regulations do not define the terms “training” and 
“education.”  However, the areas of training and education can reasonably 
be interpreted as overlapping in certain instances.  In determining whether 
postsecondary goals in the areas of training and education overlap, the IEP 
Team must consider the unique needs of each individual student with a 
disability, in light of his or her plans after leaving high school.  If the IEP 
Team determines that separate postsecondary goals in the areas of training 
and education would not result in the need for distinct skills for the student 
after leaving high school, the IEP Team can combine the training and 
education goals of the student into one or more postsecondary goals 
addressing those areas.  For example, for a student whose postsecondary 
goal is teacher certification, any program providing teacher certification 
would include education as well as training.  Similarly, a student with a 
disability who enrolls in a postsecondary program in engineering would be 
obtaining both education and occupational training in the program.  The 
same is true for students with disabilities enrolled in programs for doctors, 
lawyers, accountants, technologists, physical therapists, medical 
technicians, mechanics, computer programmers, etc.  Thus, in some 
instances, it would be permissible for the IEP to include a combined 
postsecondary goal or goals in the areas of training and education to address 
a student’s postsecondary plans, if determined appropriate by the IEP Team.  
This guidance, however, is not intended to prohibit the IEP Team from 
developing separate postsecondary goals in the areas related to training and 
education in a student’s IEP, if deemed appropriate by the IEP Team, in 
light of the student’s postsecondary plans. 
On the other hand, because employment is a distinct activity from the 
areas related to training and education, each student’s IEP must include a 
separate postsecondary goal in the area of employment 

 

C. Summary of Performance (SOP) 
 

Authority: The requirements for the SOP are found in the regulations at 34 CFR 
§300.305(e)(3).  

 

D-5

313



Page 157 of 233 
 

   Question C-1:  What is the purpose of the SOP, “a summary of the child’s academic 
achievement and functional performance, which shall include recommendations on how to assist 
the child in meeting the child’s postsecondary goals”?   

 
Answer: The purpose of the SOP is to provide the child with a summary of the 

child’s academic achievement and functional performance in order to 
assist the child to transition beyond high school.   

 
 

Question C-2:   What information is required and what information would be helpful to 
include in the SOP?   

 
Answer:   The SOP must include recommendations on how to assist the child in 

meeting his or her postsecondary goals.  The IDEA does not otherwise 
specify the information that must be included in the SOP; rather, State and 
local officials have the flexibility to determine the appropriate content to 
be included in a child’s SOP, based on the child’s individual needs and 
postsecondary goals.   

 
 

Question C-3:   Does a general educational development credential (GED) or alternate 
diploma trigger the creation of an SOP? 

 
Answer:   No.  A public agency, pursuant to 34 CFR §300.305(e)(3), must provide a 

child whose eligibility for services under Part B of the IDEA terminates 
due to graduation from secondary school with a regular diploma, or due to 
exceeding the age of eligibility for a free appropriate public education 
(FAPE) under State law, with a summary of the child's academic 
achievement and functional performance.  This Part B requirement does 
not apply to the group of children who leave secondary school with a GED 
credential or alternative diploma and whose eligibility for services under 
Part B has not terminated.  See 34 CFR §300.102(a)(3)(iv), which clarifies 
that a regular high school diploma does not include alternate degrees, such 
as a GED credential.  

 
Public agencies are not required to provide an SOP for students who leave 
secondary school with a GED credential or alternate diploma; however, 
there is nothing in the IDEA or the Part B regulations that would prevent a 
State from doing so.  If a State establishes a policy or practice requiring 
LEAs to provide an SOP to students with disabilities who leave high 
school with a GED credential or an alternate diploma, we recommend that, 
to avoid any confusion, the LEA notify the student and his or her parents 
that the student's eligibility for FAPE under Part B does not terminate until 
the student is awarded a regular high school diploma or the student 
exceeds the age of eligibility for FAPE under State law, whichever occurs 
first.  States that require their LEAs to provide children who leave 
secondary school with a GED credential or alternate diploma with an SOP 
must comply with 34 CFR §300.199.  Each State, under 34 CFR 

D-5

314



Page 158 of 233 
 

§300.199(a)(1), must ensure that any State rules, regulations, and policies 
conform to the purposes of Part B.  Further, 34 CFR §300.199(a)(2) 
requires States to identify in writing to OSEP and to their LEAs any State-
imposed requirement that is not required by Part B of the IDEA or the 
implementing regulations, such as one requiring their LEAs to provide 
children who leave secondary school with a GED or credential or alternate 
diploma with an SOP. 

 
 

Question C-4:   Is a public agency required to include in the SOP the documentation 
necessary to determine a student’s eligibility for the Vocational 
Rehabilitation (VR) Services program and/or accommodations in 
institutions of higher education?  

 
Answer:   No. Section 614(c)(5) of the IDEA does not require the LEA to include in 

the SOP the documentation necessary to determine a child’s eligibility for 
another program or service, such as the State VR Services program, or the 
child’s need for accommodations in college or in other postsecondary 
educational settings.  However, the SOP may include information that may 
assist another program to determine a student’s eligibility for services or 
accommodations.  For example, section 102(a)(4) of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973, as amended, requires the State VR Services program to use 
information submitted by education officials to assist in making eligibility 
determinations for students with disabilities.  The SOP is one of the 
educational records that may be used to provide information to determine 
a student’s eligibility for VR services. 

 
A postsecondary student who has identified him or herself as an individual 
with a disability and has requested academic adjustments, auxiliary aids or 
modifications of policies, practices or procedures from an institution of 
postsecondary education may, consistent with an institution’s 
documentation requirements, provide the institution with the SOP as part 
of the documentation to be used by the institution to determine whether 
the student has an impairment that substantially limits a major life activity, 
as defined under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (Section 504) 
and/or the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and requires academic 
adjustments as defined in the Section 504 regulations at 34 CFR §104.44.  
Institutions may set their own requirements for documentation so long as 
they are reasonable and comply with Section 504 and the ADA.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

315



Page 159 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
POSITIVE BEHAVIORAL INTERVENTIONS 
SECTION A BEHAVIOR SUPPORT PLAN PROCESS   

SECTION B THE FUNCTIONAL BEHAVIOR ASSESSMENT AND 
POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTION PLAN 
PROCESS                         

 

SECTION C BEHAVIORAL EMERGENCY PROCEDURES  

SECTION D FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATIONS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
D-5

316



Page 160 of 233 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This chapter contains procedures regarding behavioral assessment and intervention. IDEA and 
California's Title V Regulations require the implementation of specific procedures to guide IEP teams 
in their response to individuals with challenging behaviors.  The West End SELPA districts have 
established policies and continue to in-service staff regarding its implementation. 
 
There are two basic triggers to the need for behavioral assessment and intervention plans:  

1. Disciplinary actions that constitute a “change of placement” 
2. Behaviors which impede the learning of the student, or that of others  

 
IDEA requires the use of functional behavioral assessment and positive behavior strategies and supports 
with students who are not necessarily dangerous, but who exhibit a pattern of behavior that interferes 
with learning - theirs or others.  The California regulations also make it necessary for instructional staff 
to have the support of personnel specially trained in behavior analysis with an emphasis in positive 
behavior intervention when addressing serious behavior problems.  IDEA requires that both general and 
special educators receive the training and support necessary to contribute to the development and 
implementation of positive behavior strategies.  All of this makes it imperative that educational 
personnel in this SELPA become aware of these procedures and proficient in carrying them out.   
 
The ultimate goal is to have teachers who understand the guiding principles underlying the procedures 
and who regularly apply sound positive programming strategies.  The consequence should be a 
significant decrease in chronic and/or dangerous behaviors and less dependency on outside sources and 
exclusionary punitive reactions.  The training outcomes are to provide local staff with the tools and 
knowledge necessary to not only meet the requirements of the law, but to more effectively and 
efficiently meet the needs of students with challenging behaviors.   
 

Section A - The Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP) 
Process 
 
The “Behavior Intervention Plan” process is a systematic procedure designed to guide IEP teams 
to develop positive behavior strategies and goals that are tied to the function of the problem 
behaviors.    A behavior Intervention plan is required whenever a student’s behavior impedes their 
learning or the learning of others. In addition, in discipline settings, when a manifestation 
determination has found that the behavior is a manifestation of the student’s disability, if there is 
not a behavior intervention plan in place, one must be developed and implemented with fidelity. 
If BIP is in place, it must be reviewed and modified as needed.   
  

D-5

317



Page 161 of 233 
 

 

 

A TEMPLATE OF THE BEHAVIOR 
INTERVENTION PLAN 

IS  

LOCATED IN SEIS 

UNDER REFERENCE MATERIALS, 

DOCUMENT LIBRARY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D-5

318



Page 162 of 233 
 

Section B -The Functional Behavior Assessment 
and Behavior Intervention Plan Process 
 
Functional Behavior Assessment – When a special education student’s significant behavioral 
challenge(s) have an adverse impact on their learning and the learning of other pupils, or both, the 
students IEP team shall determine whether the instructional/behavioral approaches specified in the 
Student’s IEP and BIP, if appropriate, have proven ineffective, If the IEP team finds that these 
approaches have been ineffective, a functional behavior assessment may be conducted.  Before a 
functional behavior assessment begins, parents/guardians shall be notified and consent obtained.  
(California Education Code §56320(b)(3) states that assessments of students with exceptional 
needs “are administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel and are administered in 
accordance with any instructions provided by the producer of the assessments” ) and the 
WESELPA recommends the FBA should be conducted within the environment where the behavior 
occurs.  
During the assessment the behavior is identified in observable and measurable terms, and 
information is collected to determine what environmental or instructional factors increase or 
decrease the behavior, and what purpose is the behavior serving for the student (ie a hypothesis 
statement regarding the function of the behavior). This information is used to develop a plan of 
which specifies what the school staff will do to address the behavior, including any changes to the 
environment, or instructional program, which will decrease the behavior in addition to a teaching 
plan for an alternative behavior that provides the student with an appropriate way to get his/her 
needs met.  Behavioral goals and communication strategies are developed to monitor the success 
of the plan. It is best to use a team approach when developing a behavior intervention plan. Having 
all individuals who work with the student involved in the development of the plan increases the 
consistency with which the plan is implemented.      
 
The Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP) - A BIP is a written intervention plan, which is may be 
based on a functional behavior assessment A Behavior Intervention Plan is a proactive action plan 
to address challenging behavior(s) that are impeding learning of the student or others. Behavior 
Intervention Plans are required when significant behavioral challenges have an adverse impact on 
the learning of self and/or others and less restrictive interventions have been unsuccessful. A 
BIP is facilitated by an individual specially trained in behavior analysis with an emphasis on 
positive behavior interventions  
 

 
 
General Provisions 
 
The FBA procedures should include all the following:  
 
1. Systematic observation of the occurrence of the targeted behavior for an accurate  
definition and description of the frequency, duration, and intensity.  
 

D-5

319



Page 163 of 233 
 

2. Systematic observation of the immediate antecedent events associated with each instance of 
the display of the targeted inappropriate behavior.  
 
3. Systematic observation and analysis of the consequences following the display of the  
behavior to determine the function the behavior serves for the individual, i.e., to  
identify the specific environmental or physiological outcomes produced by the  
behavior. The communicative intent of the behavior is identified in terms of what the  
individual is either requesting or protesting through the display of the behavior.  
 
4. Ecological analysis of the settings in which the behavior occurs most frequently.  
Factors to consider should include the physical setting, the social setting, the activities  
and the nature of instruction, scheduling, the quality of communication between the  
individual and staff and other students, the degree of independence, the degree of  
participation, the amount and quality of social interaction, the degree of choice, and  
the variety of activities.  
 
5. Review of records for health and medical factors which may influence behaviors (e.g.,  
medication levels, sleep cycles, health, diet); and  
 
6. Review of the history of the behavior to include the effectiveness of previously used  
behavioral interventions.  
 
7. Interviews with parents/caregivers, teachers, support staff and student (whenever possible) 
 
Following the assessment, a Functional Behavior Assessment Report (SELPA42) shall be 
prepared, and a copy shall be provided to the parent. The report should include the following 
components: 
  
1. Identifying student information. 
  
2. A description of the nature and severity of the targeted behavior(s) in clear,  
measurable, and observable terms. 
  
3. A description of the targeted behavior(s) frequency, intensity, and/or duration that  
includes baseline data and an analysis of the antecedents and consequences that  
maintain the targeted behavior, and a functional analysis of the behavior across all  
appropriate settings in which it occurs.  
 
4. Determination and rationale of whether the behavior is impeding the learning of the  
student or peers.  
 
5. A review of Tier II Strategies or other positive behavioral interventions and  
strategies. If strategies have been utilized, then include the results of the  
interventions and/or strategies.  
 
6. A review of environmental factors, including reported and observed predictors and  
what supports the student’s use of these behaviors; and  

D-5

320



Page 164 of 233 
 

7. Hypothesis of the function of the behavior based on data collection and a description  
of the suggested functionally equivalent replacement behaviors. 
 
8. Recommended behavior interventions and teaching strategies. 
 
9. a summary of data obtained from the functional behavioral analysis. 
 
10. a description of the targeted maladaptive behavior/s and the alternative positive replacement 
behavior/s. 
 
11. suggested behavioral interventions that utilize positive programming and the circumstances 
for  
    their use. 
12. a  description of the recommended data collection modality  
 
13. criteria for discontinuing interventions or modifications following the IEP process. 
 
14.  a summary statement that operationally defines the behavior(s) of concern, describes the 
antecedents that predict the behaviors and consequences that maintain the behaviors, and 
includes the conditions wherein the behavior(s) are more or less likely to occur 
 
15. (1) a record review, (2) interviews with at least two people who know the student and have 
seen the behavior occur on multiple occasions, and (3) multiple direct, in-person observations 
conducted by the behavior support professional who is in charge of the FBA (PENT 
recommendation) 
 
 
 
  

D-5

321



Page 165 of 233 
 

Redundant? Addressed already on page 9-4…. 
The Behavior Intervention Plan - A written intervention plan, which is may be based on a 
functional behavior assessment of both the problem behavior and its functionally equivalent 
replacement.  It is facilitated by an individual specially trained in behavior analysis with an 
emphasis on positive behavior interventions. It shall become a part of the IEP, shall generate 
measurable goals and objectives and shall describe the frequency of consultation to be provided 
by an individual specially trained in behavior analysis with an emphasis on positive behavior 
interventions to staff members and parents who are responsible for implementing the plan. 
Behavior Intervention Plans are required when significant behavioral challenges have an adverse 
impact on the learning of self and/or others.  
Functional Behavior Assessment – When a special education student’s significant behavioral 
challenge(s) have an adverse impact on their learning and the learning of other pupils, or both, the 
students IEP team shall determine whether the instructional/behavioral approaches specified in the 
Student’s IEP and BIP, if appropriate, have proven ineffective, If the IEP team finds that these 
approaches have been ineffective, a functional behavior assessment may be conducted.  Before a 
functional behavior assessment begins, parents/guardians shall be notified and consent obtained.  
No such assessment shall preclude a parent/guardian from requesting a functional behavior 
assessment on the basis of language and speech disorders or specific learning disabilities.  The 
functional behavior assessment shall be conducted by  “trained and knowledgeable” personnel (EC 
5655(b))  
 
Severe Student Behaviors - Pervasive actions that consistently interfere with the implementation 
of the IEP and/or constitute a behavioral emergency. 
 
Behavior Emergency Incident Report - A formal report that is required any time physical 
restraint or emergency intervention is used in any form, as a response to significant behavior 
challenge.  This report must be submitted to the parent, district special education director/area 
director, school site administrator/county principal within one school day of the incident. 
 

Section C - Behavioral Emergency Procedures 
 

This section is intended to assist teachers and support staff in understanding and implementing 
their roles and responsibilities regarding ED 56521.1  regarding the use of Emergency 
Interventions. Special training and guidance is required to be provided for teachers and support 
staff to not only respond appropriately and effectively to serious behaviors, but to proactively 
incorporate positive behavioral programming planning for all students. The following pages 
contain the SELPA adopted policies that relate directly to classroom level implementation. 
Additional information and support can be obtained by contacting your special education 
administrator or the West End SELPA.  
  

D-5

322



Page 166 of 233 
 

 
The responsibility of the classroom teacher begins when a special education student demonstrates 
either, a) a pattern of serious behavior problems or, b) behaviors serious enough to warrant 
emergency interventions. 
 
What Constitutes a Significant Behavior Challenge? 
Serious behavioral problems can be defined by asking the following questions: 
1. Is the behavior a function of the student’s disability and does it interfere with the 

implementation of the IEP goals and objectives, and 
2. Is the behavior pervasive and maladaptive, , and 
3. Does the behavior require the systematic and frequent application of behavioral 

interventions? 
 
What Procedures Should the Teacher Follow When Significant Behavior Challenges Occur 
but Do Not Constitute an Emergency?   
1. A serious behavior, or pattern of behaviors, is identified. 
2. A request for assistance is made to the IEP team by the teacher. 
3. The IEP Team administrator/designee invites an individual specially trained in behavior 

analysis with an emphasis on positive behavior interventions to the meeting. 
4. The IEP assessment process is followed to conduct discusses and determines if a functional 

behavior assessment is required. 
5. If required, the functional behavior assessment is facilitated by an individual specially 

trained in behavior analysis with an emphasis on positive behavior interventions.: 
6. Analysis findings are used by the IEP team to develop a Behavior Intervention  Plan (BIP).   
7. A summary report of the analysis and the BIP is developed and is attached to the IEP.   
8. Assure there is at least one goal in the IEP that is driven by the data and recommendations of 

the BIP.  
 
What Constitutes a Behavioral Emergency? 
Behavior Emergency is the demonstration of a significant behavior challenge:   
1. Which has not previously been observed and for which a behavioral intervention plan has not 

been developed; or  
2. For which a previously designed behavior intervention plan is not effective.   
3. While it is appropriate to intervene in an emergency to prevent a pupil from imminent risk of 

serious physical self-harm or harm of others, restraint and seclusion are dangerous 
interventions, with certain known practices posing a great risk to child health and safety. EC 
49005 (a). 

 
The teacher can identify a behavioral emergency by asking the following questions: 
1. Is there a threat of serious physical harm to the student, to another student, or to a staff member? 
2. Is the possibility of serious physical harm imminent? 
3. Have less restrictive alternatives been exhausted? 
 
 
 
 
What Interventions may be used in a Behavioral Emergency? 
California Regulations define emergency intervention as the temporary application of a 
technique used to control a student’s unpredictable, spontaneous behavior.  Each SELPA is 
required to identify the approved emergency intervention techniques for that SELPA.  The West 

D-5

323



Page 167 of 233 
 

End SELPA’s approved emergency intervention techniques are those developed by Crisis 
Prevention Institute (CPI).  The West End SELPA provides certification in CPI, and all staff 
working with students displaying significant behavior challenges are to complete the prescribed 
training.  In the West End SELPA, initial certification is good for two years, after which staff are 
required to attend a refresher training or the full two-day training.  Is this a directive from the 
SELPA, or a rec? Change wording 
 
What Philosophical Guidelines Should be considered by Teachers/Aides in Responding to a 
Behavioral Emergency? 
The use of punishing contingencies, including the use of physical force or corporal punishment, is 
not an accepted practice.  It is neither utilized nor condoned.  At times, however, a student may 
engage in behavior that presents a potential danger to the physical safety of staff, other students, 
or to the student himself. 
 
In such crisis situations, teachers must be committed to utilizing the least restrictive method that 
will enable the student to regain self-control.  Care is taken to ensure that the safety and welfare 
of the individual are protected at all times. It is the responsibility of all educators to provide the 
best care and safety of students by accurately identifying and responding to the unique behavioral 
and emotional characteristics of any student in a crisis situation. 
 
In What Ways Can a Teacher/Aide Respond to a Behavioral Emergency? Same concern as 
above- is this required or recommended?  
To ensure that these responsibilities are carried out in a professional and consistent manner, all 
staff who work students displaying significant behavior challenges are required to become certified 
in the non-violent physical crisis interventions as instructed through the "Crisis Prevention 
Institute" (CPI) procedures.  This is a two-day training and can be scheduled through the 
WESELPA.  

 
 

Section D – Federal and State Regulations 
  
CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE 56520-56525 
Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students 
 
56520.  (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 
   (1) That the state has continually sought to provide an appropriate and meaningful educational 
program in a safe and healthy 
environment for all children regardless of possible physical, mental, or emotionally disabling 
conditions. 
   (2) That some school-age individuals with exceptional needs have significant behavioral 
challenges that have an adverse impact on 
their learning or the learning of other pupils, or both. 
   (3) That Section 1400(c)(5)(F) of Title 20 of the United States Code states that research and 
experience demonstrate that the 
education of children with disabilities can be made more effective by providing incentives for 
positive behavioral interventions and 
supports to address the learning and behavioral needs of those children. 

D-5

324



Page 168 of 233 
 

   (4) That procedures for the elimination of maladaptive behaviors shall not include those 
deemed unacceptable under Section 49001 or 
those that cause pain or trauma. 
It is the intent of the Legislature: 
   (1) That children exhibiting serious behavioral challenges receive timely and appropriate 
assessments and positive supports and 
interventions in accordance with the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 
U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.) and its 
implementing regulations. 
   (2) That assessments and positive behavioral interventions and supports be developed and 
implemented in a manner informed by 
guidance from the United States Department of Education and technical assistance centers 
sponsored by the Office of Special Education 
Programs of the United States Department of Education. 
   (3) That when behavioral interventions, supports, and other strategies are used, they be used in 
consideration of the pupil's 
physical freedom and social interaction, be administered in a manner that respects human dignity 
and personal privacy, and that ensure a 
pupil's right to placement in the least restrictive educational environment. 
   (4) That behavioral intervention plans be developed and used, to the extent possible, in a 
consistent manner when the pupil is also 
the responsibility of another agency for residential care or related services. 
   (5) That training programs be developed and implemented in institutions of higher education 
that train teachers and that 
in-service training programs be made available as necessary in school districts and county offices 
of education to ensure that adequately 
trained staff are available to work effectively with the behavioral intervention needs of 
individuals with exceptional needs. 
 
56521.  (a) This chapter applies to any individual with exceptional needs who is in a public 
school program, including a state school for 
the disabled pursuant to Part 32 (commencing with Section 59000), or who is placed in a 
nonpublic school program pursuant to Sections 
56365 to 56366.5, inclusive. 
   (b) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall monitor and supervise the implementation of 
this chapter. 
 
56521.1.  (a) Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous 
behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with 
exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less 
restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. 
   (b) Emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for the systematic behavioral 
intervention plan that is designed to change, replace, modify, or eliminate a targeted behavior. 
   (c) No emergency intervention shall be employed for longer than is necessary to contain the 
behavior. A situation that requires prolonged use of an emergency intervention shall require the 
staff to seek assistance of the school site administrator or law enforcement agency, as applicable 
to the situation. 

D-5

325



Page 169 of 233 
 

Emergency interventions shall not include: 
   (1) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to 
use a locked room. 
   (2) Employment of a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four 
extremities, except that techniques such as prone containment may be used as an emergency 
intervention by staff trained in those procedures. 
   (3) An amount of force that exceeds that which is reasonable and necessary under the 
circumstances. 
To prevent emergency interventions from being used in lieu of planned, systematic behavioral 
interventions, the parent, guardian, 
and residential care provider, if appropriate, shall be notified within one school day if an 
emergency intervention is used or serious 
property damage occurs. A behavioral emergency report shall immediately be completed and 
maintained in the file of the individual 
with exceptional needs. The behavioral emergency report shall include all of the following: 
   (1) The name and age of the individual with exceptional needs. 
   (2) The setting and location of the incident. 
   (3) The name of the staff or other persons involved. 
   (4) A description of the incident and the emergency intervention used, and whether the 
individual with exceptional needs is currently 
engaged in any systematic behavioral intervention plan. 
   (5) Details of any injuries sustained by the individual with exceptional needs, or others, 
including staff, as a result of the incident. 
   (f) All behavioral emergency reports shall immediately be forwarded to, and reviewed by, a 
designated responsible administrator. 
   (g) If a behavioral emergency report is written regarding an individual with exceptional needs 
who does not have a behavioral 
intervention plan, the designated responsible administrator shall, within two days, schedule an 
individualized education program (IEP) 
team meeting to review the emergency report, to determine the necessity for a functional 
behavioral assessment, and to determine 
the necessity for an interim plan. The IEP team shall document the reasons for not conducting 
the functional behavioral assessment, not 
developing an interim plan, or both. 
   (h) If a behavioral emergency report is written regarding an individual with exceptional needs 
who has a positive behavioral 
intervention plan, an incident involving a previously unseen serious behavior problem, or where 
a previously designed intervention is 
ineffective, shall be referred to the IEP team to review and determine if the incident constitutes a 
need to modify the positive 
behavioral intervention plan. 
 
56521.2.  (a) A local educational agency or nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency serving 
individuals with exceptional needs pursuant 
to Sections 56365 and 56366, shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following 
interventions, or any other interventions 
similar to or like the following: 

D-5

326



Page 170 of 233 
 

   (1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not 
limited to, electric shock. 
   (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, 
mists, or substances in proximity to 
the face of the individual. 
   (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, 
or access to bathroom facilities. 
   (4) An intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the 
individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or 
humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. 
   (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously 
immobilize all four extremities, 
including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar 
techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. 
   (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to 
use a locked room. 
   (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. 
   (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. 
   (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the 
individualized education program team 
shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to 
address that behavior, consistent 
with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated 
federal regulations. 
 
56523.  (a) The Superintendent shall repeal those regulations governing the use of behavioral 
interventions with individuals with 
exceptional needs receiving special education and related services that are no longer supported 
by statute, including Section 3052 and 
subdivisions (d), (e), (f), (g), and (ab) of Section 3001 of Title 5 of the California Code of 
Regulations, as those provisions existed on 
January 10, 2013. 
   (b) This chapter is necessary to implement the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.) and 
associated federal regulations. This chapter is intended to provide the clarity, definition, and 
specificity necessary for local 
educational agencies to comply with the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 
U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.) and shall be 
implemented by local educational agencies without the development by the Superintendent and 
adoption by the state board of any additional regulations. 
   (c) Pursuant to Section 1401(9) of Title 20 of the United States Code, special education and 
related services must meet the standards 
of the department. 
   (d) As a condition of receiving funding from the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et 
seq.), a local educational agency shall agree to adhere to this chapter and implementing federal 
regulations set forth in this 

D-5

327



Page 171 of 233 
 

chapter. 
   (e) The Superintendent may monitor local educational agency compliance with this chapter and 
may take appropriate action, 
including fiscal repercussions, if either of the following is found: 
   (1) The local educational agency failed to comply with this chapter and failed to comply 
substantially with corrective action 
orders issued by the department resulting from monitoring findings or complaint investigations. 
   (2) The local educational agency failed to implement the decision of a due process hearing 
officer based on noncompliance with this 
part, provisions of the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 
et seq.), or the federal 
implementing regulations, wherein noncompliance resulted in the denial of, or impeded the 
delivery of, a free appropriate public 
education for an individual with exceptional needs. 
   (f) Commencing with the 2010-11 fiscal year, if any activities authorized pursuant to this 
chapter and implementing regulations are 
found be a state reimbursable mandate pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California 
Constitution, state funding provided 
for purposes of special education pursuant to Item 6110-161-0001 of Section 2.00 of the annual 
Budget Act shall first be used to directly 
offset any mandated costs. 
   (g) The Legislature hereby requests the Department of Finance on or before December 31, 
2013, to exercise its authority pursuant to 
subdivision (d) of Section 17557 of the Government Code to file a request with the Commission 
on State Mandates for the purpose of 
amending the parameters and guidelines of CSM-4464 to delete any reimbursable activities that 
have been repealed by statute or 
executive order and to update offsetting revenues that apply to the mandated program. 
 
56524.  The superintendent shall explore with representatives of institutions of higher education 
and the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing, the current training requirements for teachers to ensure that sufficient training is 
available in appropriate 
behavioral interventions for people entering the field of education. 
 
56525.  (a) A person recognized by the national Behavior Analyst Certification Board as a 
Board-Certified Behavior Analyst may conduct 
behavior assessments and provide behavioral intervention services for individuals with 
exceptional needs. 
(b) This section does not require a district, special education local plan area, or county office to 
use a Board-Certified Behavior 
Analyst to conduct behavior assessments and provide behavioral intervention services for 
individuals with exceptional needs. 

 
 
NOTE:  Authority:  Section 56523(a), Education Code. Reference: Sections 56520 and 56523, 

Education Code. 

D-5

328



Page 172 of 233 
 

West End SELPA Procedural Advisory – Behavioral Emergencies 
This advisory is written to assist staff in appropriately responding to serious behavioral challenges, which 
may require the use of physical intervention.  The information is based on California’s AB 86, adopted 
7/1/2013.   
 
What is a behavioral emergency? 
(a) Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses 
clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and 
that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a 
technique used to contain the behavior. 
 
(b) Emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for the systematic behavioral intervention plan 
that is designed to change, replace, modify, or eliminate a targeted behavior. 
 
(c) No emergency intervention shall be employed for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior. A 
situation that requires prolonged use of an emergency intervention shall require the staff to seek 
assistance of the school site administrator or law enforcement agency, as applicable to the situation. 
 
An individual can identify a behavioral emergency by asking the following questions: 

1. Is there a threat of serious physical harm to the student, to another student, or to a staff member?  
2. Is the possibility of serious physical harm imminent? 
3. Are less restrictive alternatives unavailable? 

 
If the behavior can be contained by techniques such as: redirecting the student, removing the other 
students, removing a demand, providing the student with a break, allowing the student to vent, or 
maintaining a safe distance from the acting out person, then it is not a behavioral emergency and physical 
restraint may not be used.  For example, if a student is non-compliant, refusing to comply with a teacher 
directive, it is not permissible to physically force compliance, unless failure to follow the directive would 
cause imminent serious physical harm.   
 
Emergency Interventions 
Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior which poses a 
clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and 
which cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a 
technique used to contain the behavior.   
 
Due to the risk of injury to the students with exceptional needs and others involved, whenever a behavior 
emergency occurs, only approved behavioral emergency intervention techniques may be used.  The 
approved emergency intervention techniques for the West End SELPA are those developed by the Crisis 
Prevention Institute (CPI).  These techniques are: 

1. Holding in a seated position 
2. Holding in a standing position 
3. Team control position 
4. Children’s control position 

 
Only staff members who have received training in the above techniques, is current in the 
certification, and have demonstrated competence in their use are permitted to conduct an 
emergency intervention.   
 

D-5

329



Page 173 of 233 
 

Staff employing these techniques must be trained and certified in the approved non-violent crisis 
intervention -CPI.  This training is available through the West End SELPA.  The initial training 
is a two-day training.  Certification is valid for a two-year period; staff may renew their 
certification by completing a one-day refresher course within the two-year period, or by retaking 
the complete two day training.  The West End SELPA strongly encourages that all staff who 
work with potentially acting out students become certified in CPI.  Behavior Intervention Case 
Managers are required to be certified in CPI.    
 
Emergency interventions may not include:  

 
1. Locked seclusion unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to 

use a locked room. 
2.  Employment of a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four 

extremities, except that techniques such as prone containment may be used as an 
emergency intervention by staff trained in those procedures. 

3. An amount of force that exceeds that which is reasonable and necessary under the 
circumstances. 

4. An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. 
5. An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. 

 
Note: 
In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or that of others, the 
individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral 
interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with 
Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal 
regulations. 

 
Behavioral Emergency Reports 
To prevent emergency interventions from being used in lieu of planned, systematic behavioral 
interventions, the parent, guardian, and residential care provider, if appropriate, shall be notified 
within one school day if an emergency intervention is used or serious property damage occurs. A 
behavioral emergency report shall immediately be completed and maintained in the file of the 
individual with exceptional needs.   A copy of the Behavior Emergency Report must also be sent 
to: 

• Site Administrator/County Principal 
• District Director of Special Education/Area Director 

 
The designated responsible administrator must review the behavioral emergency report.   
 
If a behavioral emergency report is written regarding an individual with exceptional needs who does not 
have a behavioral intervention plan, the designated responsible administrator shall, within two days, 
schedule an individualized education program (IEP) team meeting to review the emergency report, to 
determine the necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine the necessity for an interim 
plan. The IEP team shall document the reasons for not conducting the functional behavioral assessment, 
not developing an interim plan, or both. 
 

D-5

330



Page 174 of 233 
 

If a behavioral emergency report is written regarding an individual with exceptional needs who has a 
positive behavioral intervention plan, an incident involving a previously unseen serious behavior problem, 
or where a previously designed intervention is ineffective, shall be referred to the IEP team to review and 
determine if the incident constitutes a need to modify the positive behavioral intervention plan. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  

D-5

331



Page 175 of 233 
 

 
West End SELPA 

Behavior Emergency Report 
 

Date of Incident: _________Time Incident Began: _____Time Incident Ended: ____________ 
Student: _______________________        Age: _____       School:________________________   
Setting/Location: _______________________ Staff Involved:__________________________ 
Positive Behavior Intervention Plan:  YES   NO 
Target behavior(s) on the behavior plan: ___________________________________________ 
 

Describe Student Behavior/Incident  
(observable behaviors) 

Staff Response 

          Anxiety:   
 
 
 
 
 
          Defensive: 
 

___ proximity 
___ counseling 
___ restructure routine/environment 
___ accommodate materials/expectations 
___ other:____________________________ 
 
 
 
___ redirect, restate direction 
___ set limits: _____________________________ 
___ separate student from group 
___ separate the group from student 
___ offer break 
___other:___________________________________ 
 

          Risk Behavior: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Disengagement Skills 
___ Strikes 
___ Wrist/Arm holds        __Low   __Medium   __High 
___ Neck hold                  __Low   __Medium   __High 
___ Clothing grab            __Low   __Medium   __High 
___ Hair pull                    __Low   __Medium   __High 
___ Body hug                   __Low   __Medium   __High 
___ Bite                           __Low   __Medium/High 
 
Emergency intervention/Holding skills:     Duration of restraint: ____ 
___ Holding in a seated position  __Low   __Medium   __High 
___Holding in a standing position   __Low   __Medium   __High 
___ Team control position    
___ Children’s control position    

          Tension Reduction: 
 
 
           
 
 

___ review events 
___ review schedule 
___ make plan: _____________________________ 
       _______________________________________ 
       _______________________________________ 
       _______________________________________ 
       _______________________________________ 

Injury/Medical Follow up 
Student: 
 
 
 
___ sent to nurse ___ first aid ___ 911 Paramedics ___ CPR 

Injury/Medical Follow up 
Staff: 
 
 
 
___ sent to nurse ___ first aid ___ 911 Paramedics ___ CPR 
 

 
 
 
 

Es
ca

la
tio

n 
St

ag
es

 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n  
D

eb
ri

ef
in

g 

D-5

332



Page 176 of 233 
 

West End SELPA 
Behavior Emergency Report 

 
Other pertinent information: 
Were there any precipitating factors?  If so, please list. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 
 
What was the trigger/antecedent of the behavior? 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 
 
Is the target behavior an isolated event or is there a history/pattern of behavior? How many times has 
occurred in the last month? 3 months?  
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 
 
How was the staff or students in eminent danger when staff employed physical emergency intervention? 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 
 
Check one: 
� If a behavioral emergency report is written regarding an individual with exceptional needs who does not have a 

behavioral intervention plan, the designated responsible administrator shall, within two days, schedule an 
individualized education program (IEP) team meeting to review the emergency report, to determine the necessity 
for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine the necessity for an interim plan. The IEP team shall 
document the reasons for not conducting the functional behavioral assessment, not developing an interim plan, or 
both. 
 

� If a behavioral emergency report is written regarding an individual with exceptional needs who has a positive 
behavioral intervention plan, an incident involving a previously unseen serious behavior problem, or where a 
previously designed intervention is ineffective, shall be referred to the IEP team to review and determine if the 
incident constitutes a need to modify the positive behavioral intervention plan. 
 

COPIES OF BEHAVIORAL EMERGENCY REPORTS WERE SENT TO: 
 

Distribution Name Date 
Parent or Care Provider   
Site Administrator/County Principal   
Special Education Director   
SBCSS Area Director   
Student File   

 
Note:  Behavior Emergency Reports are to be sent within 24 hours of the incident 

D-5

333



Page 177 of 233 
 

 
Signature of Person Completing the Report: _______________________________________________ 
 
Signature of Administrator Reviewing the Report: ___________________________________________ 
Instructions for Completing the West End SELPA Behavioral Emergency Report 

All Sections of the Behavioral Emergency Report must be completed. The form is two pages in 
length.  Once completed, the report is distributed as indicated on the second page and a copy is placed 
in the student file.   
 
Target behavior(s) on the behavior plan:  
If the student has a current behavior intervention plan, using clear and concise language, list the target 
behaviors addressed in the plan. 
Describe Student Behavior/Incident: 
The description of the incident follows the stages of escalation in the CPI model.  Using clear, concise 
language identify the observable behavior the student demonstrated at each stage.  This will assist the 
IEP team in analyzing the event.   
 
Examples of Observable Behavior: 
 

Anxiety Pacing, finger drumming, wringing hands, rocking, 
humming, increased rate of breathing, failure to 
maintain eye contact 

Defensive Questioning, yelling, loud noises, refusals, name 
calling, verbal threats, swearing, moves toward 
staff, drops to ground, arms crossed, hands over 
ears, pushes materials, throws things 

Risk Behavior Hit, kick, strike, choke, breaks property, tears 
clothing, running in dangerous  area, self injury 

Tension Reduction Breathing calmed, follows simple directions, sits 
down, goes to relaxation area 

  
Staff Response: 
Check the responses the staff made to attempt to de-escalate the student.  Indicate all that apply, if 
other, provide a written description. 
 
Injury/Medical Follow up: 
Identify any injuries to the student and/or staff and intervention used to address the injury.  Complete 
any additional reports per district requirements.  
 
Other pertinent information: 
Indicate anything that will assist the IEP team in analyzing the behavioral incident.  List any 
precipitating factors that may have contributed to the behavior emergency episode.  Indicate the 
trigger/antecedent of the behavior.  Indicate the number of times that the behavior has occurred in the 
last month and three months.  Indicate how the staff or student(s) were in imminent danger, resulting 
in the staff requiring to use behavior emergency intervention. 
 
Procedural Follow up: 
Check the appropriate procedures to be followed based on whether the student has a current behavior 
intervention plan.   
 
Required Notifications: 
Indicate the names of the individuals notified and the date that they were notified. 

D-5

334



Page 178 of 233 
 

 
Follow-up Procedure: 
The Behavior Emergency IEP Follow-Up Form  needs to be completed at the follow-up IEP meeting 
to discuss the behavior emergency incident report.  Once completed, the form needs to be attached to 
the IEP.  The form need to be distributed to the IEP team members. 

West End SELPA 
Behavior Emergency IEP Follow-Up Form 

 
 

IEP Date: _________    Date of Incident: ______________ Student: _______________________ School: _______________   
 
IEP Team Members: 

Title Name 
Parent   
  
  
  
  
  

 
1. Does the current behavior intervention plan address the behavior that resulted in the use of behavior 

emergency intervention? 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 

 
2. Were the positive behavior supports indicated in the behavior plan employed during the incident? 

Were they effective? 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 

 
3. What additional positive behavior support strategies are now in place to prevent future incidents and 

allow this student to be successful?  
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 
 
4. Does a functional behavior assessment need to be conducted in order to collect additional data before 
developing a behavior intervention plan? 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________ 
 
5. What supports or training does the staff need to more effectively implement positive behavior supports 
to increase student success? 
 

D-5

335



Page 179 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION 
PROCEDURES 
 
SECTION A DISCIPLINARY REMOVALS AND CHANGE OF 

PLACEMENT 
 

SECTION B MANIFESTATION DETERMINATION  

SECTION C INTERIM ALTERNATIVE EDUCATIONAL SETTINGS  

SECTION D PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS  

APPENDIX A SPECIAL EDUCATION DISCIPLINE CHART  

 
 
 

 

 
D-5

336



Page 180 of 233 
 

Introduction 
Students with special needs may be suspended for the same violations as students in general 
education; however, they have additional due process protections under IDEA.  It is important to 
understand when a disciplinary removal from school is considered a change of placement, when a 
manifestation determination needs to be conducted, and even when a district is considered to have 
knowledge that a student is a student with special needs.  
 

Section A –Disciplinary Removals and Change of 
Placement 
 
A student with disabilities may be removed to another setting or suspended for ten days the same 
as any other student.   Suspensions for longer than ten days may constitute a change in placement, 
and specific procedures must be followed.  A series of short term removals totaling more than ten 
days, that do not constitute a pattern of removal, is not considered to be a change of placement.  In 
this case, the student must be provided educational services which would allow him to participate 
in the general education curriculum and make progress toward his IEP goals.  The educational 
services may be provided in another setting, and are determined by school personnel in 
consultation with at least one of the student’s teachers.   

 
A series of short term removals, totaling more than ten days, that do constitute a pattern of removal, 
is considered a change of placement.  To determine if the removals constitute a pattern, the district 
must consider if the behavior that resulted in the removals is substantially similar, the length of 
time of each removal, the total amount of time the student was removed and the proximity of the 
removals to one another. It is recommended that the district assign one individual, such as the site 
principal, to make the decision whether the series of removals constitutes and pattern and the 
reason for that decision.  Careful documentation of the reason for each disciplinary removal will 
aid in this decision making.   In addition, any removal for more than ten consecutive days is 
considered a change of placement.    
 
On the eleventh day of removal, the student must be provided with educational services which 
would allow him to participate in the general education curriculum and make progress toward 
his/her IEP goals. In addition, the student must be provided with a functional behavior assessment 
and behavior intervention services designed to prevent the behavior from occurring again 
assuming the behavior resulting in the removal was a manifest of the student’s disability and/or 
the district properly implemented the IEP (refer to Section B).   The educational services may be 
provided in another setting, and in cases where the removal is a change of placement are 
determined by the IEP team.   
 
When the disciplinary removal of student with a disability constitutes a change of placement, the 
district must hold a manifestation determination meeting.  The manifestation determination 
meeting must be held within ten days of the date that the decision to make a change of placement 
was made.  On the date the decision is made to make the change of placement, the district must 
also provide the parent with prior written notice regarding the change of placement.    

D-5

337



Page 181 of 233 
 

Section B- Manifestation Determination 
A manifestation determination review meeting is conducted by the district, the parent, and relevant 
members of the IEP team.  While a full IEP team is not required for the manifestation determination 
review, the district may want to have a full IEP team at the meeting in case other issues requiring 
an IEP team come up during the meeting.  The purpose of the manifestation determination meeting 
is not to determine whether the student engaged in the behavior, but to determine if the behavior 
was a manifestation of the student’s disability.  At the manifestation determination review meeting, 
the team must consider all relevant information in the student’s file, the student’s IEP and 
placement, any teacher observations, and any information provided by the parent.   
Under IDEA 2004 the manifestation determination process was substantially changed.  In 
determining if the student’s behavior is a manifestation of their disability only two questions must 
be addressed:   

1. Was the conduct in question caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to the 
student’s disability? 

2. Was the conduct in question the direct result of the district’s failure to implement the IEP?  
 

If the answer to both of the questions above is no, then the student is subject to the same 
disciplinary rules as non-disabled students, although educational services as described in Section 
A must continue to be provided.  Under IDEA 2004 the requirement for a functional behavior 
assessment and behavior intervention plan was removed when the behavior is not a manifestation 
of the student’s disability.  However, districts should carefully review the need for positive 
behavior interventions as required elsewhere in IDEA when behavior is interfering with a student’s 
learning or the learning of others.   
If the answer to one or both of the questions above is yes, then the behavior is considered to be a 
manifestation of the student’s disability.  When the behavior is a manifestation of the student’s 
disability, the IEP team must conduct a functional behavioral assessment of the behavior that 
resulted in the disciplinary removal, unless it had already done so, and implement a behavior 
intervention plan.  If a behavior implementation plan was already in place, the plan must be 
reviewed and modified as needed to address the behavior.  In addition, the student is returned to 
his previous placement, unless the IEP team agrees to a change of placement as part of a 
modification of the behavior intervention plan.  If the behavior was a result of the IEP not being 
implemented, immediate steps must be taken to rectify this. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

338



Page 182 of 233 
 

Section C– Interim Alternative Educational 
Settings 
 
School personnel may remove a student to an interim alternative educational setting for up to 45 
school days without regard to whether the student’s behavior is a manifestation of his disability 
under any of the following circumstances: 

• When the student possesses a weapon at school, on school premises, or at a school function  
• Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled 

substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function 
•  Has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school 

premises, or at a school function 
 
In addition, a school district may request an expedited hearing from the Office of Administrative 
Hearings to have a student placed in an interim alternative educational setting for up to 45 school 
days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the student in the current placement would 
result in the substantial likelihood of injury to the student or others.   
 
A district may also consider a Honig Injunction as a means of temporarily removing a dangerous 
student from his current placement.  In this case the district would apply to the court for a 
temporary restraining order.   
 

Section D – Procedural Safeguards 
 
A parent who disagrees with the manifestation determination or a disciplinary placement may file 
for an expedited due process hearing.  The expedited due process hearing must occur within twenty 
school days of the date of the request.  The notice of insufficiency process does not apply to an 
expedited due process hearing.  The resolution session must occur within seven days, unless 
waived by the parties.  When the parent or a district requests an expedited due process hearing the 
student must remain in the disciplinary setting until the hearing decision is issued.   
 
A parent of a student not previously identified as a student with special needs may assert protection 
under IDEA when the district is deemed to have had knowledge that the student was a student with 
special needs.  A district is deemed to have knowledge that a student is a student with special needs 
if prior to the incident, the parent has expressed in writing to a district administrator or one of the 
student’s teachers that the student is in need of special education services, or if the parent had 
requested an evaluation of the student.  The district would also be deemed as having knowledge if 
a student’s teacher or other district staff member has expressed specific concerns about a pattern 
of behavior demonstrated by the student to the director of special education or other supervisory 
personnel.  If the parent has not allowed an evaluation, refused special education services, or the 
student has been evaluated and found not to be eligible for special education, the parent may not 
assert protection under IDEA.  
 

 
 

D-5

339



Page 183 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A – SPECIAL EDUCATON 
DISCIPLINE CHART 

No Change of Placement                            Change of Placement 
Case by case determination 34 CFR§ 300.530(a) 

Type 1 Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 
Ten (10) or fewer 
cumulative days of 
suspension 
 
 
 
34 CFR § 300.530 

Eleven (11) or more cum-
lative days of suspension 
 
 
 
34 CFR § 300.530(b)(l) 

Ellen (11) or more cumulative days 
of suspension=pattern based on 
substantial similarity of behavior, 
length of each removal, total amount 
of time removed, proximity of 
removals 
34 CFR § 300.536 

More than ten (10) consecutive 
days of suspension/expellable 
offense 
 
 
 
34 CFR § 300.530© 

 
No Manifestation Determination 
 
 
 
 

 
Manifestation Determination within 10 school days of decision to change 
placement by a team including LEA, parent & relevant members of IEP 
team 
1) Was the conduct caused by, or did it have a direct and substantial 
relationship   
    to, the disability. 
2) Was the conduct a direct result of LEA’s failure to implement IEP?  If 
yes, the  
    LEA must take steps to remedy deficiency. 
34 CFR § 300.530(e)(3) 

  Manifestation 
1) Conduct a FBA and develop  
    BIP/BSP~OR~ 
2) Review and modify as necessary,  
     preexisting BIP/BSP 
34CFR § 300.530(j) 

Not a Manifestation 
Apply same discipline as to 
students without disabilities, 
except for educational services 
below. 
34CFR § 300.530(c) 

  Placement 
a. Prior placement unless parent/LEA  
    agree to modify placement as part 
of BIP/BSP 
b. 45 Day IAES 
    Special Circumstances 
-   Weapons 
-   Drugs 
-  Serious Bodily Injury 
    Hearing Officer 
-  Substantial likelihood of injury to       
    student or others 
c Honig Injunction 
    Available in court based on     
    dangerousness 
34CFR § 300.530(f)(2)+(g), 
300.532(a)+(b) 

Placement 
Expulsion 

Educational Services 
No services unless 
general education 
students receive services. 
34 CFR § 300.530(d)(3) 
 
 

Educational Services 
1)  Enable student to 
continue to participate in 
the general curriculum. 
2) Enable student to 
progress towards meeting 
IEP goals. 

Educational Services 
1) Enable student to continue to   
    participate in the general 
curriculum. 
2) Enable student to progress 
towards  
    meeting IEP goals. 

Educational Services 
1) Enable student to continue to 
par-      
     ticipate in the general 
curriculum. 
2) Enable student to progress 
towards  

D-5

340



Page 184 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Where-May be in an IAES 
Decided by-school 
personnel in consultation 
with at least one of child’s 
teachers. 
34 CFR § 300.530(d)(4) 

3) FBA & BIP as appropriate 
designed to address behavior so it 
does not recur. 
 
Where- May be in an IAES 
Decided by- IEP team. 
 
34 CFR § 300.530(d)(1)+(5) 

    meeting IEP goals. 
3) FBA & BIP as appropriate 
designed   
    to address behavior so it does 
not    
     recur. 
 
Where- May be provided in an 
IAES 
Decided by- IEP team. 
34 CFR § 300.530(d)(1)+(5) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

D-5

341



Page 185 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 

 
LOW INCIDENCE FUNDING 
 
SECTION A LEGAL REQUIREMENTS  

SECTION B ACCESSING FUNDING  

SECTION C FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D-5

342



Page 186 of 233 
 

Introduction 
This information reviews the procedures related to the funds provided to SELPA and distributed 
to the local school districts to support their students with low incidence disabilities. Due to the 
nature and/or severity of low incidence disabilities, this additional money is afforded to districts 
to provide specialized materials and services that are necessary for these students to benefit from 
their education as outlined by their Individualized Education Program (IEP) or Individual Family 
Service Plan (IFSP). 
  

Section A – Legal Requirements 
EC 56836.22 (a) Commencing with the 1985-86 fiscal year, and for each fiscal year thereafter, funds to 
support special education and related services as required under the individualized education program for 
each pupil with low-incidence disabilities, as defined in Section 56026.5 , shall be determined by dividing 
the total number of pupils with low-incidence disabilities in the state, as reported on December 1 of the 
prior fiscal year, into the annual appropriation provided for this purpose in the Budget Act. 
(b) The per-pupil entitlement determined pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be multiplied by the number of 
pupils with low-incidence disabilities in each special education local plan area to determine the total funds 
available for each local plan. 
(c) The Superintendent shall apportion the amount determined pursuant to subdivision (b) to the special 
education local plan area for purposes of providing special education and related services as required under 
the individualized education program for each pupil with low-incidence disabilities. 
  
  
The low incidence money is distributed in accordance with the regulations set out in Education Code 
56836.22. All local education agencies that have one or more students with a low incidence disability are 
eligible to access additional funds, monitored through the West End SELPA, for the purpose of purchasing 
and coordinating the use of specialized books, materials, and services to be used specifically by these 
identified individuals. 
  
Low incidence funds are used to “supplement”, not to “supplant”, other funding sources (i.e. general 
education funding, other special education funding, or funding by other agencies). 
  
Low incidence funding may not be used for the following: 

• non-specialized instructional service 
• medical equipment or storage units 
• general classroom supplies 
• diagnostic assessments 
• consultation or in-service to staff 
• materials used primarily by teachers instead of students 
• non-specialized computer systems or software 
  

EC 56026.5 “Low incidence disability” means a severe disabling condition with an expected incidence rate 
of less than one percent of the total statewide enrollment in kindergarten through grade 12. For purpose of 
this definition, severe disabling conditions are hearing impairments, vision impairments, and severe 
orthopedic impairments, or any combination thereof. For purposes of this definition, vision impairments do 
not include disabilities within the function of vision specified in Section 56338. 
  
  
 

D-5

343

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000205&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=I60556b40134611e9af56bc583e73587f&cite=CAEDS56026.5


Page 187 of 233 
 

Low Incidence Funding 
  
Students with the following primary or secondary disabilities are eligible for low incidence funding: 

• Hard of Hearing (HH): Hard of Hearing means hearing, impairment, whether permanent or 
fluctuating, that adversely affects a child's educational performance, but that is not included under 
the definition of "deaf in this section. 
• Deafness (DEAF): Deafness means a hearing impairment that is so severe that the child is 
impaired in processing linguistic information through learning, with or without amplification, 
which adversely affects educational performance. (34 CFR § 300.7(c)(3)) Hearing Impairment 
(HI): Hearing Impairment is a federal category of disability, which includes both hard of hearing 
and deaf individuals as defined above. 
• Visual Impairment (VI): Visually Impaired, including blindness means impairment in vision 
that, even with correction, adversely affects a child's educational performance. The term includes 
both partially seeing and blind children. (34 CFR § 300.7(c)(13)). 
• Orthopedic Impairment (OI): Orthopedic Impairment means a severe orthopedic impairment 
that adversely affects a child's educational performance. The term includes impairments caused by 
congenital anomaly (e.g., clubfoot, absence of some member, etc.), impairments caused by disease 
(e.g., poliomyelitis, bone tuberculosis, etc.), and impairments from other causes (e.g., cerebral 
palsy, amputations, and fractures or burns which cause contractures). (34 CFR §. 300.7(b) and 
300.7(c)(8)) 
• Deaf-Blindness (DB): Deaf-Blindness means concomitant hearing and visual impairments, the 
combination of which causes such severe communication and other developmental and educational 
needs that they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for children with 
deafness or children with blindness. (34 CFR §. 300.7(c)(2)). 
  

Determine whether or not the disability is primary or secondary by reflecting on whether the disability 
inhibits the educational process. If the disability does pose a barrier to learning, then it may be listed as a 
primary disability. If it does not negatively affect learning, it must be listed as a secondary disability to 
allow purchases to be made using low incidence funds. 
The school district may access low incidence funds when the specialist completes a written report that 
documents the need for specialized services, materials, and/or equipment to support the educational needs 
of the student brought about by the low incidence disability. At the student’s IEP/IFSP meeting, the team 
must agree that such services, materials, and/or equipment will be necessary in order to support the student 
in their individualized education program. It is the responsibility of the district to locate funds to purchase 
the items documented in the IEP or IFSP. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

344



Page 188 of 233 
 

Section B – Accessing Funding 
The IEP/IFSP team shall state the need for and the type of specialized materials, equipment, and/or services 
needed for the student to benefit from their educational program. 
  
The IEP must include the following: 
 

• Documentation of the low incidence disability 
• An assessment demonstrating the need for specialized services, materials, and/or equipment 
which has been completed and reviewed by personnel knowledgeable of the suspected low 
incidence disability 
• A goal/objective which directly relates to the use of the specialized books, materials, or equipment 
being requested 
A low incidence packet should include the following documentation: 
• Two copies of the completed “Notice of Intent to Purchase Utilizing Low Incidence Funds” which 
have been signed by the person authorized by the district to approve the request 
• A copy of the student’s signed IEP 
• A copy of an assessment completed by personnel knowledgeable of the suspected low incidence 
disability 
• A recommendation for specialized services, materials, and/or equipment that will meet the needs 
described in the IEP 
• Catalogue or web-based pictures of the specialized materials, and/or equipment the IEP team has 
requested to have funded through low incidence 
  

The district will log and submit the low incidence packet for review to the West End SELPA. Upon approval 
from the West End SELPA, the district is responsible for procuring the specialized services, materials, 
and/or equipment. Please see Appendix A 
  

Section C – Frequently Asked Questions 
1. May Low Incidence funding be spent in only one of the eligible low incidence disability areas even though 
all Low Incidence disability students generate income? 
  

Yes. Although the allocation is generated on a per student basis and must be expended on only students 
who have a Low Incidence disability, there is no requirement that the funds be spent proportionally on each 
of the various disability groups consistent with the funds generated. 
  
2. Is a SELPA or LEA required to use Low Incidence Funding to purchase prescription devices? 
  
The California State Board of Education has adopted CCR, Title 5, § 3051.12(b)(3)(c), which states in part 
that "the school district shall not be required to purchase medical equipment for an individual student.” 
Based on this regulation, the CDE has a long-standing practice to encourage the purchase of prescription 
devices and medical equipment through other funding sources such as private medical insurance or Medi-
Cal. 
  
  
3. If a student with a low incidence disability within our SELPA for whom we purchased books, materials 
and equipment with our low incidence funds moves to a different SELPA, are we required to send the books 
materials and equipment with the student to the new SELPA? 
  

D-5

345



Page 189 of 233 
 

No. EC § 56836.22 (e) states in part that “it is the intent of the legislature that SELPAs share unused 
equipment, books and materials with neighboring SELPAs….” However, if the books, materials and 
equipment are still needed by other students with low incidence disabilities in your SELPA, there is no 
requirement to send it with the student who moved away. Providing these resources is the responsibility of 
the SELPA where the student now resides. If, however, books, materials and equipment purchased with 
low incidence funds are unused, SELPAs are encouraged to make arrangements with other SELPAs to 
share the unused equipment, books and materials. The CDE may be contacted for assistance in locating 
another SELPA that has need of the unused equipment, books or materials. 
  
4. Our SELPA has obsolete, unusable materials and equipment purchased by low incidence funds. How do 
we dispose of these things? 
  
When the low incidence materials or equipment are no longer usable, it must be handled in the same manner 
that materials and equipment purchased by state funds other than low incidence is managed. 
  
5. May we give one of our graduating high school students who has a low incidence disability the 
specialized equipment purchased for him by our SELPA through low incidence funds so he can use it in 
college? 
  
No because a SELPA has a responsibility to use the equipment with other students in the SELPA. If there 
are no other students in the SELPA that need the piece of equipment, it is to be shared with other SELPAs 
as needed. Since the student has graduated from high school, he is no longer eligible to receive special 
education services from a SELPA. If a SELPA no longer has use for the equipment or materials, the CDE 
should be notified so that we can find another SELPA that has need of these resources. If the student needs 
similar equipment in college, he should contact the Department of Rehabilitation who has the legal 
responsibility to assist in training adults with disabilities. 
  
6. The parents of one of our graduating high school students with a low incidence disability wish to 
purchase the specialized equipment from our SELPA that we provided for her use while in our special 
education program. May we sell it to them? 
  
No because the equipment should be reassigned to another student in your SELPA, a neighboring SELPA 
or the CDE should be notified to identify a SELPA that can use the equipment. Even if the equipment is so 
personalized that it cannot be used by another student, the procedures for disposal of obsolete or unusable 
property must still be followed, but the parent could attempt to purchase the equipment at the public auction 
held by the school. 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

346



Page 190 of 233 
 

 
 
 
  

 

 
STATE SPECIAL SCHOOLS AND 
SERVICES 
 
SECTION A STATE SPECIAL SCHOOLS  

SECTION B DIAGNOSTIC CENTERS   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
D-5

347



Page 191 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
California School for the Blind (Fremont) and the California Schools for the Deaf (Riverside and 
Fremont) were established to provide a comprehensive educational program for students who are 
in need of extensive specialized services due to impairments in vision and/or hearing.  Placement 
in state special schools pursuant to Education Code Sections 59020 and 59120 is made as a result 
of recommendations from the student’s IEP team, and/or upon a finding that no appropriate 
placement is available within the local plan area. 
According to California Education Code 56326, a student can be referred for further assessment 
by the California School for the Deaf or Blind.  This assessment, however, does not constitute 
placement in the state special schools.  This information, along with other relevant factors, would 
assist the IEP team in their decision-making process regarding the most appropriate placement for 
the student. 
The Diagnostic Centers (Southern, Central and Northern) are also in the State Special Schools and 
Services Division, California Department of Education.  Under Education Code 56326, the 
Diagnostic Centers provide assessments and trainings to the school districts in California. 
 

Section A – State Special Schools 
 
CALIFORNIA SCHOOLS FOR THE DEAF 
 
EC 59001 The California School for the Deaf is part of the public school system of the state except 
that it derives no revenue from the State School Fund, and has for its object the education of the 
deaf who, because of their severe hearing loss and educational needs, cannot be provided an 
appropriate educational program and related services in the regular public schools. 
 
CALIFORNIA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF – RIVERSIDE (CSDR) http://www.csdr-
cde.ca.gov/ 
 
California School for the Deaf, Riverside (CSDR) is a State Special School that serves hearing-
impaired students who live in Southern California and are between the ages of three and twenty-
one.  Both residential and day programs are available for students.  CSDR staff members work 
closely with local school districts to collaborate and provide students who are hard of hearing or 
deaf with the state adopted curriculum, standards, and pupil performance outcomes. 
 
CALIFORNIA SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND http://www.csb-cde.ca.gov/ 
 
EC 59101 The California School for the Blind is a part of the public school system of the state 
except that it derives no revenue from the State School Fund, and has for its object the education 
of visually impaired, blind, and deaf-blind pupils who, because of their severe sensory loss and 
educational needs, cannot be provided an appropriate educational needs, cannot be provided an 
appropriate educational program and related services in the regular public schools. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

348

http://www.csdr-cde.ca.gov/
http://www.csdr-cde.ca.gov/
http://www.csb-cde.ca.gov/


Page 192 of 233 
 

REFERRAL TO A STATE SPECIAL SCHOOL 
Rationale for State School Referral 
 

• Documentation must exist that no district or county program exists where the student’s 
needs can be met appropriately, even with modifications or,  

• Documentation must indicate that district or county staff cannot adequately assess the 
student’s ability, functional levels, and learning potential. 

 

Prerequisites to State School Referral 
All local public resources must be investigated and proven inappropriate. IEPs must be 
implemented and documented.  This documentation should include all modifications that have 
been made in order to help the student be successful in the least restrictive environment. 
Referral Process 
The following stages represent the process that follows a referral to a state school: 
 

• If all resources and options have been exhausted, the case must be scheduled for a 
SELPA Level meeting to include the Program Manager or Designee. 

• The Program Manager or Designee reviews the file and confers with the referring staff 
as needed. 

• The Program Manager or Designee confers with the state school staff to determine 
placement openings, admission procedures for the school, and availability of the school 
staff to attend the SELPA Level meeting. 

•  
SELPA Level IEP Meetings for Possible State School Placement 
The IEP team members review all available data relative to assessment, modification to current 
program, program needs, local program options, and state school programs. 
 
Based on the information presented, the IEP team may recommend any of the following: 
 

• Additional assessment, 
• A district or county operated program within the West End SELPA, 
• A public program outside the West End SELPA, or 
• A state school: 

a) California School for the Deaf, Riverside, or 
b) California School for the Blind, Fremont. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

349



Page 193 of 233 
 

Section B – Diagnostic Centers 
 
EC 59201 The diagnostic centers are part of the public school system of the state, except that they 
derive no funding from the State School Fund. The diagnostic centers provide services, including 
pupil assessment, consultation, technical assistance, and training, to school districts, country 
offices of education, and special education local plan areas. 
The Diagnostic Centers, which were established nearly 50 years ago, are the California Department 
of Education’s foremost providers of specialized services and assistance to students with special 
needs, their families, and local educational agencies.  The Diagnostic Centers provide high quality 
assessments to hundreds of students each year and conduct valued training programs for thousands 
of educators and families across the State of California.  The services offered include assessment, 
technical assistance, transition services, and staff development training. 
 
DIAGNOSTIC CENTER, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
The West End SELPA is served by the Diagnostic Center, Southern California, 4339 State 
University Dr. 
Los Angeles, CA 90032   Tel: (323) 222-8090 Fax: (323) 222-3018 Website:   http://www.dcs-
cde.ca.gov 
Diagnostic Center Service Description 
A description of the Diagnostic Center services follows: 
 
1. Assessment services and technical assistance are dynamic, transdisciplinary processes.  The 

Diagnostic Centers utilize expert teams of assessment specialists.  A team may include an 
educational specialist, a language speech and hearing pathologist, a school psychologist, a 
clinical psychologist, a transition specialist, a pediatrician, or a motor specialist.  Assessments 
are carefully planned and include a dynamic individualized process with educationally relevant 
diagnostic questions.  The outcome is a student profile with a specialized intervention plan that 
includes strategies and programming options.  
 
• Assessments and locations vary. A student may have an individual field-based assessment 

at the local school.  The assessment may be given at the Diagnostic Center, or, the student 
may be assessed at both environments.  A group assessment could be a part of a field-based 
model, which would include issues of service delivery, intervention design, behavior, and 
curriculum as applicable to the group with which the student interacts. 

 
• Parent collaboration is valued and becomes an integral part of the assessment process.  

Parents assume an active role in the team process through input during the referral, through 
extensive interviews with the Diagnostic Center’s assessment staff, and actually participate 
during portions of the assessment. 

 
• At the completion of the individual assessment Diagnostic Center staff meets with parents 

and LEA staffs to provide findings, provide practical teaching strategies, and plan 
interventions.  This review is accompanied by a comprehensive written report. 

 

D-5

350



Page 194 of 233 
 

• Implementation of the assessment findings occurs as the Diagnostic Center staff provides 
technical assistance to the IEP team.  Direct support may be provided to the classroom 
teacher and other support specialists.  If requested, staff demonstrates recommended 
strategies, interventions, or methodologies, as well as assists with development of behavior 
intervention systems.  Additionally, a large selection of resource materials and handouts 
may be of assistance to the LEA and/or parents for implementation of the ideas and 
strategies outlined in the report. 

 
2. Transition services and resources for students ages 14-22 with disabilities, their families, and 

service or care providers.  These services facilitate an outcome-driven transition process for 
the student.  Services promote a student focused process based upon student empowerment 
and informed decisions.  Student decisions and family plans lead to meaningful employment 
and/or adult living that are commensurate with the student’s interests, abilities and aptitudes. 

 

• Transition services include: assessment, consultation, training and technical assistance 
on specific transition issues for school districts, WorkAbility I project, Juvenile Court, 
Community School programs, and Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA).  Formal staff 
development on various topics related to transition services for special education 
students is available for LEAs, families, and other service providers. 

 

• Technical assistance relates assessment to classroom and community instruction.  
Linkages with other agencies results from development of a plan for coordinated 
services.  Student and parent involvement is promoted during the planning and 
implementation of the transition process.  

 
3. Staff development is provided through an extensive array of topics.  Diagnostic School 

specialists provide half and full day workshops throughout the state.  Many of the presentations 
are provided through the 12 Regional Coordinating Councils and are scheduled as a part of the 
council’s training plan.  Additional times are available for individual SELPAs or districts upon 
request. Training topics include: behavior, reading, transition, early education, autism, 
classroom instruction, and other timely and current topics.  The Diagnostic Center continues 
to provide up-to-date information on topics that are current and represent areas of need within 
the state.  

  

D-5

351



Page 195 of 233 
 

The Referral Process 
The decision to refer a student often originates from the student's IEP Team. However, a formal 
application for admission must be made by the local educational agency and signed by the Director 
of Special Education. Referrals sent in by parents are not accepted and will be returned.  

The application packet takes some time to complete. The local educational agency is responsible 
for: filling out a detailed form, securing written parental releases for information, submitting all 
educationally-relevant reports and testing results, and compiling critical student information. The 
parents must also complete an information packet as part of the application process. Incomplete 
referrals will be returned.  

Once the completed application is received, the Diagnostic Center's Admission and Review 
Committee will do a comprehensive case review of the referral. This will include telephone 
consultation with the referring administrator, or district contact person. Following case review, the 
decision to accept or reject the referral will be made.  

If the student is not accepted for assessment, the file will be returned with a letter explaining why 
the case was rejected, and in many cases, suggestions for other agencies or resources which may 
be better suited to assist the student.  

If accepted for either a field-based or center-based assessment, both the district and the 
parent/guardian will receive written notification. Students are placed on a waiting list in the order 
in which received. When an appropriate assessment team becomes available, the student will be 
scheduled. The waiting list varies, depending on the time of the year and other factors, but it is not 
uncommon for students to wait 3-6 months for a center assessment.  

Application packets are not available online. Local educational agency personnel may obtain a 
packet by calling the Center at (323) 222-8090. We welcome the opportunity to discuss any referral 
or to clarify any part of the referral process. 

Contact Information – State Special Schools and Southern California Diagnostic Center 
Further information regarding State Special Schools and the Diagnostic Centers can be obtained 
from: 
 
Diagnostic Center, Southern California 
4339 State University Drive 
Los Angeles, CA  90032 
(213) 222-8090 
 
Southern California Assessment Center for the Deaf 
3044 Horace Street 
Riverside, CA  92505 
(909) 782-6542 
 
California School for the Blind Assessment Center 
500 Walnut Avenue 
Fremont, CA  94536 
(510) 794-3832 
REFERENCES 
EC 56326, 59001, 59201 

D-5

352



Page 196 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
  

 
STUDENT RECORDS 
 
SECTION A STUDENT RECORDS  

SECTION B MAINTENANCE OF SPECIAL EDUCATION RECORDS
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
D-5

353



Page 197 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
School districts maintain records on all students including students identified with special needs.  
These records are cumulative and detail the entire school history of the student from the time of 
first enrollment through graduation or at the completion of their course of study.  The information 
contained within these files include, but not be limited to, the student’s family background, medical 
information, school disciplinary actions, psychological evaluations, intelligence test scores, 
grades, individualized education programs (IEP’s), standardized test scores, and a wide variety of 
other sensitive information.  It is the responsibility of the local school district to ensure the 
confidentiality, security, and maintenance of all student records according to IDEA  2004, 
California Education Code, and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). 
 

Section A – Student Records 
 
EC 49061 (b) “Pupil record” means any item of information directly related to an identifiable 
pupil, other than directory information, which is maintained by a school district or required to be 
maintained by an employee in the performance of his/her duties whether recorded by handwriting, 
print, tapes, film, microfilm and/or other means. 
 
 “Pupil records” does not include informal notes related to a pupil compiled by a school officer 
or employee, which remain in the sole possession of the maker and are not accessible or revealed 
to any other person except a substitute.  For purposes of this subdivision, “substitute” means a 
person who performs the duties of the individual who made the note on a temporary basis, and 
does not refer to a person who permanently succeeds the maker of the notes in his/her position. 
Confidentiality 
 
All student files are confidential and should be stored in a locked and secured location at all 
times.  Access is permitted only to those individuals with a legitimate need. When requested, 
parents are to be informed of all files on their child and the location of those files.   

Access to Student Records 
The parents have the right to review their child’s file and to receive a copy of the file within five 
business days of their request.  Parental requests for review and/or copies of records must follow 
the established policies and procedures of the local school district. 
Education Code 49069  
 
Parents of currently enrolled or former students have an absolute right to access any and all pupil 
records related to their children that are maintained by school districts and/or private schools.  The 
editing or withholding of any of those records, except as provided for in this chapter, is prohibited 
by law.   
 
Each school district should adopt procedures for granting of records requests by parents. 
Procedures should be in place to provide copies of all pupil records pursuant to Section 49065, 
and/or to inspect and review records during regular school hours, provided that the requested 
access is granted no later than five business days following the date of the request.  Procedures 
shall include notification to the parent of the location of all official pupil records, if not centrally 
located, and the availability of qualified certificated personnel to interpret records, if requested. 

D-5

354



Page 198 of 233 
 

 
Based on the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), access to student records and 
information shall not be denied to a parent because he/she is not the child’s custodial parent. 
 
The following persons or agencies shall have access to student records: 
 

• Natural parents, adoptive parents, or legal guardians of students younger than age eighteen.  
(Education Code 49061). 

• Once a student reaches the age of eighteen or attends a postsecondary school, he/she alone 
shall exercise these rights and grant consent for the release of records.  (Education Code 
49061). 

• Those so authorized in compliance with a court order.  (Education Code 49077) If lawfully 
possible, the district shall first give the parent or adult student three days’ notice, indicating 
who is requesting and what records they wish to examine (Title 5, Section 435). 

• School officials and employees.  (Education Code 49076) 
 
Many requests for student records require the consent and/or notification of the parent, but some 
do not.  Requests for student records by school districts or Special Education Local Plan Areas 
(SELPAs) within the State of California do not require a parent’s signature and must be processed 
within five business days.  Requests for student records by San Bernardino County Probation 
Department, Juvenile Division via a court order may be processed after attempting to advise the 
parents and/or student of the district’s compliance with the court order.  Any other requests for 
records must be accompanied by a release of information that has been signed by a parent and/or 
adult student, age eighteen or older. 
 
Those granted access are prohibited from releasing information to another person or agency 
without written permission from the parent or adult student, age eighteen or older.  (Education 
Code 49076) 
 
Persons, agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights may be granted access only through 
written permission of the parent and/or adult student.  (Education Code 49075) 
 

Access Log 
 
EC 49064 A log or record shall be maintained for each pupil’s records which lists all persons, 
agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record and the legitimate 
interest therefore.  Such listing need not include: 
 
1. Parents or pupils to whom access is granted pursuant to EC 49069 or EC 49076(6)(a), 
2. Parties to whom directory information is released pursuant to ED 49703, 
3. Parties to whom written consent has been executed by the parent pursuant to EC 49075, 

and 
4. School officials or employees having a legitimate educational interest pursuant to EC 

49076(1)(a).   
 
The log or record shall be open to inspection only by a parent and the school official or his/her 
designee, responsible for the maintenance of pupil records, and to the Comptroller General of the 
United States, the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare, an administrative head of an 

D-5

355



Page 199 of 233 
 

educational agency as defined in Public Law 93380, and state educational authorities as a means 
of auditing the operation of the system. 
 
Access logs are maintained within each individual student file.  They are typically located in the 
front of the student file and may either be stapled to the inside cover or located in the front of the 
file.   
 
For those employees of the district who have routine access to student files, a list of their names 
and positions should be clearly posted on the filing cabinet where the files are securely stored.  
When those not listed review student records, the reviewer is required to state the purpose for the 
review and sign and date the access log in the student’s file. 
 

Request for Records 
 
EC 56504 The parent shall have the right and opportunity to examine all school records of his/her 
child and to receive copies pursuant to this section and to Section 49065 within five business days 
after the request is made by the parent, either orally, or in writing.  The public education agency 
shall comply with a request for school records without unnecessary delay before any meeting 
regarding an individualized education program or any hearing pursuant to Section 300.507 or 
Sections 300.530 to 300.532, inclusive, of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations or resolution 
sessions pursuant to Section 300.510 of Title 34 of the code of Federal Regulations and in no case 
more than five business days after the request is made orally, or in writing.  The parent shall have 
the right to a response from the public education agency to reasonable requests for explanations 
and interpretations of the records.  If any school record includes information on more than one 
pupil, the parent of those pupils have the right to inspect and review only the information relating 
to their child or to be informed of that specific information.  A public education agency shall 
provide a parent, on request of the parent, a list of the types and location of school records 
collected, maintained, and/or used by the agency. A public education agency may charge no more 
than the actual cost of reproducing the records, but if this cost effectively prevents the parent from 
exercising the right to receive such copy, or copies, the copy or copies shall be reproduced at no 
cost. 
At the October 8, 2003 Program Advisory Committee (PAC) meeting, program directors agreed 
when a parent or advocate requests a student’s records, the written request would be forwarded to 
the district or LEA of service with a copy of the request to the district of residence and SELPA 
Due Process office.  The district of service will coordinate the collection, copying, and provision 
of all records to the parent, attorney, or advocate, as appropriate. 
 
When a new student enrolls within a district, the student’s cumulative folder including the special 
education file will be requested from the previous district by the new district of residence.  
Utilizing a district Request for Records form, records can be requested from within California 
without the requirement of a parental signature.  When needed, parental signatures should be 
obtained through a district form authorizing the release of information. 
 
All original records must be sent to and stored in the district special education office, with a 
copy maintained at the school site in the student’s special education file.  This includes records 
of students receiving services through San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools.  The 
case carrier is responsible for ensuring that these records are properly stored and should work 
closely with the site secretary to monitor the receipt and storage of records. 

D-5

356



Page 200 of 233 
 

 

Challenging Content of Records 
 
EC 49070 Following an inspection and review of a pupil’s records, the parent or guardian of a 
pupil or former pupil of a school district may challenge the content of any pupil record. 
 
(a)  The parent or guardian of a pupil may file a written request with the superintendent of the 
district to correct or remove any information recorded in the written records concerning his or 
her child which the parent or guardian alleges to be any of the following:   
 
 
 
(1)   Inaccurate. 
(2)  An unsubstantiated personal conclusion or inference. 
(3)  A conclusion or inference outside of the observer’s area of competence, 
(4) Not based on the personal observation of a named person with the time and place of the 
observation noted. 
(5)   Misleading 
(6)  In violation of the privacy or other rights of the pupil 
 
(b)  Within 30 days of receipt of a request pursuant to subdivision (a), the superintendent or the 
superintendent’s designee shall meet with the parent or guardian and the certificated employee 
who recorded the information in question, if any, and if the employee is presently employed by the 
school district.  The superintendent shall then sustain or deny the allegations.   
 
If the superintendent sustains any or all of the allegations, he or she shall order the correction or 
the removal and destruction of the information.  However, in accordance with Section 49066, the 
superintendent shall not order a pupil’s grade to be changed unless the teacher who determined 
the grade is, to the extent practicable, given an opportunity to state orally, in writing, or both, the 
reasons for which the grade was given and is, to the extent practicable, included in all discussions 
relating to the changing of the grade. 
 
If the superintendent denies any or all of the allegations and refuses to order the correction or the 
removal of the information, the parent or guardian may, within 30 days of the refusal, appeal the 
decision in writing to the governing board of the school district. 
 

Section B – Maintenance of Special Education 
Records 
 
Confidentiality 
 
All student files are confidential and should be stored in a locked and secured location.  Access is 
permitted only to those involved with the student.  Parents are to be informed of all files on their 
student and the location of those files, as requested.   
All school records in California are divided into three groups for the purpose of defining how long 
records are kept before they are disposed: 

1. Class I –Permanent or “Mandatory Permanent Pupil Records” 

D-5

357



Page 201 of 233 
 

Records which are maintained in perpetuity and which school schools have been directed 
to compile by state law, regulation or administrative directive. (5 CCR 430) 

2. Class II – Optional or “Mandatory Interim Pupil Records” 
Records which the school is directed to compile and maintain for stipulated periods of 
time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law, regulation or administrative 
directive.  (EC 48918.5; 5 CCR 430, 432, 437, 16027) 

3. Class III – Disposable or “Permitted Student Records” 
The only disposable records are Class III and are to be destroyed by “foolproof Methods” 
so as to maintain the confidentiality of the record.  Whenever records are deemed Class 
III, parents are to be notified in writing. (5 CCR 432,437) 
 

Retention and Destruction of Student Records 
The following mandatory permanent student records shall be kept indefinitely: (5 CCR 432,437) 
 

1. Legal name of student 
2. Date, place of birth, and method of verifying birth date 
3. Sex of student 
4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student 

a. Address of minor student if different from the above 
b. Annual verification of parent/guardian’s name address and student’s residence 

5. Entrance and departure date of each school year and for any summer session or extra 
session 

6. subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session or quarter, and marks or 
credits given 

7. Verification of or exemption from required immunizations 
8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent 

 
Mandatory interim school records, unless forwarded to another district, shall be maintained subject 
to destruction during the third school year following a determination that their usefulness has 
ceased or the student has left the District.  While mandatory interim school records may be 
destroyed after the third school year following the point at which usefulness has ceased, SBCSS 
Policy and the Participation Agreement of the Local Plan requires maintenance of special 
education records and accounts including property, personal and financial records for five years 
after their usefulness ceases.  Such records, as related to special education may include: special 
education forms, access log, health records, special education test protocols, assessment reports, 
case studies, and authorizations.   
 
The school district must inform the parent when personally identifiable records are no longer 
needed to provide educational services to a student.  At that time, or at parent request, the student’s 
records may be destroyed.  (34CFR 300.573 (a) and (b)) Destruction notices are normally sent at 
the time of graduation or completion of a course of study.  The notice should include the items that 
are no longer needed and a timeline for destruction or parent retrieval of the information.  This 
option is given to ensure that nonessential information regarding the student’s behavior, 
performance, and abilities are not kept after they are no longer necessary for educational purposes.   

D-5

358



Page 202 of 233 
 

Actual test protocols should be maintained in district files, if they are used and cited in the 
preparation of any disseminated report, they will constitute official school records for legal 
purposes and are governed in accordance with California Education Code. 

 
SAMPLE GUIDELINES 

 
THE ORGANIZATION OF STUDENT FILES 

 
The original documents go to the District office file.  A copy of the documents is kept in the 
teacher file. 
 
Outer Folder 
 

□ Confidential office file is manila folder 
□ Restraining orders are placed inside of the outer folder while active 

 
IEP Meeting – Green Divider 
 
 
 

□ All paperwork should be filed in date order with the most recent first. 
□ Log of Access and Request for Access to Student’s Records is stapled to the outside of 

the divider. 
□ IEPs are stapled together in date order, with the most recent one on top 
□ Student Management Plans should be stapled to the back of the current IEP 
□ Transition Plans should be stapled to the back of the current IEP 

 
Psycho-Educational – Pink Divider 
 

□ All paperwork should be filed in date order with the most recent first. 
□ Psycho-educational reports  
□ Independent Educational Evaluations completed by a psychologist 
□ Protocols for each report are placed together directly behind the corresponding report 
□ California Diagnostic Center evaluations 

 
Health and Development – Blue Divider 
 

□ All paperwork should be filed in date order with the most recent first. 
□ Most recent list of current medications  
□ All medical reports  
□ Initial health and developmental and triennial reports  
□ Audiological reports  
□ Vision reports  
□ Developmental histories  
□ California Children’s Services reports  
□ Medication forms  
□ Specialized care plan(s)  
□ Immunization Records 
□ Nurse’s report(s) 

 

D-5

359



Page 203 of 233 
 

Special Reports – Orange Divider 
 

□ All paperwork should be filed in date order with the most recent first. 
□ Reports from DIS/related service providers 
□ Protocols for each report are placed together directly behind the corresponding report 
□ Independent Educational Evaluations related to DIS/related services 
□ Inland Regional Center Continuous Notes or I.P.P.’s 
□ Inland Regional Center evaluations 
□ Student reports sent in by the teacher  
□ Student progress summaries  
□ Reports from other agencies (non-medical) 
□ California School for the Deaf Riverside (CSDR)  

 
Parent Contact – White Divider 
 

1. All paperwork should be filed in date order with the most recent first. 
2. Invitations to IEP conferences and parent responses 
3. The Home Language Survey  
4. Signed Release of Information forms 
5. Forms (from the Parent Packet sent yearly) signed by parents 
6. Signed Release from Responsibility forms  
7. Guardianship forms  
8. Assessment Plans  
9. Emergency Cards  
10. All correspondence to parents 

 
Previous Data and Information – Yellow Divider 
 

11. All paperwork should be filed in date order with the most recent first. 
□ Bus requests  
□ Inactive Restraining Orders  
□ Individual Family Service Plan information 
□ Inland Regional Center information prior to age 3 

 
References 
34 CFR 300.507, 300.510, 300.530, 300.532, 300.573 
CCR 16027 
Education Code 48918, 49061, 49064, 49065, 49068, 49069, 49070, 49075, 49076, 49077, 49703, 
56504  
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
Government Code, Title I, Division 7, Chapter 3.5, Section 6250  
IDEA 2004 
Public Law 93380 
Title 5, Section 430, 431, 432, 435, 437 
 
 
 
 

D-5

360



Page 204 of 233 
 

 
 
 
  

 

 
OTHER PUBLIC EDUCATION 
PROGRAMS 
 
SECTION A ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION   

SECTION B CHARTER SCHOOLS  

SECTION C COMMUNITY DAY SCHOOLS - DISTRICT/COUNTY  

SECTION D COURT SCHOOLS  

SECTION E CONTINUATION SCHOOLS   

SECTION F INDEPENDENT ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION  

 
 
 

 

 
D-5

361



Page 205 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SBCSS) offers educational options for 
students who have been expelled by their local school district, those students ordered to attend by 
the court or by Probation, or students referred by their district through the School Attendance 
Review Board (SARB) or other local district process.  A description of these public school options 
is contained within this chapter.  Special education students who attend any of these instructional 
programs receive services in accordance with their IEP.  Local school districts may also offer 
options for alternative education students as approved by their Board of Education.  The 
Countywide Plan for Expelled Students outlines program options available for expelled students. 
 

Section A – Alternative Education 
 
The Student Services Division of San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools works 
collaboratively with school districts, community colleges, families, and agencies to provide 
student-centered educational programs throughout the West End SELPA.  Working together in a 
collegial and professional manner, highly qualified staff supports students’ academic, vocational, 
social, and emotional growth.  Students’ talents and abilities are strengthened through instruction 
that focuses on life, employment, and critical thinking skills.  Curriculum is aligned with state 
standards and approved by the Board of Education.  While not required to do so, all Alternative 
Education schools operated by SBCSS are accredited by the Western Association of Schools and 
Colleges (WASC). 
Student Services educational/program objectives include:  1) provide a transitional educational 
program which allows students to continue to earn credits toward high school graduation 
regardless of circumstances; 2) provide opportunities for eligible students to take the GED or the 
CHSPE; 3) provide students with the opportunity to receive a high school diploma in collaboration 
with local school districts; 4) assist students in developing social skills which will enable students 
to function successfully in society; and 5) assist students in developing work skills and habits 
which will enable them to function successfully in the work place. 
 

Section B – Charter Schools  
 
EC 56145 Individuals with exceptional needs attending charter schools pursuant to Part 26.8 
(commencing with Section 47600) shall be served in the same manner as individuals with 
exceptional needs are served in other public schools. 
 
A charter school is a public school and as such is subject to state and federal special education 
laws and regulations.  A charter school may be authorized to operate as part of a LEA, or may 
itself be an LEA.  A charter school must enroll any student who wishes to attend the charter school, 
subject to their capacity.  A student may not be denied admission due to their eligibility for special 
education or special education needs.  A charter school does not have specific geographic 
boundaries, and once a student has enrolled in a charter school, it no longer matters where the 
student resides, for purposes of special education the LEA authorizing the charter is responsible 
for the special education services required by the student.   
 

D-5

362



Page 206 of 233 
 

California public charter schools are required to participate in the statewide assessment test, called 
the STAR (Standardized Testing and Reporting) program.  The law also requires that a public 
charter school be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all 
other operations, and prohibits the conversion of a private school to a charter school.   Public 
charter schools may not charge tuition and may not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of 
ethnicity, national origin, gender, or disability. 
 

Section C – Community Day Schools (District-
Operated Special Day Classes)  
 
EC 1980 A county board of education may establish and maintain one or more community schools.  
If a county board of education does not establish and maintain one or more community schools, 
the county superintendent of schools shall develop a plan with the governing boards of the school 
districts in that county to ensure that pupils in that county who need an alternative school 
placement are served. 
 
EC 1981 The county board of education may enroll in community schools any of the following: 
(a) Pupils who have been expelled from a school district for any reason other than those 

specified in subdivision (a), (b) or (c) of Section 48915. 
(b) Pupils who have been referred to county community schools by a school district as a result 

of the recommendation by a school attendance review board or pupils whose school 
districts of attendance have, at the request of the pupil’s parent or guardian, approved the 
pupil’s enrollment in a county community school. 

(c) Pupils who are probation-referred pursuant to Section 300, 601, 602, and 654 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, pupils who are on probation or parole and who are not in 
attendance in any school, and who are expelled pursuant to subdivision (a) or (c) of Section 
48915. 

 
AB 922 authorizes establishment of community day schools (sections 48660-48664).  Community 
Day School may be operated by school districts or by a County Office of Education 

Definition 
In 1995 the Legislature enacted two significant bills that responded to the zero tolerance mandate 
from the general public:  AB 922 and SB 966.  Among their many provisions, AB 922 (Chapter 
974) established Community Day Schools and SB 966 (Chapter 9720) effective July 1, 1996, 
required a governing board of the school district to provide an educational placement to all students 
who were expelled pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (e) of Education Code Section 48915.  The 
Countywide Plan for Expelled Students was developed in compliance with requirements of this 
legislation. 
 
This placement must be in a program of study that can appropriately accommodate referred 
students, is not provided at a comprehensive school, and is not housed at the school that the student 
was attending at the time of expulsion.  Community Day Schools have the following 
characteristics: 
 

• They must offer a 360-minute instructional day  
 

D-5

363



Page 207 of 233 
 

• They serve grade spans K-6 and 7-12 
• They can be co-located with a regular school, an opportunity school, or a continuation 

campus only under special circumstances 
• They receive tiered incentive funding 
• They cannot offer independent study 

 
Although expelled students may be served in a county-operated Community School, many local 
administrators view district Community Day Schools as an appropriate placement for some, but 
not necessarily all expelled students and as an option for providing a structured, well-supervised 
instructional environment for some students who have not been expelled. 
 
Program Description 
The Community Day School Program will provide a comprehensive educational program for at-
risk students designed to meet their individual academic and behavioral needs with the intent for 
them to return to school, graduate, obtain a GED, and/or employment.  Alternative strategies 
include reduced class size, strong emphasis on personal development through a social skills 
curriculum, career education, and collaboration with other public agencies to provide counseling 
and support services. 
 
The program components are listed as follows: 

• 360 minutes instructional day   
• 180 days instructional year plus extended year 
•  Board of Education approved curriculum aligned with state frameworks, or local 

district approved curriculum 
• Counseling 
• Elective curricular offerings 
• Specialized assessment 

 
Community School – SBCSS 
 
Definition 
County community schools are public schools operated and administered by county offices of 
education to serve students in grades kindergarten through twelve. County community schools 
provide educational placement for students who are expelled from their regular schools, referred 
by a School Attendance Review Board or at the request of the student’s parent or guardian, referred 
by probation (pursuant to the Welfare and Institutions Code sections 300, 601, 602, 654), on 
probation or parole and are not in attendance in any school, or homeless.   
 
When to Access 
Community Schools, which are established at the request of school districts, serve students who 
have been expelled from the schools of the local school district or are referred by the County 
Probation Department’s Juvenile Division. 
 
County community schools offer students an alternative education program that reinforces or 
reestablishes educational development.  The standard minimum school day for county community 
schools is 240 minutes of instruction; minimum school day for students in attendance in approved 
vocational education and work experience programs is 180 minutes.  California Education Code 
sections that provide for county community schools include sections 1980 through 1986.   
 

D-5

364



Page 208 of 233 
 

Instruction focuses on standards aligned curriculum, active hands-on participation, and 
individualized instruction.  Most students work toward earning credits that will facilitate high 
school graduation; however, older students who are severely credit deficient, work toward 
successful GED or CHSPE completion and development of employment skills. 
 

Section D – Court Schools 
 
Definition 
County boards of education administer and operate the Juvenile Court Schools authorized by 
Education Code sections 48645-48645.7.  The Student Services Alternative Education Department 
provides educational programs for students who are wards of the court.  Programs offered on the 
grounds of Juvenile Hall include detention and placement programs. 
 
Students engage in a standards-aligned curriculum enriched with career preparation and 
computerized instruction.   
 
The County Probation Department works in partnership with Alternative Education staff to ensure 
that each student has a well-balanced instructional program that teaches and reinforces academic 
skills, social skills, and employability. 
 
When to Access 
Juvenile Court Schools provide an alternative educational program for students who are under the 
protection or authority of the juvenile court system and are detained in juvenile hall. 
 
How to Access 
Students are placed in Juvenile Court Schools when they are referred by the juvenile court. 
 

Section E – Continuation Schools (District 
Operated) 
 
EC 48430 It is the intent of the Legislature that continuation education schools and classes shall 
be established and maintained to provide all of the following: 
(1) An opportunity for pupils to complete the required academic courses of instruction to 

graduate from high school. 
(2) A program of instruction which emphasizes occupational orientation or a work study 

schedule and offer intensive guidance services to meet the special needs of pupils. 
(3) A program designed to meet the educational needs of each pupil, including but not limited 

to, independent study, regional occupation programs, work study, career counseling, and 
job placement services as a supplement to classroom instruction. 
 

Definition 
Continuation Education, an educational option for students since 1919, is a high school diploma 
program designed to meet the needs of students sixteen through eighteen years of age who have 
not graduated from high school, are not exempt from compulsory school attendance, and deemed 
at risk of not completing their schooling.  Students enrolled in continuation education programs 
are often credit deficient.  Others need a flexible educational environment because they are 
employed or are having adjustment problems. 

D-5

365



Page 209 of 233 
 

 
For apportionment purposes, a day of attendance in continuation education is 180 minutes.  
However, many continuation high schools design programs with maximum access to required 
courses that exceed the minimum daily requirement.  In addition to the required academic courses 
for graduation, the program of instruction must emphasize occupational or career orientation or a 
work-study schedule.  Supplemental programs and services can include, but not be limited to, 
independent study, ROP programs, career counseling, job placement, and apprenticeships. 

When to Access 
Continuation Education serves 16-18-year-old students who are subject to state compulsory 
education laws.  Many students are referred involuntarily.  Others elect to go to continuation 
schools because of the available flexible schedules and individualized services.  Continuation high 
schools serve as a major dropout recovery option and a transitional program for students desiring 
to return to their regular programs. 
 

Section F – Independent Alternative Education 
 
Definition  
The goal of the independent study program is to develop in students the highest degree of 
performance, self-confidence, self-esteem, and motivation while he/she earns credits toward a high 
school diploma, makes progress toward the next grade level, prepares for the GED or CHSPE, or 
prepares for employment. Both school districts and county offices of education may operate 
independent study programs.  
 
When to Access 
Students need to show that they can work independently and are motivated to make progress.  
Academic functioning at the fourth grade level or higher is required to access the county operated 
independent study program. Board policy states that students must complete sufficient work 
assigned each week to remain on IAE.  County operated IAE primarily serves junior and senior 
high school students.  Under IAE a Master Agreement is developed with input from the student, 
the supervising teacher and the parent/guardian. This agreement provides for the student’s 
involvement in an alternative learning experience through a course of study aligned to the 
California State Frameworks. Alternative Education teachers may also provide guidance to 
students concerning reinstatement procedures to local school districts as well as GED and CHSPE 
preparation. 
 
References 
 
EC 1980, 1981, 48915, 56145, 56146 
Welfare and Institutions Code Sections 300, 601, 602, 654  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

D-5

366



Page 210 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NON-PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES 
 
SECTION A NONPUBLIC AGENCY SERVICES  

SECTION B NONPUBLIC NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D-5

367



Page 211 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 

Nonpublic school and agency services are provided when the needs of a student are more intensive 
than can be met in the public school setting.  All program options and modifications should be 
exhausted prior to an IEP team recommending consideration of a nonpublic school or agency 
placement.  This chapter contains information regarding the placement of students with special 
needs in nonpublic schools and agencies.  Guidelines are presented in this chapter for the referral 
process and how to access these services. 
 
Each LEA that contracts with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school shall evaluate the placement of its 
pupil/s in such schools on at least an annual basis as part of the annual IEP review.  The LEA 
representative shall review the master contract, the individual services agreement, and the IEP to 
ensure that all services agreed upon and specified in the IEP are provided. 
 
Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools are required by the master contract with the nonpublic school and 
the IEP to annually evaluate the pupils to determine if they are making appropriate educational 
progress.  The local education agency representative shall collaboratively review with the 
nonpublic, nonsectarian school the evaluations conducted by the nonpublic, nonsectarian school 
to ensure that they were appropriate and valid for measuring pupil progress.  The local education 
agency may choose to administer additional assessments as necessary, with parent consent, to 
determine whether the pupil is making appropriate educational progress. 
 

Section A – Nonpublic Agency Services 
 
EC 56035 “Nonpublic, nonsectarian agency” means a private, nonsectarian establishment or 
individual that provides related services necessary for an individual with exceptional needs to 
benefit educationally from the pupil’s educational program pursuant to an individualized 
education program and that is certified by the department.  It does not include an organization or 
agency that operates as a public agency or offers public service, including, but not limited to, a 
state or local agency, an affiliate of a state or local agency, including a private, nonprofit 
corporation established or operated by a state or local agency, a public university or college, or 
a public hospital.  The nonpublic, nonsectarian agency shall also meet standards as prescribed by 
the superintendent and board. 
 
EC 56366 It is the intent of the Legislature that the role of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or 
agency shall be maintained and continued as an alternative special education service available to 
district, special education local plan areas, county offices, and parents. 
 
Nonpublic agency services can be used when the resources available to the WESELPA district 
staff cannot adequately address the student’s needs.  A child may be referred with parent consent 
to a public or private agency for evaluation.  If payment for such diagnostic services is required, 
the SELPA will process such payment.  Reports from these agencies will become a permanent part 
of the student’s records.  Such referrals will be made on an individual case basis and only when 
the service cannot be provided through public school services available within the West End 
SELPA.   
 
The SELPA will ensure that the agency meets the following standards: 

• The agency has adequately trained personnel to do the diagnostic work 

D-5

368



Page 212 of 233 
 

• The agency has appropriate facilities and equipment 
• The agency meets local health, fire, and safety standards 

T  In order to ensure that the student is being provided such a program within the least restrictive 
environment, the IEP team shall utilize such nonpublic agency services only after exploring all 
public school program alternatives.  If all resources and options have been exhausted, the case 
must be scheduled for an IEP meeting to include a SELPA Program Manager or designee and 
District Special Education Director or representative. 
When the IEP Team determines that nonpublic agency services are required, a contract for such 
services shall be developed and entered into by the SELPA Administrator.  Such contracts will be 
developed only after the parent has agreed to the placement. 
 
The West End SELPA will monitor the progress of pupils in nonpublic agency services.  This will 
consist of evaluating nonpublic agency quarterly reports of student progress on goals and 
objectives established by the IEP team in written instructional plans and/or reports of nonpublic 
agency staff and may include observing the student in the home and school program and attending 
clinic meetings with the NPA. 
 
Every attempt will be made to assure pupil progress so that a pupil may ultimately be able to return 
to some form of public school program.  The Program Manager or designee shall be responsible 
to monitor the progress of children placed in nonpublic agency programs.  The Program Manager 
or designee shall also act as a liaison between the SELPA and the nonpublic agency in all matters 
concerning a student’s placement. 
 
Individuals with exceptional needs may be enrolled concurrently in both public and nonpublic 
agency services, provided one is the major enrollment and the other is supplemental.  This 
determination will be made by the Individual Education Program team based upon the educational 
needs of the student and will be provided only when this arrangement best meets these needs. 
 
Students placed in a nonpublic agency by their parents or guardians may be evaluated for special 
education eligibility and services by public school staff upon referral in the manner previously 
described for all students. 
 
After thoroughly reviewing available services, some children with disabilities will need intensive, 
individualized, and specialized educational services that can only be provided outside public 
education. 
 
WESELPA Program Specialist Role with Non-Public Agencies 

1. As a participating member of the IEP Team, ensure ongoing communication with the 
district regarding student progress. 

2. As a participating member of the IEP Team, review of data summaries and quarterly 
progress reports. 

3. As a participating member of the IEP Team, attend clinic meetings and provide 
observation of in home or school based program as appropriate and requested by the IEP 
team. 

 
Rationale for Nonpublic Agency Referral 
 

• Must be documented that there is no available public program that can appropriately meet 
the student’s needs, even with modification. 

D-5

369



Page 213 of 233 
 

• Must be documented that no existing contracting agency (CCS, Regional Center) can meet 
the student’s needs appropriately. 

• Must be documented that the service is required for the student to benefit from an 
educational program. 

• All public resources must be exhausted and proven inappropriate. 
 

Section B - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School 
Services 
 
EC 56034 “Nonpublic, nonsectarian school” means a private, nonsectarian school that enrolls 
individuals with exceptional needs pursuant to an individualized education program, employs at 
least one full-time teacher who holds an appropriate credential authorizing special education 
services, and is certified by the department.  It does not include an organization or agency that 
operates as a public agency or offers public service, including, but not limited to, a state or local 
agency, an affiliate of a state or local agency, including a private, nonprofit corporation 
established or operated by a state or local agency, or a public university or college.  A nonpublic 
nonsectarian school also shall meet standards as prescribed by the superintendent and board. 
 

• The WESELPA generates and maintains the master contract, and monitors compliance 
with the contract. 

 
The West End SELPA will consider nonpublic school services for all students who require such 
services in order to benefit from their educational program as determined by the IEP team.  In 
order to ensure that the student is being provided such a program within the least restrictive 
environment, the IEP team shall utilize such nonpublic school services only after exploring all 
public school program alternatives.  If all resources and options have been exhausted, the case 
must be scheduled for an IEP meeting to include a SELPA Program Manager, West End SELPA 
Program Specialist, or West End SELPA Psychologist and District Special Education Director or 
representative.    
When the IEP Team determines that nonpublic school services are required, a contract for such 
services shall be developed and entered into by the Chief SELPA Administrative Officer. 
 
In most areas, the West End SELPA will monitor the progress of pupils in nonpublic school 
services.  This review will consist of evaluating nonpublic school quarterly reports of student 
progress on goals and objectives established by the IEP team in written instructional plans, report 
cards and incident reports. 
 
Every attempt will be made to assure pupil progress so that a pupil may ultimately be able to return 
to a less restrictive setting.  The WESELPA Program Manager or designee shall be responsible to 
monitor the progress of children placed in nonpublic school programs.  This Program Manager or 
designee shall also act as a liaison between the SELPA and the nonpublic school in all matters 
concerning a student’s placement. 
 
Individuals with exceptional needs may be enrolled concurrently in both public and nonpublic 
school services,  
 

D-5

370



Page 214 of 233 
 

Students placed in nonpublic secondary schools must complete graduation requirements of their 
districts of residence, which will issue a diploma.  Students will be able to participate in their 
districts’ graduation ceremony.  Students who are attending non-public school out-of-state and are 
eligible to graduate from high school can choose to receive a diploma from the state where they 
are attending non-public school. 
 
Students placed in a nonpublic school by their parents or guardians may be evaluated for special 
education eligibility and services by public school staff upon referral in the manner previously 
described for all students.  
 
The West End SELPA will consider nonpublic placement and/or services for all students who 
require such services in order to benefit from their educational program as determined by the IEP 
team.  In order to ensure that the student is being provided such a program within the least 
restrictive environment, the IEP team shall utilize such nonpublic school services only after 
exploring all public school program alternatives. Repetitive  
After thoroughly reviewing available services, some students with disabilities will need intensive, 
individualized, and specialized educational services that can only be provided  in a non public 
school setting. 
 
Rationale for Nonpublic School Referral 
 

• Must be documented that there is no available public program that can appropriately 
meet the student’s needs, even with modification. 

• Must be documented that the Local Education Agency (LEA) attempted supports and 
services. 

• Must be documented the impact of the attempted supports and services. 
• Must be documented that no existing contracting agency (CCS, Regional Center) can 

meet the student’s needs appropriately. 
• Must be documented that the service is required for the student to benefit from an 

educational program. 
• All public resources must be considered and found to be inappropriate. 
• Must have statement on the referral IEP indicating, “Student should be considered for 

a more restrictive placement.”  District should not indicate the name of a specific non-
public school. 

 
Referral Process for Nonpublic School Consideration 
 

1. If all resources and options have been exhausted, the case must be scheduled for an IEP 
meeting to include the WESELPA Program Manager, WESELPA Program Specialist, or 
West End SELPA Psychologist.  In order to schedule a meeting, the referring district shall 
submit the following to the WESELPA REST DEPARTMENT: 

 

• Referral for Placement Consideration cover sheet signed by the district office 
• Current IEP with goals and objectives 
• Current psycho-educational report 
• Assessment data supporting a change in placement (observations, academic progress 

monitoring, behavioral intervention data, FAA, private evaluations) 
• Immunization record 

D-5

371



Page 215 of 233 
 

• Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP), 
• Other agency reports, if applicable 
• Transcripts for high school age students, if on diploma track 
• Vision/Hearing screening 
• Signature required – District director of special education 
• Hospitalization records, if applicable 

Releases of Information for NPS settings 

2. The WESELPA Program Manager, WESELPA Program Specialist, or West End SELPA 
Psychologist will review the student’s file and confer with referring staff as needed. 

 
3. The WESELPA Program Manager, WESELPA Program Specialist, or West End SELPA 

Psychologist will confer with (will send a referral packet to the) appropriate nonpublic 
schools to determine placement openings, admission procedures, and availability of staff 
to attend the IEP meeting. 

 
4. At the IEP meeting, team members will review data relative to assessment, program needs, 

and appropriate program options, both public and nonpublic. (Upon acceptance by an NPS 
and district agreement with placement , an IEP will be completed. The NPS program cannot 
begin until paretnt consent is obtained. 

 
 

The school District of residence is responsible for coordinating and completing any triennial 
assessments.  
 

Additional Information 
 
Additional information or questions that have not been adequately addressed in this handbook may 
be directed to the West End SELPA Due Process office.  The phone number is (909) 476-6135. 
The mailing address is: 

8265 Aspen Ave., Suite 200 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

 
Inquiries may also be directed to the West End SELPA web site at: www.weselpa.net 

 
 

References 
 
EC 56034, 56035, 56366 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

372

http://www.weselpa.net/


Page 216 of 233 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

 
PRIVATE SCHOOLS AND SERVICES 
 
SECTION A PARENTALLY PLACED STUDENTS WITH 

DISABILITIES IN PRIVATE SCHOOLS 
 

SECTION B CALCULATION OF PROPORTIONATE AMOUNT OF 
FEDERAL FUNDS INDIVIDUAL SERVICE PLAN 

 

APPENDIX A INDIVIDUAL SERVICE PLAN  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D-5

373



Page 217 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
The U.S. Department of Education states, “The Department believes that the right of parents to 
choose where their children should be educated, whether at public or private school, is extremely 
important. Nevertheless, the rights of parentally-placed private school children with disabilities 
under Part B are not the same as those of children with disabilities that are enrolled in public 
schools and are served at public agency programs or public agency placements in private schools.”   
 
There are two major categories of private school students – “publicly placed” and “parentally 
Placed”. 
 
In the first instance, the educational agency places a student in a private facility in order 
to meet its requirement of free appropriate public education (FAPE) and the local 
educational agency (LEA) obligation to serve the student is exactly the same as if the 
student attended the public school. 
 
In contrast, the special education rights of the parentally placed private school student 
are considerably more limited. A parentally placed private school student with a 
disability does not have an individual right to FAPE. There are no instances when a LEA 
will be required to provide a service to such a child. However, there are particular 
obligations that the LEA must fulfill as explained herein. 
 
These SELPA procedures and supporting documents apply to all SELPA member LEAs.  
It is recommended that each LEA develops a school board policy and procedural administrative 
regulations whether there is a private school within its boundary or not. To assist in that 
endeavor, this document (1) explains the key definitions used herein, (2) defines child find 
through identification procedures, (3) delineates differences in provision of services, (4) 
describes obligations for meaningful consultation, (5) explains proportionate share, and (6) 
provides West End SELPA approved forms for documenting and addressing the needs 
of students with disabilities enrolled by their parents in private schools. 
  
 
 

Section A – Parentally Placed Students with 
Disabilities in Private Schools 
 
The following procedures are developed for the school districts within the West End SELPA, San 
Bernardino County to ensure that school districts: 
 
Locate, identify and evaluate all children ages three through 21* inclusive with disabilities enrolled 
by their parents in private schools including religious schools, who may be eligible for special 
education services; 
Additionally, Districts have an obligation to consult with private schools located within their 
boundaries regarding procedures for child find, calculation of the amount of federal funds available 
for services to parentally placed private school students with disabilities and how, where and by 
whom special education services will be provided to parentally placed private school students with 

D-5

374



Page 218 of 233 
 

disabilities.  Districts must also report annually, to the State Educational Agency the number of 
parentally placed private school students assessed, the number found to be eligible under IDEA, 
and the parentally placed private school students with disabilities provided with services.   
 
 
KEY Definitions: 
 
District of Residence (DOR): As used in this policy, the District of Residence (DOR) refers to 
the school district within which the child with a disability resides. 
 
District of Service (DOS): As used in this policy, the District of Services (DOS) refers to the 
school district within which the private school is located. 
 
Individualized Education Program (IEP): As used in this policy, the Individualized Education 
Program (IEP) refers to the DOR offer of a free appropriate public education. 
 
Individual Service Plan (ISP): As used in the policy, the Individual Service Plan (ISP) is a plan 
created by the DOS when a parent voluntarily places an eligible student with a disability in a 
private school. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA): As used in this policy, LEA refers to a school district, 
county office, or charter school. 
 
Private School Students with Disabilities: As used in this policy, “private school students with 
disabilities” mean students with disabilities enrolled by their parents in a private school or 
Facility. 
 
Private School or Facility: As used in this policy, “private school or facility” means: (1) private 
full-time day school pursuant to California Education Code section 48222 (including religious 
schools); (2) any other California Department of Education (CDE) identified educational 
institution, program, arrangement, or facility not sponsored, maintained, or managed by the LEA 
and for which the LEA does not collect average daily attendance funds; (3) CDE authorized 
private school affidavit. This does not include ‘for-profit’ private schools. 
 

 
a. Children aged 3-5 are considered to be parentally-placed private school children 

with disabilities enrolled by their parents in private, including religious, elementary 
schools, if they are enrolled in a private school that meets the definition of 
elementary school in 34 C.F.R § 300.13. 

 
b. Consultation 

 
 
The term “Consultation”  involves discussions between the LEA, private school representatives, 
and parents of parentally placed private school students with disabilities on key issues that affect 
the ability of eligible private school children with disabilities to participate equitably in federally 
funded special education and related services.  
 

D-5

375



Page 219 of 233 
 

Consultation serves as a vital platform for all parties to voice their perspectives and ensure those 
perspectives are carefully considered by the Local Education Agency (LEA). Through effective 
consultation, all parties can develop and maintain ongoing, positive, and productive working 
relationships that prioritize student success.  
 
This section provides information about private school consultation legal 
requirements, timelines, sample invitation to provide input forms, development of Private School 
Protocol, and meaningful consultation affirmation.  
 
Legal Requirements  
 
The LEA shall consult annually with private school representatives and representatives of parents 
of parentally placed private school children with disabilities during the design and development of 
special education and related services for the children. Such consultations should include  

1. the child find process and how parentally placed private school children suspected of 
having a disability can participate equitably, including how parents, teachers, and private 
school officials will be informed of the process; 

 
2. the determination of the proportionate amount of Federal funds available to serve 

parentally placed private school children with disabilities under this subparagraph, 
including the determination of how the amount was calculated; 

 
3. the consultation process among the local educational agency, private school officials, and 

representatives of parents of parentally placed private school children with disabilities, 
including how such process will operate throughout the school year to ensure that 
parentally placed private school children with disabilities identified through the child find 
process can meaningfully participate in special education and related services; 

 
4. how, where, and by whom special education and related services will be provided for 

parentally placed private school children with disabilities, including a discussion of types 
of services, including direct services and alternate service delivery mechanisms, how such 
services will be apportioned if funds are insufficient to serve all children, and how and 
when these decisions will be made; and 

 
5. how, if the local educational agency disagrees with the views of the private school officials 

on the provision of services or the types of services, whether provided directly or through 
a contract, the local educational agency shall provide to the private school officials a 
written explanation of the reasons why the local educational agency chose not to provide 
services directly or through a contract. 
 
 

Private School Protocol 
 

Annually, meaningful consultation between the private school personnel, parents of students 
with disabilities enrolled in the school, and special education leaders from the LEA wherein the 
school is housed leads to a private school protocol. The provision of services shall be provided 
by employees of a public agency; or through contract by the public agency with an individual, 
association, agency, organization, or other entity. Special education and related services 

D-5

376



Page 220 of 233 
 

provided to parentally placed private school children with disabilities, including materials and 
equipment, shall be secular, neutral, and non-ideological EC §56172(f).4 

 
When the LEA meets annually with the private school personnel and parents of private school 
students, a discussion will occur as to developing procedures and practices for the provision of 
services to students with disabilities enrolled in private schools. This process includes review of 
the current needs of the students in order for the team to facilitate a decision of which specific 
special education service(s), materials, and/or equipment(s) will be provided on behalf of the 
Students. 

 
When timely and meaningful consultation has occurred, the LEA shall obtain a written 
affirmation signed by the representatives of participating private schools. A copy of the 
affirmation letter and the private school protocol shall be sent to the SELPA. 

 
 

The West End SELPA will undertake the following child-find activities for private school children 
ages three through 21 inclusive: 

a) Consultation with representatives of private school children with 
disabilities, including private school representatives and representatives of 
parents regarding issues including, but not limited to, criteria for special 
education eligibility and special education referral procedures under federal 
and state laws and regulations. 

b) Between September 1 and December 1 each year, ask private schools to list 
all students enrolled in the school who are eligible for special education 
services, with and without individual service plans, and the district of 
residence for those children. 

 
The West End SELPA will ensure that child-find activities undertaken for private school students 
are comparable to activities undertaken for children ages three through 21 inclusive with 
disabilities in public schools.  Child-find activities will include dissemination of the special 
education child find brochure to all private schools in the SELPA and an annual notice in the local 
newspaper. 
 
The cost of Child Find, including individual evaluations, shall not be considered in determining if 

a district has expended its proportionate share of federal funds. 
 
Special Education Referral 

1. Private schools will refer students for special education instruction and services when 
the student is suspected of having a disability. Private school representatives or Parents 
will direct referrals to the Director of Special Education in the district in which the private 
school is located.   
2. If the child resides in a district outside of the LEA in which the private school is located, 
the Director of Special Education will request that the Parent sign a release of information 
to allow the district to exchange information with the district of residence.  The Director of 
Special Education will then notify the district of residence of the referral. For districts 
participating in the West End SELPA, the district of location will conduct the assessment. 
3. Parent or guardian of a student may request that the District of Residence conducts the 
assessment. In this circumstance the Director of Special education in the DOR may 

D-5

377



Page 221 of 233 
 

consider conducting assessments to meet child find obligations and may request that the 
Parent sign a release of information to allow the district to exchange information with the 
district of location. 
 

 NOTE: 
Although OSEP does not recommend it, parents can theoretically request assessment 
from both the DOS and the DOR. If this occurs, both districts are legally responsible for 
conducting assessment. DOS and DOR should exchange information, if parents’ consent. 
MOUs may exist between DOS and DOR to designate assessment responsibilities. 
 

Appendix A provides a pamphlet explaining the background and procedures for child find and the 
provision of special education services to students with disabilities voluntarily enrolled in private 
schools. 
 
Initial Individualized Education Program (IEP) Team Meeting 

1. The LEA shall convene an initial IEP team meeting to review the results of the 
assessment and determine eligibility.  Representatives of the private school and the 
district of residence will be invited.  

2. If the team determines that a parentally placed private school child is eligible for 
special education services, the parents will be asked to indicate their interest in 
enrolling the child in public school.   

3. If the parents of a private school child with a disability indicate that they are clearly 
not interested in enrolling their child in public school, the district of residence will 
request that the LEA develop an individual service plan.  In order to ensure that the 
parent’s intentions are clear, the district of residence shall request that the parents 
sign the following statement on the form entitled Certification of Parent's Decision 
Not to Enroll in Public School: “The parents of<student’s name> hereby certify 
that we are not interested in enrolling our child in the< district name> School 
District. We are not interested in the development of an IEP for our child, which 
would specify the District's offer of a free appropriate public education. We are 
only interested in a Services Plan from the LEA, the school district where the 
private school in which we are unilaterally placing our child is located. We have 
received the West End SELPA’s Notice of Parents' Rights, and we understand the 
notice.” 

4. If the parents of a private school child with a disability are interested in enrolling 
their child in public school, or are unsure of their intentions, the IEP team shall 
develop an IEP for the child.  

a) If the parents of a private school child with a disability agree with and 
consent to the IEP developed by the IEP team, the IEP shall be 
implemented without undue delay following the IEP team meeting. 

b) If the parents of a private school child with a disability agree with, but 
decline the IEP developed by the IEP team, the IEP team shall ask the 
parents to indicate their agreement with the following statement on the 
student’s IEP form: “I agree that the District of Residence has offered 
to my child a free appropriate public education, including appropriate 
services in special education. However, I am voluntarily placing my 

D-5

378



Page 222 of 233 
 

child in a private school.” The LEA would then develop an individual 
services plan. 

5. The IDEA 2004 regulations require parent consent in order for the LEA and District 
of Residence to exchange information regarding a parentally placed private school 
student.   

 
Individual Services Plan (ISP) 
 

1. The Individual Services Plan (ISP) will be developed by the district in which the 
private school is located.  Districts within the West End SELPA will use the West 
End SELPA Individual Services Plan Form. The ISP will specify services that the 
SELPA has determined in consultation with representatives of private schools, it 
will make available to parentally placed private school students. The LEA does not 
have the responsibility to develop an individual services plan if the student’s needs 
do not fall within the scope of services provided to parentally placed private school 
students with disabilities. No parentally placed private school child with a disability 
has an individual right to receive some or all of the special education services that 
the child would receive if enrolled in public school.    

2. A representative of the private school will be invited to attend the ISP meeting.  If 
a representative of the private school cannot attend the meeting, the LEA shall use 
other means to ensure that the private school representative can participate such as 
a telephone conference, or written input.   

3. The services provided pursuant to the ISP may be at a private school, including a 
religious school, to the extent consistent with law.  The location of the services will 
be identified in the student’s ISP.   Service providers must meet the same standards 
as personnel providing services in the public schools.  Service providers will be 
supervised by the LEA and may be employees of the LEA or contracted employees.  
The West End SELPA and/or the district shall not use ISP funds to finance the 
existing level of instruction in a private school or to otherwise benefit the private 
school. 

4. If transportation is necessary for a student to benefit from the services in the ISP, 
transportation will be provided to and/or from the service.  The LEA is not 
responsible for providing transportation between the student’s home and the private 
school.  The cost of transportation will be included in the calculation of the LEA’s 
expenditure of its proportionate share of federal funds. 

5. Any specialized equipment or materials provided to benefit parentally placed 
private school students with disabilities shall remain the property of the LEA and 
must be returned to the district when no longer needed, if the student is no longer 
enrolled in the private school, or if removal is necessary to avoid unauthorized use.   

6. Pursuant to federal and state law and regulations, the districts within the West End 
SELPA shall spend a proportionate share of federal funds on providing special 
education and related services, including direct services to parentally placed private 
school children ages three through 21 inclusive with disabilities eligible for special 
education services.  If the SELPA does not spend the proportionate share of federal 
funds for equitable services by the end of the fiscal year, such funds will be carried 
over to the following fiscal year for such services.   

D-5

379



Page 223 of 233 
 

7. Decisions about the services for parentally placed private school children shall be 
developed after consulting, in a timely and meaningful way, with representatives 
of private school children with disabilities, including private school representatives 
and representatives of parents in order to identify 

  a) Disabling conditions that are served; 
  b) Services provision; 
  c) How and where services will be provided, and  
  d) How services will be documented and evaluated 

8. The services for parentally placed private school students with disabilities shall be 
reviewed by the West End SELPA by means of a SELPA-wide survey and/or 
consultation with representatives of private school children ages three through 21 
inclusive with disabilities including private school representatives and 
representatives of parents. 

Meetings after the initial IEP meeting 
1. The LEA will on an annual basis notify the parents in writing of a meeting to review 

and revise the services plan.  
2. Three years after an eligible private school child’s initial IEP meeting and every 

three years thereafter, the LEA will notify the parent and the District of Residence 
in writing that the three-year re-evaluation is due and provide the parent with an 
assessment plan.   

 
Dispute Resolution 

1. When FAPE is not an issue, special education due process procedures are not 
available to parents for resolving disagreements about the services provided to 
private school children unilaterally placed by their parents. 

2. No school district is required to pay for the cost of educating a child with a disability 
at a private school, including special education and related services, if:  a) the 
school district made a FAPE available to the child, and  
b) the parents voluntarily elected to place the child in a private school. 

3. Disputes regarding whether a school district made a FAPE available to the child, as 
well as the initial location, identification and assessment of parentally placed 
private school children with disabilities, may be resolved pursuant to local policies 
and procedures and/or by filing a request for due process hearing with the Office of 
Administrative Hearings. 

4. Disputes regarding the West End SELPA’s Children with Disabilities Enrolled by 
Their Parents in Private Schools policy and procedures may be resolved pursuant 
to local uniform complaint policies and procedures, and/or by filing a complaint 
with the California Department of Education pursuant to Title 5 of the California 
Code of Regulations Section 4600 et seq. 

Preschool Children with Disabilities  

Preschool is never considered private school and does not follow any of the private school 
procedures or requirements. This includes children under the age of six who are parentally enrolled 
in a private preschool (e.g. KinderCare, La Petite, etc.) instead of a public preschool (e.g. Head 
Start, State Preschool, etc.). The district of residence is responsible for child find and offering and 
implementing FAPE on an IEP.  

D-5

380



Page 224 of 233 
 

A student enrolled in a transitional kindergarten or kindergarten program at a private school found 
eligible for special education services is to be maintained on an IEP until age 6. At age six, the 
student is considered a private school student and the DOR and DOS will follow the private school 
procedures and requirements. This is true even if the school is a Private Preschool/TK/Kinder 
program. The determination is based on the student’s age, not grade level and not the location of 
the program. 

 
 
Certification of Assurances 
 
The West End Annual Service Plan has been adopted at a public hearing held by the special 
education local plan and notice of this hearing was posted in each school district in the special 
education local plan area at least 15 days prior to the hearing. 

 
The West End SELPA Superintendents Council is responsible to hold the public hearing. 
 

SECTION B – Calculation of Proportionate 
Share of Federal Funds  
  
The Proportionate Share calculations of IDEA funding are based on the California Longitudinal 
Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) codes, as indicated in the items below: 
  

A. CALPADS total child count for Code 100 individualized education program (IEP) 
children who are IDEA-eligible children with disabilities with an IEP and enrolled in the 
SELPA’s member LEAs, between the ages of three and twenty-one, reported on the prior 
year CALPADS Census Day.  

B. CALPADS total child count for Code 200 and/or Code 700 children who are IDEA-
eligible parentally-placed children with disabilities, enrolled in elementary or secondary 
private schools within the SELPA’s member LEA’s boundaries, between the ages of 
three and twenty-one, and reported on the prior year CALPADS End-of-Year 4 (EOY4) 
submission, child count.  

C. Combine Items A and B child count for the total child count of IDEA eligible children 
with disabilities with an IEP and enrolled in the SELPA’s member LEAs and children 
who are IDEA-eligible parentally-placed children with disabilities enrolled in elementary 
or secondary private schools within the LEA’s boundaries, between the ages of three and 
twenty-one. 

D. Total Federal IDEA Part B allocation amount for the current school year  
  
Calculations:  
  

1.   Item D ÷ Item C = Average Allocation Per IDEA Eligible Child 
  

2.   Average Allocation Per IDEA Eligible Child X Item B = Total Proportionate Share         

D-5

381



Page 225 of 233 
 

This section explains the calculation method used by SELPA, the sample calculation for 

proportionate share, and documentation for fiscal audit. 

Calculation 

One time each year a pupil count of the number of eligible parentally placed private school 
calculate the proportionate share that an LEA must spend, the SELPA uses the Federal Part 
students with an ISP will take place. Each DOS will determine the number and location of 
parentally placed private school children eligible for special education within the LEA’s 
jurisdiction and report the information in CASEMIS. SELPA then calculates the proportionate 
share of federal dollars generated from the December 1 pupil count to be allocated to provide 
special education and related services to private school students. 

IDEA section 611 (6-21 year olds) grant awards and the pupil count from the most recent 
December 1 count. 

Sample Calculation 

FOR SAMPLE DISTRICT: 

# of eligible children in public schools = 300 

# of eligible children in private schools (from June 30 count) = 20 

Total # of eligible children = 320 

AT DECEMBER 1 PUPIL COUNT: 

# of children served in public schools = 300 

# of children served in private schools = 5 

Total # of public & private children served = 305 

NOTE: 305 is the number turned in to OSEP for children served with IEP or service plan. 

FEDERAL FLOW-THROUGH FUNDS TO SAMPLE SCHOOL DISTRICT: 

Total allocation = $152,5005 

FORMULA FOR CALCULATING PROPORTIONATE SHARE: 

= _________________________ : ___________________________ 

NOTE: Proportionate share for parentally-placed private school children is based on total 

number of children eligible, not the number of children served. 

SAMPLE SCHOOL DISTRICT OBLIGATION: 

__________ : __________ 

$152,500 320 

X = $9,531.25 * 

D-5

382



Page 226 of 233 
 

*This amount must be spent for the group of parentally-placed children in private schools 

Based on the calculation of the total number of children with disabilities attending a private 
school within the DOS’s jurisdiction, each DOS must spend the proportionate share of the 
DOS’s sub-grant under Part B on services for parentally placed private school children with 
disabilities during the grant award period 27 of months. Input is provided by the private school 
representatives regarding type and frequency of services based on Federal dollars received for 
each student. Parentally placed private school students receive notification about the provision of 
special education services via the Private School Protocol. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

383



Page 227 of 233 
 

APPENDIX A 
Individual Service Plan 

West End Special Education Local Plan Area  □  San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools 
Individual Service Plan for Students Enrolled by Their Parents in Private School 

 

Meeting Date: _____________________________ 
 
PURPOSE OF MEETING:   Initial Meeting        Plan Review      Reevaluation  
 
Student Name:___________________________________  DOB:_________  CA:___  Grade:____ Gender:  M   F 

Parent/Guardian/Surrogate:_______________________________________________________________________ 

Address:_______________________________________________  City/State/Zip:__________________________ 

Phone: Home:(___)______________ Work-Mother:(___)________________  Work-Father:(___)______________ 

Private School Name:_____________________________________  Contact:_______________________________ 

Address:______________________________________________  City/State/Zip:__________________________ 
 

I agree that the district of residence has offered my child a free and appropriate public education and special 
education services.  However, I am voluntarily placing my child in a private school.  Please initial: ___Yes     ___No   
 
The district of residence has offered a program of special education services to the student in a public school setting 
pursuant to an Individual Education Program (IEP), dated ______________, designed to provide a free appropriate 
public education.  The parents have declined to enroll their child in public school where special education services 
are offered in accordance with the IEP.   Instead they have placed or continued the enrollment of their child in a 
private school at their own expense.  The parents have been informed that the district of residence has no 
responsibility for the costs of this placement. 
 
Pursuant to 20 USC 1412(a)(10), the district where the private school is located will provide the following special 
education service(s) for the student enrolled in private school: 

Service(s) Personnel Responsible Frequency/Duration Location 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

    

 

The following individuals have participated in this Individual Service Plan meeting: 
 
____________________________________________ ___________________________________________ 
Parent/Guardian/Surrogate   Date  Private School Representative  Date 
 

D-5

384



Page 228 of 233 
 

____________________________________________ ___________________________________________ 
Administrator    Date  Additional Participant/Title  Date 
 
____________________________________________ ___________________________________________ 
Special Education Teacher/Provider Date  Additional Participant/Title  Date 
____________________________________________ ___________________________________________ 
General Education Teacher  Date  Additional Participant/Title  Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please attach the developed portion of the Individual Education Program (IEP) to this Individual Service Plan. 

Notification of Parental Intent 
[LETTERHEAD] 
 
[DATE] 
 
[PARENT’S NAME] 
[STREET] 
[CITY, CALIFORNIA, ZIP] 
 
Re:  Private School Student 
 
Dear [PARENT’S NAME]:  
 
Your child has previously been identified as a student eligible for special education; however, you have 
voluntarily chosen to enroll your child in a private school.  Federal laws and regulations require school 
districts to identify, locate and assess students enrolled in private schools. 
 
The law also requires that districts provide special education and related services to students enrolled in 
private schools, consistent with their numbers and needs using a proportionate share of federal funding. 
This obligation is the responsibility of the school district where the private school is located.   
 
Please be advised that your district of residence, continues to make available a free appropriate public 
education to your child. If you express an interest in enrolling your child in a public school, the school 
district will develop an IEP for your child.  The district will then implement that IEP if and when you enroll 
your child in a public school.  If you choose to continue to enroll your child in private school and the private 
school your child attends is in the [DISTRICT], we will continue to offer you an Individual Service Plan. 
 
Please inform us of how you intend to proceed with regard to your child by completing the enclosed 
Notification of Parent Intent form.  Thank you for your prompt attention to this inquiry.  If you have any 
questions or need further information, please do not hesitate to contact us at [PHONE NUMBER].   
 
Sincerely, 
 
[Title] 
 
 

  

D-5

385



Page 229 of 233 
 

 
Children Eligible for Special Education Enrolled by Their Parents in Private School 

Notification of Parent Intent 
 

Student’s Name: ______________________  DOB: ______________________  
 
Private School of Attendance:  ____________________________________________ 
 
Private School Address: __________________________________________________ 
 
Individual Services Plan (If Private School is located in District’s boundaries)  
Please select one of the options below: 
 
 My child has an Individual Service Plan.   

 I consent to my child’s continued receipt of services as outlined in the Individual Service 
Plan 

 I decline my child’s continued receipt of services as outlined in the Individual Service 
Plan 

 I would like to schedule a meeting to review my child’s Individual Service Plan 
 My child does not have an Individual Service Plan 
  I would like to schedule a meeting to develop an Individual Service Plan 
  I am not interested in an Individual Service Plan 
Reevaluation Review (If Private School is located in District’s boundaries) 
If the box below is checked, please select one of the options: 
 
 Your child is due for a three-year review to determine if they continue to be eligible for special 

education. 
 I request a three-year assessment review, please contact me to schedule the assessment. 
 I decline a three-year assessment review, I understand that my child will not receive 

services under an Individual Service Plan, if continued eligibility for special education 
cannot be determined.   

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Print Name 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Signature      Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-5

386



Page 230 of 233 
 

 
Certification of Parent's Decision  

Not to Enroll in Public School 
 

 
Student’s Name:  ______________________ D.O.B.  _______________ 
 
Address:  ________________________________________________________ 
 
District of Residence:  ____________Date of Last Reevaluation: ______ 
 
School of Attendance:  ___________ District of Attendance: ________________ 
 
 
The parents of ___________________ hereby certify that we understand that our child 
has been found to be eligible for special education services and the District of residence 
is required to provide free and appropriate special education services to all students 
enrolled in public school.  We understand that by unilaterally placing our child in a 
private school, our child has no entitlement to the special education services they would 
receive if enrolled in public school.   
 
We certify that we are not interested in enrolling our child in the __________________ 
School District. We are not interested in the development of an IEP for our child, which 
would specify the District of residence’s offer of a free appropriate public education. We 
are only interested in an Individual Service Plan from the LEA, the school district where 
the private school in which we are unilaterally placing our child is located. We have 
received the West End SELPA’s Notice of Parents' Rights, and we understand the notice.  
We are knowingly and voluntarily signing this certificate.   
 
________________________ _________________________   ________ 

 Parent’s Name    Parent’s Signature       Date  
 
 

________________________ _________________________   ________ 
 Parent’s Name    Parent’s Signature       Date 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

  

D-5

387



Page 231 of 233 
 

 
 
 
 

 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
SECTION A WESELPA DISPUTE RESOLUTION CONTINUUM  

SECTION B PREVENTATIVE  

SECTION C DISAGREEMENT  

SECTION D RESOLUTION  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

D-5

388



Page 232 of 233 
 

Introduction 
 
The West End SELPA is committed to providing a comprehensive continuum of supports for 
dispute prevention and resolution in special education. Our approach focuses on fostering 
collaboration and building positive relationships among all stakeholders, including families, 
educators, and community partners. The Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) process is an 
integral part of our strategy, designed to address concerns proactively and resolve conflicts 
effectively. This manual outlines the procedures and strategies utilized within our ADR 
continuum to ensure equitable and constructive outcomes for all parties involved. 

 
SECTION A- Dispute Resolution Continuum 

 

ADR Continuum

I Prevention

II Disagreement

III Resolution

West End SELPA's continuum of  dispute
prevention and resolution supports

Community Outreach
Family Engagement 
Professional Development
Parent Video Modules
Accessible information via
Website 
Consultation (Proactive and
Preventative)

Parent Outreach
Representative

Facilitated Resolution Sessions
Conflict Resolution
Coaching/Consultation
Restorative Mediation
Negotiation and Settlement Support

IEP facilitation
(Coordinator/PS/Psych)
Strategy Session (Navigating through
Disagreement) 

WE EDUCATE • WE CARE • WESELPA

D-5

389



Page 233 of 233 

SECTION B – Preventative 
The preventative phase of the ADR continuum emphasizes early intervention and proactive 
strategies to prevent disputes before they arise. This includes community outreach initiatives, 
family engagement activities, professional development opportunities, and the provision of 
accessible information through various mediums, such as parent video modules and a dedicated 
website. Our consultation services are also key components of this phase, offering proactive and 
preventative guidance to families and educators. By equipping stakeholders with the knowledge 
and skills needed to navigate the complexities of special education, we aim to build a foundation 
of understanding and collaboration that minimizes the likelihood of disagreements. 

SECTION C - Disagreement 
Despite the best preventative efforts, disagreements can still occur. The disagreement phase of 
the ADR continuum is designed to address these situations promptly and constructively. Our 
approach includes facilitated resolution sessions, conflict resolution coaching and consultation, 
and restorative mediation. These services are intended to support parties in navigating through 
disagreements with a focus on open communication and mutual respect. We also provide 
strategy sessions to assist families and educators in understanding their options and making 
informed decisions. The goal during this phase is to address conflicts at the earliest stage 
possible to prevent escalation and to maintain positive relationships among all parties involved. 

SECTION D – Resolution 
When disagreements progress beyond initial resolution efforts, the resolution phase of the ADR 
continuum comes into play. This phase includes more structured interventions such as 
negotiation and settlement support, facilitated resolution sessions and restorative mediation. The 
goal is to work collaboratively with families and educators to reach amicable solutions that are in 
the best interest of the student. The resolution phase is designed to ensure that all parties feel 
heard and that the final agreements are fair, equitable, and sustainable. By fostering an 
environment of cooperation and understanding, we strive to resolve disputes in a manner that 
strengthens the overall special education process. 

These narratives capture the essence of each section of the procedure manual, focusing on the 
ADR continuum's various stages to support dispute prevention and resolution in special 
education. 

D-5

390


	C-1  Fiscal Timelines & Matrix.pdf
	24-25 WE Account Code Matrix - 2024-08-20.pdf
	WESELPA SACS Matrix


	C-3  23-24 SBCSS Final PreK Facility Cost.pdf
	2023-24 Final True Up

	C-4  23-24 SBCSS Final LCFF Revenue Trf.pdf
	Calculation

	C-5  23-24 SBCSS FFS Actuals.pdf
	Comparison
	WE 23-24 FFS w LCFF 
	Return


	LEA Requesting Program Transfer: 
	Current Program Provider: 
	Date of Request: 
	Effective Date of Transfer: 
	asses at: 
	ProgramRow1: 
	LocationRow1: 
	 of Students ImpactedRow1: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow1: 
	ProgramRow2: 
	LocationRow2: 
	 of Students ImpactedRow2: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow2: 
	ProgramRow3: 
	LocationRow3: 
	 of Students ImpactedRow3: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow3: 
	ProgramRow4: 
	LocationRow4: 
	 of Students ImpactedRow4: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow4: 
	ProgramRow5: 
	LocationRow5: 
	 of Students ImpactedRow5: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow5: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	ProgramRow1_2: 
	LocationRow1_2: 
	 of TeachersRow1: 
	 of AidesRow1: 
	 of StudentsRow1: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow1_2: 
	ProgramRow2_2: 
	LocationRow2_2: 
	 of TeachersRow2: 
	 of AidesRow2: 
	 of StudentsRow2: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow2_2: 
	ProgramRow3_2: 
	LocationRow3_2: 
	 of TeachersRow3: 
	 of AidesRow3: 
	 of StudentsRow3: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow3_2: 
	ProgramRow4_2: 
	LocationRow4_2: 
	 of TeachersRow4: 
	 of AidesRow4: 
	 of StudentsRow4: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow4_2: 
	ProgramRow5_2: 
	LocationRow5_2: 
	 of TeachersRow5: 
	 of AidesRow5: 
	 of StudentsRow5: 
	Other Relevant InformationRow5_2: 
	1 W i l l the proposed LEA program serve distr i ct students only  If not what other distr i cts students w i l l be eligible: 
	2 If a distr i ct student i s not appropr i ate for the districtoperated program how w i l l the student be served: 
	3 How will related services be prov i ded: 
	4 Is the LEA request i ng a transfer of mater i als and equipment: 
	5 Is the LEA request i ng a transfer of fac i l i t i es: 
	6 Are the opportunit i es for educat i on in the LRE different i n the proposed program different from the current program: 
	7 What i s the impact of the transfer on other LEAs i n the SELPA: 
	8 How w i l l parents be involved in the program transfer planning process: 
	9 How will affected staff be involved in the program transfer planning process: 


